ISSN P - 0973-5666 ISSN E - 0973-5674

Volume 14

Number 4 October-December 2020

Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy



An International Journal

website: www.ijpot.com

Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy

Editor

Archna Sharma

Ex-Head Dept. of Physiotherapy, G. M. Modi Hospital, Saket, New Delhi - 110 017 Email : editor.ijpot@gmail.com

Sub-Editor

Kavita Behal

MPT (Ortho)

Editorial Advisory Board

- Vikram Mohan (Lecturer) Universiti Teknologi MARA, Malaysia
- Angusamy Ramadurai (Principal) Nyangabgwe Referral Hospital, Botswana
- Faizan Zaffar Kashoo (Lecturer) College Applied Medical Sciences, Al-Majma'ah University, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
- Amr Almaz Abdel-aziem (Assistant Professor) of Biomechanics, Faculty of Physical Therapy, Cairo University, Egypt
- Abhilash Babu Surabhi (Physiotherapist) Long Sault, Ontario, Canada
- Avanianban Chakkarapani (Senior Lecturer) Quest International University Perak, IPOH, Malaysia
- Manobhiram Nellutla (Safety Advisor) Fiosa-Miosa Safety Alliance of BC, Chilliwack, British Columbia
- Jaya Shanker Tedla (Assistant Professor) College of Applied Medical Sciences, Saudi Arabia
- Stanley John Winser (PhD Candidate) at University of Otago, New Zealand
- Salwa EI-Sobkey (Associate Professor) King Saud University, Saudi Arabia
- Saleh Aloraibi (Associate Professor) College of Applied Medical Sciences, Saudi Arabia
- Rashij M, Faculty-PT Neuro Sciences College of Allied Health Sciences, UAE
- Mohmad Waseem, (Exercise Therapist) Alberta- CANADA
- Muhammad Naveed Babur (Principle & Associate Professor) Isra University, Islamabad, Pakistan
- Zbigniew Sliwinski (Professor) Jan Kochanowski University in Kielce
- Mohammed Taher Ahmed Omar (Assistant Professor) Cairo University, Giza, Egypt
- Ganesan Kathiresan (DBC Senior Physiotherapist) Kuching, Sarawak, Malaysia
- Kartik Shah (Health Consultant) for the Yoga Expo, Canada
- Shweta Gore (Senior Physical Therapist) Narayan Rehabilitation, Bad Axe, Michigan, USA
- Ashokan Arumugam MPT (Ortho & Manual Therapy), PhD, Department of Physical Therapy, College of Applied Medical Sciences, Majmaah University, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
- Veena Raigangar (Lecturer) Dept. of Physiotherapy University of Sharjah,U.A.E
- Dave Bhargav (Senior Physical Therapist) Houston, Texas
- Dr. Jagatheesan A, Assistant Professor, Gulf Medical University, Ajman, UAE.
- Dr.C.B.Senthilkumar, Assistant Professor-Physical Therapy, Jazan University, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
- Mohammad Anamul haque, Physiotherapist, Prince Sultan Military Medical City, Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arab

- Charu Garg (Incharge PT), Sikanderpur Hospital (MJSMRS), Sirsa Haryana, India
- Vaibhav Madhukar Kapre (Associate Professor) MGM Institute of Physiotherapy, Aurangabad (Maharashtra)
- Amit Vinayak Nagrale (Associate Professor) Maharashtra Institute
 of Physiotherapy, Latur, Maharashtra
- Manu Goyal (*Principal*), M.M University Mullana, Ambala, Haryana, India
- P. Shanmuga Raju (Asst. Professor & I/C Head) Chalmeda AnandRao Institute of Medical Sciences, Karimnagar, Andhra Pradesh
- Sudhanshu Pandey (Consultant Physical Therapy and Rehabilitation) Department / Base Hospital, Delhi
- Aparna Sarkar (Associate Professor) AIPT, Amity university, Noida
- Jasobanta Sethi (Professor & Head) Lovely Professional University, Phagwara, Punjab
- Patitapaban Mohanty (Assoc. Professor & H.O.D) SVNIRTAR, Cuttack, Odisha
- Suraj Kumar (HOD and Lecturer) Physiotherapy Rural Institute of Medical Sciences & Research, Paramedical Vigyan Mahavidhyalaya Saifai, Etawah,UP
- U.Ganapathy Sankar (Vice Principal) SRM College of Occupational Therapy, Kattankulathur, Tamil Nadu
- Hemant Juneja (Head of Department & Associate Professor)
 Amar Jyoti Institute of Physiotherapy, Delhi
- Sanjiv Kumar (I/C Principal & Professor) KLEU Institute of Physiotherapy, Belgaum, Karnataka
- Shaji John Kachanathu (Associate Professor) Jaipur Physiotherapy College, Rajasthan, India
- Narasimman Swaminathan (Professor, Course Coordinator and Head) Father Muller Medical College, Mangalore
- Pooja Sharma (Assistant Professor) AIPT, Amity University, Noida
 Nilima Bedekar (Professor, HOD) Musculoskeletal Sciences,
- Sancheti Institute College of Physiotherapy, Pune.
- N.Venkatesh (Principal and Professor) Sri Ramachandra university, Chennai
- Meenakshi Batra (Senior Occupational Therapist), Pandit Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Institute for The Physically Handicapped, New Delhi
- Shovan Saha, T (Associate Professor & Head) Occupational Therapy School of Allied Health Sciences, Manipal University, Manipal, Karnataka
- Akshat Pandey, Sports Physiotherapist, Indian Weightlifting Federation / Senior Men and Woman / SAI NSNIS Patiala
- Maneesh Arora, Professor and as Head of Dept, Sardar Bhagwan (P.G.) Institute of Biomemical Sciences, Balawala, Dehradun, UK
- Deepak Sharan, Medical Director and Sole Proprietor, RECOUP
 Neuromusculoskeletal Rehabilitation Centre, New Delhi
- Jayaprakash Jayavelu, Chief Physiotherapist –Medanta The Medicity, Gurgaon Haryana
- Vaibhav Agarwal, Incharge, Dept of physiotherapy, HIHT, Dehradun,
- Shipra Bhatia, Assistant Professor, AIPT, Amity university, Noida
- Jaskirat Kaur, Assistant Professor, Indian Spinal Injuries Center, New Delhi

Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy

- **Prashant Mukkanavar**, *Assistant Professor*, S.D.M College of Physiotherapy, Dharwad, Karnataka
- Chandan Kumar, Associate Professor & HOD, Neuro-physiotherapy, Mahatma Gandhi Mission's Institute of Physiotherapy, Aurangabad, Maharashtra
- Satish Sharma, Assistant Professor, I.T.S. Paramedical College Murad Nagar Ghaziabad
- Richa, Assistant Professor, I.T.S. Paramedical College Murad Nagar Ghaziabad
- Manisha Uttam, Research Scholar, Punjabi University, Patiala
- Dr. Ashfaque Khan (PT), HOD Physiotherapy, Integral University Lucknow U.P,
- Dr. Dibyendunarayan Bid (PT) Senior Lecturer
 The Sarvajanik College of Physiotherapy Rampura, Surat
- Vijayan Gopalakrishna Kurup, Senior Physiotherapist, Rajagiri Healthcare & Education Trust, Aluva, Kerala
- Charu Chadha, Assistant Professor, Banarsidas Chandiwala Institute of Physiotherapy Kalka Ji, New Delhi,
- Neeraj Kumar, Programme Chair & Asst. Professor In Galgotias University, Greater Noida
- Dr.Amandeep Singh, Professor & Head, Department of Physiotherapy, Chandigarh University, Mohali, Punjab
- Gaurav Shori (Assistant Professor) I.T.S College of Physiotherapy
- Baskaran Chandrasekaran (Senior Physiotherapist) PSG Hospitals, Coimbatore
- Dharam Pandey (Sr. Consultant & Head of Department) BLK
 Super Speciality Hospital, New Delhi
- Jeba Chitra (Associate Professor) KLEU Institute of Physiotherapy Belgaum, Karnataka
- Deepak B.Anap (Associate Professor) PDVPPF's, College of Physiotherapy, Ahmednagar. (Maharashtra)
- Shalini Grover (Assistant Professor) HOD-FAS,MRIU
- Vijay Batra (Lecturer) ISIC Institute of Rehab. Sciences
- Ravinder Narwal (Lecturer) Himalayan Hospital, HIHIT Medical University, Dehradun-UK.

- Abraham Samuel Babu (Assistant Professor) Manipal College of Allied Health Sciences, Manipal
- Anu Bansal (Assistant Professor and Clinical Coordinator) AIPT, Amity University, Noida
- Bindya Sharma (Assistant Professor) Dr. D. Y. Patil College of Physiotherapy, Pune
- Dheeraj Lamba, Associate Professor & Research Coordinator, School of Physiotherapy, Lovely Professional University, Phagwara (India)
- Soumya G (Assistant Professor) (MSRMC)
- Nalina Gupta Singh (Assistant Professor) Physiotherapy, Amar Jyoti Institute of Physiotherapy, University of Delhi
- Gayatri Jadav Upadhyay (Academic Head) Academic Physiotherapist & Consultant PT, RECOUP Neuromusculoskeletal Rehabilitation Centre, Bangalore
- Nusrat Hamdani (Asst. Professor and Consultant) Neurophysiotherapy (Rehabilitation Center, Jamia Hamdard) New Delhi
- Ramesh Debur Visweswara (Assistant Professor) M.S. Ramaiah Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore
- Nishat Quddus (Assistant Professor) Jamia Hamdard, New Delhi
- Anand Kumar Singh, Assistant Professor, RP Indraprast Institute of Medical Sciences Karnal, Haryana
- Pardeep Pahwa, Lecturer, Composite Regional Rehabilitation Centre, Sunder-Nagar under NIVH (Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment, New Delhi
- Dr. Parul Sharma, Assistant Professor School of Physiotherapy Delhi Pharmaceutical Sciences and Research University Government of NCT of Delhi
- Dr. Jyoti Kataria, Assistant Professor Delhi Phmaceutical Science and Research University New Delhi
- Shilpa Jain Dalal, Assistant Professor in School of Physiotherapy, Delhi Pharmaceutical Sciences & Research University, New Delhi

"Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy" An essential indexed peer reviewed journal for all physiotherapists & occupational therapists provides professionals with a forum to discuss today's challenges- identifying the philosophical and conceptual foundations of the practice; sharing innovative evaluation and treatment techniques; learning about and assimilating new methodologies developing in related professions; and communicating information about new practice settings. The journal serves as a valuable tool for helping therapists deal effectively with the challenges of the field. It emphasizes articles and reports that are directly relevant to practice. The journal is now covered by INDEX COPERNICUS, POLAND and covered by many internet databases. The Journal is registered with Registrar of Newspapers for India vide registration number DELENG/2007/20988

Print- ISSN: 0973-5666, Electronic - ISSN: 0973-5674, Frequency: Quarterly (4 issues per volume).

Website: www.ijpot.com

Editor

© All Rights reserved The views and opinions expressed are of the authors and not of the Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. The Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy does not guarantee directly or indirectly the quality or efficacy of any products or service featured in the advertisement in the journal, which are purely commercial.

Archna Sharma Institute of Medico-legal Publications Logix Office Tower, Unit No. 1704, Logix City Centre Mall, Sector- 32, Noida - 201 301 (Uttar Pradesh)

Printed, published and owned by

Archna Sharma Institute of Medico-legal Publications Logix Office Tower, Unit No. 1704, Logix City Centre Mall, Sector- 32, Noida - 201 301 (Uttar Pradesh)

Published at

Institute of Medico-legal Publications

Logix Office Tower, Unit No. 1704, Logix City Centre Mall, Sector- 32, Noida - 201 301 (Uttar Pradesh)



Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy

www.ijpot.com

CONTENTS			
Vol	ume 14, Number 4 October-December 2	020	
1.	Prevalnace of Knee Pain in Chronic Stroke Patients with Weight Bearing Asymmetry Anmol Sonavane, Akshay Limaye	1	
2.	Effect of Backpack on Static and Dynamic Balance in Healthy School Children: A Comparison Authors-Atiya A ShaikhMPTh, Shanan G Tendulkar	7	
3.	Association of Hand Performance with Neck Disability in Text Neck Syndrome among College Students Bhavna Anand, Priya Sharma	13	
4.	Effectiveness of Exercise with Balloon for Low Back Pain in Young Adults: A quasi experimental study	20	
5.	Knowledge and Attitude Towards Hepatitis B Patients among Physiotherapy Students- A Cross Sectional Study Feba Roy, Fathima Thamanna, Fathimathul Irfana, Salman CM, Mahamad Jasir.K S, Mudasir Rashid Baba	27	
6.	To Assess the Level of Stress Among University Undergraduate Physiotherapy Students Jagruti k Patel, Kajal A Hadiya	33	
7.	Association of Anxiety with Cognition and Academic Performance in Overweight and Obese Adolescents - A Cross Sectional Study Jeba Chitra, Vinuta Deshpande, Sharon Queenie Crasta	40	
8.	Reliability and Validity of the Kannada Version of the Parental Stress Scale	48	
9.	Comparison of Postural Stability between Sports Playing Versus Non -Sports Playing Adolescent with BMI > 85 Th Percentile <i>Nehali Shringarpure , Khyati Kothary</i>	53	
10.	Effect of Repetitive Task Training to Improve Sit to Stand Performance and Activities of Daily Living Skills in Patients with Stroke <i>Kumaresan Arumugam, Senthilkumar Cennappan Bose, Rama Kumar Sahu</i>	57	
11.	A Study to Compare The Effects of Unilateral Arm Training Versus Bilateral Arm Training in Post-Stroke Patients with Motor Impairment of Hand	63	

12.	Effectiveness of Combined Balance and Step Training versus Task-Oriented Exercises with Sensory Input on Balance in Older Adults – A Comparative Study <i>Mona Patel, Sadhana Mukhi, Mihirdev Jhala</i>	73
13.	Validity and Reliability of the Marathi Translation of the International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ) in rural Area in Maharashtra	79
14.	Comparison of Task Oriented Therapy and Modified Constraint Induced Movement Therapy along with Functional Electrical Stimulation to Improve Hand Function In Sub Acute Stroke survivors: a Randomized Control Trial	84
15.	Classifications of Adolescent Idiopathic Scoliosis in Relation to Physiotherapy Naveen Kumar Balne, S. Afshan Jabeen, Neeharika Mathukumalli	91
16.	Purposeful Occupational Therapy Intervention for Behavioural Competencies in Preschoolers for Transit from Home to School: A Randomized Controlled Study	97
17.	Effect of Core Stability Exercise in Patients with Neckpain Nikita Shah, Manmitkaur A Gill, Sandhya Kashyapketan Singal, Mumtajben Payla	102
18.	Y Balance Normative Data of Dynamic Balance for Collegiate Soccer Players Nizamudheen PK, Sajjad A R Ebrahim	108
19.	Stem Cell Therapy& Its Application in Neurological Conditions A Review Omeshree Nagrale, Mohammed Shoaib C	113
20.	Assessment of Balance in Individuals Suffering from Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Diseases Pooja Madhukar Kamble, Poonam Parulekar	120
21.	Scapular and Pelvic PNF Pattern for Female Physical Education Students with Low Back Pain Pooja Saxena, Senthilkumar Thiyagarajan	127
22.	Effect of Arch Index of Foot on Dynamic Balance in Healthy Young Adults Poonam Kulkarni, Jyotsna Thosar	134
23.	A Study on Prevalence of Musculoskeletal and Work Related Risk Factors among Fish Processing Industry Workers in Mangalore: - A Community based Survey Priyanka Nayak, Shyam Krishnan, Vivek Vijayan Menon, Vijaya Kumar	141
24.	The Efficacy of Sleeper's Stretch and Movement with mobilization on Pain, Range of Motion & Functional Capacity in Patients with Adhesive Capsulitis <i>R. Chidambaram', P. Muruganandam, Kanchan S. Bhandure</i>	149
25.	To Study the Combined Effect of Lumbar and Stabilization Exercises and Ift in Subjects with Chronic Low Back Pain- An Experimental Study Raghani Pinky Pahilaj, Ajay Kumar	156

		III
26.	Comparative Study of History Causes and Risk of Fall among Elderly People and People with Parkinson's Disease	.164
27.	Relationship between Functional Impairment and Social Network in Adult Stroke Survivors- A Pilot Study Samuel S. E, Suresh B.V, Anjana S	.171
28.	A Comparative Study Effectiveness of Conventional Physiotherapy versus Yoga Therapy on Pain, Core Muscle Endurance, Lumbar Flexion Range of Motion and Functional Disability in Patients with Chronic Mechanical Low Back Pain	.177
29.	Effect of Core Stability Exercises on Low Back Pain and Disability in Mother's of Cerebral Palsy Sharayu Agre, Ronika Agrawal, Aafreen Nizami, Sana Shaikh	183
30.	Prevalence of Compulsive Exercise in Physically Active Adults Shivani Pathania, Mahak Sharma, Preeti Saini	. 190
31.	Prevalence of Carpal Tunnel Syndrome among Third Trimester Pregnant Women – An Institutional Based Study Sonia, Smitha D	. 196
32.	Effect of Sub Occipital Release, Myofascial Release with Iastm Tool on Cervicogenic Headache Venkata Naveen Kumar V, Seema Saini, Tushar J. Palekar, Nidhi Chandra	.204
33.	Effect of CDT and IPC in Secondary Upper Extremity Lymphedema in Women Post Breast Cancer Surgery on Anxiety, Depression and Quality of Life Bhavna Anand , Ruchika Kalra, Harshita Sharma	.211
34.	Correlation between Psychological Status and Fatigue in Patients with Head and Neck Cancer after Chemotherapy- A Pilot Study <i>Nigat Fathima P.A, Ayesha Huda T, Aysha Rayeena, Rehanaz, Rhea Verona Lobo</i>	.217
35.	The Effect of Guided Motor Imagery on Functional Gait Performance in Post Stroke Patients	.223
36.	Relationship between Anthropometric Parameters and Throwing Velocity among Male Undergraduate College Students: A Cross-Sectional Study <i>Yasir K, Nigat Fathima P.A</i>	. 231

Prevalnace of Knee Pain in Chronic Stroke Patients with Weight Bearing Asymmetry

Anmol Sonavane¹, Akshay Limaye²

¹Intern, College of Physiotherapy, Wanless Hospital, MMC, Miraj, Maharashtra, India, ²Assistant Professor, College of physiotherapy, Wanless Hospital, MMC, Miraj, Maharashtra, India.

Abstract

Background : Stroke is sudden loss of neurological function caused by an interruption of the blood flow to the brain. Stroke survivors experience a long-term balance and mobility problems. Generally the non-paretic limb bears more weight than the paretic limb; this is known as weight bearing asymmetry. Walking dysfunction is most commonly reported limitation after stroke and can markedly affect independence, quality of life, and participation. As a result of weight bearing asymmetry and persisting stroke-related gait deviations there can be development of secondary musculoskeletal complications.

Materials & Methodology : A cross-sectional study with stroke (n=100) patient was done in duration of 6 months. Patient with pain in knee before stroke, hemispatial neglect, who couldn't follow verbal commands, unable to stand independently, were excluded. Weight bearing asymmetry was checked with the help of 2 weighing scales. Pain was assessed with the help of McGill pain questionnaire.

Results : It was found that mean age of patients was 52.89 years, mean height was 1.67, mean weight was 65.18kgs, and mean BMI was 23.45 (normal). Mean time since stroke was 24.21 months, mean weight on right lower limb was 32.46 kg and mean weight on left lower limb was 32.26 kg and mean McGill pain score was 23.40. Correlation analyses revealed a moderate positive relationship between weight and weight on right lower limb (r=-0.51, p<0.01) also weight and weight on left lower limb (r=-0.57, p<0.01). A moderate negative relationship between weight on right lower limb and weight on left lower limb (r=-0.41, p<0.01). Finally, it was found that out of 100 chronic stroke patients, 48 patients had knee pain in non-paretic limb with weight bearing asymmetry.

Conclusion : There is impact on knee joint in chronic stroke patient with weight bearing asymmetry.

Keywords : stroke, weight bearing asymmetry, knee pain, McGill pain questionnaire.

Introduction

The world Health Organization (WHO) has defined Stroke as "rapidly developing clinical signs of focal (or global) disturbance of cerebral function, with symptoms lasting 24 hours or longer or leading to death, with no apparent cause other than of vascular origin.⁽¹⁾ Stroke is sudden loss of neurological function caused by an interruption of blood flow to the brain.⁽²⁾

There are two types of stroke. One is ischemic and other is hemorrhagic. The commonest type of stroke is ischemic, which affects 80% of the individuals with stroke. Ischemic type of stroke occurs when there is a clot block which impairs blood flow which in turn deprives brain its essential oxygen and nutrients. Abnormal bleeding in extra vascular areas of brain can be result of rupture of a cerebral vessel which is known as hemorrhagic stroke.⁽²⁾

A variety of focal deficits are possible, which includes change in the level of consciousness and sensory, motor, cognitive, perceptual and language function impairments. Neurological deficits that persists for at least 24 hours can be classified as stroke. The impairments that persists longer than 3 weeks and which may lead to lasting disability is known as residual neurological impairments.⁽²⁾

of persisting stroke-related gait deviations. ⁽⁶⁾

Impaired balance or postural control is one of the commonest problems in individual with stroke. This results in poor performance of activities of daily living, mobility, uneven weight distribution which is known as weight bearing asymmetry and also leads to increased risk of falls. Balance disability can be seen in all types of balance control that are static, dynamic and responses to external perturbations.⁽³⁾

It is difficult for individuals with stroke to accept and bear weight on the paretic leg so they mostly exibit asymmetry in standing and also during ambulation, where the greater proportion of body weight is being borne on the non-paretic leg. Generally it has been reported that the non-paretic leg bears more weight than the paretic leg; which is known as weight bearing asymmetry. The percentage of the body weight that is being borne by the non-paretic leg can be as high as 61%.⁽⁴⁾

Normal gait is symmetrical, both spatially and temporally, slightly with inter limb difference, but gait post stroke is generally weight bearing asymmetry. This is characterized by spatial, temporal and biomechanical difference in paretic and non-paretic lower limb. There are temporal asymmetries in stance time, single support time, double support time and swing time and spatial asymmetry in step length of post stroke patient.⁽⁵⁾

This repetitive loading is commonly accepted as one mechanism that might lead to degeneration in a joint. Most commonly it is seen at the hip or knee joint which might causes pain. Pain in lower limb is an issue post stroke and a problem that may get worst over time. The potential for the development of secondary musculoskeletal issue such osteoarthritis long after discharge is of great concern. ⁽⁶⁾

This is a concern because pain in knee could exacerbate post stroke gait deviation which could further restrict independence limit the quality of life. Even after complete rehabilitation of stroke, walking dysfunction persists. ⁽⁶⁾

Improving mobility after discharge by rehabilitation is important as this has received less attention. But if it is given less importance, then there is risk of development of secondary musculoskeletal complications. As a result

Materials and Methods

An approval for the study was obtained from the Institutional Ethical Committee. A cross sectional study was conducted in subjects with Chronic Stroke in tertiary care hospitals of Miraj. Sample was achieved by Purposive sampling method. A total of n=100 subjects were selected. All the subjects were screened for inclusion criteria i.e. both Male & Female of Age group between 25 to 65 years, both types of Stroke Hemorrhagic and Ischemic, with weight bearing asymmetry, Ability to stand or walk with or without assistive device, Ability to understand and follow verbal request and Subject who are willing to participate in the study. Subjects excluded were who had Knee pain before stroke, Patient with hemi-spatial neglect, Unable to understand or follow verbal request, Unable to stand independently or with assistive devices and Subject not willing to participate. Informed consent for participation of subjects in the study will be obtained. Demographic data, BMI, side of affection of all the patients was recorded. Patients were then asked to stand on one weighing scale to measure their weight. Then two weighing scales were kept at 10cms distance apart and at a distance of 2 meter from the wall and the subject were instructed to stand as erect as possible while placing one foot on each scale and looking forward. For safety, therapist would stand beside the subject. The weight on each scale was then recorded. Three trails were conducted for each subject with the subject stepping down the scales between trails to allow the scale to return to zero. The mean of the three reading of each weighing scale was calculated for each limb. Then the patient was asked if he/she has pain in his non-paretic knee. If he/she had knee pain then McGill pain questionnaire was used as a pain outcome measure.

Mcgill pain questionnaire : The scale contains 4 subscales evaluating the sensory effective, evaluative and miscellaneous aspects of pain and a 5 point pain intensity scale. The pain rating index contains 78 paint descriptor items recognized into 20 sub-classes each containing 2-6 words that fall into four major sub-scale: sensory (sub-class 1-10), affective (sub-class 11-15), evaluative (sub-class 16) and miscellaneous (sub-class 17-20). There is also an item of pain intensity scale, a measure of the magnitude of pain experienced by an individual, is a numeric verbal combination that indicated overall paint intensity (31) and includes 6 levels: nun (0), mild (1), discomforting (2), distressing (3), horrible (4), and excruciating (5). ⁽⁷⁾

Findings

Table1: Age group wise distribution of chronic stroke patients

Age groups	Frequency	Percentage
≤30 years	7	7
31-40 years	13	13
41-50 years	16	16
51-60 years	32	32
>60 years	32	32
Total	100	100

Table 1 shows that, there were 7(7%) subjects ≤ 30 years of age, 13(13%)between 31-40 years of age, 16(16%)between 41-50 years, 32 (32%) subjects between 51-60 years and >60 years of age with chronic stroke.

Table2: Gender distribution of chronic stroke patients

Gender	Frequency	Percentage			
Females	41	41			
Males	59	59			
Total	100	100			

Table 2 shows that, there were 41(41%) female subjects and 59(59%) male subjects with chronic stroke.

 Table 3: Side affected distribution of chronic stroke

 patients

Side Affected	Frequency	Percentage
Left	53	53
Right	47	47
Total	100	100

Table 3 shows that, there were 47(47%) subjects having their right side affected and 53(53%) subjects having their left side affected.

Table 4: BMI distribution of chronic stroke patients

BMI Categories	Frequency	Percentage
Normal	94	94
Overweight	6	6
Total	100	100

Table 4 shows that, there were 6(6%) subjects were overweight and 94(94%) subjects having normal BMI.

Table 5: Distribution of chronic stroke patientsaccording to time since stroke

Time since stroke	Frequency	Percentage
<1 year	27	27
1-2 years	36	36
2-3 years	21	21
3-4 years	10	10
>4 years	6	6
Total	100	100

Table 5 shows that, there were 27(27%) subjects had stroke before <1 year period, 36(36%)had stroke before 1-2 years period, 21(21%)had stroke before 2-3 years period, 10 (10%) subjects had stroke before 3-4 years period and 6(6%) subjects had stroke before >4 years period.

Sr. No.	Pearson Correlation	p value
1	Weight	Weight on right lower limb
1	0.51	<0.01
2	Weight	Weight on left lower limb
2	0.57	<0.01
2	Weight	McGill Pain Score
3	-0.14	0.36
4	Weight on right lower limb	Weight on left lower limb
4	-0.41	<0.01
5	Weight on right lower limb	McGill Pain Score
5	-0.12	0.42
(Weight on left lower limb	McGill Pain Score
0	-0.04	0.78
_	BMI	Time Since Stroke
	-0.145	0.14
8	Time Since Stroke	McGill Pain Score
	-0.22	0.14

Table 6: Correlation between variables of subjects with chronic stroke

Correlation analyses revealed a moderate positive relationship between weight and weight on right lower limb (r=-0.51, p<0.01) also weight and weight on left lower limb (r=-0.57, p<0.01) So, it indicates that as weight of patient increases, weight on right or left lower limb also increases. A moderate negative relationship between weight on right lower limb and weight on left lower limb (r=-0.41, p<0.01). So, it indicates that as weight on right lower limb of patient increases, weight on left lower limb to negative relationship between the total patient lower limb and weight on left lower limb (r=-0.41, p<0.01). So, it indicates that as weight on right lower limb of patient increases, weight on left lower limb decreases. There was no correlation between rests of the variables of patients.

Discussion

The purpose of this study was to find out prevalence of knee pain in non paretic limb in chronic stroke patients with weight bearing asymmetry. In my study, 100 participants within the age group of 24-65 years of age visiting department of neuro physiotherapy, COP, MMC, Miraj were included.

After taking the Ethical clearance from the ethical committee of COP, MMC, Miraj. Participants were recruited according to inclusion and exclusion criteria and were examined for weight bearing asymmetry and asked for pain in knee pain in the non-paretic limb

Table and fig 1 shows that, there were 7(7%) subjects ≤ 30 years of age, 13(13%) between 31-40 years of age, 16(16%) between 41-50 years, 32(32%) subjects between 51-60 years and >60 years of age with chronic stroke.

In this study, patients from age of 24 years to 65 years where taken as subjects for study. The mean age is 52 years. And the standard deviation is 12.00.

The stroke in age group 40 or less is 3.8%. Stroke in Trivandrum occurred at rate of 7.1 per 1000 per year in aged ≥ 55 years. In registries of Mumbai showed mean age of stroke patients was 66 years.⁽⁹⁾

Table and fig 2 shows that, there were 41(41%) female subjects and 59(59%) male subjects with chronic stroke.

In Mumbai registry, women had lower stroke rate than men that is crude incidence rate, 149/100,000 person-years for men verses 141/100,000 person-year for women. Women were older (68.9 years) compared to men (63.4 years).⁽⁹⁾

Table and fig 3 shows that, there were 47(47%) subjects having their right side affected and 53(53%) subjects having their left side affected.

In this study, Table and fig 4 shows that, there were 6(6%) subjects were overweight and 94(94%) subjects having normal BMI, so we could not see significant number of subjects with knee pain.

In the study, of Patterson and Sibley⁽⁶⁾ stroke+arthritis group was heavier and older. It could be a possibility that they were exposed longer to the abnormal joint load imposed by primary stroke related motor impairments and this lead to decrease in mobility which in turn lead to weight gain and increase in BMI. So, they could see n=1010 out of n=3784 had arthritis.⁽⁶⁾

In this study, Table and fig 5 shows that, there were 27(27%) subjects had stroke before <1 year period, 36(36%)had stroke before 1-2 years period, 21(21%)had stroke before 2-3 years period, 10 (10%) subjects had stroke before 3-4 years period and 6(6%) subjects had stroke before >4 years period. All the subjects included were chronic but only 48 subjects had pain in the knee joint of non paretic limb out of 100 subjects.

In the study, of Patterson and Sibley ⁽⁶⁾ 55% chronic stroke individuals exhibit increased stance duration on their non-paretic limb compared to their paretic limb. This increased stance duration exposes the non-paretic limb to excessive and repetitive loading, this mechanism leads to degeneration at knee joint and pain.⁽⁶⁾

The main finding of this study is that, patient with stroke have knee pain in the affected side with weight bearing asymmetry that is 48 patients out of 100 have knee pain. In the study of Patterson ans Sibley ⁽⁶⁾ 53 % adults who dwell in the community have knee pain as compared to those without stroke 43%.⁽⁶⁾

In this study, all the individuals were taken with weight bearing asymmetry who bore weight on the unaffected limb. It was found that weight on the right lower limb minimum was 19 kg and maximum was 45 kg. Mean of which is 32.46 and standard deviation is 5.99. And weight on left lower limb minimum was 21 kg and maximum was 44 kg. Mean of which is 32.26 and standard deviation is 6.32. Correlation analyses revealed a moderate positive relationship between weight and weight on right lower limb (r=-0.51, p<0.01) also weight and weight on left lower limb (r=-0.57, p<0.01). In the study "falls, sway, and symmetry of weight-bearing after stroke" the right and left sided hemiplegic individuals, both types were found to favor their non-paretic limb.⁽⁸⁾ In the study of Dr. B.O.A Adegoke, O.Olaniyi and C.O. Akosile ⁽⁴⁾ subjects bore a mean of 60.3% of their body weight on the non-paretic limb in this study.⁽⁴⁾

In this study we have found that there is more knee pain in men and compared to women. Which is not related to any age group. This may be because of the different challenges each individual faces. As the individuals were not taken from a particular area with common challenges. Also in this study number of male participants is more that is 59 males and 41 females this being the limitation of the study.

In the study, Szopa et al.⁽⁵⁾ there is significant difference in gait patterns in terms of spatiotemporal and kinematic parameters. Hemiparetic patients exhibit variation in joint kinamatics in between individuals. The most common kinematic deviation in gait is asymmetrical movement of pelvis, insufficient paretic hip and knee flexion in swing phase, and excessive ankle plantar flexion. ⁽⁵⁾

In the study, Patterson and Sibley⁽⁶⁾ arthritis in nonparetic knee joint is exhibited because the joint is exposed longer to the abnormal joint load imposed by the primary stroke by the primary stroke related impairments which lead to decrease in mobility. ⁽⁶⁾

Conclusion

We can see knee pain in non-paretic lower limb with weight bearing asymmetry in 48 subjects. In normal day to day practice we tend to pay less attention to strengthening and conditioning of the non-paretic lowerlimb because, we pay much attention to the paretic limb. Further study can be done to compare the individuals for knee pain after physiotherapy intervention. Perform a study with overweight population. The study can be carried out using force plate.

Conflict of Interest : None.

Source of Funding : Self.

Ethical Clearance : The ethical clearance was obtained from the Institutional Ethical Committee of College Of Physiotherapy, Wanless Hospital, Miraj Medical Centre, Miraj.

References

- Farooq MU, Chaudhry AH, Amin K, Majid A. The WHO STEP wise Approach to Stroke Surveillance. Journal of the College of Physicians and Surgeons--Pakistan: JCPSP. 2008 Oct;18(10):665-.
- O'Sullivan Susan. Physical Rehabilitation. 6th edition. New Delhi: Jaypee Brothers Medical publishers (p) Ltd ; 2014. P. 645-650.
- Tyson SF, Hanley M, Chillala J, Selley A, Tallis RC. Balance disability after stroke. Physical therapy. 2006 Jan 1;86(1):30-8.

- Adegoke BO, Olaniyi O, Akosile CO. Weight bearing asymmetry and functional ambulation performance in stroke survivors. Global journal of health science. 2012 Mar;4(2):87.
- Szopa A, Domagalska-Szopa M, Lasek-Bal A, Żak A. The link between weight shift asymmetry and gait disturbances in chronic hemiparetic stroke patients. Clinical interventions in aging. 2017;12:2055.
- Patterson KK, Sibley KM. Arthritis and associated limitations in community-dwelling Canadians living with stroke. BMC neurology. 2016 Dec 1;16(1):114.
- 7. Hawker GA, Mian S, Kendzerska T, French M. Measures of adult pain: Visual analog scale for pain (vas pain), numeric rating scale for pain (nrs pain), mcgill pain questionnaire (mpq), shortform mcgill pain questionnaire (sf-mpq), chronic pain grade scale (cpgs), short form-36 bodily pain scale (sf-36 bps), and measure of intermittent and constant osteoarthritis pain (icoap). Arthritis care & research. 2011 Nov;63(S11):S240-52.
- Sackley CM. Falls, sway, and symmetry of weightbearing after stroke. International disability studies. 1991 Jan 1;13(1):1-4.
- Pandian JD, Sudhan P. Stroke epidemiology and stroke care services in India. Journal of stroke. 2013 Sep;15(3):128.

Effect of Backpack on Static and Dynamic Balance in Healthy School Children: A Comparison

Authors-Atiya A Shaikh¹MPTh, Shanan G Tendulkar²

Affiliation-1-Lecturer, 2-Intern, Deccan Education Society's Brijlal Jindal College of Physiotherapy Pune, Maharashtra, India

Abstract

Purpose: To assess and compare static balance using Single limb stance test (SLST),dynamic balance using Paediatric reach test(PRT)and Star excursion balance test (SEBT)with backpack and without backpack in healthy school children

Method: 150 healthy school children between 10-14 yrs were assed using SLST, PRT, SEBT with backpack and without backpack. The data was analysed using paired t test.

Result: The scores for all tests were significantly low while carrying backpack (p<0.0001)

Conclusion: Balance abilities in healthy school children get affected while carrying backpack.

Keywords: backpack, balance, static, dynamic, school children

Introduction

Backpacks are commonly used by almost all students, military personnel and hikers.^{1, 2} Increasing homework, more number of textbooks,bigger size of texts, variety of objects to be carried to school has lead to a significant increase in load to be carried at school.^{3,4} Lack of storage space,^{3,5} and increased travelling time along with this load has drawn attention of several researchers and regulatory authorities on ill effects of the backpack on school children.

Amount of weight carried by children in their backpack generally exceeds the recommended 10%body weight limit .^{6,7,8} Backpack , when carried posteriorly, causes shift of COG posteriorly and higher, leading to forward trunk lean and forward head posture.^{7,9}In children , who already have larger heads and higher COG as compared to adults, this causes further deleterious effect on postural system. An individual uses antigravity muscles while quiet standing, ankle strategy while reaching in front or back within BOS and stepping strategy while going out of BOS.¹⁰ With this added weight and altered biomechanics, these systems get challenged, which may lead to altered balance.

With today's changing scenario the children have to travel alone in public transport or on cycles or walking to reach to the schools. Heavy backpacks, challenged balance control system, along with heavy traffic and changing surroundings may increase the risk of falls in these children.

A lot of emphasis has been given to postural changes^{9,7,11}and pain^{12,13,14} due to backpacks, but altered balance issues in daily life due to backpack have been comparatively ignored, hence this study was designed with objectives of assessing and comparing the balance scores using SLST(Single leg stance test), PRT(Paediatric reach test), SEBT(Star excursion balance test) with back pack and without backpack in healthy school children.

Methods

Design-This was a quasiexperimental design where participants served as their own control. Chit method was used to decide the order of the measurements for participant carrying backpack or no backpack.

Participants- 150 participants (calculated from a pilot study with SD-5.62,alpha-0.05,beta-0.9) between 10-14 years, of both gender, with ability to attend all data collection sessions and whose informed consent

was provided by parents were selected for the study. Any child with a history of spinal cord injury or deformity, fatigue, history of ear infection, lower limb injury or deformities, visual and hearing impairments, inability to follow commands, any neurological conditions, preexisting condition that prevented the child from carrying backpack or low back pain limiting use of backpack was excluded from the study.

Outcome measures-

Single leg standing test (SLST)-Participants were made to stand barefoot and 2 ft away from the wall. They were asked to fixate gaze on given point at eye level and 20 ft away from standing point. They were made to have stance on one lower limb and the other lower limb flexed 90^o at hip and knee with ankle in neutral, hands on hips. The time was noted from the moment of lifting the leg and stopped when the stance limb moved on the floor or foot touched down or participant's gaze moved away from target or participant kept the leg hooked at stance limb in spite of warning twice. 5 min of rest was given between each test. Mean of 3 readings was taken as final reading. This is the standard test used commonly for children and has reliability of 0.91 to 1.00.¹⁵

Paediatric reach test (PRT)- The participants were asked to stand with their regular shoes and stand. Foot positions were marked with masking tape and kept same for all trials. The examiner stood at back of the participant. The loop of the tape was put around the middle finger. They were asked to keep the arm at 90 degree forward flexion elbow straight and wrist in maximum neutral and move as far as possible without lifting the heels in front and maintain the position for 3 sec . Mean of 3 reading was taken as the final reading. The difference between two positions was noted. The test has inter rater reliability of 0.54-0.88 and intra rater reliability of 0.50-0.93, concurrent validity ranged from 0.42-0.77 and construct validity ranged from -0.79 to -0.88.¹⁶

Star excursion balance test (SEBT) - The participant was asked to stand at the center of a grid laid on the floor with 8 lines extending at 45 degree increments from the center of the grid. They stood in center and reached as far as possible with one leg without lifting the stanced limb and touched the line with the most distal part of the foot and as lightly as possible . The subject returned to a bilateral stance while maintaining balance .6 practice sessions were given. Final reach distance was measured from center to the most distal point on line touched .The test hasvalidity ranging from0.38 to 0.93 ¹⁷ with value of 0.59-0.95 and 0.68-0.95 intra rater and inter rater reliability respectively .¹⁸

Procedure-

IEC clearance and informed consent from parents was taken .Age, height, weight, weight of backpack of the participant were recorded. Chit method for recording with or without backpack served as a means of reducing condition induced bias. Daily backpack of participant was used as the load while taking readings with backpack. A rest of 10 minutes was given between each test. The sequence of SLST,PRT,SEBT was kept constant.

Statistical Analysis

Demographic data was studied using descriptive statistics and other test results were compared by paired t test usingSPSS 17.0.



Results

Graph 1-



Table 1-COMPARISON OF SCORES WITH BACKPACK AND WITHOUT BACKPACK (using paired T test)

TESTS		Without backpack		With backpack		P value
		mean	SD	mean	SD	
SLST(cm)		131.97	54.65	96.80	40.44	<0.0001*
FRT(cm)		15.28	3.71	13.39	3.51	<0.0001*
	Anterior	42.63	6.87	39.99	6.44	<0.0001*
	Anterolateral	43.73	6.90	41.43	7.28	<0.0001*
	Lateral	42.21	8.13	45.43	12.11	<0.0001*
SEBT	Posterolateral	44.52	8.26	41.90	8.49	<0.0001*
(Directions)9(cm)	Posterior	42.79	8.51	39.89	8.16	<0.0001*
	Posteromedial	43.802	6.37	37.48	7.74	<0.0001*
	Medial	30.251	9.13	27.30	8.58	<0.0001*
	Anteromedial	40.613	7.94	38.08	7.84	<0.0001*

Discussion

Recommended weight limit for the backpack to be carried by children is 10% of their body weight.^{6, 7, 8} 50 %of the children in this study carried backpack weighing more than 10 %of their body weight.

EFFECT OF BACK PACK ON STATIC BALANCE-

We used SLST with eyes open as a measure to assess static balance. Here, the COG lies lateral to S_2 vertebra so hip abductors and side flexors of trunk have

to contract to maintain the state of equilibrium in this position.¹⁹With backpack it shifts more laterally and above thus, challenging balance system. The participants showed significantly low scores for duration of single leg stance test while carrying backpack (p<0.0001)

Very few studies describe single leg stance balance in healthy adolescents. No normative data was available for single leg standing with eyes open as most of the researchers used eyes closed in static condition and eyes closed and open in dynamic conditions to assess balance in healthy adolescents. We did not find any study assessing balance and effect of backpack on it using single leg stance hence no data was available for reference or comparison. But, this finding is in accordance with other researchers who studied the effect of load on static balance using postural sway.

One of the studies investigated modifications in sway parameters induced by backpack in Italian primary school children and found significant load induced increase in all sway parameters and linear relation between sway area and backpack weight. Since postural sway is an effective indicator of balance abilities, any alterations in it suggest that backpack carriage originates balance impairments.²⁰

Similar findings were observed in another study on college students, where all the sway parameters increased in proportion to the weight added(p<0.0001).²¹

Study of effects of carried weight on random motion and traditional measures of postural sway was done in military soldiers using force plates. Here stabilogram analysis revealed that with increase in load the weight and center of excursion increased linearly but muscle activity changed minimally, suggesting that increased load challenged stability, reduced randomness of movement sway and made the load carrier exert greater control in order to maintain balance.²²

Another study, on effects of external load on balance during upright stance, while examining the ability of new balance control model to predict those effects, also showed that, on application of external load, the COP mean velocity in A-P direction and RMS distance in M-L direction increased thus, concluding that external load affects balance and may lead to falls risk.²³

EFFECT OF BACKPACK ON DYNAMIC BALANCE-

Activities performed by children like reaching forward while playing imitates the PRT. The task causes displacement of center of gravity in forward direction by rotating around ankle joint with maintained hip extension, thus activating ankle and hip strategy. It has been observed that healthy individual activate ankle strategy for this task. Hamstrings work concentrically to control the forward tilt of the pelvis while Gastrosoleus work eccentrically to stabilize knee joint while reaching in front.²⁴ with added load of backpack COG shifted further anteriorly increasing the amount of force required to be generated by gastrosoleus. This in turn might have affected the reach distance. This theory was supported by the findings of our study where, the paediatric reach test distance was significantly low while carrying backpack (P<0.0001).

The other most commonly performed activity by children is jumping / hopping. Hence we chose SEBT as the other outcome measure for dynamic balance assessment. Here standing leg requires good range of motion at ankle dorsiflexion, knee flexion, hip flexion , adequate glutei and other antigravity muscle strength in order to control closed kinematic motion occurring while performing this task.²⁵ As the motion is performed in anterior, posterior, medial, lateral directions, it challenges gluteus maximus, medius, minimus, tibialis anterior, gastrosoleus. When there was increase in mass due to backpack, the COM moved up, distance from ankle to COM changed, weight of gravitational force on the mass increased, thus in turn, net muscle action required to maintain equilibrium also increased and made the situation more challenging for participants. This was reflected as decreased distance while performing SEBT with backpack(p<0.0001) in our study.Findings of this study are similar to the findings of one of the previous studies where significant changes in gait patterns and increase in trunk lean posture were observed when the load was increased to 15-20% of body weight of the child(p<0.05).26

Most of the previous researchers have used posturography or balance master to assess balance during dynamic conditions. As walking velocity and altered gait pattern indirectly represent the dynamic stability, we tried to match these parameters with dynamic balance scores of this study.

One study showed significant difference in velocity control and directional control while carrying backpack in children .²⁷Another study also highlighted back pack induced gait instability which resulted in significantly reduced walking velocity cadence and increase in double support time in adolescents with backpack weighing 20% of body weight of students.²⁸

Study on effect of back pack on cervical and shoulder posture in students showed significant difference in cranio vertebral angle, anterior head alignment(p=0.04,0.03) and suggested that postural responses in high school children were sensitive to load carriage equivalent to 15% of body weight.²⁹

Thus, this study strengthens the observations of previous researchers who concluded that, balance system gets challenged while carrying backpack due to change in center of mass and altered muscle work required to maintain equilibrium suggested by altered posture, affected gait quality and postural sway.

According to prior suggestions from APTA and ACA, the weight of backpack should be between 5%-15% of bodyweight of the child. ³⁰They have expressed concerns about heavy backpack, various aches and pains, risk of brachial plexus injuries. We suggest that, affected balance and hence risk of falls should also be one of the concerns while deciding backpack load in children.

Although the children could not be blinded for the experimental hypothesis of the study, independent evaluators performed tests for both conditions and the participants were blinded for their scores till scores for both conditions and scores of all participants were recorded. All tests in the study were performed on the same day hence effect of fatigue might have affected the scores. To avoid this, we kept the same sequence of tests and no inter test comparisons were done to draw conclusions. The weight of backpack varied in all students, but as the same student served as control this might not have affected the final results. We used quick and simple outcome measures to assess balance as it suited our scenario but, more sophisticated lab equipments, like posturography, can be used for complex analysis of activities while carrying backpack. The study considered only immediate effects while carrying backpack. Similar studies on prolonged use and in different conditions will help us to strengthen evidence on effects of backpack on school children.

Conclusion

Static and dynamic balance abilities get challenged while carrying backpack in healthy children of 10-14 yrs hence appropriate measures should be taken to reduce the impact of load thus reducing risk of falls in school children.

Conflict of Interest -Nil

Source of Funding -Self

Ethical Clearance-Institutional clearance was obtained.

References

- 1. Wang Y,PascoreDD,WeimerW.Evaluation of backpack load during walking. Ergonomics.2001;44(9):858-869
- Moore MJ,WhiteGL,MooreDL. Association of relativebackpackweightwithreportedpain,painsites, medicalutilisation,and lost school time in children adolescents. J SchHealth.2007;77(5):232-239
- GoodgoldS, CorcoranM, GamacheD, GillisJ,GuerinJ,Coyle J. Backpack use in children. PediatrPhys Ther.2002;14:122-131
- Mackenzie WG SampathJS, KruseRW,Sheir-Neiss GJ .Backpacks in children. ClinOrthopRelat Res.2003;409:78-84
- SiambanesD, MartinezJW, ButlerEW, HaiderT. Influence of school backpacks on adolescent back pain. J Peadiatr Orthop.2004;24(2):211-217
- ViryP,CreveuilC, marcelliC.Non specific back pain in children. A search for associated factors in 14-years-old school children. Rev Rheum Engl Ed.1999;66(7-9):381-388
- PascoeDD,PascoeDE,WangYT,ShimDM,KimCK. Influence of carrying book bags on gait cycle and posture of youths.Ergonomics.1997;40(6):631-641
- NerginiS, CarabalonaR, SibillaP.Backpack as a daily load for school children. Lancet.1999;354(9194):1974

- Cheung CH, ShumST, TangSF, YauPC, ChiuTT. The correlation between craniovertebralangle, backpack weights, and disability due to neck pain in adolescents. J Back musculoskele Rehabili.2009;22(4):197-203
- Shumway –Cook A, Woollacott M:translating research into clinical practice; Motor control posture and balance, Development of posture and balance ,ed-4. Lippincott Williams &Willkins, United states,2011;162,221-222
- ChansirinukorW, WilsonD, GrimmerK, Dansie B.Effects of back pack on students:Measurement of cervical and shoulder posture.Aust J Physiother.2001;47(2):110-116
- 12. KistnerF, FiebertI, RoachKE.Effect of backpack load carriage on cervical posture in primary school children.Work.2012;41:99-108
- 13. WhittfieldJK,LeggsSJ,HedderleyDI.The weight and use of school bags in newzealand secondary schools.Ergonomics.2001;44(9):819-824
- Burton AK,ClarkeRD, McClueTD,Tillotson KM. Theory of low back pain in adolescents. Spine.1996;21(20):2323-2328
- Pamela K ,Sarah W Atwater, Terry K Crowe, Jean C Deitz , Pamela K Richardson. Balance TestsPhysTher. 1990; 70:79-87
- Bartlett D, Birmingham T. Validity and reliability of paediatric reach test .Pediatric Physical therapy . 2003;15:84-92
- ShaikhAA, Walunjkar R .Association between functional reach test and star excursion balance test in healthy children in healthy children of 14016 yrs. IJCRR.2014;5(23):01-05
- Atiya A Shaikh,Radhika N walunjkar. Reliability of SEBT in children of 12-16 yrs. IJPOT.2014;8(2):29-33
- Bohannon R, Lerkin P, CookA, Gear J, Singer J. Canada. Decrease in timed balance test scores with aging. Phys Ther.1984; 64(7):1067-70

- Pau M, Pau M.Postural sway modifications induce by backpack carriage in primary school children. Ergonomics.2010; 53(7): 872-881
- Rugelj D, SevsekF.The effect of load mass and its placement on postural sway.ApplErgon. 2011;42 (6):860-866.
- 22. Schiffman J,Bensel CK, Hasselquist L, Gregorczyk KN, Piscitelle L. Effects of carried weight on random motion and traditional measures of postural sway. Applied Ergonomics. 2006.37(5); 607–614
- Qu X, Nussbaum M. Effects of external loads on balance control during upright stance: Experimental results and model-based predictions.Gait & Posture.2009.29(1); 23–30
- Wernick- Robinson M, Krebs DE, Giorgetti M M. America Functional Reach: does it really measure dynamic balance. Arch Phys Med Rehabilitation.1999;(80):262-269
- 25. Norris B, Trudelle Jackson E.Hip and thigh muscle activation during Star Excursion Balance Test. Journal of Sport Rehabilitation.2011;(20):428-441.
- 26. Hong Y, Cheung CK Gait and posture responses to back pack load during level walking in children. Journal Gait and Posture. 2005;17(1):28-33.
- 27. Palumbo N, George B, Johnson A, Cade D The Effects of Backpack Load on Carrying Dynamic Balance as Measured by Limits of Stability Work: A Journal of Prevention, Assessment and Rehabilitation.2001;16(2): 123-129
- Singh T ,Koh M. Effects of backpack load position on spatiotemporal parameters and trunk forward lean. Gait & Posture.2009. 29 ; 49–53
- Chansirinukor W, Wilson D, Grimmer K, Dansie B. Effects of back pack on students: Measurement of cervical and shoulder posture. Aust J Physiother.2001;47(2):110-116
- American Physical Therapy Association. Back to school. http://www.apta.org/news.Published 2003. Accessed June 10,2005

Association of Hand Performance with Neck Disability in Text Neck Syndrome among College Students

Bhavna Anand¹, Priya Sharma²

¹Teaching Associate, Amity University, Noida, UP; ²BPT student, Amity Institute of Physiotherapy, Amity University, Noida, UP

Abstract

Objective – To study the association between neck pain, neck disability and hand performance in text neck syndrome among college students

Methodology – A correlation study was done on 60 college students. Subjects having history of shoulder or neck pathology, musculoskeletal disease or anomaly, history of surgery of spine, history of surgery of neck or shoulder, recent surgery, chronic medical illness were excluded. Detailed assessment form was filled by the subjects regarding name, age, dominant hand, duration of hours spent on mobile phone, visual analog scale, etc. along with Neck disability index. Later, their hand performance was checked using Jebsen Taylor Hand Function test for both non dominant and dominant hand.

Result - The data was not normally distributed so Pearson's correlation coefficient was used to assess the correlation between neck disability index and hand function test. Results were found to be statistically significant at 5% level. "r" value was calculated between NDI and all the seven tasks of JTHFT for both Non dominant and dominant hand's function separately. With regard to hand dominance, this study revealed that whole population wrote faster with dominant hand as compared to non dominant hand.

Conclusion - This study provides evidence that hand dominance has an important role as it can affect hand functioning. Especially high-level fine dexterity activities can be altered with prolonged texting.

Key words: Neck Disability Index, Jebsen Taylor hand function, text neck syndrome, smart phone

Introduction

Our body is connected with our head by an important structure "Neck". All over the world, neck pain is considered as a fourth cause of disability.^[1] The repeated stress injury leading to pain over the neck region due to prolonged use of handheld devices like mobile phones, tablets, e-readers, etc. causes text neck.^[2] The individuals who have a habit of texting or watching for long hours are more prone to get affected. Flexing the neck for more time can cause a turtle neck position. Many individuals keep their smart phone on lap or waist in sitting position which makes them bend their neck in flexion. This position if maintained for a longer duration can decrease the Lordosis in the lower cervical vertebra. This leads to an increase in posterior curvature of the upper thoracic vertebra. Dr. Dean L Fishman was the one to coin the term text neck. Secondary to neck pain, the text neck can also cause thoracic kyphosis, shoulder pain, radiating pain till hand, upper back pain, and headache. People spending more hours while gazing down at smart phones, causes stiffness around the neck region. While staring sharply downwards on the mobile phones, it can cause excessive anterior curve in the lower cervical vertebra, and excessive posterior curve in the upper thoracic vertebra to maintain balance. Forward headed posture is one of the common problems seen in people who keep texting on smart phone. This can also lead to lower back pain in chronic stages. It is noted that walking while using a smart phone harms lumbar region. Also, muscular activity around the shoulder is increased due to smart phone usage. It is evidenced that people tend to flex their head more during standing when they are using the mobile phones as compared to neutral standing. [3]

People's contemporary lifestyle has now become mainly dominated by computer technology. Smart phones are considered as a common thing among adolescents. It has now become a need for every individual. As a smart phone is beneficial for making our work easier, it also has a bad impact on our health. A survey revealed that people spend more than 20 hours per week on texting, using social media, etc. It can give rise to various musculoskeletal disorders. This results in damage of muscle fibers and muscle tone. It is a growing health concern as mobile technology is leading affecting millions worldwide. It was seen in a study that there were more than 6 billion smart phone users worldwide. It is also reported that 79% of the population who are in the age group of 18 to 44 keep their smart phones with them the whole day except 2 hours of their walking time.^[4] This topic is a growing health concern that can possibly affect millions of people worldwide. In the current situation, text neck is becoming a popular word across the world.

Female individuals are seen as more active on smart phones as compared to male individuals. They spend more time per day on texting, social media, messaging, etc. people using excessive smart phone experience several behavioral changes. This change in behavior is seen as an addiction. ^[7]

Material and Methods

A correlation study (cross-sectional design) was conducted in which 60 college students who were enrolled in Amity University, Noida were involved. Prior to data collection, informed written consent was obtained from the participants. Both male and female subjects were included in the study. The subjects who spend more than 4 hours per day active on smart phone ^[5], no musculoskeletal or neurological disorders affecting the upper or lower extremity ^[6], are college students ^[9], No history of the physical or mental disease [8] were included for the study. Subjects should know the English language. Subjects having a history of shoulder or neck pathology^[9], musculoskeletal disease or anomaly^[12], history of surgery of spine ^[6], history of surgery of neck or shoulder ^[12], recent surgery ^[6], chronic medical illness ^[12] were excluded.

Material required: Board (1), Stopwatch (1), Plastic jar (1), Bottle caps (2), Paper clips (2), Pennies

(2), Checkers (4), Kidney Beans (5), Teaspoon (1), Weighted cans (5), Light cans (5), Sentence cards (4), Pen (1)

Procedure:

The subject was made aware of all the instructions regarding the questionnaire and test before starting with the data collection. Subject was first asked to fill the consent form. A detailed assessment form was filled by the patient regarding age, dominant hand, duration of hours spent on mobile phone, etc. Afterward Neck disability index was filled by the subject. Later, Jebsen Taylor Hand Function test was done. (All the tests were performed from non-dominant hand first and dominant hand next to it) At every task, Stopwatch began after the therapist's command "START". EThe subject was asked to write a sentence which consisted of 24 letters and was of third-grade reading difficulty. The subject had to write the sentence in capital words and was asked to write the sentence as fast as possible.EThen the subject had to turn 3"x5" index cards as quickly as possible. The cards were oriented vertically in a horizontal row 2 inches apart.EThen the subject had to lift small objects like 2 paper clips, 2 regular sized bottle caps (1" in diameter, inside of cap facing up), and 2 US pennies and put it in an empty jar. These objects were 2" apart and in a horizontal row to the non dominant side of the jar. Paper clips were farthest and pennies nearest to the jar. ESimulated feeding was done next. In this procedure, 5 kidney beans were placed approximately 5/8" length on a clamp board. Kidney beans were oriented parallel to and touching the upright of the board 2" apart. Subject had to pick up these beans one at a time with the help of teaspoon and drop the kidney beans in jar as soon as possible.ENext step is stacking checkers. 4 standardized size 11/4" diameter checkers were placed in a OOOO configuration. Subject stacked the checkers after the therapist said start.EThen the subject had to lift large, light objects. 5 empty cans were placed on board 2" apart. Subject lifted the cans and made those cans stand in front of them.EThen the subject had to lift large, heavy objects. Five 1 Lb cans were placed on board 2" apart. Subject lifted the cans and made those cans stand in front of them.

Data Analysis

Data analysis was performed using SPSS statistical

analysis software for windows. The numeric scores of neck disability index, hand function test, age, number of hours on smart phone for calling and texting, and duration spent in one day on smart phone were presented as Mean \pm standard deviation. The data was not normally distributed so Pearson's correlation coefficient was used to assess the correlation between neck disability index and hand function test. The mean time was calculated for every individual (60 participants) to finish all the 7 tasks of JHFT. The mean time was then calculated with neck disability index to find the value of "r".

Results

The sample composed of 60 participants, most of them were females. Result analysis was done by SPSS statistical analysis software. Results were found to be statistically significant at 5% level. The average age group of participants was 21.11 along with standard deviation 1.4. The average and standard deviation of neck disability index was 4.5 and 3.8 respectively.

Mean and Standard Deviation		
Age	21.11±1.40	
No. of years the subject is using smart phone	5.75±2.12	
No. of hours spent on phone for calling	1.39±0.78	
No. of hours spent on phone for texting	4.32±2.71	
Duration spent in 1 day on smartphone	9.0±3.89	
Neck disability index	4.85±3.89	

Table 1 Mean and standard deviation of outcome measures

Each subject was found using smart phone more for texting as compared to calling.

Table 2 Pearson's correlation (r) for non dominant hand (in correlation with NDI):

Tasks	Average time (hh:mm:ss)	Pearson's correlation (r)
writing	00:52.2	0.12
simulated page turning	00:05.6	0.16
lifting small common objects	00:06.2	0.15
simulated feeding	00:08.0	0.05
stacking checkers	00:02.1	-0.11
lifting large, light objects	00:05.2	0.02
lifting large, heavy objects	00:05.5	0.02

Tasks	Average time (hh:mm:ss)	Pearson's correlation (r)
writing	00:13.4	-0.12
simulated page turning	00:04.8	0.21
lifting small common objects	00:05.8	0.14
simulated feeding	00:07.1	0.07
stacking checkers	00:01.6	-0.13
lifting large, light objects	00:04.4	0.06
lifting large, heavy objects	00:04.6	0.09

Table 3 Pearson's correlation (r) for dominant hand (in correlation with NDI):

Table 4 mean of jebsen taylor hand function test tasks

Mean (Jebsen Taylor Hand Function Test)							
Non dominant Dominant							
Writing	00:52.2 00:13.4						
Simulated page turning	00:05.6 00:04.8						
Lifting small, Common objects	00:06.2 00:05.8						
Simulated feeding	00:08.0 00:07.1						
Stacking checkers	00:02.1 00:01.6						
Lifting large, Light objects	00:05.2 00:04.4						
Lifting light, Heavy objects	00:05.5 00:04.6						

Pearson correlation coefficient (r)					
	Non dominant	Dominant			
Writing	0.12	-0.12			
Simulated page turning	0.16	0.21			
Lifting small, Common objects	0.15	0.14			
Simulated feeding	0.05	0.07			
Stacking checkers	-0.01	-0.13			
Lifting large, Light objects	0.02	0.06			
Lifting light, Heavy objects	0.02	0.09			

Table 5 pearson's correlation of dominant and non dominant hand for 7 tasks

Pearson's correlation between neck disability index (NDI) and Mean of 60 subjects individually for all tasks from non dominant hand is 0.14 and from dominant hand is 0.03.

Discussion

In the present study, I tried to gain knowledge regarding text neck syndrome and how it affects hand performance. Neck pain is one of the factors every individual experience once in a lifetime. In later stages, it can affect our activities of daily living and cause dysfunction. People who use smart phone for longer duration tend to get a flexed neck posture which results in spinal stress. Spinal stress is due to improper curvature. Flexion neck posture can cause tightness in the muscles around the neck. In this study, an informed consent was given to the subjects first. Along with that, neck disability index and demographic details were filled by the subjects. Jebsen Taylor Hand Function Test was administered to check the hand performance.

Association was found between neck disability index and the hand performance of each subject. Number of Hours subject uses smart phone in a day for calling and texting was seen separately. Hand performance for both dominant and non-dominant hand was checked. Pearson's correlation test was used to compare the data obtained. Subject's correlation was calculated for both dominant and non dominant hand with reference to neck disability index. Our results in the present study showed that prolonged smart phone usage can cause neck disability and affected hand coordination. Maximum people use smart phone for more than 5 hours a day. Concerning hand dominance, this study revealed that the whole population wrote faster with the dominant hand as compared to non-dominant hand. For simulated page-turning, dominant hand was faster by just a slight difference than the non dominant hand. Stacking checkers task was done in almost the same time by dominant and non dominant hand.

Sami S. Alabdulwahab et al did a study on smart phone use addiction can cause neck disability. A sample of 78 students was taken which concluded that there was a relationship between addiction of smart phone use and the extent of problems associated with neck disabilities. ^[8]

A study was done by Mary K. N. Takla et al named Jebsen Taylor Hand Function Test: gender, dominance, and age difference in healthy Egyptian population in 2018. This study was done to establish normative data for hand function using JTHFT and to know the effect of age, gender and hand dominance on hand function. Participants were taken and were asked to perform the 7 sub tests i.e. writing, simulated page turning, lifting small common objects, simulated feeding, stacking checkers, lifting large light objects, lifting large heavy objects. It was concluded that handedness and age may affect the hand function. ^[10]

A study done by Sydney Y Schaefer et al, named within-session practice effects in the Jebsen Hand Function Test (JHFT) took 12 adults with a mean age of 26.3 years and with no neurological impairment. ANOVA was used to test the main effects of hand (right and left). Assumptions of normality were confirmed for the total JHFT time. Both the dominant and non dominant hand showed significant improvement across repeated administrations. ^[11]

As text neck syndrome is a repetitive stress injury, one can easily overcome this by taking frequent breaks like every 20 minute in between the smart phone use to relax the muscles. Either we can make hand position slightly higher so that our neck does not bend too much while using smart phone.

Limitations

-Due to COVID-19, sample size was less.

-The study is restricted to Young-adult population.

-There were more female subjects than male subjects.

Conclusion

This study presents the normative data of college students. This study provides evidence that hand dominance has an important role as it can affect hand functioning. Especially high-level fine dexterity activities can be altered with prolonged texting. Due to improper posture during texting, our neck stresses a lot which can further lead to changes in hand coordination. This study has demonstrated that there is an association of hand performance with neck disability in text neck syndrome among college students.

Acknowledgment: The authors are thankful to the Head of Department of Amity Institute of Physiotherapy, and the support provided by Amity Institute of Occupational therapy, Amity University, Noida.

Conflict of Interest: There is no conflict of interest in the study

Funding: Funding was not involved in this study

Ethical Clearance: Ethical clearance for the study was obtained from Amity Institute of Physiotherapy, Amity University, Noida.

References

- 1. Smith E. The global burden of other musculoskeletal disorders: estimates from the global burden of disease. BMJ Journals. 2010;.
- Lee J, Song H. The Correlation Analysis between Hours of Smartphone Use And Neck Pain in the Gachon University Students. Journal Of Accupuncture Research. 2014;:99-109.
- 3. Lee S, Kang H. Head flexion angle while using a smart phone ergonomics 2014;:220-226
- U-Lan P. V. Text Neck Epidemic: a Growing Problem for Smart Phone Users in Thailand international journal of the computer, the internet and management 2015;:volume 23(No. 3)
- Reid S, Portelli A. the effects of text neck on head repositioning accuracy: a two group comparative study North Sydney, Australia Australian Catholic University20150
- Lee S.Y, Lee D.H, Han S.K the effects of posture on neck flexion angle while using a smart phone Journal of The Korean Society of Physical Medicine 2016;:volume11
- Lee H, Ahn H, Nguyen T.G, Choi S.W, Kim D.J, Comparing the self report and measured smartphone usage of college students: A Pilot study Psychiatry Investig. 2017;14(2):198-204. doi:10.4306/pi.2017.14.2.198
- Alabdulwahab S.S, Kachanathu S.J, AlMotairi M.S, Smart phone use addiction can cause neck disability. Musculoskeletal Care 2017
- Akodu A.K, Akinbo S.R, Young Q.O, correlation among smartphone addiction, craniovertebral angle, scapular dyskinesis and selected anthropometric variables in physiotherapy undergraduates. journal of Taibah University Medical Sciences 2018;:528-

534

- Schaefer S.Y, Saba A, Baird J.F, Kolar MB, Duff K, Stewart JC. Within-Session Practice Effects in the Jebsen Hand Function Test (JHFT). The American Journal of Occupation Therapy. 2018;72(6):7206345010p1-7206345010p5. doi:10.5014/ajot.2018.024745
- 11. Samani P.P, Athavale N, Shyam A, Awareness of text neck syndrome in young-adult population

International Journal Of Community Medicine And Public Health 2018;:volume5 issue8

 Hadidi F. A, Bsisu I, AlRyalat S.A, Association between mobile phone use and neck pain in university students: A cross sectional study using numeric rating scale for evaluation of neck pain. Plus One 2019;:14(5):e0217231.doi:10.1371.

Effectiveness of Exercise with Balloon for Low Back Pain in Young Adults: A quasi experimental study

Chaithra B Shetty¹, Nigath Fathima²

¹Postgraduate, ²Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya (Deemed to be University), Mangaluru.

Abstract

Background: Low back pain is a common musculoskeletal disorder which may be acute, sub acute and chronic in nature. Low back pain is expressed in 42% in adults. Low back pain occurrence is at an early age and can cause disease progression. Low back pain is due to suboptimal breathing patterns and impairments of posture and trunk stability. Many muscles used for the postural control and respiration are same that is diaphragm, transverses abdominis and muscles comprising the pelvic floor. The diaphragm is the key muscle for the respiratory pump with attachment from the lower six ribs, xiphoid process of sternum and the vertebral column. Diaphragm performs both postural and breathing function. Disruption in one function could negatively affect the other.

Objectives: 1.To find the Effectiveness of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercises and Interferential therapy for pain and disability in low back pain among young adults.

2. To find the Effectiveness of Interferential therapy for disability and pain in low back pain among young adults.

3. To compare the effectiveness of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise and Interferential therapy together and Interferential therapy alone for pain and disability in back pain among young adults.

Study Design: A quasi experimental study

Methods: 18 adults who had mechanical low back pain were included in the study. Participants were divided into 2 groups .Group A received 90/90 bridging with ball and balloon and interferential therapy and Group B received interferential therapy alone. Exercises were given twice a day for 3 days for 4 weeks. Pre and post exercise evaluation is taken by using numerical pain rating scale and Modified Oswestry disability index scale Questionnaire. Data was analyzed using independent T test and paired T test.

Result: In both the group there was improvement but there is a significant difference in 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise and interferential therapy than the IFT alone among the young adults with low back pain.

Conclusion: This study concludes that there is greater effect of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise on patients with mechanical low back pain.

Key words: Balloon exercises, breathing exercises, low back pain.

Corresponding author: Nigath Fathima,

Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya(Deemed to be University), Deralakatte, Mangaluru – 575018 E-mail- fathimanigat@yenepoya.edu.in Phone:+91-7406225106, Fax no: 0824-2203689

Introduction

Low back pain is a common musculoskeletal disorder which may be acute, sub acute and chronic in nature. Low back pain is expressed in 42% in adults. Low back pain occurrence is at an early age and can cause

disease progression. The incidence of LBP in India has been reported to be 23.09%.13Low back pain is due to suboptimal breathing patterns and impairments of posture and trunk stability. Many muscles used for the postural control and respiration are same that is diaphragm, transverses abdominis and muscles comprising the pelvic floor, Studies have found that diaphragm contributes biomechanically to maintain trunk stability² Diaphragm performs both postural and breathing function. Disruption in one function could negatively affect the other.3Impaired kinematics of diaphragm and pelvic floor muscle and changes in breathing pattern were observed in patient with back pain undergoing a motor task. Studies have found that diaphragm contributes biomechanically to maintain trunk stability. Inefficient breathing could result in muscular imbalance and motor control alteration. Normal breathing mechanisms play a major role in posture and spinal stabilization. Breathing pattern disorder have been shown to contribute to pain and motor control deficit.³One of the most critical factors looked by the therapist is maintaining an optimal zone of apposition of the diaphragm, The zone of apposition (ZOA) is the area of the diaphragm encompassing the cylindrical portion which corresponds to the portion directly opposed to the inner aspect of the rib cage. The ZOA is important because it is controlled by abdominal muscles and directs diaphragmatic tension. When the ZOA is decreased, there will be several negative consequences like insufficient respiration and diminished activation of the transverse abdominis.²It has been found that, inefficient muscular stabilization results in delayed contraction of transverses abdominis causing LBP. Therefore, these changes in kinematics of trunk stabilizers may be responsible for low back pain.¹³When abdominal muscles and diaphragm are contracted at the same time the intra abdominal pressure increases and the stability of the trunk can be enhanced. Thus diaphragm is involved with bending and providing trunk stability along with abdominal muscles.⁴

These exercises have been designed in such a way, that all the core muscles get recruited while performing the exercises¹³.Effects of bridge ball and balloon exercise has been studied in athlete population for chronic back pain, with ball and balloon provide optimal ZOA of diaphragm that may help to address low back pain.²

Materials and Methods: This study was conducted

among males and females aged between 18 to 25 years having mechanical low back pain with a sample size of 18. Prior to participation, the participants were explained about the study and an informed consent was obtained from them. Ethical clearance was obtained from University ethics committee. Participants were screened based on the inclusion and exclusion criteria.

Inclusion criteria were: Age group of 18-25 years, Mechanical low back pain, 2 months of low back pain

Exclusion criteria were: Fracture, Radiculopathy, Amputation, Spine deformity and Degenerative diseases.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR 90/90 BRIDGING WITH BALL AND BALLOON EXERCISE

-Lie down on your back with the feet placed on the wall, knees and hips should be bent at 90 degree angle.

-Place the ball between the knees.

-Keep the left hand above the head and a balloon in the right hand.

-Inhale through nose and exhale through mouth, perform bridging. Then keep low back flat on the mat. Should not press the feet on the wall, instead of that just pull down with the heels.

-You have to feel the back of the thighs and inner thighs engage, by keeping the pressure on the ball, maintain the position throughout the exercise regimen.

-Inhale through the nose and blow out slowly into the balloon.

-Pause 3 seconds with tongue positioned on the roof of your mouth to prevent the airflow out of the balloon.

-Should not pinch the neck of the balloon and by keeping the tongue on the roof of the mouth, inhale again through nose .

-Blow out slowly as you hold the balloon in the right hand.

-Don't strain cheeks and neck when you blow the balloon.

-After fourth breath in, hold the neck of the balloon and remove the balloon from mouth, let the air out of the -Relax and repeat this procedure for 4 times.

Findings

Statistical analysis was done using SPSS version 22. Data was entered into the Microsoft excel sheet, tabulated and subjected to statistical analysis, data was analysed using independent T test for comparison of 2 groups, paired T test used for the comparison of intra group before and after values

Results

Table 1: For the comparison of two groups independent T test is used. Comparison of the pre and post NPRS

	GROUP	Ν	Mean	Std. Deviation	t	df	P VALUE
NPRS-PRE	GROUP A	9	4	1.581	0 164	16	0.871
	GROUP B	9	4.11	1.269	-0.104	10	0.871
NPRS-POST	GROUP A	9	0.56	0.726	5 027	16	<0.001
	GROUP B	9	3.56	1.333	-3.921	10	
NPRS DIFFERENCE	GROUP A	9	3.44	1.59	5.174	9.737	<0.001
	GROUP B	9	0.56	0.527			

Table 1: Comparison of the NPRS-PRE between the two groups shows that NPRS-PRE is higher in GROUP B group with a t value of -0.164 and is statistically non significant with a p value of 0.871.

Comparison of the NPRS-POST between the two groups shows that NPRS-POST is higher in GROUP

B group with a t value of -5.927 and is statistically significant with a p value of ${<}0.001$

Comparison of the NPRS DIFFERENCE between the two groups shows that NPRS DIFFERENCE is higher in GROUP A group with a t value of 5.174 and is statistically significant with a p value of <0.001

	GROUP	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	t	df	P VALUE
MODUDDE	GROUP A	9	15.03333	7.067882	0.476	16	0.64
MODI-PRE	GROUP B	9	13.32778	8.088821	0.470		
MODI-POST	GROUP A	9	4.441111	4.300949	2.45	16	0.026
	GROUP B	9	12.09222	8.323319	-2.43	10	
	GROUP A	9	10.59222	7.137336	2 00 1	0 421	0.004
MODI DIFFERENCE	GROUP B	9	1.235556	1.172157	3.881	8.431	0.004

 TABLE 2: For the comparison of two groups independent T test is used. Comparison of the Pre and Post

 MODI.

TABLE 2: Comparison of the ODI-PRE between the two groups shows that ODI-PRE is higher in GROUP A group with a t value of 0.476 and is statistically non significant with a p value of 0.64

Comparison of the ODI-POST between the two groups shows that ODI-POST is higher in GROUP B group with a t value of -2.45 and is statistically significant with a p value of 0.026

Comparison of the ODI DIFFERENCE between the two groups shows that ODI DIFFERENCE is higher in GROUP A group with a t value of 3.881 and is statistically significant with a p value of 0.004

TABLE 3: Paired T test for comparison of the intra group before and after values.

GROUP A

					Paired Differences					
		N	Mean	Std. Deviation	Mean Difference	Std. Deviation	t	df	P VALUE	
Doin 1	NPRS- PRE	9	4	1.581	2 444	2.444	1.50	6 400	0	-0.001
Pair 1	NPRS- POST	9	0.56	0.726	5.444	1.59	6.499	δ	<0.001	
Dain 2	MODI- PRE	9	15.03333	7.067882	10.50222	7 127226	4 450	0	0.002	
Pair 2	MODI- POST	9	4.441111	4.300949	10.59222	/.13/330	4.452	ð	0.002	

GROUP B

				Std.	Paired Differences				
		N	Mean	Deviation	Mean Difference	Std. Deviation	t	df	P VALUE
Doin 1	NPRS- PRE	9	4.11	1.269	0.556	0.527	3.162	8	0.013
Pair 1	NPRS- POST	9	3.56	1.333	0.556				
Pair 2	MODI- PRE	9	13.32778	8.088821		1.172157	3.162	8	0.013
	MODI- POST	9	12.09222	8.323319	1.235350				

TABLE 3: GROUP A

On comparison of the mean values of NPRS-PRE and NPRS-POST the mean values of NPRS-PRE is higher with a difference of 3.444 is statistically significant with a p value of <0.001.

On comparison of the mean values of MODI-PRE and MODI-POST the mean values of MODI-PRE is higher with a difference of 10.5922222 is statistically significant with a p value of 0.002.

GROUP B

On comparison of the mean values of NPRS-PRE and NPRS-POST the mean values of NPRS-PRE is higher with a difference of 0.556 is statistically significant with a p value of 0.013.

On comparison of the mean values of MODI-PRE and MODI-POST the mean values of MODI-PRE is higher with a difference of 1.2355556 is statistically significant with a p value of 0.013.

Discussion

The present study was to find the effectiveness of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise and IFT for pain and disability in low back ache among young adults and to find the effectiveness of IFT alone and to compare the effectiveness of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise and IFT together and 1FT alone for pain and disability in back pain among young adults. There were

total of 18 patients, patients were divided into 2 groups Group A had 9 patients were they received 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon and IFT together. Group B had 9 patients were they received IFT alone for pain and disability in back pain among the young adults. Out of which 11 were female and 7 were males. In group A 5 were females and 4 were males, In group B 6 were females and 3 were males. In this study, the 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise and IFT together has an effect to a greater extent than IFT alone in patients with low back pain.

The result of this study suggested that the group A has greater reduction of symptoms such as pain which is measured using NPRS and MODI questionnaire than the group B. Group A that is 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon and IFT together had greater reduction in the pain and decreased the severity of low back pain. These changes were not much in patients of Group B who received only IFT. Changes were present but only mild reduction of symptoms of pain than the Group A. While comparing the post NPRS difference between the two groups shows that NPRS difference is higher in group A than the group B and the comparison of the post MODI difference is higher in group A than the group B.

In group A, on comparison of the mean values of NPRS pre and post the mean values of NPRS pre is higher with difference of 3.444 and is statistically significant

with p value of < 0.001. In MODI, the mean values of MODI pre is higher with difference of 10.59222 is statistically significant with p value of 0.0002.In group B, on comparison of mean values of NPRS pre and post, the mean values of NPRS pre is higher with difference of 0.556 and is statistically significant with p value of 0.013. In MODI, the mean values of MODI pre is higher with difference of 1.2355556 is statistically significant with p value of 0.013. The NPRS and MODI scores in the present study showed statistically significant change in both the group but group A showed greater difference than the group B.

Previous research by Kyndall L Boyle demonstrated that the exercise of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon optimized breathing and enhanced both posture and stability and also improved the respiratory function.²

A study by Kyochul Seo et al on the effects of balloon blowing exercise in a 90/90 bridge position using a ball on pulmonary function of females in their twenties, this study showed that 90/90 bridge with balloon blowing using ball can be used to improve the pulmonary function.¹³

Another study by Ali Rafaqat et al conducted on patients with chest intubation after trauma, were their objectives was to compare the effectiveness of balloon blowing exercises and incentive spirometry and that there is equal effect of incentive spirometer and balloon blowing.⁹

Our study found that there is difference in both the two groups but there is a higher difference in the group A that is 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon and IFT together. The role of diaphragm is respiration and also it is involved in lumbar stability, in the low back pain patients these 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise will restore ZOA and spine to proper position where it allows it's both the respiratory and postural roles. These exercises provide an optimal zone of apposition (ZOA) of the diaphragm which helps to address LBP. These exercises have been designed in such a way, that all the core muscles get recruited while performing the exercises². So there is effect of balloon blowing exercises in low back pain patients.

Limitation: The gender distribution is unequal and the patient enrolment is smaller sample size.

Conclusion: This study concludes that there is a greater effect of 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise on patients with mechanical low back pain. It is proved that there is higher difference between 90/90 bridge with ball and balloon exercise and IFT together than IFT alone and in this study it is observed that balloon blowing exercise can be used by patients with low back pain, where it strengthens the diaphragm and helps in posture and stability .This balloon exercise can be implemented in the clinics.

Conflict of interest: There is no conflict of interests relevant to the submitted manuscript for any of the authors.

Source of Funding: Self

Ethical Clearance- The ethical clearance for the study was obtained from the Yenepoya University Ethical Committee and the procedures followed were in accordance with the ethical standards of the committee.

References

- Ganesan S, Acharya AS, Chauhan R, Acharya S. Prevalence and Risk Factors for Low Back Pain in 1,355 Young Adults: A Cross-Sectional Study. Asian Spine Journal. 2017 Aug 1;11(4):610-7.
- Boyle KL, Olinick J, Lewis C. The value of blowing up a balloon. North American journal of sports physical therapy: NAJSPT. 2010 Sep;5(3):179.
- 3. Bradley H, Esformes JD. Breathing pattern disorders and functional movement. International journal of sports physical therapy. 2014 Feb;9(1):28.
- Park H, Han D. The effect of the correlation between the contraction of the pelvic floor muscles and diaphragmatic motion during breathing. Journal of physical therapy science. 2015;27(7):2113-5.
- Robey JH, Boyle KL. Bilateral functional thoracic outlet syndrome in a collegiate football player. North American journal of sports physical therapy: NAJSPT. 2009 Nov;4(4):170.
- Renuka K, Helen Shaji JC, Kripa Angeline A. Effectiveness of balloon therapy on respiratory status of patients with Lower Respiratory Tract Disorders. International Journal of Science and Research. 2015;4(3):496-500.
- 7. Rafaqat A, Mushtaq Z, Tahir A, Shahzad MF.

Comparison between Balloon Blowing Exercise and Incentive Spirometry in Patients with Chest Intubation after Trauma. J Nov Physiother S. 2016;3:2.

- Hardy S. Balloon Blowing, as a Respiratory Muscle Training Technique, for Spinal Cord Injury Patients to Improve Outcomes-An Evidence Based Analysis.
- 9. Shori G, Joshi A. Effect of right sidelying respiratory left adductor pull back exercise in subjects with iliotibial band tightness.
- Fairbank JC, Couper J, Davies JB, O'brien JP. The Oswestry low back pain disability questionnaire. Physiotherapy. 1980 Aug;66(8):271-3.

- Stevens VK, Bouche KG, Mahieu NN, Coorevits PL, Vanderstraeten GG, Danneels LA. Trunk muscle activity in healthy subjects during bridging stabilization exercises. BMC musculoskeletal disorders. 2006 Dec 1;7(1):75.
- Fern J, Chougule A. Effects of Hemibridge with Ball and Balloon Exercise on Forced Expiratory Volume and Pain in Patients with Chronic Low Back Pain: An Experimental Study. International Journal of Medical Research & Health Sciences. 2017;6(8):47-52.
- Seo K, Cho M. The effects of a balloon-blowing exercise in a 90/90 bridge position using a ball on the pulmonary function of females in their twenties. Journal of Physical Therapy Science. 2018;30(10):1267-70.

Knowledge and Attitude Towards Hepatitis B Patients among Physiotherapy Students- A Cross Sectional Study

Feba Roy¹, Fathima Thamanna¹, Fathimathul Irfana¹, Salman CM, Mahamad Jasir.K S, Mudasir Rashid Baba²

¹BPT Intern, ²Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya(Deemed to be) University

Abstract

Background: The Hepatitis B Virus (HBV) is associated with hepatocellular necrosis and inflammation of the liver, ranging from asymptomatic infection to rarely fulminant hepatitis. According to the World Health Organization (WHO), there has been a report of past or current HBV infection among 240 billion people around the world, and 340 million chronic HBV surface antigens carriers. Hepatitis B poses a major occupational danger to all healthcare profession. Thus the purpose of this study is to assess the knowledge and attitude of Hepatitis B among 3rd and 4th year physiotherapy students.

Material & Method: This cross-sectional study was carried out with sample size of (n=272) involved 3^{rd} and 4^{th} year BPT students as per the number of students in per year from three relevant physiotherapy colleges. A self-administered validated questionnaire comprising of 51 questions was used to assess the knowledge and attitude towards hepatitis B patients among 3^{rd} and 4^{th} year BPT students.

Results: The overall mean of knowledge and attitude was 17.86 ± 3.739 with p value 0.001, whereas on comparison between 3^{rd} and 4^{th} year BPT students, 4^{th} year BPT students reported more knowledge compared to 3^{rd} year BPT students.

Conclusions: The study reported that although 3^{rd} and 4^{th} year BPT students had knowledge about hepatitis B however there is a need to educate them to improve their knowledge in the area of practicing universal safeguards, combating fear while handling high risk patients to avoid discriminatory attitude towards the beginning of 3^{rd} year.

Keywords: Hepatitis B, knowledge, attitude, physiotherapy students

Introduction

According to WHO, hepatitis B infection is the most common liver infection in the world, which is caused by hepatitis B virus (HBV)^[1].HBV belongs to hepadnaviridae family and is is passed on by contact with body fluid, vertical transmission and unprotected sexual

Corresponding Author: Mudasir Rashid Baba

Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College Yenepoya(Deemed to be) University +917899466841 Email: mudasirrashid@yenepoya.edu.in contact^[2]. It is a global health problem which suggests that more than 2 billion people have been infected. Of these 240 million individuals are at risk of serious illness and death^[3]. India has one fifth of the world's population. Since it accounts a large population of the HBV burden, it harbours 10-15% of the entire pool of HBV carriers of the world^[4]. Although HBV vaccinations are available since 1982,which gives 90%-100% protection against HBV infection, still 2 billion people in the world have been infected with HBV^[5,1]. The risk of contracting hepatitis B virus by healthcare worker (HCW) is four times greater than that of general population^[6,3]. Reang *et al.*, (2015), reported that thought the nursing students had good knowledge regarding Hepatitis B but the

prevention taken was not satisfactory^[7]. According to World confederation for physical therapy (WCPT), Physical therapy is services helps individuals and populations to develop, maintain and restore movement and functional ability throughout the life span^[8]. Physiotherapists as such are not treating hepatitis B but give interventions for patients with any physical or physiological ailments who may also be suffering from hepatitis B. For such treatments often the physiotherapist or physiotherapy students has to attend the patient twicethrice a day depending upon the reference. Sailee et al., (2017) reported that knowledge level of dental students was low regarding hepatitis B^[9]. Similarly in an another study done by Bhadoria et al., (2019), reported that the medical and nursing undergraduate students showed low knowledge about the disease^[10]. Thus Physiotherapy students are in a risk of not only contracting the disease but also in a dilemma towards treating the patients and supporting them emotionally. So this study is aimed to assess the knowledge and attitude towards hepatitis B patients among physiotherapy students.

Materials & Methods

This Cross Sectional study was conducted among physiotherapy students of 3rd and 4th year in randomly selected three physiotherapy colleges in Mangalore, Dakshina Kannada, India. Permission was taken from Deans of three physiotherapy colleges in Mangalore. A self-administered questionnaire was framed and validated with the help of 5 experts in the field. A selfadministered questionnaire consisting of 51 close-ended items were used for data collection. The questionnaire had three domains I] Demographic data, II] Knowledge and Awareness about hepatitis B, III] Attitude towards hepatitis B patients. There were 30 questions to assess knowledge & awareness about hepatitis B and 21 questions to assess attitude. Prior to data collection ethical clearance was obtained. An appointment was taken from the class coordinators of three physiotherapy colleges for

data collection. The class coordinators of the following classes were approached and explained about objectives of the study. Among three colleges, one college didn't permit to collect the data within class hours, so the data collection was done after the class hours. Participants were asked to take part voluntarily and go through the consent form. The participants were explained about the aims and objectives and written inform consent was taken from each individual. The questionnaires were distributed to students in the classrooms and they were asked to fill it without discussing in 10 minutes. The sample size comprised of n=315 but only 272 BPT students gave their consent of which 146 were 3rdyear and 126 were 4th year BPT students. It comprised of 179 females and 93 males BPT students. This cross sectional study was done applying mean, standard deviation, frequency, percentage, T-test and chi-square test. P value <0.05 was considered statistically significant. Statistical analysis was performed using the Statistical Package for Social Science (SPSS) software version 22 for windows version.

Results

Gender	Frequency	Percentage
Female	179	65.8
Male	93	34.2
Total	272	100.0

Table 1 Gender distribution

Data represents that 65.8% were female students and 34.2% were female students

Table 1 depicts that 146 were 3rd year and 126 were 4th year BPT students. Of which 179 were female and 93 were male respectively.

Sl.No	Items	Yes (%)	No (%)	Not sure (%)
1.	Hep B is a viral disease	257(94.5)	8(2.9)	7(2.6)
2.	Hep B belong to hepadnaviral family	172(63.2)	17(6.3)	83(30.5)
3.	Jaundice is one of the symptoms	168(61.8)	48(17.6)	56(20.6)

Table 2 Overall knowledge of hepatitis B among 3rd and 4th year physiotherapy students

4.	Vaccination is effect against Hep B virus	232(85.3%)	16(5.9%)	24(8.8)
5.	Universal precaution will keep one safe	203(74.6)	21(7.7)	48(17.6)
6.	Hep B more infective than HIV	79(29.0)	112(41.2)	81(29.8)
7.	Hep B vaccine confer life time immunity	78(28.7)	98(36.0)	96(35.3)
8.	Aware of post exposure prophylaxis	106(39.0)	80(29.4)	86(31.6)

Cont... Table 2 Overall knowledge of hepatitis B among 3rd and 4th year physiotherapy students

Table 2 .Data represents the overall knowledge of both 3rd and 4thyears BPT. Almost 94.5% knew it is a viral disease and 63.2 % said it belongs to hepadnaviral family. 85.3% believed that hepatitis B vaccination is effective in protecting against HBV infection. 54.0% knew hepatitis B was earlier known as serum hepatitis. 61.8% agreed that jaundice is one of the common symptoms. 74.6% said that application of universal precaution can protect them from contracting HBV. The results show that the overall knowledge was found to be good among 3rd and 4thyear BPT students respectively.

Table 3 Comparison of knowledge among 3rd and 4th year Physiotherapy students

Knowledge	Course year	Ν		Р
Total	3rd	146	17.03±3.642	*0.001
	4th	126	18.81±3.637	

Data represented The mean knowledge score in 3^{rd} year is 17.03 ± 3.642 whereas the mean knowledge score in 4^{th} year BPT was 18.81 ± 3.637 . So, there is a significant difference in knowledge between 3^{rd} year and 4^{th} year BPT $p=0.001^*$

Table 4 Overall attitude of hepatitis B among 3rd and 4th year physiotherapy students

Sl.No	Question	Yes (%)	No (%)
1.	Risk felt while treating Hep B patients	186 (68.4)	86 (31.6)
2.	Found long time patient positive would stop treating	37 (13.6)	235 (86.4)
3.	PT should know if patient is positive	261 (96)	11 (4)
4.	Will be competent to treat Hep B patients after BPT	235 (86.4)	37 (13.6)
5.	It is ethical responsibility to treat Hep B patients	250 (91.9)	22 (8.1)
6.	PT can safely treat Hep B patients	222 (81.6)	50 (18.6)
7.	PT with Hep B should not practice	97 (35.7)	175 (64.3)
8.	Hep B patients should not work	75 (27.6)	197 (72.4)

Table 4. Shows that the response to attitude based questions. 96% students strongly agreed that Physiotherapist should know about a patient's hepatitis B status and almost 68.4% feels at risk while treating

hepatitis B patients. 91.9% felt that it's their ethical responsibility to treat a hepatitis B patient. 81.6% said that Physiotherapist can safely treat hepatitis B patients. Almost 72.4 said hepatitis B patients should be allowed to work.

 Table 5 Comparison of attitude towards hepatitis B patients among 3rd and 4th year of physiotherapy students

Sl.No	Question	Year	Frequency (%)		P value
			Yes	No	
1.	Found long time patient positive would stop treating	3rd 4th	28(19.2) 9(7.1)	118(80.8) 117(92.9)	0.004
2.	PT should know if patient is positive	3rd 4th	135(92.5) 126(100)	11(7.5) 0	0.002
3.	Will be competent to treat Hep B patient after BPT	3rd 4th	117(80.1) 118(93.7)	29(19.9) 8(6.3)	0.001
4.	No. of patients treated will influence attitude	3rd 4th	101(69.2) 108(85.7)	45(29.5) 18(14.3)	0.001
5.	Other patients avoid rendering treatment from you if you treat Hep B patient	3rd 4th	44(30.1) 15(11.9)	102(69.9) 111(88.1)	0.001
6.	Hep B patient should not stay in community	3rd 4th	43(29.5) 20(15.9)	103(70.5) 106(84.1)	0.008
7.	Hep B patient should not work	3rd 4th	53(36.3) 22(17.5)	93(63.7) 104(82.5)	0.001

Table 5. Depicts the comparative results of attitude based question using chi-square test, where P value is <0.05.There was significant difference of opinion seen among 3rd and 4thyear BPT students in certain question. When asked whether other patient will avoid rendering treatment if they treat hepatitis B patient (30.1%) 3rdyear and (11.9%) 4th year BPT students said yes. (36.3%) 3rdyears agreed that hepatitis B patients shouldn't work while only (17.5%) 4thyear said the same. Thus there was significant association between the course year and the following questions. Thus 4th year BPT showed better attitude compared to 3rd year BPT in these questions.

Discussion

This present study revealed that about 94.5% of the physiotherapy students agreed that disease is caused by a virus. Our results are in consistent with the study carried out by Baig *et al.*,(2015) among clinicians and medical students revealed that 99.0% identified Hepatitis B as a viral disease of liver pathology ^[11]. In another cross
sectional study done by Nagpal et al., (2016) 88.7% students know that hepatitis B is transmitted through virus where 3rd year students have the maximum and 1styear students have the minimum awareness in this regard^[2].The overall knowledge regarding transmission of hepatitis B through sexual contact (38%), body fluid (41.2%) which were expected to be low levels showed significant good level of knowledge. This finding was in line with the study done by Abdela et al., (2016) where most respondents knew that exposure to infected blood or body fluid are risk factors^{[12].} But, it was higher than 56.2% knowledge levels at Haramava university^[13], 59% from Iraq^[14] and 14.5% from Lao DPR^[15]. 8.8% didn't believed that HBV can cause liver cancer which was in line with a study done by Samuel et al., (2009), reported 8.45% participants didn't believed^[16]. Nevertheless we found that relatively lower proportion of the students knew that HBV has post- exposure prophylaxis (39.0%). This finding was consistent with the previous study by Abdela et al., (2016) that reported a good knowledge on HBV but poor knowledge on post prophylaxis^[12] .More than 68.4% of participants were aware that they are at risk of contracting HBV and 85.3% believe that HBV vaccine is effective and safe. This finding was in line with the study done by Hazmi et al., (2015) from Saudi Arabia among dentists^[17]. Asmari et al.,(2018), reported that only 33.5% students in their study agreed that at times hepatitis B patients are asymptomatic. In contrast 82.3% reported that hepatitis B patients can be asymptomatic^[18].

Overall mean knowledge score of 272 BPT students is 17.86 ± 3.739 . The study showed that there is significant difference in knowledge between 3rd and 4thvear BPT (P=0.001).Mean knowledge is more in 4thyear compared to 3rdyear BPT. This is in line with the study done by Reang et al., (2015), which concluded that the academic year of study were significantly associated with the knowledge of HBV infection (P=0.000)^[7]. Statistically significant difference have been noted in the attitude of 3rdyear and 4thyear BPT for the responses to questions like if found that long time patient is positive would stop treating and whether physiotherapist should know a patient's hepatitis B status. Similarly in a study done by Peeran et al., (2017), showed that the 3rdyear students agreed that the healthcare provider has the right to reject to treat a hepatitis B patient and the patient should inform about the hepatitis B status^[19]. This present study

concluded that the 3rdyear BPT students are seemingly new at providing clinical treatment during the course and they still have not gained full exposure. Their attitude is framed more by the prevailing myths which may be from various sources. Comparatively, the willingness to treat HBV patients among 4thyear BPT students was the reflection of more exposure and knowledge. This difference states that students start overcoming the fear of virus, while understanding the need to take adequate precaution as the students graduate to higher level in their practice of physiotherapy.

Conclusion

In conclusion, the present study showed that the overall knowledge was found to be good. The mean knowledge is more in 4thyear students compared to 3rdyear BPT students. It was seen that both 3rdyear and 4thyear BPT students have similar attitude except for the responses to some questions in which statistically significant responses have been noted. The difference in some areas has the potential in affecting patient care and the physiotherapist-patient relationship. Improving the curricula and increasing the amount of clinical exposure during early academic years should be emphasised. So that the minor difference noted between both groups can be corrected and thus obtain an overall increment in physiotherapy care provided to the HBV patients.

Acknowledgement: We thank the respective validators, Deans and participants without whom this study would not have been possible.

Conflict of Interest: Authors declare no conflict of interest.

Table 2 Overall knowledge of hepatitis B among 3rd and 4th year physiotherapy students

Self-funding

Ethical approval: Obtained from Institutional ethics committee.

References

- 1. Hepatitis B [Internet]. Who.int.2020 [cited 24 March 2020]. Available from: http://www.who.int/ mediacentre/factsheets/fs204/en/index.html
- 2. Nagpal, B. and Hegde, U., 2016. Knowledge,

attitude, and practices of hepatitis B infection among dental students. International Journal of Medical Science and Public Health, 5(6), p.1123.

- 3. Puri P. Tackling the Hepatitis B Disease Burden in India. Journal of Clinical and Experimental Hepatology. 2014;4(4):312-319
- Datta S. An overview of molecular epidemiology of heapatitis B virus (HBV) in India. Virology Journal. 2008;5(1):156.
- Dunford L, Carr M, Dean J, Nguyen L, Ta Thi T, Nguyen B et al. A Multicentre Molecular Analysis of Hepatitis B and Blood-Borne Virus Coinfections in Viet Nam. PLoS ONE. 2012;7(6):e39027.
- Dannetum E, Tegnell A, Torner A, Giesecke J. Coverage of hepatitis B vaccination in Swedish healthcare workers. Journal of Hospital Infection. 2006;63(2):201-204.
- Reang T, Chakraborty T, Sarker M, Tripura A. A study of knowledge and practice regarding Hepatitis B among nursing students attending tertiary care hospitals in Agartala city. International Journal of Research in Medical Sciences. 2015;:1641-1649.
- What is physical therpy | World Confederation for Physical Therapy [Internet].Wcpt.org.2020 [cited 24 March 2020]. Available from: https//www.wcpt. org/what-is-physical-therapy
- Patankar S, B Puttaswamy, Chandar R S. Indian dental students' vaccination status, knowledge,attitudes, practices regarding Hepatitis B. International Journal of Applied Dental Sciences 2017; 3(3): 86-90
- 10. Bhadoria A, Chhabra D, Mishra S, Gawande K, Sharma A, Kishore S. Knowledge, attitude, and practice study on hepatitis B among medical and nursing undergraduate students of an apex healthcare institute at Uttarakhand foothills: A descriptive analysis. Journal of Family Medicine and Primary Care. 2019;8(7):2354
- 11. Baig VN,Gupta PK, Sharma AK, Swarnkar M. Assessment of Knowledge, Attitude and Practice

about Hepatitis B among clinical & Medical students: Cross Sectional Study. Ntl of Community Med 2015;6(3):415-422

- 12. Abdela A, Woldu B, Haile K, Mathewos B, Deressa T. Assessment of knowledge, attitude and practices towards prevention of hepatitis B virus infection among students of medicine and practice towards prevention of hepatitis B virus infection among students of medince and health science in Northwest Ethiopia. BMC Research Notes. 2016;9(1).
- Mesfin YM, Kibret KT. Assessment of knowladge and practice towards hepatitis B among medical and health science students in Haramaya University, Ethiopia. PLos ONE. 2013;8(11):79642
- 14. Othman SM, Saleh AM, Shabila NP. Knowladge about hepatitis B infection among medical students in Erbil city, Iraq. Eurp Sci J. 2013;3:1857-7881
- Pathoumthonga K, Khampanisonga P, Quetb F, Latthaphasavang V, Souvong V, Buisson Y. Vaccination status, knowladge and awareness towards hepatitis B among students of health professions in Vientiane. Lao PDR. Vccine.2014;32:4993-9.
- S.O. Samuel,S.A Aderibigbe, T.A.ASalami & O.A. Babatunde. Heath workers knowladge, attitude and behaviour towards hepatitis B infections in South Nigeria.
- Al- Hazmi A. Knowladge, attitude and practice of dentists concerning the occupational risks of hepatitis B virus in Al Jouf Province, Saudi Arabia. Nigerian Journal of Clinical Practice. 2015:18(2):276.
- Al-Asmari AS, Alnomsi JS, Dahash DF, Aliasseri WA, Shehri MMA, Alatawi HF et al. Knowladge,Attitude and Practice towards Hepatitis B Virus among Medical Students in Tabuk City, Saudi Arabia 2018;72(1):3776-3780
- Peeran SW, Peeran SA, AL Mugrabi MH, Abdalla KA, Murugan M, Alsaid FM. Hepatitis B Knowladge and attitude of graduating dentist from dentistry,Sebha University, Libya.Dent Med Res 2017;5:3-8

To Assess the Level of Stress Among University Undergraduate Physiotherapy Students

Jagruti k Patel¹, Kajal A Hadiya²

¹Assistant Professor, ²Intern of Bachelor of physiotherapy, S.S Agrawal Institute of Physiotherapy and Medical Care Education Navsari

Abstract

Background: The campus life is identified as very stressful period for so many students because of huge difference in education system as they have to pass through new academic and social environment. WHO has projected that stress disorder will be ranked as second most disabling disorders, except appropriate measures are taken for early diagnosis. This study was conducted to measure level of stress among undergraduate physiotherapy students using Student stress inventory (SSI). To help the students to avoid stress from the beginning and to provide them with suitable mental health care and the efficient method to cope with stress Therefore, the aim of this study is to assess the level of stress among the undergraduate Physiotherapy student at university.

Method: Cross-sectional analysis of 905 physiotherapy students of age ranged from 18-23 years was done. Informed consent was taken at the starting of the study and assessment of level of stress was done using Student Stress Inventory (SSI). Collected data was entered in SPSS and analysed using the same software.

Results: Data was analysed using Pearson's correlation coefficient which indicate a positive correlation between academic and environmental factors with the level of stress among students. Result of this study indicate mild to moderate level of stress among university students. Out of all item high parental expectation, worry about examination, delivering the class presentations, constant fatigue, headache were common complains of students

Conclusion: The undergraduate physiotherapy students of University experienced mild to moderate level of stress, out of all components environmental and academic factors were responsible for producing more stress among students of the all years.

Keywords: Student stress inventory, level of stress, physiotherapy students.

Introduction

Health profession education is highly demanding and competitive for students to manage with complex learning environment. For some individual healthcare profession could be a stressful experience, and may affect negatively. Some studies suggest that high stress level and psychological morbidity occur in health care

Corresponding author: Kajal A Hadiya,

Intern of Bachelor of physiotherapy, S.S Agrawal Institute of Physiotherapy and Medical Care Education Navsari-396445 profession students.1

WHO has projected that stress disorder will be ranked as second most disabling disorder, unless appropriate measures are taken for early diagnosis, prompt and effective treatment and prevention of stress.²

According to WCPT Physiotherapy is a health care profession concerned with human function and movement and maximizing physical potential within the spheres of promotion, prevention, treatment/ intervention and rehabilitation.³

Which includes four years of educational program with six months of internship practice. These four years

may be stressful for students to get satisfaction with all their achievements.⁴

For university students change of school environment to university environment could cause a Psychological, Academic and Social shock to them, because of huge differences in educational system.⁵

According to Porter (1990), up to 60% of university students discontinue their course without completing their graduation and commonly it occurs in students of 1st and 2nd years as they can't cope up with psychological problems.⁶

For better professional growth university students have to adapt themselves for different psychosocial changes along with coping with academic and social demands.⁷

In all over the world stress become universal issue experienced by every individual, middle aged and younger adults are more conscious to stress than older adults.⁸

According to Hans Selye "stress is the non-specific response of the body to any demand for change".⁹

Stresses can be external or internal.

There are two types of stress:

1. Positive stress - It is associated with adaptation and is necessary for growth and development E.g. eustress

2. Negative stress - It is harmful and may exhaust adaptive capacities. E.g. distress¹⁰

Stress can be divided into four categories; a balance between under-stress and overstress must be emphasized and good stress must be realized to reduce distress.¹¹

Stressors are the event or situations that cause the potential for Physiological, emotional, cognitive/ behavioural changes in individual stress.¹²

The impact of stress on students depends upon their values, expectations, perceptions thinking and their coping patterns. The stressful event can be physical or psychological. At first, the student losses control, when they are under stress. Then the student will have negative feelings, and the cycle begins and the more psychological and physiological effect occurs to the student.¹⁰⁻¹²

Selye considered that the absence of stress in life is not good and that it also has an active function.¹³

In student life stress was found as part of life and it may give impression on how students manage with the demands of academic life.¹⁴

Studies shows that high stress levels in students of medicine, dentistry, pharmacy and physiotherapy fields.¹⁵⁻²⁰ A high frequency of depression and anxiety has also been declared in medical students, especially females, compared to age-matched peers in the general population.¹⁵

There are so many reasons students are going through stressful period is pressure of good achievement, academic tasks, concern about future goals, academic commitments, financial level and poor time management skills.²¹

Also they are facing conditions like concern for good grades, social issues, interpersonal and family relationships, manage with the highly complex environment of college, examinations, too much work loads.^{20, 22-23}

There are various assessment tools to measure stress level which is felt by the students along with their academic life. We have used student stress inventory (SSI) that can be help to measure the stress level among undergraduate physiotherapy students.⁹

Methodology

STUDY DESIGN: Cross -Sectional

POPULATION: University undergraduate physiotherapy students

SAMPLING METHOD: Convenient Sampling Method.

SAMPLE SIZE: 905

STUDY DURATION: 6 Month

INCLUSION CRITERIA: 905 physiotherapy students aged 18-23 years were included.

TOOLS & MATERIAL USED:

- o Pen
- o Data collection form
- o Consent form
- o Student Stress Inventory (SSI)

OUTCOME MEASURES: Student Stress Inventory (SSI)

DATA COLLECTION PROCEDURE:

Evaluation of undergraduate physiotherapy students was done. I have purposely Selected Physiotherapy students. For adequate representation to sample, the sample size was 905 students male and female between the age of 18-23 years were taken. **o STEP 1:** Every student of respective years was approached individually. Purpose and objective of study was explained to them and written consent form was obtained prior to conducting the study. Each and every student of Physiotherapy was participated in the study voluntarily.

• STEP 2: Demographic data of all 905 students was collected, that includes; name, age, stay, gender & Year of study.

• STEP 3: SSI was given to all students & every domains of questionnaire was explained. Every student co-operated well & completed the data collection procedure.

Results

Table no.: 1 Mean and Standard deviation of stress subscales

Source of stress	Mean	SD
Physical Total	17.82	3.912
Ip.Total	18.13	4.337
Academic Total	21.49	5.865
Environmental Total	20.86	6.151

Table no.: 2 Level of stress experienced by students in physical subscale

Physical subscale								
	М	Mild		Moderate		vere		
Year	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage		
1st	215	70.95%	87	28.71%	1	0.33%		
2nd	237	72.92%	87	26.76%	1	0.30%		
3rd	98	67.12%	48	32.87%	0	0.00%		
4th	90	68.70%	40	30.53%	1	0.76%		

	Interpersonal relationship subscale									
	Mild		Mode	erate	Severe					
Year	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage				
1st	216	71.28%	84	27.72%	3	0.99%				
2nd	213	65.53%	105	32.30%	7	2.15%				
3rd	92	63.01%	53	36.30%	1	0.68%				
4th	90	68.70%	41	31.29%	0	0.00%				

Table no.: 3 Level of stress experienced by students in interpersonal relationship subscale

Table no.: 4 Level of stress	experienced h	ov the students in	academic subscale
	caperienceu c	y the students in	acaacinic subscare

Academic subscale									
	Mild		Moderate		Severe				
Year	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage			
1st	118	38.94%	156	51.48%	29	9.57%			
2nd	137	42.15%	161	49.53%	27	8.30%			
3rd	98	67.12%	48	32.87%	0	0.00%			
4th	66	50.38%	61	46.56%	4	3.05%			

Table no.: 5 Level of stress experienced by the students in environmental subscale

Environmental subscale									
	Mild		Moderate		Severe				
Year	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage	Number of students	Percentage			
1st	145	47.85%	136	44.88%	22	7.26%			
2nd	142	43.69%	164	50.46%	19	5.84%			
3rd	63	43.15%	65	44.52%	18	12.32%			
4th	65	49.61%	62	47.32%	4	3.05%			

	Physical		Interpersonal relationship	Academic	Environmental
	р	0.255	0.960	0.253	0.799
Age	r	0.038	-0.002	-0.038	-0.008
	р	0.272	0.037	-0.069	0.000
Stay	r	0.037	-0.069	-0.002	0.219
	р	0.522	0.827	0.044	0.877
Year	r	0.021	-0.007	-0.067	-0.005

Table no.: 6 Correlation between age, stay and year of study with source of stress

Disscussion

Primary aim of this study was to assess level of stress among undergraduate university physiotherapy students by using student stress inventory (SSI) which provides information regarding level of stress as well as about stressors producing it and the precautions to be taken. A total of 905 undergraduate students, both males and females were assessed for different demographic variables such as Age, Gender, Stay and Year of study. Along with it the level of stress was marked on SSI by students themselves.

The values produced on SSI indicates mild to moderate level of stress among university physiotherapy students; Out of all the factors affecting stress present study found that Academic and Environmental factors were the ones which affected the students most.

The correlation between level of stress and different factors affecting stress depicted that there was a significant negative correlation between stress and academic factor. Adding on to this, the students of this study group showed a positive correlation between level of stress and environmental factors which was significant with p value ≤ 0.05 . Other components of student stress inventory when correlated with students' stress level;

the results were not significant ($p \ge 0$).

The possible reasons for the above-mentioned findings could be because of students staying at hostel and away from their families. Living alone in hostels/ apartments and Lack of recreation activities could be one of the reasons. According to the study performed in the United Arab Emirates many students in the 1st year were staying away from their family for 1st time and may need more emotional support compared to 2nd year student this could be an indication of student's level of stress related to environmental factors.²⁴

Another positive result of our study was the correlation between Academic factors and stress produced by such factors. This result can be supported by a study on internship students of Shree Swaminarayan physiotherapy college, Surat which has mentioned that Medical and Paramedical students are expected to learn and master a huge amount of knowledge, attitudes and skills for which they have to work hard which in turn put them under lots of stress. It was observed that academic examination for medical and Para-medical students are stressful and produces changes in vital parameters which affected their academic performance.⁴ In academic subscale nervousness for class presentations and examinations are more common factors by which

students taking stress. Students find difficulty to dealing with tough subjects.

In physical subscale headaches, excessive worry, and constant tiredness are common symptoms among students that may be due to the Irregular eating habits, lack of exercise and sleep problems which are associated with a higher incidence of psychological disorders. According to Asian Journal of Psychiatry, stress probably occurs due to the concern about future and fear of failure being the most stressful thing among students. Stress might occur due to increased workload and limited leisure time which must have caused our students to mark more on headaches, excessive worry and constant tiredness symptoms.^{25,7}

Maximum students of our study showed high parental expectations and frustration by lack of faculty management as few of the interpersonal relationship parameters which were causing stress among them. These findings can be supported by few of the other factors indicated by Riphah International University which concluded that Major percentage of stressors faced by students are self-imposed including competition, problem solving, tension taken in exams and viva's and to get love and care from friends and parents. ²⁶

Conclusion

The University undergraduate physiotherapy students experienced mild to moderate level of stress, out of all components environmental and academic factors were responsible for producing more stress among students of the all years.

Conflict of Interest-Nil

Source of Funding- Self

Ethical Clearance –Taken from institutional advisory board.

References

 Omigbodun OO, Odukogbe AT, Omigbodun AO, Yusuf OB, Bella TT, Olayemi O. Stressors and psychological symptoms in students of medicine and allied health professions in Nigeria. Social psychiatry and psychiatric epidemiology. 2006 May 1;41(5):415-21.

- Hirschfeld RM, Keller MB, Panico S, Arons BS, Barlow D, Davidoff F, Endicott J, Froom J, Goldstein M, Gorman JM, Guthrie D. The National Depressive and Manic-Depressive Association consensus statement on the undertreatment of depression. Jama. 1997 Jan 22;277(4):333-40.
- 3. WCPT Policy statement: Descriptionofphysicaltherapy. http://www.wcpt. org/policy/ps- descriptionPT
- 4. Shah T, Patel MD, Shah H. A STUDY TO EVALUATE DEPRESSION, ANXIETY AND STRESS AMONG UNDERGRADUATE PHYSIOTHERAPY STUDENTS-AN INSTITUTION BASED PILOT STUDY. International Journal of Current Research and Review. 2016 Oct 15;8(20):20.
- Thawabieh AM, Qaisy LM. Assessing stress among university students. American International Journal of Contemporary Research. 2012;2(2):110-6.
- Porter, O. F. (1990). Undergraduate completion and persistence at four-year colleges and universities. National Institute of Independent Colleges and Universities.
- Shamsuddin K, Fadzil F, Ismail WS, Shah SA, Omar K, Muhammad NA, Jaffar A, Ismail A, Mahadevan R. Correlates of depression, anxiety and stress among Malaysian university students. Asian journal of psychiatry. 2013 Aug 1;6(4):318-23.\
- Ghafoor A, Mobeen A, Javed M, Hussian H. Association Between Student Life Stress Inventory Scale Score and Cortisol Hormonal Test Value In Undergraduate DPT Students. International Journal of Rehabilitation Sciences (IJRS). 2017 Aug 24;6(02).
- Arip MM, Kamaruzaman DN, Roslan A, Ahmad A, Rahman MA, Malim T. Development, validity and reliability of student stress inventory (SSI). The Social Sciences. 2015;10(7):1631-8.
- Jhand DAK. A TEXT BOOK OF PSYCHOLOGY.
 2017th ed. JALANDHAR: S.VIKAS AND COMPANY (MEDICAL PUBLISHERS); 2017.
- Lin YM, Chen FS. Academic stress inventory of students at universities and colleges of technology. World Transactions on Engineering and Technology

Education. 2009;7(2):157-62.

- GUPTA RK. A Textbook of MENTAL HEALTH NURSING. Updated ed. JALANDHAR: S.VIKAS & COMPANY (Medical Publishers) INDIA; 2016.
- Selye, H., The Stress Concept: Past, Present, and Future. In: Cooper, C.L. (Ed), Stress research: issues for the eighties. New York: John Wiley & Sons, 1-20 (1983).
- Rawson, H. E., Bloomer, K., & Kendall, A. (1999). Stress, anxiety, depression, and physical illness in college students. The Journal of Genetic Psychology, 155(3): 321-330.
- Dyrbye LN, Thomas MR and Shanafelt TD. Systematic review of depression, anxiety, and other indicators of psychological distress among US and Canadian medical students. Acad Med 2006; 81:354–73.
- Al-Dabal BK, Koura MR, Rasheed P, Al-Sowielem L, Makki SM. A comparative study of perceived stress among female medical and non-medical university students in Dammam, Saudi Arabia. Sultan Qaboos Univ Med J 2010; 10:231–40.
- Al-Lamki L. Stress in the Medical Profession and its roots in Medical School. Sultan Qaboos Univ Med J 2010; 10:156–9.
- Abu-Ghazaleh SB, Rajab LD, Sonbol HN. Psychological stress among dental students at the University of Jordan.J Dent Educ 2011; 75:1107– 14.
- Frick LJ, Frick JL, Coffman RE, Dey S. Student stress in a three-year doctor of pharmacy program using a mastery learning educational model. Am J Pharm Educ 2011; 75:64.
- 20. Walsh JM, Feeney C, Hussey J, Donnellan C.

Sources of stress and psychological morbidity among undergraduate physiotherapy students. Physiotherapy 2010; 96:206–12.

- Rafidah, K., Azizah, A. & Noraini, I. (2009). The impact of perceived stress and stress factors on academic performance of pre-diploma science students: a Malaysian study. International journal of scientific research in education, 2 (1), 13-16.
- 22. Tucker B, Jones S, Mandy A, Gupta R. Physiotherapy students' sources of stress, perceived course difficulty, and paid employment: comparison between Western Australia and United Kingdom. Physiotherapy Theory Pract 2006; 22: 317-28.
- Sarid O, Anson O, Yaari A, Margalith M. Academic stress, immunological reaction, and academic performance among students of nursing and physiotherapy. Res Nurs Health 2004;27: 370-7
- 24. Gomathi KG, Ahmed S, Sreedharan J. Causes of stress and coping strategies adopted by undergraduate health professions students in a university in the United Arab Emirates. Sultan Qaboos University Medical Journal. 2013 Aug;13(3):437.
- Tangade, P.S., Mathur, A., Gupta, R., Chaudhary, S., 2011. Assessment of stress level among dental school students: an Indian outlook. Dental Research Journal 8 (2), 95–101.
- Sreeramareddy CT, Shankar PR, Binu V, Mukhopadhyay C, Ray B, Menezes RG. Psychological morbidity, sources of stress and coping strategies among undergraduate medical students of Nepal. BMC Medical education. 2007;7(1):26.

Association of Anxiety with Cognition and Academic Performance in Overweight and Obese Adolescents - A Cross Sectional Study

Jeba Chitra, Vinuta Deshpande, Sharon Queenie Crasta

¹Dean & Professor, Department of Neurological Physiotherapy, ²Assistant Professor, Department of Pediatric Physiotherapy, KAHER Institute of Physiotherapy, ³PG Student, Department of Pediatric Physiotherapy, KAHER Institute of Physiotherapy

Abstract

Aims: To determine the correlation between cognitive and academic levels in anxious overweight/obese adolescents.

Methods: The Spence Child Anxiety Scale (SCAS) was used to check the level of anxiety on 98 overweight/ obese adolescents aged 12-16 years. After meeting inclusion criteria participants were evaluated by Mini Mental State Examination (MMSE) for level of cognition and Academic Performance Rating Scale (APRS) for academic performance.

Results: 5.10% of obese/overweight adolescents had moderate cognition, and 13.27% mild cognition. No significant association was seen in BMI and anxiety with cognition and academic performance, however, a positive correlation was seen between cognition and academic performance (p<0.05).

Conclusion: Anxiety rates in overweight/obese adolescents are not directly proportional to levels of cognition and academic performance. However, age rise has a correlation with BMI rise and level of anxiety. The research showed that cognition levels are associated with academic performance.

Keywords: Adolescent, Obesity, Anxiety, Cognition, Academic Performance

Introduction

Weight gain and fat storage were regarded as a sign of health and prosperity in ancient days. Today, with living standards rising, weight gain and obesity pose an increasing risk to health among kids and young people worldwide.^[1] Childhood and adolescent obesity has reached epidemic proportions globally, despite attempts to encourage weight loss.^[2] The mechanisms responsible for enhancing adolescent obesity are not fully understood, but hereditary variables, climate,

Corresponding author:

Dr. Jeba Chitra,

Dean & Professor, Department of Neurological Physiotherapy, KAHER Institute of Physiotherapy, Nehru Nagar, Belagavi, India-590010. Email: jebachitra@hotmail.com metabolism, behavior, culture and socio-economic status all play a part in obesity. Factors leading to enhanced incidence of overweight and obesity among adolescents in India include lifestyle modifications connected with decreased outdoor physical activity, enhanced use of screen time, and elevated family revenue.^[3]

Prevalence rates in the USA have risen 2 to 3 times over 25 years, 2 to 3 times over 10 years in England and 4 times over 18 years in Egypt, according to different research.^[4] The present prevalence in India of adolescent overweight ranges from 4% to 22%.^[5] Recent estimates show that about 9.1% of adolescents in the district of Belgaum are overweight and 4.1% are obese.^[1,27]

As with adults, adolescent obesity causes a cluster of risk variables for cardiovascular disease. The significant medical co-morbidities connected with adolescent obesity are metabolic risk factors, including hypertension, dyslipidemia and chronic inflammation, enhanced tendency for blood coagulation, endothelial dysfunction and hyperinsulinemia.^[26] Often pulmonary complications include sleep-disordered breathing (sleep apnea), asthma, and intolerance to exercise. In an obese adolescent, developing asthma or exercising intolerance may restrict physical activity. Depression, anxiety disorder and ADHD are major psychological comorbidities.^[6]

Anxiety is a normal phenomenon that occurs during a child's growth, and although fears of adolescence may be quite intense, most of them vanish as rapidly as they appear. Fear and anxiety will persist and become so intense in some children that they start to interfere with their daily functioning.^[7] Adolescence is regarded a critical time when mental disorders may manifest themselves, leading to a greater danger of future chronic mental illness.^[8]

Various studies point to adolescent overweight / obesity associations with social and psychological features such as depression, anxiety, social withdrawal, etc. Obesity can be a risk factor for disorders of anxiety. Obesity can lead to disturbances of anxiety through different pathways. For example, weight-related discrimination and stigma for obese people may be deeply distressing. Additionally, the adverse impact of obesity may be particularly stressful on health and quality of life. Thereafter, both pathways can lead to anxiety disorders.^[9]

Adolescent anxiety disorders are accompanied by a wide variety of negative impacts on life. It also affects the functioning of adolescents with peers, school and recreation, and can lead adolescents to under-reach in school and other areas of life.^[10] Anxiety is a distressing issue, particularly among kids and adolescents who are constantly being assessed in schools. Although some reviews explain the etiology of anxiety, much study is required on anxious adolescents, such as the diagnostic structure and psychopathology of people experiencing test anxiety.^[11]

A research was carried out on highly obese primary school kids in China who found that they had a considerably lower intelligence quotient than the controls.^[12] A similar study on Thai kids (grade 7 to 9) found a link between overweight status and poor school performance.^[13]

With recently documented prevalence rises, obesity along with anxiety is now one of the most urgent issues facing adolescents today. The effect of obesity on academic achievement was a contentious issue and the proof on this front was inconclusive.^[14] Literature disclosed obese adolescents with impairments in nearly all cognitive areas i.e. attention, verbal and visual memory, decision-making. However, there were a large number of methodological constraints that need to be taken into account in interpretations and findings of an autonomous impact. There is currently insufficient evidence to indicate a strong connection between obesity and cognitive impairment in adolescents due to these methodological constraints.^[15]

In order to better understand the connection between adolescent obesity and cognition, further study is suggested.^[15] Further studies are required to determine if obesity and anxiety are determinants of reduced academic achievement.^[14]

The aim of the research is therefore to determine the correlation between cognitive and academic levels in obese adolescents with anxiety.

Materials and Methods

The study was carried out in Belagavi district of Karnataka. A descriptive cross-sectional design was used in this research using a quantitative approach. The investigator adopted the descriptive research design because, the study aimed to provide a current account of the correlation between cognitive and academic levels in obese adolescents with anxiety. The investigator also chose a quantitative approach because of its ability to infer from more participants than other methods. Approval was granted by the Institutional Ethical Committee before the study was conducted. Data on the total number of higher secondary schools were obtained from the District Officer, Belagavi, in determining the sample size for the study. An open-ended sample size was chosen based on the suitability of the research. In selecting the schools, a simple random sampling method was used. The chosen schools' higher authorities had been approached and the study started after approval.

Students aged 12 to 16 years of chosen schools within Belagavi were the target population for the research. Subjects were requested to participate in the study after finding their suitability according to the inclusion and exclusion criteria. Participants, their parents and teachers were informed about the nature of the study written informed consent was received from each research participant. All subjects were assessed for their height and weight and the BMI was calculated. The participants falling into the category of overweight / obese were tested for their levels of anxiety. Subjects were included if they met the following criteria: (1) Those who were willing to participate (2) BMI > 85thpercentile on the BMI-for-age growth chart (3) > 60T-score on the Spence Child Anxiety Scale (SCAS). Subjects were excluded if they were under any weight loss medication or any workout program for weight loss.

After recruitment into the study, using the Mini Mental State Examination (MMSE), each participant was assessed for their cognition level. The MMSE begins with a graded assessment of orientation to place and time, for which a maximum of 10 points is possible. This is followed by testing two aspects of memory. The first is the immediate recall for three objects presented orally, followed by a serial sevens task which is interposed to assess attention, concentration, and calculation, and also to prevent the individual from rehearsing the three objects previously learned. A maximum of 11 points may be obtained in this section of the test. The final section surveys aphasia by testing functions of naming, repetition, understanding a three-stage command, reading, writing and copying a drawing. There is a maximum of 9 points which may be obtained on this section, for a total possible MMSE score of 30 points. Internal consistency appears to be moderate with Cronbach alpha scores reported between 0.6 and 0.9. Test-retest reliability has been examined in several studies, and in those where re-examination took place within 24 h reliability by Pearson correlation was usually above 0.85.^[16]

Another questionnaire filled out by the subject class teacher, the Academic Performance Rating Scale (APRS), evaluated the academic performance of each participant. The APRS is a 19-item scale that was developed to reflect teachers' perceptions of children's academic performance and abilities in classroom settings. It includes items directed towards work performance in various subject areas, academic success, behavioral control in academic situations, and attention to assignments. Teachers answered each item using a 1 (never or poor) to 5 (very often or excellent) Likert scale format. Seven APRS items (i.e., nos. 12, 13, 15- 19) were reverse keyed in scoring so that a higher total score corresponded with a positive academic status.^[17]

Cognition	Obese	%	Overweight	%	Total	%	
Mild	5	38.46	8	61.54	13	13.27	
Severe	3	60.00	2	40.00	5	5.10	
No	36	45.00	44	55.00	80	81.63	
Total	44	44.90	54	55.10	98	100.00	
Chi-square 0.6791 P = 0.7122							

ASSOCIATION BETWEEN OBESITY AND COGNITION: (Table 1)

ASSOCIATION BETWEEN BMI, ANXIETY, COGNITION AND ACADEMIC

PERFORMANCE: (Table 2)

Variables	Correlation between age with					
	Ν	Spearman R	t-value	p-level		
BMI	98	0.5261	6.0621	0.0001*		
Spence child anxiety	98	0.0298	0.2918	0.7711		
Spence child anxiety (T)	98	-0.2966	-3.0431	0.0030*		
Standardized mini mental state examination	98	0.1406	1.3917	0.1672		
Academic performance	98	-0.0158	-0.1553	0.8769		

*P<0.05

ASSOCIATION BETWEEN COGNITION AND ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE: (Table 3):

	Correlation between Standardized mini mental state examination with					
	Ν	Spearman R	t-value	p-level		
Academic performance	98	0.3375	3.5133	0.0007*		

*P<0.05

COMPARISON BETWEEN MALE AND FEMALE: (Table 4)

	Male			Female				
Variables	Mean	SD	Rank Sum	Mean	SD	Rank Sum	Z-value	p-level
Age	13.03	1.14	827.00	14.88	1.29	4024.00	-5.4048	0.0001*
BMI	24.93	4.31	995.00	28.05	4.36	3856.00	-4.1214	0.0001*
Spence child anxiety	44.77	10.08	1266.50	47.78	10.02	3584.50	-2.0473	0.0406*
Spence child anxiety (T)	64.61	3.31	1922.50	63.12	4.74	2928.50	-2.9641	0.0030*
Standardized mini mental state	24.97	4.42	1203.50	27.27	3.10	3647.50	-2.5286	0.0115*

Results

Statistical Analysis:

Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS version 20.0) was used to analyze the data. Non-parametric Spearman's rank correlation method was used to find the correlation between all the variables. Level of significance was set at P<0.05.

ASSOCIATION BETWEEN OBESITY AND COGNITION: (Table 1)

Summarizes the association between Obesity and Cognition using the Chi-square test. Majority of adolescents, 81.63% had no cognitive deficits. Whereas 5.10% showed severe cognition impairment and 13.27% had mild cognition impairment.

ASSOCIATION BETWEEN BMI, ANXIETY, COGNITION AND ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE: (Table 2)

Table 2 shows the correlation between age with BMI, Spence child anxiety, Spence child anxiety (T-score), Standardized mini mental state examination and Academic performance by Spearman's rank correlation method. There is a significant positive correlation between age and BMI (P=0.0001). There is a significant negative correlation between age and Anxiety (P=0.0030). There was statistically significant correlation between age with cognition and academic performance.

ASSOCIATION BETWEEN COGNITION AND ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE: (Table 3)

Table 3 shows the Correlation between Standardized mini mental state examination scores with Academic performance by Spearman's rank correlation method. There is a positive statistically significant correlation between Cognition levels and academic performance of the subjects (P=0.0007).

COMPARISON BETWEEN MALE AND FEMALE: (Table 4)

Table 4 shows the comparison of male and females with age and BMI, Spence child anxiety, Spence child anxiety (T-score), Standardized mini mental state examination and Academic performance by MannWhitney U test. Females have significantly higher scores in comparison with their male peers, except for in academic performance.

Discussion

The present study investigated adolescent obesity associations with anxiety, cognition, and scores of academic performances. To our knowledge this is the first study to assess the association between cognitive and academic levels in overweight/obese adolescents with anxiety. We found that obesity was associated with significantly higher age and anxiety rates in adolescence.

The present study included the pubertal age group and cognition and academic achievement as outcomes. Obese adolescents showed to have more severe cognitive deficits compared to overweight adolescents. [Table 1] Majority of adolescents with severe cognitive deficits were obese whereas high numbers of adolescents with mild cognition were overweight. However, the total sample population showed to have more adolescents having normal cognition. This shows that majority of the obese/overweight adolescents had no cognitive deficits. The reason for such a result could have been as this study relied on BMI (i.e., BMI-for-age) as the primary measure of obesity, neglecting the influence of body composition or fat distribution. This is a significant limitation, as body composition in children differs by age, gender, and stage of sexual maturity. The findings of the present study are similar to a study done by John Gunstad et al where 6-19 year olds were tested for cognition using a computerized test method and the study resulted that elevated BMI is not associated with cognitive function in children and adolescents.^[21] Such a finding points to a maladaptive relationship between obesity and aspects of cognition.

When taken age into consideration, in the current study, BMI (p=0.0001) and anxiety (p<0.003) showed significant correlation. This suggests that as age progresses BMI increases and as age progresses anxiety reduces. [Table 2] This could be due to adolescent's evaluations of threat which are not only determined by external information (i.e., exposure to potential threat cues) but also by internal information, such as the experience of anxiety-related bodily sensations, for example emotional reasoning which is the cognitive process of inferring danger on the basis of a physical anxiety response.^[20] Another reason supporting the

association between increased weight and anxiety could be the dynamic-equilibrium model of well-being and psychological distress. According to this model, a person's levels of well-being and psychological distress tend to be stable over time and get influenced by personality traits. While positive or negative life events can affect well-being and psychological distress, people will tend to return to their equilibrium levels. They will also adapt to long-term adverse situations (e.g. being obese, poorer physical health), so that these do not disturb the equilibrium levels of wellbeing and psychological distress. In a study done by Aziz et al. on 6-17 year olds, the prevalence of anxiety disorder was found to be 31% in children and adolescents at risk of overweight/obesity and 16% of children are already overweight.^[18] Similar to our study Esposito et al. 69 male school-aged children and found that anxiety scores are higher in obese children than in normal weight controls.^[19]

The current study resulted that there is no association seen between obesity and cognition [Table 2]. Contrary to our findings, the findings of a study done by Muris & Field suggest that cognitive health may be profoundly affected by weight status and obese children have shown to exhibit lower performance on cognitive control tasks. ^[7] The current study also resulted in no association between BMI and academic performance. A study done by Khan et al., assessed changes in weight status in children over the first 4 years of schooling. Their findings indicated that children who moved from normal to overweight status were likely to score lower on academic tests than their normal weight peers. However, there were no differences between girls who were never overweight and those who remained overweight.^[22] This could be the reason for the present study proving that there is no association between obesity and lower levels of academic performance. However, a cross-sectional study done by Cole et al. indicated a negative association with obesity and academic achievement^[25].

This study showed positive correlation between cognition and academic performance (p=0.0007) [Table 3]. This states that as cognition reduces the academic performance tends to decrease too. The reason of this cognitive distortion in poor academic performance could be attention bias, which refers to anxious children's tendency to display hyperattention towards potentially threatening material/situation. Other

studies have reported similar effects, in non-clinical children and adolescents with high anxiety levels whose results indicate that highly anxious adolescents had poor recalling capacity in turn lowering their academic performance. These findings suggest that poor performance in school is due to the various types of cognitive deficits that occur in anxious children and adolescents.^[7] One such study was done by Li et al., where they documented association between Academic Performance and cognitive impairment in 8-16 year olds, they also stated that overweight was a marker but not a cause of poor Academic Performance.^[14]

When gender related comparison was done, the results showed that female adolescents showed greater scores in all variables compared to their male counterparts. However, the academic performance scored remained almost the same for both groups [Table 4]. A study done by Daniels et al., have resulted in similar conclusion in which there were no significant findings for boys on the measure of academic performance and adolescent girls showed to have greater percentage of weight than their male counterparts.^[28]

Obesity is not a psychological disorder, but some researchers and clinicians argue that it should be considered a mental or behavioral issue.^[23] Recent literature has concluded that majority of studies find a prospective relationship between obesity and anxiety^[24]. It has previously been hypothesized that the association of obesity with anxiety may be due to the physical health consequences of obesity. However, the present results are inconsistent with this hypothesis. In the present study, it was seen that there was a positive significant correlation between age and BMI and negative significant association with anxiety. On the contrary, the current study proved no significant association between obesity and cognition or academic performance.^[15]

Conclusion

Anxiety rates in adolescents who are overweight / obese are not directly proportional to levels of cognition and academic performance. However, age rise has a correlation with BMI rise and level of anxiety. The research also showed that cognition levels are associated with academic performance. In summary, based on the results of this analysis, the levels of anxiety and elevated weight of adolescents do not impact cognition and

academic performance. Reducing the level of anxiety, however, can boost academic performance.

There are no conflicts of interest between each of the authors.

This research received no specific grant from any funding agency in the public, commercial, or notfor-profit sectors.

References

- Gurung TR, Gurung VN. Overweight and Obesity among Adolescent School Students in Belgaum City. Journal of the Nepal Medical Association. 2014 Apr 1;52(194).
- Rofey DL, Kolko RP, Iosif AM, Silk JS, Bost JE, Feng W, Szigethy EM, Noll RB, Ryan ND, Dahl RE. A longitudinal study of childhood depression and anxiety in relation to weight gain. Child psychiatry and human development. 2009 Dec 1;40(4):517-26.
- 3. Ramachandran A, Snehalatha C. Rising burden of obesity in Asia. Journal of obesity. 2010 Aug 30;2010.
- De Onis M, Blössner M, Borghi E. Global prevalence and trends of overweight and obesity among preschool children. The American journal of clinical nutrition. 2010 Sep 22;92(5):1257-64.
- Pathak S, Modi P, Labana U, Khimyani P, Joshi A, Jadeja R, Pandya M. Prevalence of obesity among urban and rural school going adolescents of Vadodara, India: A comparative study. Int J Contemp Pediatr. 2018 Jul;5:1355-9.
- Banjade B, Naik VA, Narasannavar A. Prevalence of obesity and its risk factors among Pre-University college adolescents of Belgaum city, Karnataka. IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences. 2014;13(4):56-60.
- Ebbeling CB, Pawlak DB, Ludwig DS. Childhood obesity: public-health crisis, common sense cure. The lancet. 2002 Aug 10;360(9331):473-82.
- Lee A, Hankin BL. Insecure attachment, dysfunctional attitudes, and low self-esteem predicting prospective symptoms of depression and anxiety during adolescence. Journal of clinical child & Adolescent Psychology. 2009 Mar 17;38(2):219-

31.

- 9. Muris P, Field AP. Distorted cognition and pathological anxiety in children and adolescents. Cognition and emotion. 2008 Apr 1;22(3):395-421.
- Corrieri S, Heider D, Conrad I, Blume A, König HH, Riedel-Heller SG. School-based prevention programs for depression and anxiety in adolescence: A systematic review. Health promotion international. 2013 Feb 1;29(3):427-41.
- 11. Gariepy G, Nitka D, Schmitz N. The association between obesity and anxiety disorders in the population: a systematic review and metaanalysis. International journal of obesity. 2010 Mar;34(3):407.
- Rapee RM, Schniering CA, Hudson JL. Anxiety disorders during childhood and adolescence: Origins and treatment. Annual review of clinical psychology. 2009 Apr 27;5:311-41.
- King NJ, Mietz A, Tinney L, Ollendick TH. Psychopathology and cognition in adolescents experiencing severe test anxiety. Journal of clinical child psychology. 1995 Mar 1;24(1):49-54.
- Li X. A study of intelligence and personality in children with simple obesity. International journal of obesity and related metabolic disorders: journal of the International Association for the Study of Obesity. 1995 May;19(5):355-7.
- Mo-suwan L, Lebel L, Puetpaiboon A, Junjana C. School performance and weight status of children and young adolescents in a transitional society in Thailand. International Journal of Obesity. 1999 Mar;23(3):272.
- Li Y, Dai Q, Jackson JC, Zhang J. Overweight is associated with decreased cognitive functioning among school-age children and adolescents. Obesity. 2008 Aug;16(8):1809-15.
- Russell-Mayhew S, McVey G, Bardick A, Ireland A. Mental health, wellness, and childhood overweight/obesity. Journal of obesity. 2012 Jun 24;2012.
- O'connor DW, Pollitt PA, Hyde JB, Fellows JL, Miller ND, Brook CP, Reiss BB. The reliability and validity of the Mini-Mental State in a British community survey. Journal of psychiatric research. 1989 Jan 1;23(1):87-96.

- DuPaul GJ, Rapport M, Perriello LM. The Development of the Academic Performance Rating Scale.
- Gunstad J, Spitznagel MB, Paul RH, Cohen RA, Kohn M, Luyster FS, Clark R, Williams LM, Gordon E. Body mass index and neuropsychological function in healthy children and adolescents. Appetite. 2008 Mar 1;50(2-3):246-51.
- Puder JJ, Munsch S. Psychological correlates of childhood obesity. International journal of obesity. 2010 Dec 13;34(S2):S37.
- 22. Aziz S, Noorulain W, Zaidi UR, Hossain K, Siddiqui IA. Prevalence of overweight and obesity among children and adolescents of affluent schools in Karachi. JPMA. The Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association. 2009 Jan;59(1):35.
- Esposito M, Gallai B, Roccella M, Marotta R, Lavano F, Lavano SM, Mazzotta G, Bove D, Sorrentino M, Precenzano F, Carotenuto M. Anxiety and depression levels in prepubertal obese children: a case-control study. Neuropsychiatric disease and treatment. 2014;10:1897.

- Khan NA, Raine LB, Donovan SM, Hillman CH. IV. The cognitive implications of obesity and nutrition in childhood. Monographs of the Society for Research in Child Development. 2014 Dec;79(4):51-71.
- 25. Cole DA, Peeke LG, Martin JM, Truglio R, Seroczynski AD. A longitudinal look at the relation between depression and anxiety in children and adolescents. Journal of consulting and clinical psychology. 1998 Jun;66(3):451.
- 26. Daniels SR, Khoury PR, Morrison JA. The utility of body mass index as a measure of body fatness in children and adolescents: differences by race and gender. Pediatrics. 1997 Jun 1;99(6):804-7.
- 27. Miller AA, Spencer SJ. Obesity and neuroinflammation: a pathway to cognitive impairment. Brain, behavior, and immunity. 2014 Nov 1;42:10-21.

Reliability and Validity of the Kannada Version of the Parental Stress Scale

Jyoti S. Jeevannavar¹, Swapnali S. Suryawanshi², Padmavati S. Patil²

¹Professor, S. D. M. College of Physiotherapy, Shri Dharmasthala Manjunatheshwara University, Dharwad, Karnataka, India, ²Post Graduate Student, S. D. M. College of Physiotherapy, Dharwad, Karnataka, India.

Abstract

Background: Parental Stress Scale (PSS) is a self report scale of 18 items which represents positive and negative components of parenthood. Administration of scale doesn't require any specific training but as it is self report scale it is important that parents should be able to read it by themselves for better understanding of questions. Therefore it is necessary to translate and validate the tool in local language.

Objective: Objective of this study was to translate the Parental Stress Scale in Kannada language and check its reliability in comparison with original English tool.

Methods: Translation procedure was followed according to WHO guidelines for translation and adaptation of instruments. The original English version of PSS was translated by two translators into Kannada. It was further subjected to expert panel opinion. Amendments were done in the Kannada version as per the panel's opinion. A reverse translation of the amended tool was then done by a translator back to English from Kannada. The translated scale was later tested for reliability and validity.

Results: The Cronbach's alpha value of translated version of PSS was found to be 0.915 with an ICC value of 0.82. The translated version of tool was found to be reliable and culturally acceptable in North-Karnataka region.

Conclusion: The translated version of PSS has an excellent internal consistency and good reliability. It can be used to measure parental stress scores among the population from North-Karnataka region.

Key words: Stress; Parental Stress Scale; Kannada; Reliability; Validity.

Introduction

Parental stress is defined as "parental perceptions of an imbalance between the demands of parenting and available resources." It is one of the many factors that contribute to the effectiveness of parenting. Parents of children with disabilities often experience higher

Corresponding author Jyoti S. Jeevannavar Professor S. D. M. College

Professor, S. D. M. College of Physiotherapy, Shri Dharmasthala Manjunatheshwara University, Dharwad, Karnataka, India. Telephone: 0836-2462253 e-mail: drjyotisj@gmail.com levels of parental stress than parents of children without disabilities and are more likely to have a higher risk of emotional and psychological distress.¹

Various instruments are available to evaluate the parental stress like Parenting Stress Index (PSI), Global inventory of Stress, Cleminshaw-Guidubaldi Parent Satisfaction Scale, Family Inventory of Life Events and Changes, Coping Resources Inventory For Stress, Short Form of the Questionnaire on Resources and Stress (SFQRS), Stress Index for Parents of Adolescents, Parenting Daily Hassles Scale and Parental Stress Scale.^{2,3}

Parental stress scale was basically intended to be used for assessment of parental stress for both, mothers and fathers of children with and without clinical problems.⁴ Parental stress scale focuses specifically on the stress generated by the parenting role, as compared to the large number of instruments that fail to separate parenting stress from the stress that may result from other roles and situations, such as marital or financial difficulties.² Parental stress scale is easy for administration as opposed to other instruments due to its less number of items and simplicity. It is an 18 items self reporting questionnaire. Self-report questionnaires can be administered to large populations without much effort and in less time. Also the information respondents tend to give is more accurate as they are the ones who are closer to the issue in the question than other individuals.⁵

As it is a self administered scale, it is very important that parents should be able to read and understand on their own. Original scale is available in English language. Hence the need to translate the tool in local languages and further also check for the reliability and validity of the translated tool

Objective

Objective of this study was to translate the Parental Stress Scale in Kannada language and check its reliability in comparison with original English tool.

Methodology

Permission from author was obtained for the translation and subsequent use of the scale. Subsequent permission was obtained from the Institutional Ethical Committee for the same. Informed consent was obtained from all the participants in the study. The original tool was evaluated for Cultural acceptability by two psychiatrists with an experience of minimum five years. Translation procedure was followed according to WHO guidelines for translation and adaptation of instruments.⁶ The scale was translated into Kannada by two bilingual translators. Group discussion was conducted and opinions were obtained on the translated version by an expert panel of four people. All four panelists consented for their participation and had received education in both Kannada and English languages. They also possessed postgraduate degree in their fields and had never used the tool before. Amendments were done in the Kannada version as per the panel's suggestions. Reverse translation of this Kannada version was done by another translator back into English. The reverse translated scale was compared with the original English tool for appropriateness. Final version of translated tool was tested for reliability and validity. The face validity of the translated tool was assessed by an expert who had an experience with the tool for more than five years and also had knowledge of both the languages.

The tool was further distributed to ten participants for assessing reliability. Participants were those who had at least one typically developing child and consented for duly filling the forms. Two participating parents were graduates and eight were postgraduates in their respective fields. The English tool was administered once and the Kannada tool was then administered after ten days. The Kannada tool was again administered for the second time after four weeks, with randomly shuffled questions so as to prevent any bias.

The scales once returned by the participants were scored according to the procedure given in the tool.

Procedure of scoring the tool: Parental stress scale is a Likert type of self reporting scale. Scoring of the tool was done after collecting the scales back from the participants. The scoring was done as per the instructions given in the tool. To compute the parental stress score, items 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 17, and 18 should be reverse scored as follows: (1=5), (2=4), (3=3), (4=2) and (5=1). The item scores are then summated. Overall possible scores on the scale range from 18 – 90. The higher the score, the higher the measured level of Parental stress. ⁷

The scores obtained were subjected to statistical data analysis. Cronbach's alpha was calculated to check the internal consistency of translated scale. ICC value was calculated for test-retest reliability of the Kannada version of PSS.

Results

Kolmogorov - Smirnov statistics showed that the data of PSS scores obtained were normally distributed. As data was normally distributed, it was subjected to the parametric tests.

Mean age of the participating parents and their children were 42.3 (\pm 9) and 13.3 (\pm 9.5) years respectively.

The internal consistency of the instrument was examined by means of Cronbach's alpha. Table 1 shows Item-Total statistics for Kannada version of Parental Stress Scale and Cronbach's alpha if the item is deleted. No significant differences were found among scale means of each item. Item number 10 (ten) showed a negative correlation with the total of scores on all other items.

Cronbach's alpha of the Kannada version of PSS, on

analysis, was found to be 0.915 for the total scale (Items 1-18), which means the tool has an excellent consistency, as a Cronbach's alpha value more than 0.9 is regarded as a measure of excellent internal consistency. An item-total correlation (Pearsonian correlation) lower than 0.3 means the item is little correlated with the overall scale. In our study only one item was found to have a score lower than 0.3, which was item number 10 (ten). Cronbach's alpha after dropping item number 10 would increase to 0.926 from 0.915.

Q.No.	Scale Mean if Item Deleted	Corrected Item-Total Correlation	Cronbach's Alpha if Item Deleted
Q1	37.90	0.757	0.910
Q2	37.10	0.733	0.907
Q3	35.80	0.502	0.912
Q4	36.10	0.471	0.914
Q5	37.70	0.668	0.908
Q6	37.70	0.755	0.906
Q7	37.60	0.688	0.907
Q8	37.50	0.815	0.908
Q9	37.30	0.903	0.902
Q10	35.90	-0.118	0.926
Q11	37.40	0.882	0.905
Q12	37.10	0.658	0.909
Q13	37.30	0.834	0.903
Q14	37.00	0.318	0.918
Q15	37.20	0.696	0.909
Q16	37.00	0.617	0.911
Q17	37.40	0.812	0.905
Q18	37.10	0.351	0.922

Table 1: Item-total Statistics for Kannada version of PSS

Table 2 shows the Mean scores along with the standard deviation for English and 1st administration and 2nd administration of Kannada version of PSS. Mean scores obtained from English and 1st administration and 2nd administration of Kannada version of PSS were compared item wise. A comparison of the scores of the English and 1st administration of the Kannada version of the tool, the English and 2nd administration of the Xannada version of the tool and the 1st and 2nd

administration of Kannada version of the tool showed statistically non-significant difference in the item wise scores at a p value of 0.49, 0.95 and 0.36 respectively. The ICC value for test-retest reliability of the tool was calculated to be 0.82.

There was also no statistically significant difference between individuals scores of English and 1st and 2nd administration of Kannada within the same participants.

O No	ENGLISH		KANNADA 1st administration		KANNADA 2nd administration	
Q.110.	MEAN	SD	MEAN	SD	MEAN	SD
1	2	1.0	1.6	0.5	1.4	0.5
2	1.7	0.9	1.4	0.5	2.2	1.6
3	4	1.1	3.5	1.0	3.5	0.8
4	3.9	1.2	3.2	0.9	3.2	1.1
5	1.5	1.5	1.5	1.0	1.6	1.0
6	1.5	1.6	1.3	0.5	1.6	1.1
7	1.4	1.9	1.4	0.5	1.7	1.3
8	1.7	2.2	2	0.9	1.8	0.6
9	2.1	2.5	1.8	0.8	2	1.1
10	2.6	2.7	2.8	0.9	3.4	1.0
11	1.5	3.2	1.8	0.8	1.9	0.7
12	1.9	3.5	2.3	0.8	2.2	0.9
13	1.6	3.9	2.1	1.1	2	1.2
14	2.4	4.2	2.1	0.9	2.3	1.2
15	3.7	4.2	2.2	0.8	2.1	0.7
16	2.3	4.8	2.1	0.7	2.3	0.7
17	1.8	5.1	1.5	0.5	1.9	1.0
18	1.4	5.5	1.2	0.4	2.2	1.6
TOTAL	39	17.5	35.8	6.7	39.3	12.2

Table 2: Mean and SD of both English and Kannada scales

*p value ≤0.05 was statistical significant with 95% CI.

Discussion

Total ten participants were included in the study according to the inclusion criteria. The English tool was administered to the participants on day one. Later the Kannada version of the tool was administered to the participants after ten days as part of 1st administration of the translated tool. The Kannada tool was administered again to the same participants after a gap of four weeks with the sequence of questions being changed as part of 2^{nd} administration of the tool. The results showed that the mean scores were not significantly different for each question. Thus inferring that, the translated tool was as effective as the original English tool. A comparison between the 1st and 2nd administration of the Kannada tool also showed no significant differences in the mean scores. Thus concluding that, the Kannada version of the tool had good test-retest reliability, which shows that the translated version of the PSS was as effective as the English one.

An excellent Cronbach's alpha value (0.915) suggests a really good internal consistency of translated version of the PSS. Although dropping question number 10 (ten) increases the Cronbach's alpha value marginally, we do not want to consider dropping the question number 10 (ten) from translated version of PSS. The ICC value for test-retest reliability of Kannada version of PSS showed a good reliability of translated tool. The internal consistency and test retest reliability of the original English tool as provided by the authors is 0.83 and 0.81 respectively. The Kannada version of the tool can be hence considered at par with the original English tool.

Conclusion

Owing to the excellent Cronbach's alpha coefficient and good ICC value of the Kannada version of PSS, the translated tool is reliable and valid for identifying parental stress. The English version of PSS is reported to be valid for application or usage among parents of normal children as well as those with medical conditions. Thus the Kannada version of PSS can be used by health professionals in their clinical practice and/or for research purpose. This Kannada version of the tool has been validated for populations from North-Karnataka; hence generalizing it for the whole state may not be possible due to a number of variations in the local language across the various zones of the state.

Conflict of Interest: The authors have no conflicts of interest to disclose.

Source of Funding: Self

References

- Hsiao YJ. Parental stress in families of children with disabilities. Intervention in school and clinic. 2018 Mar;53(4):201-5.
- Lessenberry BM, Rehfeldt RA. Evaluating stress levels of parents of children with disabilities. Exceptional Children. 2004 Jan;70(2):231-44.
- Holly LE, Fenley AR, Kritikos TK, Merson RA, Abidin RR, Langer DA. Evidence-Base Update for Parenting Stress Measures in Clinical Samples. Journal of Clinical Child & Adolescent Psychology. 2019 Sep 3;48(5):685-705.
- Louie AD, Cromer LD, Berry JO. Assessing parenting stress: Review of the use and interpretation of the parental stress scale. The Family Journal. 2017 Oct;25(4):359-67.
- Demetriou C, Ozer BU, Essau CA. Self-report questionnaires. The encyclopedia of clinical psychology. 2014 Dec 29:1-6.
- WHO | Process of translation and adaptation of instruments [Internet]. Who.int. 2020 [cited 9 June 2020]. Available from: https://www.who.int/ substance_abuse/research_tools/translation/en/
- Berry, J. Parental Stress Scale. [online] The University of Tulsa. Available at: http://www.personal.utulsa.edu/~judy-berry/parent.htm> [Accessed 29 May 2020].

Comparison of Postural Stability between Sports Playing Versus Non -Sports Playing Adolescent with BMI > 85Th Percentile

Nehali Shringarpure¹, Khyati Kothary²

¹(Intern), K.J.Somaiya College of Physiotherapy, Mumbai, ²Professor, K.J.Somaiya College of Physiotherapy, Mumbai

Abstract

Obesity in adolescent is a world- wide epidemic in developing as well as developed countries. Obesity has a overall effect on various body systems and can lead to atherosclerosis, hypertension, stroke, cancers, hormonal changes, degenerative joint changes, respiratory diseases, it is also associated with various functional problems like pain, joint stiffeness(lower extremities), affected muscle strength and postural deformities. It also has an effect on postural stability, that is the ability to maintain the COG within the BOS. Aim and objective of the study - To compare the postural stability of sports playing versus non-sports playing adolescent with BMI > 23rd adult equivalent($BMI > 85^{th}$ percentile) using Balance Error Scoring System (BESS) scale. Study Design - 21 subjects each in sports playing and non sports playing in the age group 12-15 years and with BMI >85th percentile were evaluated for their balance using the BESS score. **Results and analysis** – Data analysis was done using Graphpad instat demo version. Unpaired 't' test was done to analyse the data. The analysis showed significant difference between the BESS score of sports playing and non sports playing individuals . Mean and SD of sports playing individuals was 8.52 (+_2.83) . The Mean and SD of Non sports playing individuals was 14.85 (+ 4.041). The mean difference + SEM was 6.33 + 1.078. The t value was 5.877. Conclusion - Overweight and obese adolescent who play Regular sports that is for more than 6 week, 3 times a week and for 1 hour, show a significantly better postural stability in the BESS scale with a lower value as compared to those obese and overweight individuals who are not indulged in any sports activity on regular basis, showing a increased score on BESS scale.

Key words – overweight, obese, BESS score, sports

Introduction

Obesity in adolescent is a world- wide epidemic in developing as well as developed countries. Obesity has an overall effect on various body systems and can lead to atherosclerosis, hypertension, stroke, cancers, hormonal changes, degenerative joint changes, respiratory diseases, it is also associated with various functional problems like pain, joint stiffness (lower extremities), affected muscle strength and postural deformities. It also has an effect on postural stability, that, is the ability to maintain the COG within the BOS.

Corresponding author – **Dr. Khyati Kothary** E-mail: khyati@somaiya.edu Previous studies have shown that obese individuals are at a greater risk of falling and thus reduced functional ability as compared to the normal weight individuals of same age .This can be due to altered body mechanics or due to desensitization of mechano -receptors.

Obese and overweight individuals do not join any sports with the same ease, as compared to non-obese and normal weight individuals.

Also as postural stability is seen to be affected in overweight and obese individuals ,it can lead to further decrease in functional ability and participation in physical activities, further causing increase in weight due to lack of activity. Balance problems can further increase in future as the weight increases in adulthood, leading to increased chances of fall.

The aim of the study was to compare the postural stability of sports playing versus non-sports playing adolescent with BMI > 23rd adult equivalent($BMI > 85^{th}$ percentile). The objectives being comparing the postural stability in sports playing and non-sports playing overweight and obese adolescent using Balance Error Scoring System scale (BESS).

The experimental hypothesis was that Overweight and obese adolescent, indulged in sports have a better postural stability as compared to those not indulged in sports. The null hypothesis was that there was no significant difference in postural stability of sports playing and non -sports playing obese and overweight adolescent.

Material and Methodology

This is a comparative cross sectional study conducted on 12-15 year old boys and girls with BMI >85th percentile. There were 21 participants in each group – group A sports playing and group B non-sports playing. Participants in group A were playing sports for more than 6 weeks, 3 times a week for more than 1 hour a day. (cricket, basketball, tennis ,football ,volleyball kabbadi, badminton, long jump, martial arts). Group B included participants who did not play any sports. All those who were indulged into dancing, swimming were excluded from the study. Also, those who were a known case of visual disorder, vestibular disorder, any musculoskeletal condition or foot deformity and on chronic medications were excluded.

Consents were taken from the ethics committee, school and parents of subjects.

Balance was assessed for all the participants using the BESS scale.

Results and Statistical Analyis

Data analysis was done using Graphpad instat demo version. Since the Data passed the test of normality **unpaired t test** was used for the data analysis.

The analysis showed significant difference between the BESS score of sports playing and non sports playing individuals . Mean and Standard deviation of sports playing individuals was 8.52 (+2.83) and that of Non sports playing individuals was 14.85 (+4.041). Higher the mean score , poor is the balance. It showed that the difference was highly significant with the p value <0.0001



GRAPH 1- MEANS OF BESS SCORE OF TWO GROUPS

Discussion

The study was to see the effect of regular sports playing on postural stability and balance of obese and overweight adolescent. Thus postural stability was compared between sports playing obese and overweight individuals with non-sports playing obese and overweight individual. Out of 42 participants, 50 percent were boys and 50 percent girls.

In this study the mean BESS score of sports playing individuals was 8.52(+-2.83) and that of Non-sports playing individuals was 14.85(+-4.041). The mean difference between the two groups was 6.33. Unpaired t test was used to analyse the data. The study showed extremely significant results with a p value < 0.0001. Thus sports playing obese and overweight individuals show a significantly better postural stability as compared to the non-sports playing obese and overweight individuals.

Balance or postural stability is a complex task that is carried out due to combined actions from various system. Somatosensory /proprioceptive system, vestibular system and visual system provide input regarding body's equilibrium ,thus receiving feedback of body's orientation in space. The CNS receives information and the generates a corrective responses from the musculoskeletal system by generating the corrective torque by the muscles.^[1]

Standing is a fundamental part of daily activities and is characterized by swing about the ankle joint to maintain a neutral stable posture. Neutral posture is maintained primarily by calf muscle that counteracts the destabilizing effect of gravity. Obese and overweight show a reduced postural stability as compared to the individuals in normal BMI. Thus a strong relationship between weight and postural stability is observed .Studies also suggest a faster sway velocity in obese and overweight as compare to normal.

The possible reason for affected postural stability in non sports playing participants could be due reduced plantar sensitivity due to **hyperactivation of mechanoreceptors** of plantar area due to constant pressure from a larger mass. These individuals also show a deficit in proprioception of knee, they also show less strength during isokinetic testing. Postural stability can also be affected due to greater **mechanical demand** due to larger body mass around the axis of rotation (Ankle joint)causing a greater gravitational torque, thus to maintain a stable posture , the gravitational torque should be counteracted by a strong muscular torque .^[2]

Abdominal endurance and strength , lower extremity power and strength are low in these muscle groups, possibly due to collection of fat between the muscle fibre or due to inactivity causing possible muscle fibre atrophy. Larger body size, larger body mass index, abnormal fat distribution has and a possible neuromuscular disadvantage of obese can contribute to postural instability in them .Thus it is important to know whether a regular sports playing affects postural stability in these individuals.^[3]

Sports playing (cricket, basketball, tennis, football, volleyball, kabaddi, badminton, long jump, martial arts) includes Stretching at various joints of lower limb causing increased activation of muscle spindles which is carried to spinal cord via sensory nerves causing increased activation of alpha motor neuron. Strengthening of muscles may occur due to constant repetitions of various intensity and various durations thus improving the tone of the muscle along with providing a better muscle torque around a joint overcoming the gravitational torque.

Sports playing and exercise also affects the Proprioceptive and Neural inputs from muscle spindles and golgi tendon organ in joint capsule, tendon and muscle. Physical activity or sports playing would also stimulate the **sensory receptors (pressure, touch)** at various changing surfaces thus challenging balance further .Sports playing also challenges the **vestibular system** thus altering the inputs from vestibular system to the cerebellum through the vestibulospinal tracts, which in turn change the motor signals sent to muscle and joint thus increasing the tone for maintaining appropriate balance during a destabilizing activity.

Sports playing also include changes in speed and training for agility, this too might challenge the visual, vestibular, somatosensory and neuromuscular system causing change in input from each system. Thus after appropriate motor learning has taken place after 4-8 weeks ^[4], the body might start showing changes in balance and postural stability.

Thus proved in the study that regular sports playing has a better postural stability in obese and overweight adolescent. Hence an early counselling to indulge in sports, not only with the aim of weight loss but to gain good postural stability (by muscle strengthening and core activation) and balance can be made in schools.

However the study had the limitation that participants with all kinds physical activities could not be studied in the project (eg ;dancing , swimming)

Conclusion

Overweight and obese adolescent who play regular sports that is for more than 6 week, 3 times a week and for 1 hour, show a significantly better postural stability in the BESS scale with a lower value as compared to those obese and overweight individuals who are not indulged in any sports activity on regular basis, showing a increased score on BESS scale.

Conflict of Interest – Nil

Source of Funding - self

Ethical Clearance taken from Institutional Ethics Committee

References

- 1. Taeyong Sim, et al. Analysis of sensory system aspects of postural stability during quiet standing in adolescent idiopathic scoliosis patients.Journal of neuroengineering and rehabilitation- June 2018
- 2. Maxime Dutil,Grant A Handrigan,Philippe Corbeil,vincet cantin,Martin Simoneau,Normand Teasdale And Oliver Hue. The impact of obesity on balance control in community-dwelling older women. PMC -2013 June ;35(3) 883-890.
- 3. Fenghua sun,Li Juan Wang and Lin Wang .Effects of weight management program on postural stability

and neuromuscular function among obese children: study protocol for a randomized controlled trial.US National library of medicine national institutes of health 2015-16; 143

- Carolyn Kisner , Lynn Allen Colby .Theraputic exercise foundation and techniques ,6th edition ,chapter 6, physiological adaptation to resistance exercise ,pg.168
- Normand Teasdale ,Martin Simoneau &Philippe Corbeil &Grant Handrigan &Angelo Tremblay & Olivier Hue.Obesity Alters Balance and Movement Control. Spinger science, newyork bussinesss media –june 2013
- Handrigan G1,Hue O,SimoneauM, Corbeil P,Marceau Marceau S, Tremblay A, Teasdale N. Weight loss and muscular strength affect static balance control International journal of obesity May 2010; 936-942
- A.M. Ogunbode, A.A. Fatiregun, and O.O. Ogunbod. Health risks of obesity. Ann Ib Postgrad Med. Dec 2009; 22-25
- Nora Wille, corresponding author 1 Michael Erhart, 1 Christiane Petersen, 2 and Ulrike Ravens-Sieberer. The impact of overweight and obesity on healthrelated quality of life in childhood. BMC public health -2008; 421
- Vaman V. Khadilkar and Anuradha V. Khadilkar. Revised Indian Academy of Pediatrics 2015 growth charts for height, weight and body mass index for 5–18-year-old Indian children. Indian journal of Endocrinology and Metabolism Jul-Aug 2015; 470 -476
- Liberman K1, Forti LN et al. The effects of exercise on muscle strength, body composition, physical functioning and the inflammatory profile of older adults: a systematic review. Curr Opin Clin nutri Metab Care 2017 Jan; 35-53

Effect of Repetitive Task Training to Improve Sit to Stand Performance and Activities of Daily Living Skills in Patients with Stroke

Kumaresan Arumugam¹, Senthilkumar Cennappan Bose, Rama Kumar Sahu

¹Specialist-Occupational Therapy, AbuArish General Hospital, Saudi Arabia, ²Lecturer, Physical Therapy, Jazan University, Saudi Arabia, ³Lecturer, Occupational Therapy, SVNIRTAR, India

Abstract

Introduction: Stroke is an acute neurological dysfunction and the second leading single cause of death, with $5 \cdot 8$ million fatal cases per year, 40% of which are in people younger than 70 years, with problems in voluntary movement, sensation, language, emotional and intellectual functioning. Task oriented approach practice of Repetitive Task Training (RTT) is a treatment in which you repeat a series of specific movements over and over again, exercises are categorized as either blocked practice or random practice.

Aims and Objectives: To find out the effects of repetitive task training to improve sit to stand performance and Activities of Daily Living (ADL) skills in stroke patients. To evaluate sit to stand performance and ADL performance and to train Repetitive task training activities.

Materials and Methods: The raw scores of pre intervention and post intervention of Modified Ashworth Scale (MAS) and Functional Independence Measure (FIM) were added and summed up into final scores. Within experimental and control groups were analyzed using Wilcoxon Sign Ranks Test. Mann–Whitney U Test was performed for knowing the significance between the groups.

Conclusion: The results of this study suggest that sit to stand activities which is based on activity intervention is strongly grounded in repetitive task training is a promising intervention for improving sit stand activity performance of ADL in stroke patients.

Key Words: Stroke, Repetitive Task Training, Sit to Stand Performance.

Introduction

Stroke is an "acute neurological dysfunction of vascular origin with symptoms and signs corresponding to the involvement of focal areas of brain".¹

Stroke is the second leading single cause of death, with 5.8 million fatal cases per year, 40% of which are in people younger than 70 years. About 15 million

new acute stroke events arise every year, and about 55 million people have had a stroke at some time in the past, either with or without residual disability; the prevalence of stroke in India varies in different regions of the country and, ranges from 40 to 270 per 100000 populations. Approximately 12% of all strokes occur in the population <40 years of age.¹

Major risk factors identified in India are hypertension (blood pressure >95 mm Hg diastolic), hyperglycemia, tobacco use, and low hemoglobin levels (<10 gm %). The National Commission on Macroeconomics and Health has projected that cases of stroke would increase from 1,081,480 in 2000 to 1,667,372 in 2015 (stroke surveillance of India 2005).¹

Corresponding Author Kumaresan Arumugam Specialist - Occupational Therapy, Abu-Arish General Hospital, Jazan, Saudi Arabia Email: kumaransac@yahoo.co.in Mob: +966-557562335

There may be disturbances of voluntary movement, sensation, language, emotional and intellectual functioning. A stroke often leaves a person with problems in using their arms and legs.

Task oriented approach is assumed that normal movements emerges as an interaction among many systems, each contributing its own aspects of control. In addition, movement organized around a behavioral goal and is constrained by the environment.²

Task oriented approach intervention assume that, patients learn by actively attempting to solve problem, in a functional task rather than repetitively practicing normal pattern of movement.³

Task-oriented approach among the physical interventions for stroke patients is based on the recognition that the goal of motor control is the control of the movement required to approach a particular task, and this includes the acquisition of motor skills as a consequence of repetitive practice.⁴

Repetitive Task Training (RTT) is a treatment of repeating a series of specific movements over and over again. Repetitive practice of the action to be learned can therefore have dual benefits; enable the patient to practice the action as well as increasing muscle strength (Rutherford 1988).⁵

One way of increasing intensity is to include task repetition. Repetitive task training (RTT) therefore combines elements of both relevance to functional activity, and intensity of practice.⁶

Trials of repetitive activity were required to involve complex multi-joint movement with measurement of functional activity as an outcome. Trials were included only if the amount of practice could be quantified, either in terms of duration or number of repetitions (Beverley French 2010).⁷

Repetitive Task Training exercises are categorized as either blocked practice or random practice.

Blocked Practice is practicing one task for a block of trail then moving to on the next task you may presume that it would be easier to learn each task in a block design (Anne cook). The same movement is repeated over and over - for example, always using the same movement pattern to reach for a glass of water.8

Random Practice appears to be most effective when used with skills that use different patterns of coordination and thus for different underlying motor problems (Magill & Hall). In addition, characteristics of the individual, such as level of experience and intellectual abilities, may also influence the effectiveness of random practice (Rose, 1997). Any movement necessary to achieve a goal for example, using any movement that have to try to reach for a glass of water.⁸

The research studies conflict as to whether Repetitive Task Training of the legs and trunk can improve walking and trunk stability following a stroke. Repetitive activity alone is not enough to produce increased motor cortical representations (Nudo et al. 2003). Instead, an element of skilled motor learning is required in addition to repetition for cortical reorganization / plasticity to occur.⁹

There is growing evidence that the cortex adjacent to the stroke-damaged region is important to recovery but only if stimulated and trained in the lost function (Hallet et al. 2001). Directed, task-specific therapy appears important to maximize recovery of lost function.¹⁰

The Proponents of task-specific training site that intense training is not always necessary for positive outcomes in stroke patients, but instead suggest that therapy designed to be more task-specific within normal contact time (30 to 45 minutes per session) could be more efficacious (Page 2003).¹¹

Hoses et al. (2003) notes that, "Task-specific therapy can enable hemiplegic patients to practice walking repetitively, in contrast to conventional treatment in which tone-inhibiting maneuvers and gait-preparatory tasks during sitting and standing dominate".¹²

Clinically, repetition plays a major role in inducing and maintaining changes within the cortex. However, repetition of a task in the absence of new, meaningful skill learning is unlikely to induce cortical changes of significance. Less intense task-specific training regimens, of 30 to 45 minutes in length, with the more affected limb can produce cortical reorganization and associated meaningful functional improvements. This correlates well with clinical experience and the maximal "use it or lose it".¹³ Sit to stand (STS) is one of the most mechanically demanding of everyday tasks and crucial to independence (Colleen G canning et al 2003).¹⁴

Standing up is one of the most mechanically demanding daily activities, requiring greater range of the motion at the knee and higher moments of the force at hip and knee then gait or stair climbing.¹⁵

STS can be practiced repetitively from lower seat heights, and at increasing speed. If done repetitively with sufficient load, such training provides a means of strengthening the lower limb muscles and increasing endurance, as well as control over the dynamics (Carr & Shepherd 1987).¹³

Rationale of the study:

The task-related training has not traditionally been a significant part of therapy after stroke, which has been dominated by the Bobath approach. This specifically minimizes repetitive active movement, and relies on therapist-guided restoration of "normal movement" patterns, rather than the purposeful, but possibly unnatural, movement that could occur as a result of a more pragmatic approach within RTT, which has the potential to be a resource efficient component of stroke rehabilitation.

Aims and Objectives:

Aims:

To find out the effects of repetitive task training to improve sit to stand performance and ADL skills in stroke patients.

Objectives:

To evaluate sit to stand performance and ADL performance.

Hypothesis:

Null hypothesis:

• There is no significant change in sit to stand ability

• There is no significant improvement in ADL performance

Alternative hypothesis:

There is significant change in sit to stand ability

• There is significant improvement in ADL performance

Data Analysis

The raw scores of pre and post intervention of all the outcome measures (MAS and FIM) were added and summed up into final scores.

As this was 2- tailed, non-parametric study, the changes in outcome measures (MAS and FIM) within experimental and control groups were analyzed using Wilcoxon Sign Ranks Test.

Mann–Whitney U Test performed for knowing the significance between groups.

Results

Table – 1: Descriptive characteristics

S.	Baselines	Group A	Group B
No.	Characteristics	(Control)	(Experimental)
1.	No of subjects	15	15
2.	Age range (years)	34-65	34-65
3.	Mean age	55.8	55.8
	(±Std Dev.)	(±8.351)	(±8.351)

Table 2: Descriptive statistics of STS outcome measures

Outcome Measure	Mean test score (Group A) Control (N=15)		Mean test score (Group B) Experiment (N=15)	
	Pre test	Post test	Pre test	Post test
MAS	4.13	8.38	4.25	10.13
FIM	83.20	95.73	85.33	102.93

Groupsz (2
tailed)P (2 -tailed)Experimental-3.573.001Control-3.342.001

Table 3: Results of Wilcoxon Sign Rank Test forMAS STS within the groups.

Graph 1: Bar Graph showing Mean score changes in STS of both groups



Table – 4: Mann-Whitney U Test result for STS between the groups

Outcome Measure	Z (2 tailed)	P (2 tailed)
SIT TO STAND	-2.513	.019

Table –5: Showing results of Wilcoxon Sign Rank Test for ADL within the groups

Groups	z (2 tailed)	P (2 -tailed)
Experimental	-3.414	.001
Control	-3.423	.001

Graph 2: Bar graph showing mean score changes in ADL of both groups



Table – 6: Mann-Whitney U test result for ADL between the groups

Outcome measure	z (2 tailed)	p (2 -tailed)
ADL	-4.456	.000

Discussion

The purpose of the study was determining effect of repetitive task training on sit to stand performance and ADL in stroke patients.

The results within group Wilcoxon test shows improvement in the sit to stand performance on MAS scale for both the group, but there is more significant difference in experimental group in comparison with control group.

As shown in the table 2, 3, 4 shows the repetitive task training on sit to stand performance enhancing the sit to stand performance between evidence

There is also significant improvement in ADL within the group as shown in table 5,6. There is significantly more improvement in ADL performance in experimental group in comparison to control group.

The present study provides evidence that repetitive task training program can be beneficial in improving sit to stand performance and activity daily living when it is incorporated into conventional occupational therapy treatment approach without having any detrimental change in daily routines. However, the experimental group, but not the control group, improved significantly on sit to stand & activity of daily living. More intensive therapy may improve ADL (Kwakkel 2004).^{16,17}

The exercise effect transferred into improved walking speed which was not itself specifically trained. There is evidence in the motor learning literature that transfer of training can occur in able – bodied subjects across actions which share similar dynamics (Magil RA 1998).¹⁸

Sit to stand and step-ups are both weight bearing actions which involve the production of lower limb extensor forces across three lower limb joints with the feet flexed. Stance phase of walking also involves the lower limb kinetic chain and increased strength in extensor muscles has been linked to increase in speed of walking (SharpSA1997).¹⁹

Conclusion

The results of this study suggest that effect of sit to stand activities which is based on activity intervention is strongly grounded in repetitive task training is a promising intervention for improving sit stand performance and ADL in stroke.

These activities intervention also tolerable and convenient for most of the stroke patients and is also safe and practical.

This study concludes that repetitive task training program can be included along with conventional occupational therapy treatment approach to improve sit to stand performance and activity daily living.

Limitations:

• Sample size was small.

• There was no control over the extraneous factors such as natural recovery.

• Follow-up could not be done on the subjects in both the groups.

• The study duration was also short.

Recommendation for further studies:

• Further study with a large sample with long

duration.

• Further study can be done with upper extremity function of motor assessment scale.

• Repetitive task training activities can be comparison with other methods.

Acknowledgment: We are highly thankful to our valuable patient for their cooperation.

Declaration of patient consent:

The authors certify that we have obtained all appropriate patient consent forms. In the form the patient(s) has/have given his/her/their consent for his/ her/their clinical information to be reported in the journal. The patients understand that their names and initials will not be published and due efforts will be made to conceal the identity, but anonymity cannot be guaranteed.

Financial support and sponsorship:

Equipment Support by SVNIRTAR (Swami Vivekananda National Institute of Rehabilitation Training and Research), Olatpur, Bairoi, Cuttack, Orissa, India

Conflicts of Interest: There are no conflicts of interest.

References

- Division of Non-communicable Diseases Indian Council of Medical Research Workshop Report on Stroke Surveillance in India November 2006 New Delhi, INDIA
- Smith GV, Silver KH, Goldberg AP, Macko RF. "Task oriented" exercise improves hamstring strength and Spastic reflexes in chronic stroke patients. Stroke. 1999; 30(10):2112–2118.
- Elissa sitcoff, camille costa, nicol korner bitensky Repetitive task specific training– family /patient information.Reference: <u>http://www.strokengine.ca/</u>
- Salbach NM, Mayo NE, Wood-Dauphinee S, Hanley JA, Richards CL, Cote R. A task-orientated intervention enhances walking distance and speed in the first-year post stroke: a randomized controlled trial. Clinical Rehabilitation 2004; 18:509-519.
- 5. Butefisch C, Hummelsheim H, Denzler P, Mauritz

KH. Repetitive training of isolated movements improves the outcome of motor rehabilitation of the centrally paretic hand. J Neurol Sci. 1995; 130(1):59–68.

- 6. Winstein CJ, Rose DK, Tan SM, et al. A randomized controlled comparison of upperextremity rehabilitation strategies in acute stroke: a pilot study of immediate and long-term outcomes. Arch Phys Med Rehabil. 2004; 85:620-628. 2003; 82:730-732.
- 7. Beverley French (2010) does reptitive task training improve functional activity after stroke? a cochrane systematic review and meta-analysis. Journal rehabilitation medicine 2010; 42;9-15.
- **8.** Judi Edmans, Fiona Coupar and Adam Gordon Occupational Therapy and Stroke Second Edition.
- Richards CL, Malouin F, Wood-Dauphinee S, Williams JI, Bouchard JP, Brunet D. Taskspecific physical Therapy for optimization of gait recovery in acute stroke patients. Arch Phys Med Rehabil.1993; 74(6):612–620.
- Liepert J, Graef S, Uhde I, Leidner O, Weiller C. Training-induced changes of motor cortex representations in stroke patients. Acta Neurol Scand. 2000; 101:321-326.
- **11.** Page SJ. Intensity versus task-specificity after stroke: How important is intensity? Am J Phys Med Rehabil.2003; 82(9):730–732.
- The role of task-specific training in rehabilitation therapies. Nestor A. Bayona, Jamie Bitensky, Katherine Salter, and Robert Teasell. Stroke Rehabilitation 2005; 12(3):58–65.

- **13.** Carr JH, Shepherd RB. A Motor Relearning Program for Stroke, 2nd ed. Rockville, MD: Aspen Publishers; 1987.
- 14. Colleen G canning, Roberta B Sheppard, Janet H Carr, Jennifer A Alison. A randomized controlled trial of the effects of intensive sit-to-stand training after recent traumatic brain injury on sit-to stands performance. Clinical rehabilitation 2003; 17:355-362.
- **15.** Monger, Carr JH, fowler V. Evaluation of a home based exercise and training programme to improve sit to stand in patients with chronic stroke. Clinical rehabilitation 2002; 16:361-367.
- **16.** Elizabeth Britton, Nigel Harris, Bath and Ailie Turton. An exploratory randomized controlled trail of assisted practice for improving sit-to-stand in stroke patients in the hospital setting Clinical rehabilitation 2008; 22:458-468.
- Kenji Kosaka (1995) Effectiveness of Training of ADL walking in stroke ward, department of rehabilitation. saitama medical center, saitama medical school: journal of physical therapy science 7: 45-48, 1995.
- 18. Galea MP, Miller KJ, Kilbreath SL. Early taskrelated training enhances upper limb function following stroke [abstract]. Poster presented at the annual meeting of the Society for Neural Control of Movement; 2001; Sevilla, Spain.
- Duncan PW, Badke MB. Stroke Rehabilitation, the Recovery of Motor Function. Chicago: Year Book; 1987.

A Study to Compare The Effects of Unilateral Arm Training Versus Bilateral Arm Training in Post-Stroke Patients with Motor Impairment of Hand

Manjula.S¹, P.senthil Selvam²

¹Asst Prof, ²PHD, PROF, HOD School of Physiotherapy, VISTAS, Thalambur, Tamil Nadu, India

Abstract

Background of The Study: Motor function deficits are life changing and devastating consequences of stroke⁹. It affects the patient's mobility, daily life activities, participation in society. The most common manifestation of upper extremity motor impairment includes muscle weakness, changes in the tone and impaired motor control. Both unilateral and bilateral arm training found to be an effective strategy for the recovery of upper limb motor function after stroke.

Aim of The Study: The aim of the study is to compare the effects of unilateral arm training versus bilateral arm training in post-stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Objective Of The Study:

Ø To assess the effects of unilateral arm training in post-stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Ø To assess the effects of bilateral arm training in post-stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

 \emptyset To compare the effects of unilateral arm training versus bilateral arm training in poststroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Method: 30 post stroke patients were recruited for the study based on the inclusion criteria and were divided into group A and group B consisting of 15 subjects each. Group A were treated with unilateral arm training and Group-B were treated with bilateral arm training. Pretest and posttest scores assessment was done.

Result: It showed significant improvement in functional ability of the upper limb as measured by ARAT and CAHAI-13. The p value of both the group is <0.05. This study showed that Group-B subjects who were treated with Bilateral arm training proved to be more effective than Group-A who were treated with unilateral arm training in post stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Conclusion: This study showed that bilateral arm training is more effective than unilateral arm training in improving the overall motor function of hand in post stroke individuals.

Key WordS: Post-stroke, unilateral, bilateral arm training, chedoke arm and hand activity inventory.

Introduction

Stroke represents a clinical syndrome rather than a specific disease. Stroke is a common, serious, and

Corresponding Author:

Manjula S,

MPT, ASST PROF, School of Physiotherapy, VISTAS, Thalambur, Tamil Nadu- 600130, India.

disabling global health-care problem, and rehabilitation is a major part of patient Care.¹The World Health Organization (WHO) defined stroke as "rapidly developed clinical signs of focal (or global) disturbances of cerebral function, lasting, more than 24 hours or leading to death, with no apparent cause other than of a vascular origin². About 1.2% of deaths in India are due to stroke, the incidence is 105 per 1 lakh population in urban community and 262 per lakh in rural community³. Stroke is the leading cause for long-term disability⁴. Approximately, 20% of stroke are due to cerebral haemorrhage. The remaining 80% are due to ischemic stroke which is sub divided into: large artery disease, cardio-embolism and small vessel diseases. Common problems after stroke are impaired motor functions including balance, trunk control and gait disturbances.⁶ In stroke patients, it is known that the initiation of the trunk muscles is delayed, because the muscles involved in reach arm are activated earlier than the trunk muscles.⁵ Impaired trunk balance and increased risk of falling toward the paretic side is found to be significantly correlated with locomotor function, functional abilities and length of stay inpatient rehabilitation facilities.⁷

Unilateral arm training is a common rehabilitative strategy used in patients with stroke which includes repetitive task-related training, which is focused on rehabilitating the affected arm. Bilateral arm training has shown efficacy, not only with stroke survivors with mild impairments, but also for individuals with moderate and severe motor impairments8. Bilateral arm training incorporates task oriented motor relearning strategies including intense practice, intrinsic feedback, bimanual coordination and goal-focused movements that improve upper extremity function¹⁵. A basic assumption of bilateral arm training is that the symmetrical bilateral movements activate similar neural networks in both hemispheres when homologous muscles are simultaneously activated¹¹, which been established in stroke that even if one limb is activated with moderate force, it can produce motor overflow to the other limb such as both arms are engaged in the same or opposite muscle contractions, although at different levels of force ^{12,13}. Both unilateral arm training and bilateral though representing conceptually contracting approaches, serves an ultimate goal and is found to be and effective strategies for the recovery of upper limb motor function after stroke¹⁰. These arm training exercises were performed on trunk and specifically aimed at improving trunk performance and balance.¹⁴

Aim of The Study

The aim of the study is to compare the effects of unilateral arm training versus bilateral arm training in post-stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Objective of the Study

The objectives of the study are as follows:

Ø To assess the effects of unilateral arm training in post-stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Ø To assess the effects of bilateral arm training in post-stroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Ø To compare the effects of unilateral arm training versus bilateral arm training in poststroke patients with motor impairment of hand.

Research Design and Methodology:

An experimental study design was conducted with 30 patients who fulfilled the inclusion criteria. The samples were divided into group A and Group B consisting of 15 samples each.

Inclusion Criteria:

Ø Hemi-paretic patients with 40-70 years of age

Ø Stroke at least six months to three years prior

Ø No significant range of motion limitations in hemi-paretic upper limb

Ø Mini-mental status examination score >24

Ø Voluntary movement control to perform the task

Exclusion Criteria:

Ø Perceptual disorders

- Ø Recurrent stroke
- Ø Symptomatic cardiac failure

Ø Patients who are not able to follow the commands

Outcome Measures:

CHEDOKE ARM AND HAND ACTIVITY INVENTORY (CAHAI-13)⁷

The CAHAI-13 is a performance test using 13 functional items which evaluates the functional ability of the paretic arm and hand to perform tasks

ACTION REACH ARM TEST⁷

The action research arm test is a 19 item measure divided into four sub-types (grasp, grip, pinch, gross arm movement). This test is used to assess the upper limb functioning using observational method.

Procedure:

In this experimental study, 30 post stroke patients who have met the inclusion criteria were selected for this study, and were grouped into two groups: Group-A and Group-B, consisting of 15 subjects each. Group-A patients were treated with unilateral arm training which includes six task-specific activities performed with the affected arm. Each activity was repeated for 30 times, progression is done once in two weeks as 30 repetitions in the first two weeks with 2 sets, 45 repetitions in the next two weeks with 3 sets, 2-5 minutes of rest time was provided between each task. Group-B patients were treated with Bilateral arm training which includes six task-specific activities which were performed with both the hands simultaneously. Each activity is repeated for 30 times, progression is done once in two weeks as 30 repetitions in the first two week, 45 repetitions in the next two weeks with 3 sets. 2-5 minutes of rest time was provided between each task. Duration of the treatment is 4 weeks. Pre and post-test assessment was done by means of CAHAI-13 and ARAT.

Intervention:

1.UNILATERAL ARM TRAINING:

Ø Wiping the table

Ø Reaching and placing objects

Ø Moving an object from table to shelf with affected arm

Ø Elbow extension during horizontal reach

Ø Grasp an empty glass, take it to mouth and return to starting position

Ø Cup stacking

2.BILATERAL ARM TRAINING:

Ø Wiping the table with both hands

Ø Reaching and placing objects with both hands

Ø Moving an object from table to shelf with both arms

Ø Bilateral Elbow extension during horizontal reach

Ø Grasp an empty glass, take it to mouth and return to starting position with both hands

Ø Cup stacking with both hands

DATA ANALYSIS:

The collected pre and post test data were analysed. For the descriptive statistics, the mean and standard deviation were calculated. The results were tabulated.

Intra Group Analysis – Paired Samples t-test

• Inter Group Analysis – Independent Samples t-test

Intra-Group Analysis - Treatment A

Null Hypothesis, H_0 : $\mu_d = 0$, Alternate Hypothesis, H_1 : $\mu_d > 0$, ($\mu_d =$ mean difference between Pre and Posttest scores)

Level of significance, $\alpha = 0.05$, Test to be applied: Paired Sample t-test

Testing the effect of Treatment A in increasing CAHAI Score

 H_0 : There is no significant effect of Treatment A in increasing CAHAI score

H₁: There is significant effect of Treatment A in

increasing CAHAI score

The above hypothesis is tested by the use of Paired t-test:

Output of Paired t-test:

t-Test: Paired Two Sample for Means	Pre	Post
Mean	31.73	33.47
SD	6.57	6.09
Variance	43.21	37.12
Observations	15.00	15.00
Pearson Correlation	0.99	
Hypothesized mean difference	0.00	
df	14.00	
t Stat	6.98	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.000	
t Critical one-tail	1.76	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.000	
t Critical two-tail	2.14	

TABLE :1 OUTPUT OF PAIRED T-TEST - GROUP-A(CAHAI)

Result: Test Statistic: t = 6.98, p value = 0.000 < 0.05

Testing the effect of Treatment A in increasing ARAT Score

H₀: There is no significant effect of Treatment A in increasing ARAT score
H₁: There is significant effect of Treatment A in increasing ARAT score

The above hypothesis is tested by the use of Paired t-test

Output of Paired t-test:

t-Test: Paired Two Sample for Means		Pre	Post
Mean		39.87	41.47
SD		4.22	4.52
Variance		17.84	20.41
Observations		15.00	15.00
Pearson Correlation		0.99	
Hypothesized mean difference	е	0.00	
df		14.00	
t Stat		8.41	
P(T<=t) one-tail		0.000	
t Critical one-tail		1.76	
P(T<=t) two-tail		0.000	

TABLE 2: OUTPUT OF PAIRED T-TEST GROUP-A(ARAT)

t Critical two-tail	Testing the effect of Treatment B in increasing CAHAIScore

Result

Test Statistic: t = 8.41, P-value = 0.000 < 0.05

Intra-Group Analysis - Treatment B

 H_0 : There is no significant effect of Treatment B in increasing CAHAI score

 H_1 : There is significant effect of Treatment B in increasing CAHAI score

The above hypothesis is tested by the use of Paired t-test

Output of Paired t-test:

t-Test: Paired Two Sample for Means	Pre	Post
Mean	35.67	42.00
SD	3.29	3.12
Variance	10.81	9.71
Observations	15.00	15.00
Pearson Correlation	0.91	
Hypothesized Mean Difference	0.00	
df	14.00	
t Stat	17.55	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.000	
t Critical one-tail	1.76	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.000	
t Critical two-tail	2.14	

TABLE 3: OUTPUT OF PAIRED T-TEST- GROUP-B (CAHAI)

Result

Test Statistic: t = 17.55, P-value = 0.000 < 0.05

Testing the effect of Treatment B in increasing ARAT Score

 H_0 : There is no significant effect of Treatment B in increasing ARAT score

H₁: There is significant effect of Treatment B in increasing ARAT score

The above hypothesis is tested by the use of Paired t-test

Output of Paired t-test:

	(,
t-Test: Paired Two Sample for Means	Pre	Post
Mean	37.93	42.13
SD	4.32	4.00
Variance	18.64	15.98

TABLE 4: OUTPUT OF PAIRED T-TEST- GROUP-B(ARAT)

Observations	15.00	15.00
Pearson Correlation	0.97	
Hypothesized mean difference	0.00	
df	14.00	
t Stat	16.04	
P(T<=t) one-tail	0.000	
t Critical one-tail	1.76	
P(T<=t) two-tail	0.000	
t Critical two-tail	2.14	

Cont... TABLE 4: OUTPUT OF PAIRED T-TEST- GROUP-B(ARAT)

Result:Test Statistic: t = 16.04, P-value = 0.000 < 0.05

Inter-Group Analysis

Comparing the effect of Treatment A and B in terms of CAHAI

H₀: There is no significant difference between Treatments A and B in terms of improvement in CAHAI.

H₁: There is significant difference between Treatments A and B in terms of improvement in CAHAI.

The above hypothesis is tested by the use of **Independent Samples t-test**.

TABLE 5: OUTPUT OF INDEPENDENT SAMPLES T-TEST

t-Test: Two-Sample Assuming Equal Variances		Α	В
Mean		1.73	6.33
SD		0.96	1.40
Variance		0.92	1.95
Observations		15.00	15.00
Pooled Variance		1.44	
Hypothesized mean difference		0.00	
df		28.00	
t Stat		10.50	
P(T<=t) one-tail		0.000	
t Critical one-tail		1.70	
P(T<=t) two-tail		0.000	

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
t Critical two-tail		2.05	

Result

Test Statistic: t = 10.50, P-value = 0.000 < 0.05

Comparing the effect of Treatment A and B in terms of change in ARAT

H₀: There is no significant difference between Treatments A and B in terms of improvement in ARAT

H₁: There is significant difference between Treatments A and B in terms of improvement in ARAT

The above hypothesis is tested by the use of Independent Samples t-test.

t-Test: Two-Sample Assuming Equal Variances		Α	В
Mean		1.60	4.20
SD		0.74	1.01
Variance		0.54	1.03
Observations		15.00	15.00
Pooled Variance		0.79	
Hypothesized mean difference		0.00	
df		28.00	
t Stat		8.03	
P(T<=t) one-tail		0.000	
t Critical one-tail		1.70	

	Discussion
t Critical two-tail	2.05
P(T<=t) two-tail	concluded that Treatment B is effective than Treatment 0,000 A in increasing ARAT score.

Result

Test Statistic: t = 8.03, P-value = 0.000 < 0.05

Since the p-value (0.000) of the test statistic is less than 0.05, we reject the null hypothesis at 5% level of significance (t = 8.03, p < 0.05). In addition, the mean improvement in ARAT score by Treatment B (4.20) is more than that of Treatment A (1.60). Hence, it is The main aim of the study is to assess the effects of unilateral arm training and bilateral arm training in improving motor function of the hand in post stroke patients with motor impairment of hand. The study included 73% of male and 27% of women in Group-A, and 80% of male and 20% of women in Group-B who have satisfied the inclusion and exclusion criteria. The oldest patient in Group-A is patient-1 (male aged

70), and the youngest patient is patient-13 (male aged 48). The oldest patient in Group-B is patient-12 (male aged 70), and the youngest is patient-8 (male aged 49). There is not much significant difference between the improvement in the outcome values between these two groups to prove the influence of age on functional recovery, which lead to the hypothesis that age has insignificant or less significant impact on the functional recovery of the patients. The inability to perform the activities of daily living is the most common deficits that results due to hemiparesis¹⁰, both the Groups who underwent the therapy have improved upper limb functioning ability as measured by ARAT and functional ability as measured by CAHAI and are able to perform the functional activities better. The usage of the affected arm during the activities has been improved in both treatment groups. However, the usage of the affected arm is higher in bilateral arm training group than the unilateral group in the amount of usage of the affected extremity in bilateral extremity training group. They believed that a strong coupling exits between the arms when they act together which could have resulted in better amount of use of affected arm in bilateral training group than the unilateral training group.

Conclusion

The analysis clearly showed that both the treatments (A and B) are effective in terms of improvement in CAHAI and ARAT. However, the inter-group analysis showed that Treatment B is more effective than Treatment A in terms of improvement in CAHAI and ARAT.

Conflict of Interest : Nil

Source of Funding : Self

References

- Peter Langhorne, Julie Bernhardt, Gert Kwakkel Stroke Care 2Stroke rehabilitation Lancet 2011; 377: 1693–702
- 2. W H O , "Stroke, Cerebrovascularaccident,"August2010,http:// www.who.int/topics/cerebrovascular accident/en/
- Banerjee TK, Das SK. Fifty years of stroke researches in India. Ann Indian Acad Neurol [serial online] 2016 [cited 2018 Aug 1]; 19:1-8.

- Kumar, Suresh & Taylor, Fiona. (2012). Stroke in India - Fact-sheet (Updated 2012). South Asian Center for Chronic Diseases
- Alfeeli AK, Alghunaim SM, Baqer AB, Shehab DK, Ahmed MM. Postural Stability and Balance Training Program in Hemiparetic stroke patients. Mac ed J Med Sci. 2013 Sep 15; 6(3):251-254.
- Belda-Lois, J. M., Mena-Del Horno, S., Bermejo-Bosch, I., Moreno, J. C., Pons, J. L., Farina, D. Rea, M. (2011). Rehabilitation of gait after stroke: A review towards a top- down approach. DOI: 10.1186/1743-0003-8-66
- Ruth Ann Geiger, Jeffery B Allen, Joanne O'Keefe, Ramona R Hicks; Balance and Mobility Following Stroke: Effects of Physical Therapy Interventions With and Without Biofeedback/ Force plate Training, Physical Therapy, Volume 81, Issue 4, 1 April 2001, Pages 995–1005.
- Mary Ellen Stykov, Gwyn N. Lewis, and Daniel M. Corcos: Comparison of bilateral and unilateral training for upper extremity hemiparesis in stroke. Neurorehabilitation and Neural repair, Volume 23, No.9, November\December 2009.
- Ching-Yi Wu, Pai-Chaun Huang, Yu-Ting Chen, Keh-Chung Lin, Hsui-Wen Yang: Effects of mirror therapy on motor and sensory recovery in chronic stroke: a randomised controlled trail. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. Volume 94, Issue 6, June 01, 2013.
- Paramesh Parmar, Sheetal Sumaria, Sadal Hashi: Stroke: classification and diagnosis. Medicine, Volume 36, Issue 11, November 2008.
- Nam-Hae Jung, Kyeong-Mi Kim, Jae-Seop Oh, Moonyoung Chang: The effects of bilateral arm training on reaching performance and activities of daily living of stroke patients. Journal of physical therapy and science. Volume 25. No.4, 2013.
- Odera Umeano, Barbara Philips-Bute, Claire E. Hailey, Wei-Sun, Marisa C. Gray, Briana Roulhac-Wilson, David L. McDonagh, Peter G. Kranz, Daniel T. Laskowitz and Michael L. James: Gender and age interact to affect early outcome after intracerebral hemorrhage, PLOS One. Volume 8, Issue 11, 2013.
- 13. Nafeez Syed, Abhisek Biswas, Nazia Hanifa,

72 Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4

Parameswaran RV, and Padma sundaram: Bilateral versus unilateral upper extremity training on upper limb motor activity in hemiplegia. International journal of neurorehabilitation, Volume 2, January 2015.

- 14. Tetsuya Tsuji, Meigen Liu, Kimitaka Hase, Yoshihisa Masakado and naoichichino trunk muscles in persons with hemiparetic stroke evaluated With computed tomography j Rehabil Med 2003; 35: 184–188
- 15. Steven L. Wolf, Corolee J. Winstein, J. Philip Miller, Edward Taub, Gitendra Uswatte, David Morris, Carol Giuliani, Kathye E. Light, Deborah Nicolas-Larsen: effect of constraint-induced movement therapy on upper extremity function 3 to 9 months after stroke. JAMA, Volume 296, Number 17, November 1, 2006.
- Dickstein R, Sheffi S, Ben Haim Z, Shabtai E, Markovici E, Activation of flexor and extensor trunk muscles in hemiparesis, Am J Phys Med Rehabil.79, 2000, 228-234

Effectiveness of Combined Balance and Step Training versus Task-Oriented Exercises with Sensory Input on Balance in Older Adults – A Comparative Study

Mona Patel¹, Sadhana Mukhi², Mihirdev Jhala³

¹Tutor / Clinical Therapist, School of Physiotherapy, P P Savani University, ²Lecturer, JG college of Physiotherapy, ³Principal (IC), JG College of Physiotherapy

Abstract

Aim: To compare the effectiveness of CBST with Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input to improve balance in older adults.

Objectives: To study the effectiveness of CBST versus Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input following 8 weeks of intervention on Balance in older adults.

Method: Older adults with balance issue (mild-moderate) were taken. All 40 patients were assessed as per the evaluation format. They were randomly divided into two groups. Group (A) subjects received combined balance and step training (CBST) for eight weeks and group (B) subjects received task-oriented exercise with sensory input for eight weeks.

Result: CBST and Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input are equally effective in improving balance. But, Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input showed higher mean difference 8.3 than CBST 7.05 and MDC 8.3, which suggest that altering sensory input while balance training proves to be more effective clinically to improve balance in older adults than challenging the base of support.

Conclusion: CBST (Combined Balance and Stepping Training) and Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input are equally effective in improving balance.

Key Wored: Combined balance and step training, Task-oriented exercises with sensory input, Balance, Older adults.

Introduction

Falls are an important health problem among elderly populations world-wide, with reported global incidences ranging from 224 to 809 per 1000 person-years.¹⁻³ They are impairing functional activities of daily living⁴⁻⁷ and quality of life. Studying falls in the Indian population is important in view of the current demographic transition in the country that is leading to a rapid increase in the elderly population.⁸

A recent cross-sectional study among older adult men and women aged 60 and above in northern India reported that 52% of subjects fell in the past year⁹, suggesting a high burden. The prevalence of falls in hospitalized or institutionalized Indian women was also very high, 45% to 64%.10

Most falls by the elderly are likely due to complex interactions between multiple risk factors. Clinicians are encouraged to follow published guidelines for the prevention of falls by older persons when prescribing fall prevention interventions.¹¹ Declines in all sensory systems (somatosensory, vision, vestibular) and all three stages of information processing (i.e., sensory processing, sensorimotor integration, motor output) are found with aging.^{12,13} In comparison to young adults, older adults have more difficulty maintaining balance.^{14,15}

Elderly individuals who have experienced one or more falls may develop fear of falling, which leads to a loss of confidence in a person's ability to perform routine tasks, restricted activity, social isolation, functional decline, depression, and decreased quality of life.^{16,17}

Various protocols used to improve balance in older adults are Tai Chi,¹⁸ supervised strength and endurance training,¹⁹ and home exercise prescribed by a physiotherapist,^{20,21} enhanced balance training exercises,²² functional training,²³ task-oriented exercise programs,²⁴⁻²⁷ Combined Balance and Stepping Training (CBST).²⁸

Combined Balance and Stepping Training were designed to focus on improving dynamic balance responses, increasing step length and speed, and responding safely to posturally challenging situations.²⁹ Using a motor-skill training approach,²⁹ CBST participants worked on dynamic balance and stepping responses through structured practice with a focus on speed of step initiation and appropriate toe clearance and step length.

Exercise interventions, in the form of task-oriented exercise programs, are now recognized as a new strategy to improve the functional status of chronic stroke individuals.²⁴⁻²⁷ The adaptation of regular exercises with the use of surface and vision manipulation to challenge balance could improve the process of somatosensory integration and have a positive effect on postural stability. This type of intervention has further shown to be effective at improving postural stability in neurologically intact elderly people.³⁰⁻³¹

Materials and Methodology

Ethical clearance was taken from institutional ethical committee. The purpose of this study was explained and a written informed consent and demographic details was obtained from all the subjects. Subjects were preliminary screened based on the inclusion and exclusion criteria. They were allocated into two groups A and B. On the first day of first week and last day of eight week, pretest and post-test measurements of Balance was taken by Berg balance scale.

Population: Older adults

Study design: An Experimental Study

Sample size: 40 (20 in Group A – CBST & 20 in Group B – Task Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input)

Sample technique: Non probability sampling

Source of data: Old age home, surrounding societies and various Outpatient department of Ahmedabad.

Outcome measure: Berg Balance Scale

Inclusion criteria:

- * Age group 65-85 years
- * BBS >20 and <50
- * One error in 10 step tandem walk
- * Degenerative- non symptomatic

Exclusion criteria:

- * Unstable cardio-pulmonary symptoms
- * Severe pain with weight bearing activities

* Receiving physical therapy for musculoskeletal, neuromuscular or functional mobility or balance impairment

* Subjects who are not having any other neurological conditions

GROUP A: COMBINED BALANCE AND STEP TRAINING (2days/week)

GROUP B: TASK – ORIENTED EXERCISE WITH SENSORY INPUT (2days/week)

Before starting exercise warm up and cool down exercise was performed

Warm up: Duration 10 minutes. Exercises include stretching of hamstrings, calf and triceps 3 repetitions and 30 seconds hold for each; free active range of motion exercise of all joints of upper limbs and lower limbs.

Cool down: Duration 5 minutes. Exercises include stretching of hamstrings, calf and triceps 3 repetitions and 30 seconds hold for each; diaphragmatic breathing for 2-3 times

GROUP A (COMBINED BALANCE AND STEP TRAINING): 45 minutes³⁴

- * Narrowing the base of support
- * Tandem stance

* Turning and Bending

* Providing external challenges to balance that required a response

* Narrowing the base of support while responding to the external challenge

- * Stepping on and off curbs
- * Increasing the complexity of ambulatory tasks
- * Walking while carrying a ball

GROUP B (TASK ORIENTED EXERCISE WITH SENSORY INPUT): 45 minutes³⁰⁻³³

- * Stepping
- * Stepping over blocks
- * Standing up from a chair stool touch
- * Standing up from a chair stepping variant
- * From a sitting position on a 65-cm Swiss ball
- * Performing double-legged stance for 10 s
- * Performing tandem stance for 10 s
- * Rising from a chair without the use of the arms
- * Walking forward and backward with a tandem

walking pattern

Performing single legged stance for 10 s

All the exercises was conducted for 1 hour/day and 2 days/week

Statistical Analyses

Statistical analysis was done by the SPSS (Statistical Package for the Social Sciences) v20. Shapiro-Wilk test was applied to check the normality of the data. All the quantitative data of this study follows the normality ($p \ge 0.05$). Baseline characteristics were compared to check homogeneous between intervention groups. Independent t-test was used. Wilcoxon signed rank test was used to analyse the differences between pre and post treatment within each group and mannwhitney test for between group comparisons.

Result

In this study 40 subjects with age 65 years or more were taken and divided into two groups. Group A (Combined Balance and Step Training) and Group B (Task Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input). All the subjects completed the study program without any complications. The baseline characteristics were similar between the groups.

OUTCOME	CPOUP	MEAI	MEAN±SD		DVALUE
	GROUI	PRE	POST	ZVALUE	IVALUE
BBS	GROUP A	30.45±6.39	37.5±5.99	3.966	0.001
	GROUP B	32.1±7.06	40.4±7.21	3.927	0.001

Table 1.1.Within group Comparison of Pre-and Post BBS in Group A and Group B

Table 1.2. Between Group Comparison of Mean difference of BBS group A and group B

OUTCOME	GROUP	MEAN DIFFERENCE	U VALUE	P VALUE
DDC	GROUP A	7.05±2.09	139.000	0.09
600	GROUP B	8.3±2.52		

Discussion

As per statistical analysis of this study showed positive finding with clinically and statistically significant improvement in BBS score within Group B as p value is <0.05 and minimal detectable change (MDC) is 8.3 but no clinical improvement within group A although there is statistically significant improvement in BBS score within group A as p value is <0.05 and minimal detectable change (MDC) is 7.05.

When comparison was done for Group A from pre to post intervention level for BBS score, it was found that there was significant improvement in values of BBS. Pre Test mean of BBS score 30.45 was compared with the post Test mean of BBS score 37.5 after 8 week of intervention which show that Combined Balance and Step Training is effective in improving balance in older adults as the p value is <0.05 (Table 1.1).

This finding of our study matches with the previous study done by Joseph O.Nnodim et al. in 2006. He conducted a study on Dynamic Balance and Stepping Versus Tai Chi Training to Improve Balance and Stepping in At-Risk Older Adults. They found that greater improvement in the stepping measures (MSL, RST) was found in CBST than TC, because the training in CBST was clearly task specific.³²

CBST consist of dual task activities and exercise that challenge the Base of support. Similar study was done by Alexandra Halvarsson et al. in 2014 which justifies that how the balance is improved by dual tasking. Training balance during dual-task conditions appears to be necessary to improve balance control under situations with divided attention, as balance training with singletask exercises have shown to not transfer to dual-task performance.³³

When comparison was done for Group B from pre to post intervention level for BBS score, it was found that there was significant improvement in values of BBS. Pre Test mean of BBS 32.1 was compared with the mean of BBS 40.4 after 8 weeks of intervention. Which shows that Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input is effective in improving balance in older adults as the p value is < 0.05 (Table 1.1).

This finding of our study matches with the previous study done by Shrikant Bhimrao Darade et al. in 2017.

He conducted a study on Effectiveness of Sensory Motor Training Program in Community Dwelling Elderly Individuals with History of Fall. They found that the sensory motor training program affect proprioception more than classic traditional exercise program as sensory motor training program improves sensory input to central nervous systems thus improving sensory motor function of sacroiliac joint, knee joint and ankle joint. Kinesthesia and balance training were reported to improve proprioception and functional performance of elderly patients and helps to reduce fall risk.³⁴

Anna Hafstrom et.al in 2016, concluded that improvements in balance in older adults was found (e.g., one-leg standing) with both EO and EC, first on solid surfaces, and, with increasing balance proficiency, progressing to completing the exercises on compliant surfaces. This was facilitated by the sensory reweighting process that is indeed necessary when one tries to balance without visual information when vibrations are causing perturbations or even more so when standing on compliant surfaces.

Between group comparision shows p value is >0.05 that means null hypothesis is accepted, "There is no significant difference between CBST and task-oriented exercise with sensory input on balance in older adults." Therefore, CBST and Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input are equally effective in improving balance. But, Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input showed higher mean difference 8.3 than CBST 7.05 and, which suggest that altering sensory input while balance training proves to be more effective clinically to improve balance in older adults than challenging the base of support.

Conclusion

Combined Balance and Stepping Training and Task-Oriented Exercise with Sensory Input are equally effective in improving balance in older adults.

Ethical Clearance: Taken from Institutional Ethical committee

Source of Funding: Self

Conflict of Interest: NIL

References

- A. J. Blake, K. Morgan, M. J. Bendall et al., "Falls by elderly people at home: prevalence and associated factors," Age and Ageing, vol. 17, no. 6, pp. 365–372, 1988.
- H. Luukinen, K. Koski, L.Hiltunen, and S.-L. Kivel⁻a, "Incidence rate of falls in an aged population in Northern Finland," Journal of Clinical Epidemiology, vol. 47, no. 8, pp. 843–850, 1994.
- A. J. Campbell, M. J. Borrie, and G. F. Spears, "Risk factors for falls in a community-based prospective study of people 70 years and older," Journal of Gerontology, vol. 44, no. 4, pp.M112–M117, 1989.
- M. E. Tinetti, M. Speechley, and S. F. Ginter, "Risk factors for falls among elderly persons living in the community," The New England Journal ofMedicine, vol. 319, no. 26, pp. 1701–1707, 1988.
- P. A. Stalenhoef, J. P. M. Diederiks, J. A. Knottnerus, A. D. M. Kester, and H. F. J. M. Crebolder, "A risk model for the prediction of recurrent falls in community-dwelling elderly: a prospective cohort study," Journal of Clinical Epidemiology, vol. 55, no. 11, pp. 1088–1094, 2002.
- World Health Organization, "Global report on falls prevention in older age," 2007, http://www.who. int/ageing/publications/ Falls_prevention7March. pdf.
- N. de Rekeneire, M. Visser, R. Peila et al., "Is a fall just a fall: correlates of falling in healthy older persons. The health, aging and body composition study," Journal of the American Geriatrics Society, vol. 51, no. 6, pp. 841–846, 2003.
- J. Ledent, "UNITED NATIONS. 2001 et 2003. World Urbanization Prospects. The 1999 Revision, et The 2001 Revision. New York, United Nations, Department of Economic and Social Affairs, Population Division, ST/ESA/SER.A./194 et ST/ ESA/SER.A./216 .," Cahiers qu'eb'ecois de d'emographie, vol. 32, no. 2, p. 328, 2003.
- K. Joshi, R. Kumar, and A. Avasthi, "Morbidity profile and its relationship with disability and pyschological distress among elderly people in Northern India," International Journal of Epidemiology, vol. 32, no. 6, pp. 978–987, 2003.
- 10. S. J. Johnson, "Frequency and nature of falls

among older women in India," Asia-Pacific Journal of Public Health, vol. 18, no. 1, pp. 56–61, 2006.

- American Geriatrics Society, British Geriatrics Society, American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons Panel on Fall Prevention. Guidelines for the prevention of falls in older persons. J Am GeriatrSoc 49:664–672, 2001.
- Light KE. Information processing for motor performance in aging adults. PhysTher 70:820– 826, 1990.
- Shumway-Cook A, Woollacott M. Motor Control: Theory and Practical Applications, 2nd ed. Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, 2001.
- Teasdale N, Stelmach GE, Breunig A. Postural sway characteristics of the elderly under normal and altered visual and support surface conditions. J Gerontol 46:B238–B244, 1991.
- Woollacott MH, Shumway-Cook A, Nashner LM. Aging and posture control: changes in sensory organization and muscular coordination. Int J Aging Hum Dev 23:97–114, 1986.
- Chandler JM, Duncan PW. Balance and falls in the elderly: issues in evaluation and treatment. In: Guccione AA, editor. Geriatric Physical Therapy. St. Louis, Mosby, 1993, pp. 237–251.
- Lachman ME, Howland J, Tennstedt S, et al. Fear of falling and activity restriction: the survey of activities and fear of falling in the elderly (SAFE). J Gerontol B PsycholSciSocSci 53:43–50, 1998.
- Wolf S, Barnhart H, Ellison G, Coogler C. The effects of tai chi quan and computerized balance training on postural stability in older subjects. PhysTher 1997; 77: 371–81.
- Buchner D, Cress M, De Lateur B et al. The effect of strength and endurance training on gait, balance, fall risk, and health services use in communityliving older adults. J Gerontol A (BiolSci Med Sci) 1997; 52: M218–24.
- Campbell AJ, Robertson M, Gardner M, Norton R, Tilyard M. Randomised controlled trial of a GP programme of home based exercise to prevent falls in elderly women. Br Med J 1997; 315: 1065–9.
- Campbell A, Robertson C, Gardner M, Norton R, Buchner D. Falls prevention over 2 years: a randomized controlled trial in women over 80 years

78 Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4

and older. Age Ageing 1999; 28: 513-18.

- 22. Skelton DA, Dinan S. Exercise for falls management: Rationale for an exercise programme aimed at reducing postural instability. PhysiotherPract 1999;15:105–120.
- 23. Krebs DE, Jette AM, Assmann SF: Moderate exercise improves gait stability in disabled elders. *Arch Phys MedRehabil*1998;79:1489–95.
- Dean CM, Richards CL, Malouin F (2000). Taskrelated circuit training improves performance of locomotor tasks in chronic stroke: a randomized, controlled pilot trial. Arch Phys Med Rehabil 81:409–417.
- Eng JJ, Chu KS, Maria KC, Dawson AS, Carswell A, Hepburn KE (2003). A community-based group exercise program for persons with chronic stroke. Med Sci Sports Exerc 35:1271–1278.
- 26. Salbach NM, Mayo NE, Wood-Dauphinee S, Hanley JA, Richards CL, Cote R (2004). A taskorientated intervention enhances walking distance and speed in the first year post stroke: a randomized controlled trial. ClinRehabil 18:509–519.
- Leroux A (2005). Exercise training to improve motor performance in chronic stroke: effects of a community-based exercise program. Int J Rehabil Res 28:17–23.
- Joseph O. Nnodim, MD, PhD, w Debra Strasburg, MS "Dynamic Balance and Stepping Versus Tai Chi Training to Improve Balance and Stepping in

At-Risk Older Adults" The American Geriatrics Society JAGS 54:1825–1831, 2006.

- 29. Schmidt RA. Motor Control and Learning: A Behavioral Emphasis, 2nd Ed. Champaign, IL: Human Kinetics Publishers, Inc., 1988.
- Leroux A (2005). Exercise training to improve motor performance in chronic stroke: effects of a community-based exercise program. Int J Rehabil Res 28:17–23.
- Hu MH, Woollacott MH (1994a). Multisensory training of standing balance in older adults: I. Postural stability and one-leg stance balance. J Gerontol 49:M52–M61.
- 32. Joseph O. Nnodim et al. "Dynamic Balance and Stepping Versus Tai Chi Training to Improve Balance and Stepping in At-Risk Older Adults." JAGS 54:1825–1831, 2006, Copyright the Authors.
- 33. Alexandra Halvarsson et al. "Taking balance training for older adults one step further: the rationale for and a description of a proven balance training programme." Clinical Rehabilitation 2015, Vol. 29(5) 417–425 © The Author(s) 2014.
- 34. ShrikantBhimraoDarade et al. "Effectiveness of Sensory Motor Training Program in Community Dwelling Elderly Individuals with History of Fall." Journal of Physiotherapy & Physical Rehabilitation Darade and Ganvir, PhysiotherRehabil 2017.

Validity and Reliability of the Marathi Translation of the International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ) in rural Area in Maharashtra

Mugdha Bote¹, Aashirwad Mahajan²

¹Physiotherapy Intern, Dr. APJ Abdul Kalam College of Physiotherapy, Pravara Institute of medical Sciences, DU Loni, Maharashtra, India, ²Assistant Professor, Dr. APJ Abdul Kalam College of Physiotherapy, Pravara Institute of medical Sciences, DU Loni, Maharashtra, India

Abstract

The International Physical Activity Questionnaire is known as a validated tool to measure physical activity all across the world. The questionnaire has been translated and validated in many languages however there is exists no Marathi translated version of this questionnaire till date. Hence the purpose of this study was to translate the IPAQ-SF into Marathi language and to check the validity and reliability of the translated Marathi IPAQ.

A simple random sampling of 100 healthy individuals from Dr. A.P.J. Abdul Kalam College of Physiotherapy, PIMS, Loni. The participants included were between age group of 18-65 years and were screened according to inclusion and exclusion criteria. The participants were asked to take the IPAQ Marathi. Responses were changed to metabolic equivalent task minutes per week. The validation was done using the uniaxial accelerometer watch.

The data regarding the time spent doing vigorous, moderate and light activities done by the participants was collected with the help of Misfit smartphone application. The correlation between the total amount of time spent and the total IPAQ score was seen to be highly significant. (Pearson's correlation coefficient, p=0.65) and the reliability was found to be good. (Cronbach's alpha r =0.7)

The translated Marathi version of the IPAQ showed acceptable validity and reliability for the assessment of physical activity among rural area population of Maharashtra.

Keywords: Accelerometer watch, International Physical Activity Questionnaire, physical activity, sedentary lifestyle.

Introduction

In terms of definition physical activity is often outlined as any bodily movement performed by the skeletal muscles which requires energy expenditure, this includes activities done while working, doing household work, playing a sport or during travelling.^[1]

The term "physical activity" is often confused with the term "exercise", while in exercise is a subdivision of physical activity which is planned, repetitive and aims to improve the one or more than one physical components. Beyond these planned exercise protocols, any other physical activity that is done during travelling or as a individual's work, also shows health benefits.^[2]

Sedentary lifestyle is an issue of great concern because of its deleterious health consequences in developed as well as developing countries. It is associated with limited physical activity, prolonged sitting at work, in cars, at religious places, work sites, schools, homes and public places have been restricted in ways that minimize human movement and muscular activities. People sit more and move less. Compared to earlier days, demand of physically active lifestyle has drastically changed to reduced physical activities which brings the mankind to the greater risk to develop various health hazards such as hypertension, obesity, various types of cancers and many cardiac conditions.^[3]

Sedentary lifestyle and reduced physical activity are now a leading cause for global mortality. The high-risk factor is adding burden of noncommunicable disorders and is affecting the overall health worldwide. According to a WHO report it is estimated that physical inactivity causes around 6% of the burden of disease from coronary heart disease, 7% of type 2 diabetes, 10% of breast cancer, and 10% of colon cancer. Insufficiently active individuals show 20% to 30% high risk of death compared to physically active individuals. A total of 56 million deaths happened worldwide during 2012. Out of this, 38 million were due to NCDs, principally cardiovascular diseases, cancer and chronic respiratory diseases.^[4]

Prevention of diseases is considered as the best strategy especially in developing and under developed countries, where the disease burden is very high and the cost of secondary and tertiary health care are unreachable to most of the population. Many studies have shown that increase in physical activity decreases the incidence of cardiovascular diseases, type 2 diabetes, stroke, and improves psychological wellbeing.^[5] Encouraging physical activity plays an important role in reducing the burden of Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs). In 2013, Global NCD Action Plan 2013-2020 was endorsed in World Health Assembly, to promote healthy diets and physical activity, and to attain nine voluntary global targets for NCDs including ones on diet and physical activity to be achieved by 2025.^[6]

In research studies, there are many methods that can be followed for data collection. These methods can range from traditional, simple methods such as face-to-face interviews to more complex methods such as document and record analysis. The commonly used data collection methods are Interviews, Questionnaires and surveys, Oral history, documents and records, Observations and Focus groups. Interviews are considered to be expensive data collection tool due various factors. Observation involves collecting the information without asking the subject any questions. This can further lead to bias as this method is more subjective. Documents and records are can be considered as incomplete data sources as the researcher himself has less control over the result. The researcher takes data from the already existing information. However, this method is inexpensive. Focus groups consist of showing a presentation and then discuss the content before answering the questions. Focus group generally use open-ended questions and therefore ground the research in a certain state of mind, eradicating external interference. Oral history is basically any research related to a particular phenomenon which is mainly based on collecting the information, recording, preservation and interpretation totally based on the information collected from the people who were actually involved in that particular event.^[7] In research studies, questionnaires are the most commonly used instruments to measure physical activity(PA), because of their low cost, simplicity and briefness. Many developing countries such as India don't have enough data on physical in activity.^[8]

The ability to measure physical activity behaviour is useful, not only to understand the association between physical activity and health, but also for many other reasons, such as to monitor secular trends in behaviour and to evaluate the effectiveness of interventions and programs. The accelerometer is a widely used tool to measure the physical activity in the form of step counts, calories and the distance covered by the person. The method is effective and accurate to collect data regarding physical activity. Although there are certain limitations while using it such as These challenges include a lack of understanding about exactly how a monitor functions, how to select the appropriate instrument, how to interpret accelerometer data, and how to manipulate and analyse the data produced by accelerometer output.^[9]

The world health organization made the Global physical activity questionnaire as an NCD risk factor surveillance. The questionnaire asks questions about the time spent by an individual doing day to day activities while travelling, at work, work done as a part of recreational activities and sedentary behaviour questions ask about the time spent while sitting. Similarly, physical activity scale for elderly (PASE) was created by New England research institute in 1991 for the individuals above 65 years of age to measure the physical activity as well as to check the effectiveness of the exercise intervention.^[10]

In 1997, a group of public health and physical activity researchers from 16 countries, with support of the World Health Organization (WHO) and the US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), gathered in Geneva, Switzerland, to identify a common method to assess physical activity for the purpose of population surveillance.^[11] The outcome of the meeting was the development of the International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ), as an instrument for cross-national monitoring of physical activity. The IPAQ has then been examined for validity and reliability in several populations and international studies are deemed acceptable to use the IPAQ in physical activity research and surveillance activities.^[11-16]

There are two versions of the IPAQ (long and short forms). In each version, there are two formats: selfadministered and telephone or face-to-face interview. Although the face-to-face interviews are often used by the researchers because they allow for more in-depth data collection and comprehensive understanding.

The questions will ask the people about the time they spent being physically active in the last 7 days. Such as, the time taken by the individual to perform vigorous physical activities which take maximum physical efforts to perform and make them breath harder than normal. The questionnaire asks about time taken to perform activities which take moderate physical efforts and make them breathe somewhat hard. Lastly the questionnaire asks about the time spent by the person in sitting. This is done to measure and assesses the types of intensity of physical activity and sitting time that people do as part of their daily lives are considered to estimate total physical activity in MET- min/week and time the individual spent sitting.

Although the results from the former studies are promising, however there is no available Marathilanguage version which is culturally adapted and validated for Indian habits and lifestyle, especially in Rural areas in Maharashtra. Most of the population residing in rural areas of Maharashtra speaks Marathi language in day to day life. It is difficult for the people from rural areas to understand English, let alone speak the language. Hence the IPAQ will be translated to Marathi-language first and then assessment will be done by taking samples from the Indian population to check for the validity and reliability of the questionnaire. The questionnaire was translated by following the guidelines given by the authors which includes forward-backward translation to eliminate errors.

Method

International Physical Activity Questionnaire was translated into Marathi from English using forwardbackward-forward translation method using the instructions given in the International Physical Activity Questionnaire manual for reliability and validity. Two independent bilinguals translated the questions into Marathi, and subsequently the preliminary version was back translated into English following careful cultural adaptation. Then a third bilingual translator provided a final version.

All the patients referred to Physiotherapy Department were screened according to Inclusion and exclusion criteria. All the participants were briefed about the purpose and procedure of study and written consent form were obtained from the participants. Initially the participants were asked to take the IPAQ-SF (IPAQ- Short form) and IPAQ-M (IPAQ- Marathi) questionnaires in order to check the correlation between two versions. The participants were provided with the accelerometer watches which they had to wear for a week. All the activities were monitored through the wrist worn accelerometer with the help of a smartphone application for a period of a week and data was collected. After data collection participants were again asked to take the IPAQ-M on the 8th day to check the reliability. The data was analysed by using appropriate statistical test to check if there is correlation between the scores obtained from the two questionnaires by the participants.

Result Interpretation

TABLE NO. 1: Demographic Profile of all participants

Demographic characteristics			
AGE	18-65 years		
GENDER	Males & Females		
MALES	49		
FEMALES	51		

Result No.1: The above diagram shows that there were 100 participants in which 51% were female and 49% were male.

Table No.2: TABULAR REPRESENTATION OF AGE GROUP

AGE GROUP	AGE GROUP (%)
18-30	63
31-50	28
51-65	9

Result No. 2: 18-30 age group was the predominant age group which participated in this study.

Results and Discussion

There were 100 participants in which 51% were female and 49% were male. The study shows that18-30 age group was the predominant age group which participated in this study. By using appropriate statistical analysis methods, we found that the values among IPAQ-SF and IPAQ-M showed positive correlation. The reliability of the questionnaire was also found to be good.

To our knowledge this is the first study done to check the validity and reliability of Marathi translation of International Physical Activity Questionnaire. There are very few validated questionnaires present to assess the amount of physical activity an individual is performing. Physical activity has been shown to reduce the morbidity rate and increase the quality of life. International physical activity questionnaire is short selfadministered questionnaire which has been used widely all over the world to assess the physical activity however there is no Marathi translation available. Hence the questionnaire was translated into the Marathi language following the guidelines given by the respective authors. The participants were asked to take the IPAQ-M short form questionnaire and were asked to use the Misfit accelerometer watch for a week. This way the data was collected through the smartphone application

In this study, the IPAQ-M short form was validated against uni-axial accelerometer measurement. The data regarding the time spent doing vigorous, moderate and light activities done by the participants was collected with the help of Misfit smartphone application. The correlation between the total amount of time spent and the total IPAQ score was seen to be moderately significant. (Pearson's correlation coefficient, p=0.65) and the reliability was found to be acceptable as well. (Cronbach's alpha r=0.7) The results indicated that Marathi version IPAQ-SF had good acceptance properties for assessing physical activities in healthy individuals.

Similar study was done by et al. Min Young Chun in Seoul, Korea where he studied the validity and reliability of Korean version of IPAO in elderly people. Over 55 participants over 65 years of age were selected to administer Korean IPAQ version and were given uniaxial accelerometer watches as a measure for validation of the questionnaire. he test-retest method was performed over a two-week interval to examine the reliability of the IPAQ. They found that more physically active by the IPAQ short form, the higher the measured value of the accelerometer (P < 0.001). Pearson's correlation coefficient was 0.43 for the correlation between the results of two measurements. The validity of the IPAQ short form was proven, but the reliability was found to be low. Health conditions in the elderly could have been a factor that affected the reliability. Nevertheless, the Korean IPAQ short form seems to show good validity and reliability and can be used as tool to measure physical activity.^[17]

Conclusion

In conclusion, the translated IPAQ-M shows acceptable validity and reliability. Nonetheless the IPAQ-M can be used to measure the physical activity level in rural population of Maharashtra, India.

Ethical Clearance- Ethical clearance obtained from Institutional ethical committee of Dr. APJ Abdul Kalam College of Physiotherapy, PIMS-DU.

Source of Funding- Self funded.

Conflict of Interest-Nil

References

1. Caspersen CJ, Powell KE, Christenson GM. Physical activity, exercise, and physical fitness: definitions and distinctions for health-related research. *Public*

health rep. 1985 Mar 1;100(2):126-31.

- Inyang DM, Stella OO. Sedentary lifestyle: health implications. *IOSR Journal of Nursing and Health Science* (IOSR-JNHS). e-ISSN: 2320–1959.p-ISSN: 2320–1940 Volume 4, Issue 2 Ver. I (Mar.-Apr. 2015), PP 20-25
- Physical activity [Internet]. Who.int. 2019 [cited 23 February 2018] Available https://www.who.int/ news-room/fact-sheets/detail/physical-activity
- Buttar HS, Li T, Ravi N. Prevention of cardiovascular diseases: Role of exercise, dietary interventions, obesity and smoking cessation. *Experimental & clinical cardiology*. 2005;10(4):229.
- 6. WHO:Diet and physical activity:A public health priority Geneva. Available from: http://www.who. int/dietphysicalactivity/background/en/
- Ainsworth Quentin (2019, December 24). Data Collection Methods. Retrieved from https://www. jotform.com/data-collection-methods/
- Ga'lvez Vargas R, Sierra Lo'pez A, Sae'nz Gonza'lez MC, editors. Pie'drola Gil. *Medicina Preventiva y Salud Pu' blica*. Barcelona: Masson; 2000. pp. 935–43. 10 ed.
- Ward DS, Evenson KR, Vaughn A, Rodgers AB, Troiano RP. Accelerometer use in physical activity: best practices and research recommendations. *Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise*. 2005 Nov 1;37(11):S582-8.
- 10. Armstrong T, Bull F. Development of the world health organization global physical activity questionnaire (GPAQ). *Journal of Public Health*.

2006 Apr 1;14(2):66-70.

- Craig CL, Marshall AL, Sjöström M, Bauman AE, Booth ML, Ainsworth BE, Pratt M, Ekelund U, Yngve A, Sallis JF, Oja Med Sci Sports Exerc. 2003 Aug; 35(8):1381-95
- Craig CL, Marshall AL, Sjostrom M, et al. International physical activity questionnaire: 12-country reliability and validity. *Med Sci Sports Exerc*. 2003;35:1381–95.
- Deng HB, Macfarlane DJ, Thomas GN, et al. Reliability and validity of the IPAQ–Chinese: The Guangzhou Biobank Cohort Study. *Med Sci Sports Exerc*. 2008;40:303–7.
- Ekelund U, Sepp H, Brage S, et al. Criterionrelated validity of the last 7-day, short form of the International Physical Activity Questionnaire in Swedish adults. *Public Health Nutr.* 2006;9:258– 65.
- Hagströmer M, Oja P, Sjöström M. The International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ): a study of concurrent and construct validity. *Public Health Nutr.* 2006;9:755–62.
- kurtze n, rangul v, hustvedt be, flanders wd. reliability and validity of self-reported physical activity in the nord-trøndelag health study (hunt 2) *eur j epidemiol*. 2007;22:379–387.
- 17. Chun MY. Validity and reliability of Korean version of international physical activity questionnaire short form in the elderly. *Korean journal of family medicine*. 2012 May;33(3):144.

Comparison of Task Oriented Therapy and Modified Constraint Induced Movement Therapy along with Functional Electrical Stimulation to Improve Hand Function In Sub Acute Stroke survivors: a Randomized Control Trial

Nainky Bhalla¹, Navkaran Shergill²

¹Research Scholar, ²Assistant Professor, Department of Physiotherapy, RIMT University, Gobindgarh, Punjab.

Abstract

Background: The study aims to investigate the effectiveness of 6 weeks of two-channel functional electrical stimulation assisted hand training along with Task Oriented Training and Modified Constraint Induced Movement Therapy on the restoration of hand function in subacute stroke patients. **Trial design**: A Multi–group pre test–post test design randomized controlled study was conducted with 30 individuals with upper-limb motor impairment after stroke. **Method**: Participants was randomly assigned into three groups FES-TOT, FES- mCIMT and FES-Ctrl groups. All participants were treated for 90 minutes a day, 5 times a week for 6 weeks. Hand function was assessed by Action Research Arm Test score (primary outcome), Grip strength, Pinch strength and Stroke Impact Scale (secondary outcome). **Result**: There was statistical significance (p<.05) between the groups for ARA and Grip strength outcome measures. It was found that subjects in both experimental groups (but FES-TOT > FES-mCIMT,) showed more improvement in ARA score and grip strength (lateral pinch and three jaw chuck pinch) as compared to control group (FES-CTRL). **Conclusion**: It is concluded that training with FES along with TOT is more effective in improving Hand function and grip strength as compared to mCIMT and conventional hand rehabilitation. However studies with large sample size are required for generalizability of the finding based on statistical analysis.

Trial registration: Clinical Trial Registration India CTRI/2019/06/019940 dated 28 June 2019.

Keywords: Stroke, Functional Electrical Stimulation, hand function, dexterity, rehabilitation.

Introduction

Stroke causes hand function impairment, which consists of two complementary characteristics: strength as in a power grip and control of individual finger movements as in piano play. ^{1, 2} Difficulties in opening the hand willingly, extending the wrist and fingers against resistance, and generating powerful grip are frequently noted after stroke. ^{3,4} Loss of finger control is an inability to either move one finger while maintaining

Corresponding author: Nainky Bhalla

Research Scholar, Department of Physiotherapy, RIMT University, Gobindgarh, Punjab email:nainky@gmail.com the other fingers immobile or to create complicated hand gestures that impairs the capacity to execute duties such as typing or buttoning a shirt. ^{1,2,5} When strength recovers after stroke, control is often impaired, causing permanent impairment. ^{6,7}

Conventional hand rehabilitation methods are efficient in decreasing the individual's disability, but there are constraints in improving and recovering upper limb activities. The two most popular techniques for enhancing hand function used are modified constraint induced movement therapy (mCIMT) & Task Oriented Therapy (TOT). The mCIMT is a unilateral, manual and repetitive intervention training in which the normal limb is restricted and the patient is forced to recruit the affected hand to carry out various repetitive activities. Task oriented training is a goal oriented program where different activities that could be functional or imitating functional activities are performed bilaterally by the patients. Nowadays, technology is emerging as an adjunct to therapy in rehabilitation. FES is a promising therapy which has shown to improve arm and hand function in individuals with stroke, but evidence is mostly limited.

The International Classification of Functioning, Disability and Health (ICF) is a classification system , which indicates complex interactions between a person and his/her physical, social and psychological environment and addresses the influence of such system on person's health status.⁸ The ICF, introduces a paradigm shift in how disability is conceptualized and, at the same time, provides a classification based on this understanding to describe relevant aspects of health and its determinants to be used for standardized reporting of information on health and disability in clinical practice and research. Body function, body structures, activities, participation, and environmental factors are classified based on ICF categories.⁹ Thus, the purpose of this randomized controlled trial (RCT) is to follow the ICF guidelines and therefore hand function is assessed by means of ARA test to measure the activity level .The body structure and function level of ICF was examined by Hand grip and pinch strength. Stroke impact scale is used to measure the impact of treatment on participation.

Objectives

The study aims to investigate the effectiveness of 6 weeks of two-channel functional electrical stimulation assisted hand training along with Task Oriented Training and Modified Constraint Induced Movement Therapy on the restoration of hand function in subacute stroke patients.

Methods: Participants, interventions and outcomes

Study setting and ethical clearance

The present study is a randomised controlled threearmed parallel design recruiting 30 individuals with upper-limb motor impairment after stroke. Participants were recruited after discharge from hospital and up to 6 months post-stroke. The study was carried out neurological physiotherapy OPD of the institute. The ethical approval for the study was taken from the Ethical committee of the RIMT institute.

Eligibility criteria

Participants were included in this study if they:

· are unilateral /first time ischemic stroke /right or left

Between 6 weeks and 6 months post stroke

• Age group between 40-75 years

• MMSE more than 23, Modified Ashworth scale score >1 and <3.

• Voluntary extension of wrist and fingers of at least 10 degrees from the resting position. Functional level (FMA-UE score >22 to 58).

• Brunnstrom stage of motor recovery of 2 to 5.

Participants were included in this study if they:

• are above 75 years of age

· Wrist and/or finger contracture or joint stiffness

Presence of implanted electronic devices, epilepsy, respiratory insufficiency, pregnancy, peripheral neuropathies, cutaneous ulcers at the stimulation zone.

· Brunnstrom stage of motor recovery of 1

· Neuropsychiatric disorder, pain in wrist and hand

Recruitment

The subjects who fulfilled the inclusion and exclusion criteria and written informed consent, were randomly assigned one of the three groups .To reduce selection bias effect model of random allocation sequentially numbered opaque sealed envelope (SNOSE) was used. Patients entered into either the intervention group or the control group based on the study group allocation

Interventions

Subjects were informed about the study and a written informed consent was taken . The duration of treatment session was 90 min which included FES (30 min) , mCIMT (30 min) or TOT (30 min) and conventional physiotherapy (30 min) treatment for 5 days a week for 6 weeks .

In Control Group (FES with Conventional Physiotherapy)

Subjects were treated with a combination therapy of conventional physiotherapy and functional electrical stimulation for a total duration of 60 minutes. FES was applied on the wrist extensors of affected upper limb for 30 min. The subject was instructed to perform task specific grasping and releasing of a half-litre bottle. Rest period was given for every 15 repetitions. Subjects was treated with a conventional physiotherapy for 30 mins Conventional exercises included are Range of motion exercises , gait training , and cycling¹⁰

In Experiment Group A (FES with TOT)

Subjects were treated with a combination therapy of task oriented therapy (30 min), functional electrical stimulation, consisting of two tasks (30 min) and conventional therapy (30 min), for a total duration of 90 minutes. The task-oriented training was bilateral arm training which included eating (using a cup and spoon), dressing (wearing and taking off a kurta, tying turban), personal hygiene (using a towel, combing, tooth brushing), and standing up and sitting down (standing up from and sitting down on a chair,car).The treatment protocol was made according to the Indian culture and occupational habits for Indian stroke population. The training was carried out for 30 min per day for 5 days per week for 6 weeks.¹¹

In Experiment Group B (FES with mCIMT)

Subjects were treated with a combination therapy of Modified constraint movement therapy (30 min), functional electrical stimulation (30 min) and conventional therapy (30 min), for a total duration of 90 minutes.

Shaping and adaptive and repetitive task practice techniques will be used during the training sessions. Therapy consists of gross arm movement, grasp/grip and in hand manipulation will concentrate on the affected limb during the 6-week period, the patients' unaffected hands and wrists were placed in mitts with self-adhesive (Velcro) straps every weekday for 6 hours identified as a time of frequent arm use. ¹²The training was carried out for 30 min per day for 5 days per week for 6 weeks.

Participant received 30 training sessions, each 1.5 hour long, with a physiotherapist over 6 weeks to give a total of 45 hours of training time per participant.

Outcomes

Primary Outcome Measures included the activity level of ICF Hand function which was assessed by means of Action research arm (ARA) test. Secondary Outcome Measures included the body structure and function level of ICF which was examined by Hand grip and pinch strength by dynamometer three times and the mean of each value was scaled in kilogram.¹³⁻¹⁵ Stroke impact scale was used to measure the impact of treatment on participation sub part of ICF. The participants underwent clinical evaluation of ARAT, Grasp and Pinch Strength and SIS before treatment and at 3wk and 6 week after treatment to evaluate the difference between groups

Statistical Methods and Results

Sample characteristics

The data was analyzed by SPSS Version 20.0. Normality of the collected data was analyzed with Shapiro Wilk test .Normally distributed continuous variable were summarized as mean and standard deviation. Repeated measure ANOVA was used to establish the statistical significance among baseline, 3wk and 6 wk. P value ≤ 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

The demographic and clinical features of the 30 patients with post-treatment evaluation are shown in Table 1. The mean age of the subjects at the baseline visit was $59.17(\pm 12.54)$ years and mean time since stroke of $6.07(\pm 3.07)$ months. Males predominated in all the groups, and ischemic stroke was the most common type.

Demographic dimensions	FES-mCIMT gp	FES-TOT gp	FES-CTRL gp
Age	55	53.8	68.7
Sex	M>F(2)	М	M>F(3)
Onset of stroke	7	5.5	5.9
Dominance	Rt>Lt	Right	Rt>Lt
Side of stroke	5 Lt,5Rt	5 Lt,5Rt	6Rt,4Lt
Type of stroke	Hemorrhagic& Ischemic	Hemorrhagic& Ischemic	Hemorrhagic& Ischemic
No. of subjects	10	10	10

Table1: Demographic characteristics of sample

The sample was compared for outcome measures- ARA test, SIS test and Grip Strength on baseline with 3wk and 6 wk post intervention variable using repeated measure ANOVA to establish the statistical significance. P value ≤ 0.05 was considered as statistically significant

Outcome measures	Groups	то	T1	T2	P -value
	FES-mCIMT	22.5(±15.2)	25.6(±15.44)	30.7(±16.33)	.000
ARA	FES-TOT	34.3(±9.7)	39.6(±10.0)	45.9(±9.89)	.000
	FES-CTRL	28.7(±16.35) 31.1(±15.9)		34.2(±16.4)	.000
SIS	FES-mCIMT	38.61(±17.34)	40.25(±17.7)	42.36(±19.06)	.000
	FES-TOT 44.12(±13.51)		50.02(±13.90)	55.14(±13.00)	.000
	FES-CTRL	38.58(±13.57)	42.0(±14.91)	44.10(±15.42)	.000
	FES-mCIMT	4.71(±5.99)	6.75(±6.6)	9.56(±7.5)	.008
Grip Strength	FES-TOT	14.96(±11.07)	17.43(±10.55)	20.58(±10.56)	.001
	FES-CTRL	6.25(±5.61)	7.34(±5.36)	9.47(±5.31)	.001

Table2; Comparison of outcomes between Baseline, Post intervention 3 and 6 week (T0,T1 and T2)

p-value is significant at<.05

The sample was then compared between the 3 groups for outcome measures- ARA test, SIS test and Grip Strength using one way ANOVA to establish the statistical significance. P value ≤ 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

ARA	P-value	SIS	P-value	Grip strength	P-value
Baseline(T0)	.111	Baseline(T0)	.633	Baseline(T0)	.016*
PI -3Wk(T1)	.000*	PI -3Wk(T1)	.323 PI -3Wk(T1)		.008*
PI -6Wk(T2)	.000*	PI -6Wk(T2)	.194	PI -6Wk(T2)	.006*

Table3: Comparison of outcomes between the three groups

PI:Post intervention,*p- value is significant at <.05

There was statistical significance(p<.05) between the groups for ARA and Grip strength outcome measures, but no improvement was seen in SIS score. ARA showed statistical significance (p=.000) and Grip strength showed significant improvement (p=.006). It was found that subjects in both experimental groups(FESmCIMT,FES-TOT) showed more improvement in ARA score and grip strength (lateral pinch and three jaw chuck pinch) as compared to control group (FES-CTRL).

Discussion

The study showed that all the three groups had significant improvement in hand function, the proportion of clinically meaningful improved subjects, denoted as an improvement of 5 points or more on the ARA test. The mean difference between TO and T3 for ARA outcome was found 8.2 points in the FES-mCIMT group (3.2 points higher than MCID),11.6 points in the FES-TOT group(6.6 points higher than MCID) and 5.5 points in FES-CTRL group(.5 points higher than MCID).

These finding are in accordance with review of literature done on the influence of FES on hand motor recovery in persons after stroke. The general conclusion is that , while these are indication of benefit for hand function, strong evidence is still missing especially when compared to other valid therapies such as TOT and mCIMT, used in the present study¹⁶⁻¹⁸(Nudo et al.,2001;Pomeroy et al.,2006; Quandt & Hummel,2014)

			FES-Mcimt(n=10)	FES-TOT (n=10)	FES-CTRL(n=10)
ARA (0-57) T2 (Post score)		<10 points	1	0	2
	T0 (Pre score)	<20 points	3	1	1
		>20 points	6	9	7
		<15 points	0	0	1
	T2 (Post score)	15-30 points	4	1	2
		30-57 points	6	9	7

Table 4: Number of Improved Patients T0-T2 (Pre-Post Treatment)

Further, while at baseline FES-mCIMT group with a median Pre assessment ARAT score of 28.5 (FES-mCIMT), 38.5(FES-TOT),15.5 (FES-CTRL) can be described as having good arm and limited hand capacity as classified by Nijland et al.,2010, and the post assessment the ARA score of 42.50(FES-mCIMT), 44.50(FES-TOT),23.50 (FES-CTRL) indicating that from being a group with limited hand capacity they had arrived at being a good arm-hand capacity group.

There was also a significant reduction in hand deficit in three groups as denoted by the grip strength with a change in group median score from 2.26 points to 9.5 points in (FES-mCIMT), 14.74 points to 23.12 in (FES-TOT),2.26 points to 6.12 (FES-CTRL) There was thus a trend for bigger change in favor of the (FES-mCIMT) and(FES-TOT), group indicating that adding mCIMT and TOT to a conventional protocol may have greater effect at the neuromotor level of arm and hand function than usual care.

Subacute patients are, however, more likely to have an improvement in response to whichever treatment, due also to concomitant spontaneous recovery ¹⁹⁻²⁰(Langhorne, Coupar & Pollock ,2009; Veerbeek et al.,2014). In the present study there appeared to be a further beneficial effect of adding electrical stimulation to the treatment protocol for the subacute participants, with approximately 21% (N = 7/30) improving 12 points or more on the ARAT ,73.3% (N = 22/30) improving 5 points or more on the ARAT and 0.3%(N = 1/30) scored less than 5 points on ARAT scale.

Conclusion

It can be concluded that training with FES along with Constraint Induced Movement therapy, Task oriented therapy and Conventional therapy showed clinical improvement in hand function in sub acute stroke .It was also found that mCIMT and TOT is effective in improving Hand function and grip strength as compared to conventional hand rehabilitation. However studies with large sample size are required for generalizability of the finding based on statistical analysis.

The outcomes of this study will help us the design of a fully powered randomized controlled trial to evaluate the effectiveness of FES with traditional hand rehabilitation techniques in improving power grip and finger individuation. As it is found to be effective, potentially, we might get an ideal hand rehabilitation technique to be used along with FES for improving motor hand function in stroke.

Conflict of Interest : Nil.

Funding: Not Funded

Ethics approval and consent to participate :

Ethical approval for the study was taken from the Institutional Ethical Committee (IEC) RIMT university,Mandi Gobindgarh,Punjab-147301.Ref /No/ Phd/Gen/2019/21 dated 10 May 2019.

The consent form includes information sheet and certificate of consent for participation and publication of data will be filled by the participants.

References

- Kamper DG & Rymer WZ .Impairment of voluntary control of finger motion following stroke: role of inappropriate muscle coactivation. Muscle Nerve 2001;24:673–681
- 2 Lang CE & Schieber MH .Differential impairment of individuated fi nger movements in humans after damage to the motor cortex or the corticospinal tract. J Neurophysiol 2003;90:1160–1170
- 3 Colebatch J.G. & Gandevia S.C. The Distribution of Muscular Weakness in Upper Motor Neuron Lesions Affecting the Arm. Brain. 1989;112, 749-763.
- 4 Kamper DG, Harvey RL, Suresh S, et al. Relative contributions of neural mechanisms versus muscle mechanics in promoting fi nger extension defi cits following stroke. Muscle Nerve. 2003; 28:309–318
- 5 Li S, Latash ML&Yue GH.The effects of stroke and age on fi nger interaction in multi-fi nger force production tasks. Clin Neurophysiol Off J Int Fed Clin Neurophysiol . 2003;114:1646–1655
- 6 Heller A, Wade DT & Wood VA. Arm function after stroke: measurement and recovery over the fi rst three months. J Neurol Neurosurg Psychiatry . 1987;50:714–719
- Sunderland A, Tinson D, Bradley L, etal .Arm function after stroke. An evaluation of grip strength as a measure of recovery and a prognostic indicator. J Neurol Neurosurg Psychiatry. 1989; 52:1267– 1272
- 8 WHO. International Classification of Functioning, Disability and Health. Geneva: World Health Organization (WHO); 2001.
- 9 Jette AM. Toward a common language for function, disability, and health. Phys Ther. 2006;86:726–734.
- 10 Duncan P.W., Studenski S., Richards L.,

etal Randomized clinical trial of therapeutic exercise in subacute stroke. *Stroke*. 2003;34 9, 2173-80.

- Arya, Kamal & Verma, etal. Meaningful Task-Specific Training (MTST) for Stroke Rehabilitation: A Randomized Controlled Trial. Topics in stroke rehabilitation. 2012; 19. 193-211.
- 12 Nijland R, Van Wegen EEH& Van der Krogt, H. Characterizing the protocol for early modified constraint-induced movement therapy in the EXPLICIT-stroke trial. Physiother Res Int. 2013;18:1-15.
- 13 Yozbatiran, Nuray & Der-Yeghiaian, etal. A Standardized Approach to Performing the Action Research Arm Test. Neurorehabilitation and neural repair. 2007;22. 78-90.
- 14 Aguiar L. T., Martins J. C., Lara E. M etal Dynamometry for the measurement of grip, pinch, and trunk muscles strength in subjects with subacute stroke: reliability and different number of trials. Brazilian journal of physical therapy.2016;20(5), 395–404.

- Mulder, Marijn & Nijland etal .Stroke Impact Scale.Journal of physiotherapy. 2016 62. 2(2016):117
- 16 Nudo RJ, Plautz EJ, Frost SB. Role of adaptive plasticity in recovery of function after damage to motor cortex. Muscle & nerve. 2001 Aug 1; 24(8):1000±19.
- 17 Pomeroy VM, King L, Pollock A, Baily-Hallam A, Langhorne P. Electrostimulation for promoting recovery of movement or functional ability after stroke. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. 2006(2).
- 18 Quandt F, Hummel FC. The influence of functional electrical stimulation on hand motor recovery in stroke patients: a review. Experimental & translational stroke medicine. 2014 Aug 21; 6(1):9.
- 19 Veerbeek JM, van Wegen E, van Peppen R, van der Wees PJ, Hendriks E, Rietberg M, et al. What is the evidence for physical therapy poststroke? A systematic review and meta-analysis. PloS one.2014;4; 9(2):e87987.
- 20 Langhorne P, Coupar F, Pollock A. Motor recovery after stroke: a systematic review. The Lancet Neurology.2009 Aug 31; 8(8):741±54.

Classifications of Adolescent Idiopathic Scoliosis in Relation to Physiotherapy

Naveen Kumar Balne¹, S. Afshan Jabeen², Neeharika Mathukumalli³

¹Faculty of Physiotherapy, NIMS, ²Additional Professor, Neurology, Nims, ³Assistant Professor, Neurology, NIMS)

Abstract

Idiopathic scoliosis is a complex abnormal lateral curvature of the spine more than 10°, with no evidence of underlying physical or radiographic pathology. A normally aligned spine is stable platform for performing static and dynamic activities of life with appropriate recruitment of spinal muscles. Stability and alignment of vertebrae in spatial planes will influence selection of biomechanical strategies for functional movements and activities of daily living. There are different classifications and schools of scoliosis specific physiotherapy like Side shift, Dobomed and BSPTS, SEAS. There is a need to understand different classifications used in different approaches. This review article is intended to provide overview of different classification systems to physiotherapists so that they can integrate with the views of surgeon in relation to spinal surgery, interact and work with orthotists in brace design and to plan corrective program for prevention of further progression or maintenance or correction of scoliosis.

Key words: Scoliosis, Rigo classification, Lyon classification, Side shift spinal curves classification. PSSE, Physiotherapy scoliosis.

Introduction and background

Idiopathic scoliosis is a complex abnormal lateral curvature of the spine with no evidence of underlying physical or radiographic pathology. As per scoliosis research society "Scoliosis is lateral deviation of the normal vertical line of the spine which, when measured by x-ray, is greater than 10°". The term "scoliosis" derived from the ancient Greek word "skolios" meaning "curved, crooked". Hippocrates first introduced the terms kyphosis and scoliosis¹ and explained about diagnosis and treatment including axial traction as corrective method. It can be structural and non-structural (functional). Subjects with structural scoliosis present with morphological changes of the vertebral bodies with rotation in three spatial planes, where as in functional scoliosis, spine appears to have deviations which are

Corresponding autor:

Naveen Kumar Balne, M.P.T. Neurology College of Physiotherapy, Nizam's Institute of Medical Sciences - NIMS, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082, Telangana, India. E-mail: naveenkumar.balne@yahoo.com reversible and structurally normal. Overall prevalence of scoliosis is 0.47–5.2. Approximately 80% diagnosed scoliosis cases are idiopathic. A normally aligned spine is stable platform for performing static and dynamic activities of life with appropriate recruitment of spinal muscles. Stability and alignment of vertebrae in spatial planes will influence selection of biomechanical strategies for functional movements and activities of daily living.

Physiotherapists are actively involved in nonsurgical management of scoliosis. As the curve progresses vertebrae may undergo modification in its morphology in three spatial planes and creates deviations in spinal alignment leading to adaptations in recruitment of Para spinal muscles and postural reflex mechanism². Galen described scoliosis, lordosis and kyphosis along with aetiology and its implications. Galen used similar methods of management given by Hippocrates³. If untreated persons may experience curve progression, deformity, hump in the back, progressive functional limitations because of limited mobility or restricted mobility in spine, pain in back, shoulders, neck, buttock and back. Severe curves may cause lung function variations, neural symptoms because of nerve pinching in the leg, painful menstruation because of a secondary pelvic tilt, decreased quality of life, and cosmetic deformity, constipation due to tightened organs from curvature, depression and handicap. Progressive functional limitations may result in secondary effect on limbs and pelvis. Cosmetic variation in posture and visible disability might create impact on impact on social involvement, depression and handicap. Hence stake holders of scoliosis are interested in interventions for prevention of further progression or maintenance or correction of curve as early as possible. As per available literature, there are different schools of scoliosis specific physiotherapy methods ⁴ and different classification systems.

This article is intended to provide overview of Ponseti& Friedman, Lyon, King and Moe, Lenke, Dr. Rigo and side shift classification systems which are more relevant while planning physiotherapy management in relation to adolescent idiopathic scoliosis.

Classification systems:

First classification on adolescent idiopathic scoliosis is given by Schulthess, Different classifications are given by others after schulthess, they are James (1954)nine types of curves, John Cobb(1948), Ponseti and friedman(1950), Harrington (1970s), Goldstein& Waugh(1973), King & Moe (1983), land mark classification scoliosis Lenke classification (2001), Rigo classification system(2010), side shift (2013).

Authors have given their classification systems mainly for various reasons, for example to document and describe the curvature, to expect pattern of progression, to choose surgical procedure and to plan curve specific exercise program by understanding the curve mechanics. Aauthors also classified spine curves based on 2 dimensional and 3Dimensional views for surgical fusion, spinal implant density selection, or correction manoeuvres, bracing and planning of individual curve specific physiotherapy planning.

Schulthess⁵ classification of curves: Curves are classified according to location of spine deformity. They are Lumbar, Thoracolumbar, Thoracic, and Cervicothoracic and combined curves.

Based on the age: structural scoliosis may be categorised as infantile, juvenile and adult scoliosis^{6,7}. As per the age of onset this condition is categorized as Infantile idiopathic scoliosis (children: 0 to 3 years), Juvenile idiopathic scoliosis (children: 4 to 10 years), Adolescent idiopathic scoliosis (adolescents: 11 to 18 years) and Adult idiopathic scoliosis (patients older than 18 years).

Fundamental curve patterns of AIS are: 1. single major curves, 2. Double major curves and 3. Triple major curves⁸.

1. Single major curves means only one curve is located at any one region of spine. Single major curves are located at Thoracic or Thoraco lumbar or lumbar region of spine.

2. Double major curve means two curves are located on spine , common patterns are Double thoracic curves, double thoracic and lumbar curves

3. Triple major curves: Three curves are visible on spine i.e Double thoracic and Thoraco –Lumbar curves.

Ponseti and Friedman classification:

This classification was given based on location of curve in 1950 by Ponseti and Friedman. With knowledge of this classification therapist can use similar terminology and identify curve location. Curves are classified into 6 types.

1. Single major lumbar curve: Curve is in lumbar region with apex at L1-2.

2. Single major thoracolumbar curve: located between T6-7 to L1-2, apex at T12 or L1.

3. Combined thoracic and lumbar curves (double major curves): this type of curve not visible because they are balanced. Thoracic curves between T5-6 or T10-11 with apex at T7-8, Lumbar curve between T10-11 to L3-4 with apex at L1-2.

4. Single major thoracic curve: seen mostly between T5-6 to T11-12 with apex at T8-9. This curve produces the rib prominence on the convex side.

5. Single major high thoracic curve: curve may extend from C7 or T1 to T4 or T5, apex may be at T3.

6. Double major thoracic curve: Thoracic region shows two curves, upper curve may extend from T1 to T5 or T6, lower curve may extend from T6 to T12 or L1.

Lyon Approach: Lyon method is one of the oldest method which combines scoliosis specific physiotherapy with bracing. Lyon was a place in France to have first orthopedic Physiotherapy center established by Dr. Gabriel Pravez. A non-surgical method to treat scoliosis and later on Lyon brace was developed by Dr. Pierre Stagnara. The head of Lyon school of physiotherapy for scoliosis is Dr. Jean Claude de Mauroy, Head of Orthopaedic medicine. Classification used in Lyon approach considers vicious cycle hypothesis of pathogenesis in development of scoliosis.

Vicious cycle hypothesis of pathogenesis: International federated body on scoliosis aetiology (IBSE) introduced EFG (electronic focus group) for an online Delphi discussion for widening the understanding of scoliosis aetiology⁹. This discussion lead to assumption that a pre-existing scoliosis curve or any initial triggering event initiates mechanicallymodulated alteration of vertebral body growth that in turn causes worsening of the scoliosis, while other structures are normal anatomically and physiologically. Initially they thought about only vertebral body and not the disc. Later on Dr. Stokes incorporated vertebral discs also and stated that growth modulation process in the vertebral body can be seen as the biologic phenomenon of mechanotransduction caused by mechanical strain on chondrocyte metabolism.

Lyon approach classification:

This approach considers following classification to

- 1. Primary lumbar curve greater than the compensatory thoracic curve
- 2. Primary thoracic curve with compensatory lumbar curve
- 3. Short pure thoracic curve
- 4. Long C-shaped thoracolumbar curve
- Double thoracic curve with extension into cervical spine and compensatory lumbar curve

determine the treatment⁴. 1. Chaotic scoliosis 2. Linear scoliosis. Lyon approach also use classifications provided by Ponseti and The Lenke system. Lyon method utilises physiotherapy as preparation for effective bracing and corrective program within brace.

1. Chaotic scoliosis: This type is dynamic, true, structural, asymmetrical spinal curve. It is difficult to predict the growth of curve as it is sensitive and influenced by various nervous system inputs. Based on asymmetrical load on spine, nervous system is always engaged in continuous adaptive and corrective activity when the curve is below 20°. This type of curves are approximately seen in 2.5% of adolescents with curves <20° Cobb angle. Growth of this type of curves is unpredictable.

2. Linear scoliosis: Linear progression of spinal curve was described by Duval Beaupère in cases with poliomyelitis. A triggering event (example longitudinal growth of apical ribs on one side in adolescent right thoracic convexity in girls) initiates asymmetrical loading of vertebral segments thereby vicious cycle of curve progression. This type of curves might have asymmetric growth and progression in Cobb angle.

King and Moe classification:

This classification was developed with experience of surgical treatment of scoliosis with Harrington instrument fixation. This classification helps the surgeons to determine area of fusion. They explained concepts like stable vertebra, structural and compensatory curves. King and Moe classified spinal curvatures into 5 types¹⁰ (Figure 1).



Figure 1: King and Moe classification

Primary lumbar curve greater than the compensatory thoracic curve

3. Primary thoracic curve with compensatory lumbar curve

- 4. Short pure thoracic curve
- 5. Long C-shaped thoracolumbar curve

6. Double thoracic curve with extension into cervical spine and compensatory lumbar curve

Lenke classification:

This classification widely used by spinal surgeons for performing selective fusions. This "Lenke classification (2001)" is considered as gold standard, this is based on radiographic assessment. Postero anterior (PA), Latero lateral (LL) and PA lateral bending X rays of spine are taken into consideration for the classification purpose. Based on this classification s pinal curves are categorised into 6 types¹¹. These curves are further differentiated into subtypesA, B and C based on Lumbar Modifier and Thoracic -(Hypo) or N (Normal) or + (Hyper) kyphosis based on thoracic sagittal modifier¹² (Figure 2).



Figure 2 Lenke classification

Rigo classification system:

This classification was developed by Dr. Manuel d Rigo to correlate with scoliosis specific treatment and brace design. He has emphasised specific principles of correction for brace design, fabrication. He has combined radiological as well as clinical criteria while developing this classification¹³. Cheneau correction principles are redefined by Dr. Rigo using biomechanical principles and known as Rigo system Cheneau (RSC) brace. This classification helps in planning the brace design and treatment for working on spinal curves in coronal and transverse plane while preserving the sagittal profile. Classification is based on 1. Clinical observation and 2.Radiological correlation. Basic categories of Rigo classification are Group-1 (sagittal plane deformities), Group-2 and Group 1-2 (coronal plane deformities).

A direct dorsal and forward bending view clinical observation of group 2, group 1-2 curves allows clinical diagnosis of curves into 4 basic types: 1. three curve (3C), 2. Four curve (4C), 3. Non three –Non four (N3N4) and 4. Single lumbar or thoracolumbar. These four basic types are further sub divided based on radiological criteria. Three curve types are subdivided into A1, A2 &A3, four curve type into B1, B2, Non three Non four type into C1, C2 and single lumbar into E1 thoraco lumbar into E2. Upper thoracic structural curve presence is known as D modifier. This D modifier can be seen in A, B and C type curves(Figure 3).





Figure 3 Dr.Rigo classification

Side shift classification:

- 1. Type I (Very flexible curve)
- 2. Type II (Stiff -moderately flexible curve),
- 3. Type III (Rigid curve- severe structural curve)



Figure 4 Side shift Classification

This approach was developed by Mrs Min Mehta¹⁴. This is simplest form of categorisation of spinal side shift. Three types of side shifts were given in scoliosis (1) (figure 4).

- 1. Type I (Very flexible curve)
- 2. Type II (Stiff -moderately flexible curve),
- 3. Type III (Rigid curve- severe structural curve)

Type I: A curve pattern where shifting of the trunk beyond the mid coronal line to the opposite side of the curve.

Type II A curve pattern where shifting of the trunk is possible only up to the mid coronal line aligning the spine with pelvis. Limited derotation of vertebrae.

Type III vertebral derotation is not possible, curve cannot come to even mid coronal line during side shift. Remains shifted to convex side.

Discussion and conclusion:

Classification systems helps physiotherapists to understand the location, type, pattern of curve to plan curve specific corrective program. These classification systems are useful for 1. Surgical decision making for surgeons 2. Curve specific corrective exercise program for physiotherapists and 3.Bracing for orthotists.

Knowledge of all these classification systems like Ponseti& Friedman, Lyon, King and Moe, Lenke, Dr. Rigo and side shift, enables physiotherapists to align themselves and to integrate with the views of surgeon in relation to spinal surgery, interact and work with orthotists in brace design and work efficiently with individuals with scoliosis, to plan corrective program for prevention of further progression or maintenance or correction of scoliosis.

Ethical Clearance: NIEC (Nizam's Institute of Medical Sciences

Institutional Ethical Committee, 36th ESGS No 793/2019, EC/NIMS/2314/2019.

Source of Funding: Self

Conflict of Interest: Nil

References

- Elias S Vasiliadis TBGAK. Historical overview of spinal deformities in ancient Greece. Scoliosis. 2009 February 25; 4(6).
- 2. Chair Larry Lenke MGo3DCTC. Scoliosis research society. [Online].; 2000 [cited 2018 February 22.
- Negrini S DSAAea. 2016 SOSORT guidelines: orthopaedic and rehabilitation treatment of idiopathic scoliosis during growth. Scoliosis Spinal Disorders. 2018 January 10; 13(3).
- Hagit Berdishevsky VALJBSMRALAHRMBAMTBJCd MaJD Physiotherapy scoliosis-specific exercises - a comprehensive review of seven major schools. Scoliosis and spinal disorders. 2016 august 4; 11(20).
- Menon KV. Classification Systems in Adolescent Idiopathic Scoliosis revisited: Is a Threedimensional Classification Needed? Indian Spine Journal. 2020 Jul 21; 3: p. 143-50.
- Lynn C. GM. scoliosis, Pediatric Clinical Advisor.
 2nd ed. Lynn C. Garfunkel JMKCC, editor.: Mosby; 2007.
- Christopher J. Yoo NR. Radiology Secrets Plus, Chapter 38 - Nontraumatic Spine Plain Films and Degenerative Disease. 3rd ed. E. Scott Pretorius JAS, editor.: Mosby.; 2011.

- Balsano M. NS. Natural Course and Classification of Idiopathic Scoliosis Meyer B. RMSS, editor.: Springer, Cham; 2019.
- 9. Stokes IA BRDP. "Biomechanical spinal growth modulation and progressive adolescent scoliosis--a test of the 'vicious cycle' pathogenetic hypothesis: summary of an electronic focus group debate of the IBSE.". Scoliosis. 2006 October 18; 1(16).
- Ovadia D. Classification of adolescent idiopathic scoliosis (AIS). Journal of children's orthopaedics. 2013 February; 7(1): p. 25-28.
- 11. wrence G Lenke CCE2KHB. "The Lenke classification of adolescent idiopathic scoliosis: how it organizes curve patterns as a template to perform selective fusions of the spine.". Spine. 2003 October 15; 28(20).
- Casey Slattery BKVMM. Classifications in Brief: The Lenke Classification for Adolescent Idiopathic Scoliosis. Clinical orthopaedics and related research. 2018; 476(11).
- Manuel D Rigo caMVaDG. A specific scoliosis classification correlating with brace treatment: description and reliability. Scoliosis. 2010 January 27; 5(1).
- 14. Betts T. : The development of a classification system for the treatment of scoliosis by the side shift. Scoliosis. 2014 may; 9(suppl 1).

Purposeful Occupational Therapy Intervention for Behavioural Competencies in Preschoolers for Transit from Home to School: A Randomized Controlled Study

Neha Negi¹, Shubha Arora²

¹Occupational Therapist (MOT Pediatrics), ²Assistant Professor, Department of Rehabilitation Sciences, Jamia Hamdard, New Delhi, India

Abstract

Background: Transits are when children move from one activity to another. Everyday transits include arriving at an educational setting from home, moving from dinner to playtime, finishing playtime and cleaning up, brushing teeth and then taking a bath, and going from bath time to bedtime. Transits can be difficult for some parents, particularly when taking their young children out into the community, picking them up from educational settings, or moving between activities and routines at home. For some children, transits may be frustrating or may provoke anxiety, and it may lead to challenging behaviours.

Objective: The purpose of this study was to assess the impact of occupational therapy intervention on inappropriate behaviour of a child in preschool, while transit.

Study Design: Experimental, randomized, intervention-controlled study design was chosen for the research.

Methods: Preschoolers were divided into two groups based on randomized controlled study design. Control group were given the usual classes as provided by the school, where as experimental group were provided with occupational therapy, and early intervention program. They were assessed using the Preschool Behaviour Questionnaire (PBQ). Behaviours, attitude, signs, languages and amount and type of intermediation of the pre-schoolers and their activities needed for learning, were observed during focused group playing tasks and evaluated by the PBQ.

Result: Sixteen pre-schoolers in control and sixteen pre-schoolers in experimental group were assigned (8 females and 24 males). According to the result the experimental pre-post analysis (P=0.00; 95%CI: 18.96, 22.90) were statistically lower than the control group pre-post analysis (P=0.201; 95%CI: -8.23,35.98) and showed a significant improvement in behaviour of a pre-schooler while transit from home to school which was the principal focus area of occupational therapy.

Conclusion: The study reflected significant improvement in behavioural and emotional issues in preschoolers with occupational therapy and early intervention program.

Key Words: Behaviour, Occupational Therapy, Preschool, Transit

Introduction

What greater stress does a child experience than separating from the adults who love and care for them

Address of Corresponding author: Neha Negi Radha Kunj, Brij Vihar Ghaziabad, UP 201011 M: 8826747909 to preschool/kindergarten? The preschool years refer to the period of life between the ages of 3 to 5 years. The transit from home to school environment in initial phase makes the child stressed and enhances his/ her emotional and behaviour issues like restlessness, irritability, fussy nature and many more. Transit planning makes these changes narrow and child adaptability to unfamiliar environment.¹ The role of occupational therapy practitioners in the school system is evolving. Preventive strategies in the school systems are addressed through mechanisms such as early intervening services (EIS) and response to intervention. An individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) allows occupational therapy practitioners to consult with and sometimes provide direct services for students in general education; especially for students struggling with learning or behaviour. This expanded role for practitioners fosters both a consultative and collaborative environment between practitioners and teachers. Occupational therapists have served this group through a variety of programs, in medical and educational settings, for many years.² Intervention for planning for transit factors and provides tips and ideas to parents, teachers, and providers on smoothing the preschool and kindergarten transit process for our children, thus creating a positive experience for our children and setting them up for high.

The study was to assess the impact of occupational therapy intervention on emotional and behaviour issues of a pre-schoolers while transition and determine the effectiveness of occupational therapy intervention on behaviour of children whilst transit activities.^{3,4}

Method

Thirty-two pre-schoolers were selected for the study based on the randomised control trial. The sample was drawn from Bal Bharti Public School. Pre-schoolers of age range 3 to 5 years (both male and females) were assessed and teachers filled the Preschool Behavior Questionnaire (PBQ) scale. After assessment those preschoolers who scored more than 17 percentile rank in scale, were recruited in the study. Written permission was obtained from the head of the primary school to conduct convenient randomized intervention study. Verbal consent and written informed consent were obtained from every pre-schooler's guardians and teachers, who picked to participate in the study. The study was conducted adhering to the principles of 'Declaration of Helsinki'.

The Preschool Behaviour Questionnaire

The Preschool Behavior Questionnaire⁵ is a screening tool to identify preschoolers who show symptoms, or constellations of symptoms, that suggest the emergence of emotional and behavioral issues. The PBQ is designed to be a short screening instrument. This instrument not only shows validity in discriminating between normal and deviant populations, but also both inter-rater and testretest reliability. To be applicable to all preschoolers, it seemed the scale should be standardized across a range of preschoolers, age three to six. The PBQ is a modification of items in the Children's Behavior Questionnaire, a checklist standardized by Michael Rutter in England in 1967 for use with elementary school-aged boys. The scale has four dimensions of emotional and behavior disturbances; total 'behavior disturbed', scale 1 'hostileaggression', scale 2 'anxious' and scale 3 'hyperactivedistractible'. It has 30 items to score marked as doesn't apply scored as '0', applies sometimes scored as '1' and certainly applies scored as '2'. Usually, the PBQ is used by professionals who observe a child for a period ranging from 1-2 months.

First, teacher rated the children using the PBQ after a minimum contact of 3 months secondly, the questionnaire was randomly ordered to control for response bias regarding the expected development of behavioural and emotional issues. Third, children aged 5 and above were not included as per exclusion criteria.

Procedure

Pre-schoolers were recruited for the study as per the inclusion criteria (pre-schoolers(age 3-5 years with poor emotional and behavioural issues documented in school files and who scored more than 17 percentile rank) and exclusion criteria (pre-schoolers with visual or hearing loss and mentally retarded due to less percentile rank). They were divided into two groups experimental group (n=16) and control group (n=16). Experimental group was given early intervention protocol such as Fine and gross motor activities, brain game, self help skills ⁶ and social skill training⁷ whereas control group continued with the same services provided by the school. Total 12 sessions were offered for 50 minutes/session. After completion of 12 sessions, data were analyzed of both the groups, based on PBQ scores.

Data Analysis

SPSS statistical software was used of 14.0 version and paired *t*-test was used for analysis for within group analysis for control and experimental behaviour scores and unpaired *t*-test was used for analysis of behaviour scores between the groups. Signicifance level value was set at P < 0.05 at the outset of the study and 95%CI values were computed.

Results

Children in the experimental group were predicted to have significantly higher levels of aggressiveness and distractibility than children in the control group. Mean scores and standard deviations for the PBQ are presented in Table 1 and Table 2. Mean scores across groups are presented graphically in Figure 2. The PBQ scores in the domains of total behaviour disturbed, hostile aggressive, anxious and hyperactive distractible were compared using a paired t-test to determine group differences. Results indicated significant differences within group analysis ($p \le .000, 95\%$ CI= 18.96, 22.90) in all domains of the PBQ (Table 1). Secondary analysis comparing between the groups indicated that children in the experimental group had significantly higher levels of total behaviour disturbed and significantly higher scores on all subscales of the PBQ than control group ($p \le 0.791$) (Table 2).

Table 1: Comparison of Pre and Post Intervention PBQ Score Analysis in Experimental and Control Group (Within Group Analysis)

Total behavior disturbed	N	PBQ Score Mean ± SD	t	P (2-tailed)	95%CI Lower Limit	95%CI Upper Limit
Experimental group (pre) Experimental group (post)	16	20.9±0.9	22.65	0.000	18.96	22.90
Control group (pre) Control group (post)	16	31.8 ± 41.4	35.98	0.201	-8.23	35.988

PBQ: Preschool behaviour questionnaire

SD: Standard deviation

CI: Confidence interval

Table 2: Comparison of Pre and Post Intervention PBQ Scores in Experimental versus Control Group (Between the Group Analysis)

Total behavior disturbed	N	PBQ Score Mean ± SD	t	P (2-tailed)	95% CI Lower Upper	95%CI Upper Limit
Experimental group (pre) Control group (pre)	16	-2.93±43.48	-2.70	0.791	26.11, 20.23	20.23
Experimental group (post) Control group (post)	16	-10±4.81	-8.30	0.000	-12.56, -7.43	-7.43

Discussion

There is an increasing need to understand the linkage between external (environmental) and internal (individual) factors to understand behavior. Behavioural competencies may contribute to a collective group of early identifiable factors, both within the child and within the environment, which could be used to predict future development of internalizing behaviour disorders, such as anxiousness, hostile aggressive and distractibility across many diagnostic groups. The current study was not predictive in nature, but it demonstrated relationships that lend themselves to future predictive analysis. Although some people may be physiologically predisposed to react to sensations in a certain way (e.g., overresponding to sensation), it will ultimately be a combination of their inherent genetic predisposition and their environmental experiences that determine functional outcomes and potential manifestation of adult and adolescent psychopathology (Kendler & Prescott, 2006). There is still much to learn about intervention for the birth to 3 age group. Social stories were effective in improving coping skills as well as in enabling the strategies application of learned coping skills (performance) during bullying situation.8 Myers (2006) possible interventions to support families and children during the transition process were illustrated with an emphasis on occupational therapists' unique contribution to transition planning. The results of this study suggest that occupational therapists are participating in the transition process through strategies that incorporate both these recommended practices and the evidence-based practices identified in the literature, such as conferring with the receiving therapist to provide information about the child (i.e., current goals, participation in the sending environment), attending transition meetings and IEP meetings, and helping to develop IEPs in both early intervention and preschool. In addition, sensory integration theory suggests that the neural mechanisms of sensory modulation are adaptable (Lane, 2002), so that with direct treatment of the child, sensory reactivity may be diminished, potentially blocking causal pathways leading to the development of more severe psychiatric disorders. Chandler 1975 work suggests that a secure child mother attachment predicts competence in problem solving in toddlerhood and in the peer group in preschool and that activity level in preschoolers predicts activity level at school entry^{9,10}.

Despite these limitations, group differences were found. In addition, p values for mean group differences were generally moderate. This finding suggests that the groups identified in this study differed meaningfully on parameters of interest. Thus, although these results must be considered preliminary, they warrant additional investigation

Conclusion

Intervention was given to experimental group and analysis of the result reflected improvement in experimental group as compared to control group which reflects decrease in behavioural and emotional issues. The study carried out, can be considered a boon from the perspective of occupational therapy. The results show a significant improvement in behaviour of a child which is the principal focus area of occupational therapy. Hence occupational therapy intervention has proved in creating a positive experience for children while transition to school from home and setting them up for high.

In the end, the more we understand the complexity of children involved in treatment, the more effective treatment can be. Consequently, future research should assess both the effectiveness of and client satisfaction with occupational therapy interventions for children with behavioural competencies. Such studies should further consider the impact of total behaviour disturbed in moderating treatment outcomes.

Conflict of Interest- No conflicts in this work.

Source of Funding- Self

Ethical Clearance- Taken from Jamia Hamdard Institutional Ethics Committee

References

- Marina Danckaerts, Edmund J. S. Sonuga-Barke, Tobias Banaschewski, Jan Buitelaar. The quality of life of children with attention deficit/ hyperactivity disorder: a systematic review. Eur Child Adolesc Psychiatry. 2010;19(2):83-105. doi: 10.1007/ s00787-009-0046-3
- 2. Mulligan, Shelley. Classroom strategies used by teachers of students with attention deficit hyperactivity disorder. Phys Occup Ther Pedi 2001; 20:25-44.

- Kristan Harris, Denise Reid. The influence of virtual reality play on children's motivation, Can J. Occup Ther. 2005;7(1):
- Lerch, & Sharp, Steinhausen, Shaw et al. Longitudinal mapping of cortical thickness and clinical outcome in children and adolescents with attention deficit/hyperactivity disorder. Arch Gen Psychiatry.2006;63(5):540-549.
- Behar, Lenore B., The Preschool Behavior Questionnaire, Journal of Abnormal Child Psychology, 5:3 (1977:Sept.) p.265
- Pfeiffer, B., Henry, A., Miller, S., & Witherell, S. The effectiveness of Disc 'O' Sit cushions on attention to task in second-grade students with attention difficulties. Am J Occup Ther. 2008; 62:274-281.
- Schilling, D.L., Washington, K., Billingsley, F.F., & Deitz J, Classroom seating for children with

attention deficit hyperactivity disorder: Therapy balls versus chairs. Am J Occup Ther. 2003; 57:534-541.

- Williams & Shellenberger, Oetter et al. Model of Practice. Brit J Occup Ther September 2007; p.70(9)
- Reynolds and Lane, and Carter, Ben-Sasson, and Briggs-Gowan Sensory Overresponsivity and Anxiety in Typically Developing Children and Children with Autism and Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder: Cause or Coexistence? Am J Occup Ther. 2011; 66:595-603.
- Roseann C. Schaaf, Lucy Jane Miller, Duncan Seawell, Shannon O'Keefe. Children with Disturbances in Sensory Processing: A Pilot Study Examining the Role of the Parasympathetic Nervous System. Am J Occup Ther. 2003;57:442-449.

Effect of Core Stability Exercise in Patients with Neckpain

Nikita Shah¹, Manmitkaur A Gill², Sandhya Kashyapketan Singal³, Mumtajben Payla¹

¹M.P.T. Sports. ²Senior lecturer, M.P.T. Musculoskeletal conditions, Phd Scholar, Gujarat University,
 ³In charge lecturer, M.P.T. Sports, Phd Scholar, Gujarat University. Department of Physiotherapy, Government Spine Institute and Physiotherapy, College, Civil Hospital Campus, Ahmedabad-380016, Gujarat, India

Abstract

Background: Pain is the most common symptom of which the human kind complaints. Neck pain is the second common condition cause of time off work after low back pain. According to 18% of the responders, the cause of their symptoms was unknown. The most frequently reported causes were ascribed to working conditions (29%), tension: stress (29%) and a poor posture (21%). Sitting at work for more than 95% of the working time seems to be a risk factor for neck pain.

Aims and Objectives: To study the effectiveness of conventional physical therapy in patients with neck pain and to study the additive effect of core stability exercises on conventional physical therapy in patients with neck pain.

Materials and Methods: Study included 30 (Thirty) patients with chronic case of non-specific neck pain between age group of 18-40 years. They were divided into 2 groups: Group A (Conventional therapy + Core stability exercises group) included 15 patients and Group B (Conventional therapy group) included 15 patients by random sampling. The patients were treated for a period of 1 month. Pain was assessed by Visual Analogue Scale, neck function was measured by Neck Disability Index and deep neck flexor strength was measured by craniocervical flexion test.

Results: Results showed that there was significant difference in VAS (P < 0.0001), NDI (P=0.002) and deep neck flexor strength (p < 0.0001) between Group A and B.

Conclusion: Core stability exercise along with conventional physiotherapy was found to be more effective in patients with chronic non-specific neck pain. So, these interventions can be applied in clinical setup in combination with conventional treatment for the better and long term improvements.

Keywords: Non specific neck pain, core stability exercise, neck disability index, craniocervical flexion test.

Introduction

Pain from musculoskeletal system is very common in modern sedentary society¹. Neck pain was defined as pain located between the occiput and the third thoracic vertebra. The growing interest in neck pain is mainly linked to the escalating disability burden and compensation costs associated with neck pain related to automobile collisions and occupational injuries². Overall, 66.7% (95% CI; 63.8-69.5) of the subjects reported that they had experienced neck pain during their lifetime and 22.2% (95% CI; 19.7-24.7) suffered from neck pain on the day of the survey. Overall, 58.8% (95% CI, 54.8-62.7) of women and 47.2 (95% CI, 42.4-51.5) of men had experienced neck pain in the previous 6 months³. Many patients come to physiotherapy department with complaint of pain caused by cervical spine dysfunction as neck pain is reportedly affecting 70% of people within their life time⁴. Neck pain is considered as chronic neck pain if it has lasted for more than 3 months⁵. With an increasing sedentary population, especially with reliance on computer technology in the workplace, it is predicted that the prevalence rate of non specific neck pain will continue to rise⁶. Sitting at
work for more than 95% of the working time seems to be a risk factor for neck pain and there is a trend for a positive relation between neck flexion and neck pain⁷. Obviously, what is often viewed as a simple clinical problem can rapidly develop into a complex disorder where physical, psychological, compensation, legal and other societal forces all interact to cause disability². The causes may vary from trauma (especially motor vehicle accidents), infections, tumors, congenital disorders and inflammation. In the large majority of cases, however, no specific underlying pathology can be established and the complaints are labeled as non-specific neck pain. Patients with neck pain had demonstrated greater activation of accessory neck muscles during a repetitive upper limb task compared to asymptomatic controls. Greater activation of the cervical muscles in patients with neck pain may represent an altered pattern of motor control to compensate for reduced activation of painful muscles8. Muscles respond to dysfunction in two ways: by becoming inhibited or by weakness9. If there is pain for whatever reason, these muscles will become inhibited & there will be selective weakness, a decrease in force production and a decrease in tonic stabilizing capacity or endurance capacity of the muscle. In the cervical spine, segmental stability is provided by the deep neck flexors (DNF) particularly in mid range positions. The DNF muscles demonstrate predominately tonic activity whereas sternocleidomastoid primarily functions in torque production⁸. Commonly used physical therapy modalities for non specific neck pain include application of heat and ice, ultrasound, cervical traction, acupuncture and electrical stimulation and some times Exercises, Manipulation and Mobilization as specific treatment¹⁰. DNF muscles endurance training is effective in reducing pain by increasing in pressure pain threshold¹¹. DNF training in chronic neck pain patients demonstrated an improved ability to maintain a neutral cervical posture during pro longed sitting¹². DNF muscles endurance training is given using air filled pressure Bio-feedback instrument in incremental

stages as muscle function and endurance improves. Till now many researchers have done studies on efficacy of different treatments in neck pain including conventional therapy and stabilization exercises, but very few studies have been done on efficacy of deep cervical muscles training (core stabilization) in neck pain, so need of this study is to find out the effect of core stability exercises along with conventional therapy in patients with neck pain.

Materials and Methods

A total number of 30 patients with chronic nonspecific neck pain were selected for study after giving informed written consent with due consideration to inclusion and exclusion criteria. Inclusion criteria for the study are patients with chronic non specific neck pain in age group 18 to 40 years. Both male and females were included. Patients with Vertebra-Basilar Insufficiency (VBI), Radiating pain with weakness, paraesthesia and decreased deep tendon reflex in upper limb, any surgery around neck, ankylosing spondylitis, any structural deformity of spine and any history of recent trauma around neck were excluded from the study. They were divided into 2 groups: Group A (Conventional therapy + Core stability exercises group) included 15 patients and Group B (Conventional therapy group) included 15 patients by random sampling. On the first visit, a complete Orthopedic Assessment was done. Preparticipation evaluation form consisted of VAS, NDI and assessment chart which included Age, sex, chief complain, presence of symptoms in one or both sides of neck etc. study duration is of one year. Outcome measures used were Visual analogoue scale (VAS), Neck Disability Index (NDI) and Deep Neck Flexor Strength. Study participants were requested to continue normal activities and avoid other forms of treatment for the duration of the study, apart from routine physician management. Subjects were not permitted to administer any other forms of electrotherapy during the intervention period of the trial.



Results

In this study all the tests were performed manually as well as with the use of demo version of Graph pad software. To analyze the effect on outcome measure VAS before and after treatment in Group A and in group B, non-parametric Wilcoxon matched pair test was used and for VAS between group non-parametric Mann Whitney U test was used. To analyze the effect on outcome measure NDI and DNF strength before and after treatment in Group A and group B, parametric paired t test was used and for between group A and group B, parametric unpaired t test was used. The mean age of Group A patients is 27.60 ± 6.73 years and mean age of Group B patients is 27.93 ± 4.59 years. Table 1 shows means of VAS, pre treatment and post treatment in Group A and Group B. in which Non-parametric Wilcoxon matched pair test was performed for both the Groups.

Group	Pre treatment Mean± SD	Post treatment Mean± SD	W-value	P-value
Group A	7.33±1.11	0.86±0.83	120	0.0003
Group B	7.26±0.79	3.46±1.50	120	0.0003

For Means of differences in VAS between Group A and Group B Non-parametric Mann Whitney U test was used (Table-2). P< 0.0001 was extremely significant at 5% level of significance.

Table 2: Means of difference	s in	VAS	between	Group	o A and	Group	B
------------------------------	------	-----	---------	-------	---------	-------	---

Group	Mean± SD	U-value	P-value
Group A	6.46±0.63	5.0	p < 0.0001
Group B	3.80±1.08	5.0	p < 0.0001

For means of NDI, pre treatment and post treatment in Group A and Group B parametric-paired t test was used (Table 3). In both the groups, P < 0.0001 was extremely significant at 5% level of significance.

Group	Pre treatment Mean ± SD	Post treatment Mean ± SD	t-value(df)	P-value
Group A	31.08±9.00	11.39±6.51	10.68(14)	p < 0.0001
Group B	33.26±9.79	22.07±8.58	5.37(14)	p < 0.0001

Table 3: Means of NDI, pre treatment and post treatment in Group A and Group B

For means of differences in NDI between Group A and Group B, Parametric, Unpaired t test was used (Table 4). P = 0.002 < 0.05 was significant at 5% level of significance.

Table 4: Means of differences in NDI between Group A and Group B

Group	Mean± SD	t-value(df)	P-value
Group A	19.69±7.14	3.05(28)	0.002
Group B	11.19±8.06	3.05(28)	0.002

For means of DNF strength, pre treatment and post treatment in Group A and Group B (Table 5) Parametric-paired t test was used

Table 5: Means of DNF strength, pre treatment and post treatment in Group A and Group B

Group	Pre treatment Mean± SD	Post treatment Mean± SD	t-value(df)	P-value
Group A	20.53±0.91	25.33±1.44	18.33(14)	p < 0.0001
Group B	20.57±0.93	20.93±1.28	1.87(14)	p = 0.08 > 0.05

For means of differences in DNF strength between Group A and Group B (Table 6) Parametric-Unpaired t test was used.

Table 6: Means of differences in DNF strength between Group A and Group B

Group	Mean± SD	t-value(df)	P-value
Group A	4.80±1.01	13.02(28)	P < 0.0001
Group B	0.40±0.82	13.02(28)	P < 0.0001

Discussion

There are evidenced risk factors for the onset and maintenance of non-specific neck pain includes both, individual and work-related psychosocial factors. Management with specific treatment is required for chronic neck pain patients. The study was conducted on thirty subjects with chronic non-specific neck pain. The patients were randomly divided into two groups; Group A (conventional + core stability exercises), Group B (conventional therapy) with mean age (mean \pm SD) of 27.60 \pm 6.73 and 27.93 \pm 4.59 respectively. Several studies have supported the findings of our results. One of the possible reasons for reduction in pain in both the groups might have been the effect of application of hydrocollator pack which was given for initial10 days of treatment. It has been suggested that such responses might be explained on the basis of the pain gate theory, in that the transmission of thermal sensations may take precedence over nociceptive impulses¹³. In our study, we found that core stability exercises along with conventional physiotherapy were more effective in reducing chronic pain and disability, and also significantly improved performance of craniacervical flexion test. Lehmann and de Lateur (1990a) described work which demonstrated that heating tissue to therapeutic temperature results in reduction of spasm and stimulation of skin in neck region could result in increased muscle relaxation¹⁴. Shaun O"leary et al. determined that crania-cervical flexion provided more specific training to activate deep neck flexor muscles¹⁵. DNF training is effective in reduction of pain and disability in patients with chronic non specific neck pain as suggested by results of our study this can be com pared with the study done by Jari ylinen et al. (2003) and, Falla D (2007). In the present study, we found that DNF training was also effective in improvement in stages of CCFT after 4 weeks of training which is same as described by Jull G et al. (2002)¹⁶. Comerford & Mottram (2001) suggested that Motor control and recruitment are the main priority and principal of DNF training, not strength and flexibility. The DNF training with low-load is paramount for rehabilitation of motor control deficits. High perceived effort was permissible initially; but as control and functional integration return, low effort activation dominated. The re-training of motor control dysfunction is a cognitive process requiring afferent feedback (Visual feedback in DNF training)¹⁷. The present study had demonstrated that conventional physiotherapy effective in relieving pain and disability but not effective for improving core muscle strength where as core stability exercise along with conventional physiotherapy was found to be more effective in patients with chronic non-specific neck pain. So, these interventions can be applied in clinical setup in combination with conventional treatment for the better and long term improvements.

CONCLUSION:

An experimental study to find out the effect of core stability exercises with conventional therapy in patients with neck pain was conducted on 30 patients. Significant difference was found between these groups on outcome of pain and neck disability and core muscle strength. So from the study it can be concluded that "Core stability exercises along with conventional therapy are highly efficient in relieving pain and disability and in improving core muscle strength in patients having neck pain."

Limitations: The small sample size of 15 in each group may limit generalization of the results of this study to all the patients with neck pain and long term follow up was not done.

Conflict of Interest: None Declared.

Source of Funding: Nil.

Ethical Clearance: Informed written consents were taken from all volunteer participants of the study.

References

- 1. Editorial, Issues with chronic musculoskeletal pain. Rheumatology 2005; 44: 831-833.
- 2. Cote Pierre, J. David Cassidy and Linda Carroll. The epidemiology of neck pain: what we have learned from our population based studies. Journal of Canadian Chiropractic Association 2003; 47(4): 284-290.
- Cote Pierre, J. David Cassidy and Linda Carroll. The Saskatchewan Health and Back Pain Survey: The Prevalence of Neck Pain and Related Disability in Saskatchewan Adults. Spine1998; 23(15): 1689-1698.
- Donateli Robert and Micheal wooden. Orthopedic physical therapy. 3rd edition; Churchill livingstone. 2001.
- Simo Taimela, Esa-Pekka Takala, Tom Asklof, Kitty Seppala and Sirkka Parvi ainen. Active Treatment of Chronic Neck Pain: A Prospective Randomized Interven tion. Spine 2000; 25(8) 1021-1027.
- 6. D. Fall. Unravelin the complexity of muscle impairment in chronic neck pain. Manual Therapy 2004; 9: 125-33.
- Ariens GAM, Bongers PM, M Douwes, M C Miedema, WE Hoogendoorn, G van der Wal, L M Bouter and W van Mechelen. Are neck flexion, neck rotation, and sitting at work risk factors for

neck pain? Results of a prospective cohort study. Occupational Environment Medicine 2001; 58: 200-207.

- Falla, D, Bilenkij, and Jull, G. Patients with Chronic Neck Pain Demonstrate Al tered Patterns of Muscle Activation during Performance of a Functional Upper Limb Task Spine 2004; 29(13), 1436-1440.
- Janda V. Muscles and motor control in cervicogenic disorders: assessment and management. New York: Churchill Livingstone; 1994.
- Aisha Ambreen and Tehmina Sadaf. Evaluation and Management of Neck Pain in Primary Care. Medicine Today 2006; 4(1): 19-26.
- Jari Ylinen, Esa-Pekka Takala, Hannu Kautiainen, Matti Nyka nen, Arja Hakki nen, Timo Pohjolainen, Sirkka-Liisa Karppi and Olavi Airaksinen. Effect of long-term neck muscle training on pressure pain threshold: A randomized controlled trial. Eu ropean Journal of Pain 2005; 9: 673-81.
- 12. Falla D, Gwendolen Jull, Trevor Russell, Bill Vicenzino and Paul Hodges. Effect of neck exercise

on sitting posture in patients with chronic neck pain. Physical therapy 2007; 87(4): 408-17.

- Sheila Kitchen., Sarah Bazin. Elecrotherapy: Evidence based practice. 11th edition. Page 96-97.
- 14. Lehmann, JF, De Lateur, BJ (1990a) Therapeutic heat and cold, 4th edition, p 444.
- Shannon Peterson. Articular and muscular impairments in cervicogenic headache: A Case report. The Journal of orthopedic and sports physical therapy 2003, 33(1), 21-32.
- 16. Jull G, Trott P, Helen Potter, Guy Zito, Grad Dip, Ken Niere, Debra Shirley, Jonathan Emberson and Ian Marschner, and Carolyn Richardson. A randomized con trolled trial of exercise and manipulative therapy for cervicogenic headache. Spine 2002; 27(17): 1835-1843.
- Comerford and Mottram. Functional stability retraining: Principles and strate gies for managing mechanical dysfunction. Manual Therapy 2001; 6(1): 3-14.

Y Balance Normative Data of Dynamic Balance for Collegiate Soccer Players

Nizamudheen PK¹, Sajjad A R Ebrahim²

¹Postgraduate Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya (Deemed to be University), Mangaluru, ²Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya (Deemed to be university), Mangaluru.

Abstract

Background: Balance is a vital component of physical fitness wherein athletes have to stay in control of their body's position. Poor balance has often been associated with the risk of sustaining injuries among participants of competitive sports. Y balance test (YBT) has been found to be a reliable and valid tool to assess balance. Establishing a normative data for different sports based on their level of competition could be beneficial for screening, ruling out balance deficits. It could as well help coaches or trainers make decisions about athlete's fitness level, risk of injuries and return to sports after any injury.

Objectives: To find out the normative data of lower extremity using Y Balance test among collegiate soccer players and to compare the Y balance scores between the legs.

Study Design: A cross sectional study.

Methods: Thirty three soccer players aged between 17-26 were selected from Yenepoya (Deemed to be University) soccer team. A standardized protocol was followed to record Y balance test scores. Reach distances of each participant was then normalized with limb length of respective side. Mean and standard deviation was used to find the normative distribution of Y balance reach score in all the three directions and paired t-test was used to compare the reach scores between the legs.

Result: Normative values of anterior reach distance right and left were 70.93 and 70.79 respectively, posterolateral right and left were 107.95 and 107.74 respectively, posteromedial right and left were 105.52 and 106.26 respectively and composite scores of right and left were 94.82 and 94.86 respectively. There were no statistically significant difference between the legs in anterior, posterolateral, posteromedial and composite scores.

Conclusion: Normative data of dynamic balance of lower extremity among collegiate soccer players have been established using Y balance test kit.

Key Words: Normative data, Balance, Soccer players, Y balance test

Introduction

Balance plays an important role in all kinds of sports, whereby the player has to maintain their balance to move

Corresponding author: Sajjad A R Ebrahim,

Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya (Deemed to be University), Deralakatte, Mangaluru – 575018 Email – sajjadebrahim88@gmail.com Phone: +91-9995397816 Fax- 0824 220 3689 the required body parts in different directions in order to complete a task. Balance can be categorized into static balance and dynamic balance. The ability to maintain the body segments within the available base of support with minimal movement is termed as static balance and the ability to perform a task while maintaining the stable position is termed as dynamic balance.¹ Balance of an individual is maintained by inputs from vestibular, somato-sensory and visual systems and motor responses that affect coordination, joint range of motion, strength and other factors such as age, height, neuromuscular diseases, drugs, etc.

Dynamic balance has been found to have an influence over a player's skill and performance and a poor balance has often been associated with injuries among players.² Dynamic balance of the soccer players differ according to their level of competition, i.e., balance scores differed for high school, college and professional soccer players.³ A research done on the epidemiology of collegiate injuries participating in 15 sports activities have revealed that the incidences of injuries both during practice and competitions while playing soccer were on the higher side.⁴ The injuries sustained may include contact injuries occurring as a result of contact between the players, or non-contact injuries, which are often linked to certain factors such as neuromuscular disorders, faulty training, faulty footwear, training overload, etc. Factors such as poor balance, altered motor control, or lack of neuromuscular control have all been listed as predictors of injury risk in athletes and researchers have supported the fact that balance assessments prior to games or practice sessions could help to prevent some injuries.³ Inefficient neuromuscular stabilization leads to compensations and substituted movement patterns that may result in excessive mechanical loading thereby increasing the risk of injuries.⁵ Gonel AC had performed a study in among 74 soccer players and had established that there was a relationship between YBT scores and the incidences of injury sustained. The author had noted that among the players who demonstrated a test score difference of 4 cm or more in the posteromedial direction of the YBT between their their left and right limbs were more prone to sustain injury.⁶ These results were suggestive of the fact that coaches and health care professionals could team up and and plan an appropriate training programmes so as to help to improve the efficiency of their team players. Several studies have been performed in populations like professional, high school level soccer players, cricketers, baseball players and have suggested that normative values of dynamic balance for each competition level and age group could help in predicting injuries, as well as in evaluating the pre-competition conditioning, fitness level and recovery from injury.^{3, 7, 8} The purpose of this study was to

establish normative data of dynamic balance of lower extremity using YBT in soccer players.

Materials and Methods

This cross-sectional study included 33 university soccer players between the age group of 17 to 26 who represented the Yenepoya (Deemed to be University) soccer team. The players were excluded from the study if they had musculoskeletal system pain, deformities in lower limb, neurological deficits, history of any surgery to the lower limb within 6 months, history of any mental or psychological illness, history of alcohol abuse or any history of usage of drugs. The ethical approval for the study was obtained from Yenepoya University ethical committee. Participants were explained about the purpose of the study and an informed consent was taken from all the participants who were included in the study.

The Y Balance Test scores were taken by using the Y Balance Test KitTM (FMS). Once the general details of the participants were collected, a demonstration of the YBT was given for all participants in the study and a video of the testing procedure was shown for a better understanding. The test was initiated among the participants only after they were comfortable in performing the test. Initially lower limb length of each of the players was recorded by using inch tape and was measured in centimeter (cm). Dynamic balance of the lower extremity was assessed using YBT. Standardized Y Balance Testing procedure was used. The maximum reach distance a player could achieve in three different directions anterior, posterolateral and posteromedial were recorded. Relative reach distance and composite scores were calculated for each side of every player.

Findings

Statistical analysis was done using SPSS version 22. Paired t-test was used to compare the mean scores of YBT between the legs to find the significant differences. The level of significance was set at < 0.05. A total of 33 soccer players from Yenepoya (Deemed to be University) were enrolled for the study. Majority of the players were playing in position of forward (34%) and midfield (30%).

Reach Directions	Mean	Standard Deviation	Minimum score	Maximum Score
Anterior right	70.93	5.32	62.40	81.60
Anterior left	70.79	5.14	63.40	79.60
Posterolateral right	107.95	5.19	93.90	115.80
Posterolateral left	107.74	7.12	93.20	120.40
Posteromedial right	105.52	6.00	94.00	115.70
Posteromedial left	106.26	7.39	93.90	120.60
Composite right	94.82	4.65	85.20	102.50
Composite left	94.86	5.88	85.40	103.60

Table 1: Normative values of Y balance reach distance

Table 1 shows the mean, standard deviation, minimum and maximum reach distance scores of Y balance test in different directions. Mean values of anterior reach distance right and left are 70.93 and 70.79 respectively, posterolateral right and left are 107.95 and 107.74 respectively, posteromedial right and left are 105.52 and 106.26 respectively and composite scores of right and left are 94.82 and 94.86 respectively.

Reach	Extuam: 4x	N	Maam	Standard	Paired Di	fferences	t	46	Dyaha
Direction	Extremity		Mean	Deviation	Mean Difference	Std. Deviation	value	ai	r value
Antorior	Right	33	70.93	5.32	0.126	4.042	0.104	22	0.85
Anterior	Left	33	70.79	5.14	0.130	4.043	0.194	52	0.85
Postero-	Right	33	107.95	5.19	0.200	4 0 1 0	0.244	22	0.91
lateral	Left	33	107.74	7.11	0.209	4.919	0.244	52	0.81
Postero-	Right	33	105.51	6.00	0.742	4 609	0.01	22	0.27
medial	Left	33	106.26	7.38	-0.742	4.098	-0.91	52	0.37
Composite	Right	33	94.82	4.65	0.026	2 001	0.07	22	0.04
Score	Left	33	94.85	5.87	-0.030	2.771	-0.07	52	0.94

 Table 2: Comparison of the YBT scores of right and left leg

Table 2 shows the comparison of reach scores in all three directions and composite scores between right and left leg by using paired t- test. On comparison of the mean values of anterior right and anterior left the mean values of anterior right is higher with a difference of 0.1363636 which is statistically not significant (p value = 0.848). On comparison of the mean values of posterolateral right and posterolateral left the mean values of posterolateral right is higher with a difference of 0.2091 which is statistically not significant (p value = 0.809). On comparison of the mean values of posteromedial right and posteromedial left the mean values of posteromedial left is higher with a difference of 0.7424 which is statistically not significant (p value = 0.371). On comparison of the mean values of Composite Score Right and Composite Score Left the mean values of Composite score left which is higher with a difference of 0.0364 is statistically not significant (p value = 0.945).

Discussion

YBT is a portable, reliable and valid device which may be used to assess dynamic balance. YBT is relatively easy to administer and does not require any additional training. A brief video demonstration of the test procedure was sufficient to make the participants comfortable in performing the tests. In the present study, the dynamic balance of 33 soccer players was measured and the normative data for each reach distance was arrived at. The reach distances included- anterior reach distance right and left were 70.93 and 70.79 respectively, posterolateral right and left were 107.95 and 107.74 respectively, posteromedial right and left were 105.52 and 106.26 respectively and composite scores of right and left were 94.82 and 94.86 respectively.

Over the years several researchers have studied the influence of balance and performance of athletes. Researchers also explored the effect of the level of competitions and the on field poisitions among sportsmen on the balance abilities. Buttler R J in his study among baseball players had found that the level of competition had an effect on the balance performance.⁸ Similarly, Buttler R J and colleagues, in their study among soccer players had reported that balance performance differed according to the level of competition among soccer players and the authors had also suggested that it could be beneficial to establish a normative data of balance

taking into consideration various sports and for different levels competition as well.³ There were also studies that had tried to compare the balance scores of individuals involved with different sports and the results were suggestive of the fact that soccer players often displayed a superior balance compared to other sports.¹ Buttler R J, Queen RM and colleagues in their study to compare the dynamic balance scores of soccer players from Rwanda and United states had concluded that players from Rwanda were having greater scores than United states players and they suggested that athletes from different countries of origins may have different reach scores which should be considered during the assessment of normative data of Y balance test.² Similar to their results Rwandan players were having greater reach scores than the current scores of university soccer players.²

Normative values of all three reach directions and composite scores of both lower extremities could be helpful for the coaches and trainers during their training sessions, screening and selection of players before the season begins and could thereby reduce the risk of injuries. The pre-season evaluation could also help to predict the sport related performance of the individual player which could help to pick on players who could deliver superior performances. Studies have also proven that an earlier evaluation of the players could help to identify those at risk of injuries which could moreover help to reduce the expense related to this injuries.9, 10 The normative data for collegiate level soccer players could be established in this study. Similar studies could be planned for athletes and players involved in other sports activities which could be helpful in arriving at a normative data for the specific sports activities.

Conclusion

The reference value of dynamic balance of lower extremity using Y balance test is established in a sample of university soccer players. The results also demonstrated that there was no significant reach asymmetry between right and left lower extremity. These values may be useful for coaches and trainers for selection of players by screening their injury risk, fitness level and also during return to sports after any injury before the match begins.Moreover the YBT kit is portable and can be easily administered, it could be carried and on field assessments could be performed. **Conflict of Interest**: There is no economic or personal conflict of interests relevant to the submitted manuscript for any of the authors

Source of Funding: Self

Ethical Clearance: The ethical clearance for the study was obtained from the Yenepoya University Ethical Committee (YEC) and the procedures followed were in accordance with the ethical standards of the committee.

References

- Bressel E, Yonker JC, Kras J, Heath EM. Comparison of Static and Dynamic Balance in Female Collegiate Soccer, Basketball, and Gymnastics Athletes. J Athl Train. 2007;42(1):42– 46.
- Butler RJ, Queen RM, Beckman B, Kiesel KB, Plisky PJ. Comparison of dynamic balance in adolescent male soccer players from Rwanda and the United States. Int J Sports Phys. 2013;8(6):749-755.
- Butler RJ, Southers C, Gorman PP, Kiesel KB, Plisky PJ. Differences in soccer players' dynamic balance across levels of competition. J Athl Train. 2012;47(6):616-20.
- 4. Hootman JM, Dick R, Agel J. Epidemiology of collegiate injuries for 15 sports: summary and recommendations for injury prevention initiatives.

J Athl Train. 2007;42(2):311-319.

- 5. Abu Alim M. Biomechanics of the lower extremity dynamic balance tests: kinematics and electromyography analysis of the y-balance test and the star excursion balance test.
- Gonell AC, Romero JAP, Soler LM. Relationship between the Y Balance Test scores and soft tissue injury incidence in a soccer team. Int J Sports Phys Ther. 2015;10(7): 955–966.
- Gupta H, Yangdon T, Gupta U, Kumari T. Normative Data of Dynamic Balance of Lower Extremities Using Y-Balance Test in Cricketers with 16-25 Years of Age. IOSR Journal of Sports and Physical Education. 2016;5(3):01-06.
- Butler RJ, Bullock G, Arnold T, Plisky P, Queen R. Competition-Level Differences on the Lower Quarter Y-Balance Test in Baseball Players. J Athl Train. 2016;51(12):997–1002.
- Plisky PJ, Rauh MJ, Kaminski TW, Underwood FB. Star Excursion Balance Test as a Predictor of Lower Extremity Injury in High School Basketball Players. J Orthop Sports Phys Ther. 2006;36(12):911-19.
- Gribble PA, Terada M, Beard MQ, Kosik KB, Lepley AS, McCann RS, Pietrosimone BG, Thomas AC. Prediction of lateral ankle sprains in football players based on clinical tests and body mass index. Am J Sports Med. 2016;44(2):460-67.

Stem Cell Therapy& Its Application in Neurological Conditions A Review

Omeshree Nagrale¹, Mohammed Shoaib C²

Assistant Professor¹, Department of Community Physiotherapy, MGM School of Physiotherapy, Navi Mumbai, India. BPT Student² R V College of Physiotherapy Bangalore, India

Abstract

Stem cells have the ability to build every type of tissues in the human body; hence they have great potential for future therapeutic uses in tissue regeneration and repair. In order for these cells to fall under the definition of "**stem cells**", they must display two essential characteristics. First, stem cells must have the ability of unlimited self-renewal to produce progeny exactly the same as the originating cells. Second, stem cells must have the ability to differentiate into a specialized adult cell type. Stem cells with their unique and facile potentialities, offer building blocks for organ development and tissue repair. Regenerative therapy or Stem cell therapy is aimed at 'reviving' existing malfunctioning cells, repopulating the organ by new cells from exogenous or endogenous sources, altering the extra-cellular matrix, or increasing blood supply by enhancing vasculogenesis. This review summarizes the current concepts in stem cell biology its application in neurological conditions and important advancements, limitations with respect to their prospective use in regeneration therapies in various human diseases.

Keywords- Stem Cell, Neurological Conditions, Autism, Cerebral palsy, Muscular dystrophy, Spinal cord injury, Stroke

Introduction

A stem cell is defined by two distinct properties of self-renewal and differentiation into various cell types. This trait is also true of cancer cells that divide in an uncontrolled manner whereas stem cell division is highly regulated. Regenerative Medicine or Stem Cell Therapy refers to the application of stem cells either exogenous or endogenous to facilitate regeneration of injured organs⁽¹⁾

CLASSIFICATION OF STEM CELLS:

ü Totipotent/Omnipotent stem cells can differentiate into any types of cells in the body.

ü Pluripotent stem cells can differentiate into a variety of cell types, but not all types.

Corresponding Author: Mohammed Shoaib C 4th BPT Student, RV.College of Physiotherapy, Bangalore. Email: shoaib.mohmmd@gmail.com **ü** Multipotent stem cells can differentiate into more than one type of cells. It is more limited than Totipotent and Pluripotent stem cells.

ü Unipotent/Monopotent stem cells can differentiate into only one type of cell.

ü Oligopotent stem cells can differentiate into closely related types of cells^{.(2)}

FATE OF STEM CELLS:

Based on their two unique characteristics, stem cells have four outcomes or fates:

1. Multipotent stem cells remain inactive without dividing or differentiating, maintaining its place in the stem cell pool.

2. Symmetric self-renewal in which two daughter stem cells, exactly like parent cell, arise from cell division. This doesn't result in differentiated progeny but does increase the stem cell pool from which specialized cells can develop in subsequent divisions. 3. Asymmetric self-renewal results in the generation of differentiated progeny required for natural tissue development/regeneration while also maintaining the stem cell pool for the future.

4. Stem cell divides to produce two daughter cells, both different from the parent cell. This results in greater proliferation of differentiated progeny with a net loss in the stem cell pool.

Research is still being carried on to determine the factors that determine the fate of the stem cells.⁽³⁾

MECHANISM OF ACTION:

Naturally occurring stem cells in the organs constantly repair the daily wear and tear of tissues through multitude of mechanism. The different chemo tactic factors direct the stem cells to the injured or damaged site through signalling pathways. So far, stem cells are known to possess the following mechanisms of actions:

• THE PARACRINE EFFECT:

The paracrine effect was an unexpected mechanism for tissue regeneration from stem cells but has led to new possibilities for the treatment of different diseases. After the application of stem cells, they remodel and regenerate the injured tissues, improve functions and protect the tissues from further damage. Stem cells transplanted into the injured the tissues express paracrine signalling factors including cytokines and other growth factors (vascular endothelial GF/VEGF, hepatocyte GF/HGF and fibroblast GF/FGF2) which are involved in the organization of the stem cell-driven repair process through increasing angiogenesis, deceasing inflammation, preventing apoptosis, releasing chemo tactic factors, assisting in extra-cellular matrix tissue remodelling and activation of resident cell.^(4,5)

INCREASED ANGIOGENESIS:

The stem cells produce paracrine effect by local signalling of molecules like the growth factors that may improve the perfusion and enhance angiogenesis to chronically ischemic tissues. Stem cell enhances angiogenesis by increasing endogenous levels of VEGF. HGF exerts beneficial effects on neovascularisation and tissue remodelling. FGF2 is involved intimately with

endothelial cell proliferation.. (4,5,6)

REDUCTION IN INFLAMMATION:

Stem cells are capable of reducing the effect of local inflammation. When stem cells are transplanted into the injured tissues, they face a nutrient deficit inflammatory environment where they remove the inflammatory exudates through activating the anti-inflammatory paracrine effect to limit the local inflammation. ^(4,5,6)

REMYELINATION:

Remyelination involves reinvesting demyelinated axons with new myelin sheaths. Remyelinating effect of stem cells may be via one or more mechanisms, including the immune modulatory effect and promotion of differentiation of endogenous cells. More research to understand these mechanisms is yet to be conducted.^(4,5,6)

• ANTI-APOPTOTIC & CHEMOTACTIC SIGNALING:

Stem cells appear to activate an anti-apoptotic signalling which effectively protects ischemia-threatened cells from apoptosis. HGF have the ability not only to improve cell growth but also to reduce cell apoptosis. ^(4,5,6)

• ACTIVATION OF RESIDENT STEM CELLS:

Resident stem cell refers to the stem cell-like populations found in the adult hearts, livers, brain and kidney. These resident stem cells possess growth factor receptors that can be activated to induce their migration and proliferation and promotes restoration of the ischemic tissues and improves the function in the injured tissues. ^(4,5,6)

· REMODELLING OF THE EXTRA-CELLULAR MATRIX:

Stem cell transplantation alters the extracellular matrix, resulting in post-infarct remodelling, strengthening of the infarct and in prevention of deterioration in organ function. Stem cells improve the functions by increasing the cellularity and decreasing production of extra-cellular matrix protein which results in positive remodelling and functioning.^(4,5,6)

APPLICATION OF STEM CELL:

NENEUROLOGICAL CONDITIONS:

The applications of neural stem cells are indicated for the treatment of the following conditions:

- 1. Autism
- 2. Cerebral palsy
- 3. Muscular dystrophy
- 4. Spinal cord injury
- 5. Stroke

Research is still being carried on for further application of stems cells in various diseases/conditions.

CLINICAL APPLICATION OF STEM CELLS IN NEUROLOGICAL CONDITIONS:

AUTISM:

Autism is a range of neuro-developmental disorders characterized by persistent deficits in social interactions, communication, language and behaviour. It is assumed that neural hypo perfusion and immune dysregulation are the two core underlying pathologies associated with autism. Reduced blood supply to the brain (medial temporal and cerebellum) could contribute to the cause of reduced functioning of that particular area. In patients with autism, hypo perfusion leads to hypoxia, reversal of hypoxia will lead to may lead to self-repair and neural proliferation. (7,8)

Procedure:

Stem cells are administered through the intrathecal route. The transplanted stem cells will reach the central nervous system through cerebrospinal fluid Stem cells are administered via the intrathecal route at the level between L3-L4 or L4-L5 vertebral space (7,8)

Post-op management:

After the application of stem cell therapy, conventional therapy in the form drug therapy and physical therapy must still be carried on along with special schooling. Medications must be administered to reduce hyperactivity. Medications are administered upto 10 days after the application of stem cells.

Rehabilitation program includes:

1. Bear crawls- to strengthen core muscles and trunk muscles, to increase shoulder and hip mobility, to improve cardiovascular endurance and to improve coordination

2. Medicine ball slams- to strengthen core muscles, to improve balance and improve coordination.

3. Star jumps- to improve cardiovascular endurance, strengthen legs and core muscles.

4. Mirror exercises- to improve interaction and social skills (9,10)

CEREBRAL PALSY:

Cerebral palsy is a term used to describe a nonprogressive group of brain or malformation disorders resulting from a lesion or developmental abnormality in foetal life or early infancy affecting a person's ability to move. It is characterized by poor motor control, adaptive length changes in muscles, skeletal abnormalities and intellectual abnormalities. The causes of cerebral palsy are grouped under: prenatal, prenatal and postnatal causes. (11)

Procedure:

Stem cells are administered via the intrathecal route at the level between fourth and fifth lumbar vertebrae. Simultaneously, 20mg/kg body weight methyl prednisolone in 500ml ringer lactate is administered intravenously to enhance survival of the injected cells. (12)

Post-op management:

A multidisciplinary approach is followed after the application of stem cells. It includes medications, physiotherapy and speech & swallowing therapy. Medications are administered to manage symptoms such as seizures, pain, drooling, etc. Medications are administered upto 10 days after the application of stem cells. Speech therapy aims at improving oral motor skills, speech and language skills. A speech therapist also provides guidance regarding hearing aids if hearing deficit is the cause of delayed speech. They also teach children and caregivers swallowing techniques, appropriate positioning and oro-motor exercises, making dietary changes as in the consistency of food (soft/

liquid/mashed), etc. Physiotherapy helps to increase the strength of weak muscles, encourage movement, stretch the tight muscles, prevent contractures of muscles, thereby enhancing mobility and maximizing independence.

Rehabilitation program includes:

1. Positioning- Supine lying, prone lying and standing position.

2. Floor sitting- Corner sitting, side sitting and long-leg sitting.

3. Chair sitting

4. Prone development- Prone position placement, head control and turning the head from side to side.

5. Supine development- Stabilization of head, postural fixation of shoulder girdles & pelvis and rising to sit & stand.

6. Development of sitting- Supine to sitting, side lying to sitting and spinal extension exercises.

7. Development of gait- Correction of abnormal postures during standing and walking, improve dynamic stability, weight shifts & development of stepping, weight distribution of weight, train lateral sway, train to stop while walking, train to walk on uneven supporting surface and train to climb & descend stairs.⁽¹³⁾

MUSCULAR DYSTROPHY:

Muscular dystrophies are genetically determined progressive disorders of the muscles characterized by cycles of muscle fibres necrosis, regeneration, eventual fibrosis and replacement with fatty tissues. It is characterized with progressive weakness and wasting of affected muscles. Each type of muscular dystrophy is associated with a distinct genetic mutation. Congenital myopathies are associated with morphological muscle abnormalities without necrosis. Metabolic myopathies present with pain, weakness or fatigue.⁽¹⁴⁾

Procedure:

Stem cells are administered via the intramuscular route. Intramuscular transplantation is performed on the motor points of the muscle.

Post-op management:

Conventional therapy in the form of drug therapy and rehabilitation must be followed after the application of stem cells. Anabolic steroids are administered to slow down the progression of muscle wasting while preserving pulmonary functions, delaying the loss of ambulation and stabilizing muscle strength. Corticosteroids for enhancing myoblast proliferation and promote muscle regeneration. Prednisolone for reducing muscle damage and necrosis through its immuno-suppressive and antiinflammatory effects. Medications are administered upto 10 days after the application of stem cells^{.(15,16)}

Physical rehabilitation program includes:

1. Exercises- Endurance exercises with repetitions and minimal resistance exercises to the affected muscles till point of muscle fatigue.

- 2. Balance training.
- 3. Mat exercises.

4. Breathing Exercises- To improve vital capacity and oxygenation.

- 5. Stretching of tightened muscles.
- 6. Gait training.

SPINAL CORD INJURY:

Spinal cord injury (SCI) is defined as injury to the spinal cord or the nerves at the end of spinal canal. The cause for spinal cord injury can be traumatic or nontraumatic. This affects the conduction of the sensory and the motor signals across the site of lesion. A severe cervical spinal damage results in quadriplegia, whereas an injury to the thoracic or lumbar spine leads to paraplegia. The demyelination of axons may to lead to permanent loss of sensory & motor functions. Other symptoms include muscle weakness, respiratory impairments, circulatory impairments, spasticity or flaccidity of muscles, pain, depression, etc. Affected sensations, loss of bladder & bowel control, spinal shock, postural hypotension, etc are some of the major complications in SCI patients. Stem cell therapy is a potential treatment for SCI patients.(17,18,19)

Procedure:

The stem cells are administered through 3 routes: intra-arterial, intra-venous and intrathecal route. Intra thecal routes have shown more improvements in patients when compared to those of intra-venous and intra-arterial route. ^(20,21)

Post-op management:

Physical rehabilitation for SCI consists of:

1. Breathing exercises- Gloss pharyngeal breathing and deep-breathing exercises.

2. Respiratory muscle training- Improving the strength and endurance of inspiratory and expiratory muscles via Normocapnic hyperpnoea.

3. Manual stretching of the tightened muscles.

4. Strengthening of the affected muscles-Application of electrical stimulator, active assisted & active movements and resisted exercises.

5. Bed mobility- Turning on bed on his own or with minimal assistance.

- 6. Mat exercises.
- 7. Postural control.
- 8. Balance& coordination training.
- 9. Gait training

S T R O K E / C E R E B R O - V A S C U L A R ACCIDENT:

Stroke or CVA is the sudden loss of functions caused by an interruption of blood flow to the brain leading to reduced oxygen and nutrients supply to the brain. It is of 2 types: Ischemic stroke and Haemorrhagic stroke. Ischemic stroke results when a clot impairs the blood flow, depriving the brain of essential oxygen and nutrients. Haemorrhagic stroke occurs when blo od vessels rupture, causing leakage of blood in and aro und the brain clinically, a variety of focal deficits are possible, including changes in the level of consciousness and impairments of sensory, motor, cognitive, perceptual and language functions. The permanent change in the structure of CNS leads to long lasting physical impairments, seen as residual problems, which translates gradually into activity limitation and restricts these individuals to participate in the community. Symptoms include lack of coordination, imbalance while sitting or standing, loss of vision or dimming, muscle weakness, severe headache, behavioural issues, etc. Stem cells impersonate the natural process of recovery after stroke, which is mobilization of stem cells to the area of injury in the brain resulting in initiation of the process of neuro-restoration. ⁽²²⁾

Procedure:

The stem cells are administered through 4 routes: intra-arterial, intra-venous, intrathecal and intracranial route. Intrathecal and intracranial routes have shown more improvements in patients when compared to those of intra-venous and intra-arterial route. ⁽²²⁾

Post-op management:

Physical rehabilitation program for stroke consists of:

1. Manual stretching of the tightened muscles.

2. Strength training- To improve the strength and functions of affected upper limb and lower limb muscles.

3. Mirror therapy- To improve motor control and functions.

4. Bed mobility- Turning on bed on his own or with minimal assistance.

- 5. Mat exercises.
- 6. Postural control.
- 7. Transfers- From bed to chair and vice versa.
- 8. Balance & coordination training.
- 9. Gait training

Ethical Clearance- the institutional ethics committee has given permission to initiate the research project.

Source of Funding-Self.

Conflict of Interest- Nil

References

1. Dovi JV. Speaking Words of Wisdom: Let It be-The

Reexamination of the Human Embryonic Stem Cell Patents. Marq. Intell. Prop. L. Rev.2008; 12:107.

- Ratajczak MZ, Zuba-Surma EK, Wysoczynski M, Wan W, Ratajczak J, Wojakowski W, Kucia M. Hunt for pluripotent stem cell–regenerative medicine search for almighty cell. Journal of autoimmunity. 2008 May 1;30(3):151-62.
- Hombach-Klonisch S, Panigrahi S, Rashedi I, Seifert A, Alberti E, Pocar P, Kurpisz M, Schulze-Osthoff K, Mackiewicz A, Los M. Adult stem cells and their trans-differentiation potential perspectives and therapeutic applications. Journal of Molecular Medicine. 2008 Dec 1;86(12):1301-14.
- Lee JP, Jeyakumar M, Gonzalez R, Takahashi H, Lee PJ, Baek RC, Clark D, Rose H, Fu G, Clarke J, McKercher S. Stem cells act through multiple mechanisms to benefit mice with neurodegenerative metabolic disease. Nature medicine. 2007 Apr;13(4):439-47.
- Molofsky AV, Pardal R, Morrison SJ. Diverse mechanisms regulate stem cell self-renewal. Current opinion in cell biology. 2004 Dec 1;16(6):700-7.
- 6. Baraniak PR, McDevitt TC. Stem cell paracrine actions and tissue regeneration. Regenerative medicine. 2010 Jan;5(1):121-43.
- Boris M, Kaiser CC, Goldblatt A, Elice MW, Edelson SM, Adams JB, Feinstein DL. Effect of pioglitazone treatment on behavioral symptoms in autistic children. Journal of neuro inflammation. 2007 Dec 1;4(1):3.
- Tyler R. Ventura County Medical Center December 10, 2008.
- 9. Snel E. Sitting still like a frog: Mindfulness exercises for kids (and their parents). Shambhala Publications; 2013 Dec 3.
- 10. Siniscalco D. Stem cell research: an opportunity for autism spectrum disorders treatment. Autism. 2012;2(2).
- Jacobsson B, Hagberg G. Antenatal risk factors for cerebral palsy. Best practice & research Clinical obstetrics & gynaecology. 2004 Jun 1;18(3):425-36.

- 12. Folkerth RD. Neuropathologic substrate of cerebral palsy. Journal of child neurology. 2005 Dec;20(12):940-9.
- 13. Volpe JJ. Cerebral white matter injury of the premature infant—more common than you think. Pediatrics. 2003 Jul 1;112(1):176-80.
- Rahimov F, Kunkel LM. Cellular and molecular mechanisms underlying muscular dystrophy. Journal of Cell Biology. 2013 May 13;201(4):499-510.
- Rando TA. The dystrophin–glycoprotein complex, cellular signaling, and the regulation of cell survival in the muscular dystrophies. Muscle & nerve. 2001 Dec;24(12):1575-94.
- Wang Z, Chamberlain JS, Tapscott SJ, Storb R. Gene therapy in large animal models of muscular dystrophy. ILAR journal. 2009 Jan 1;50(2):187-98.
- Wright KT, Masri WE, Osman A, Chowdhury J, Johnson WE. Concise review: bone marrow for the treatment of spinal cord injury: mechanisms and clinical applications. Stem cells. 2011 Feb;29(2):169-78.
- Coutts M, Keirstead HS. Stem cells for the treatment of spinal cord injury. Experimental neurology. 2008 Feb 1;209(2):368-77.
- Reier PJ. Cellular transplantation strategies for spinal cord injury and translational neurobiology. NeuroRx. 2004 Oct 1;1(4):424-51.
- Syková E, Jendelová P, Urdzíková L, Lesný P, Hejčl A. Bone marrow stem cells and polymer hydrogels—two strategies for spinal cord injury repair. Cellular and molecular neurobiology. 2006 Nov 1;26(7-8):1111-27.
- 21. Lu X, Battistuzzo CR, Zoghi M, Galea MP. Effects of training on upper limb function after cervical spinal cord injury: a systematic review. Clinical rehabilitation. 2015 Jan;29(1):3-13.
- 22. Sacco RL, Kasner SE, Broderick JP, Caplan LR, Connors JJ, Culebras A, Elkind MS, George MG, Hamdan AD, Higashida RT, Hoh BL. American Heart Association Stroke Council, Council on Cardiovascular Surgery and Anesthesia; Council on Cardiovascular Radiology and Intervention;

Council on Cardiovascular and Stroke Nursing; Council on Epidemiology and Prevention; Council on Peripheral Vascular Disease; Council on Nutrition, Physical Activity and Metabolism. An updated definition of stroke for the 21st century: a statement for healthcare professionals from the American Heart Association/American Stroke Association. Stroke. 2013 Jul;44(7):2064-89.

Assessment of Balance in Individuals Suffering from Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Diseases

Pooja Madhukar Kamble¹, Poonam Parulekar²

¹Masters of Physiotheraphy In Cardiorespiratory Sciences, ²Asst. Professor, Sunandan Divatia School Of Science Svkm's Nmims (Deemed To Be University) V.L Mehta Road, Vileparle (West) Mumbai

Abstract

Background: COPD being a common preventable and treatable disease, in spite of which half a million people die every year in India. COPD being one of the leading cause of death in Maharashtra, compared to deaths due to ischemic heart diseases, stroke and diabetes all put together.

Method ; 62 subjects suffering from COPD were screened, and 30 subjects meeting the inclusion - exclusion criteria were selected to be a part of the COPD group. 60 healthy subjects were screened and 30 subjects meeting the inclusion - exclusion criteria were selected to be a part of the control group. Informed consent was acquired from both of them. Basic personal and demographic data was recorded with a written consent.

Conclusion; Study suggested that balance assessment and treatment should be incorporated in the treatment plan of the COPD patients. Treatment should concentrate on both (static and dynamic) the component. Thus helping the patient to improve their balance and quality of life.

Key words: COPD- Chronic obstructive pulmonary disorder, BESS–Balance Error Scoring System, SEBT – Star Excursion Balance Test

Introduction

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disorder (COPD), being a common treatable and preventable disease. Characterized by persistent airflow limitation that is usually progressive and associated with an enhanced chronic inflammatory response in airways and the lung to noxious particles and gases. Exacerbations along with co morbidities contribute to the overall severity in individual patients. ⁽¹⁾

COPD kills more than 3 million people every year, thus it is the 4th largest cause of death. In India half a million people die every year due to COPD, which is 4 times the number of people who die with COPD in Europe & USA. A report published by the Maharashtra State Health resource Centre, the leading cause of death in Maharashtra is due to COPD, when compared to deaths due to ischemic heart disease, stroke and diabetes all put together. ⁽²⁾

Assessment of COPD traditionally focused on lung function, but the wide range effects on the body, such as

reductions in peripheral muscle performance, functional mobility and exercise capacity are now gaining attention

Emerging evidences suggest that there are deficits in functional balance control in individuals with COPD.⁽³⁾

Deficits of functional balance control in COPD can be.

• Power, muscle strength and endurance are considerably reduced in people with COPD compared to healthy controls. Atrophy of fast twitch type II fibers in the lower limb muscles causes decreased ability to perform activities which need fast and powerful muscle contractions.

• Postural control is regulated by interaction of three major sensory systems: vestibular, somatosensory and visual. Imbalance in any can cause loss of balance.

Some studies have found strong dose-dependent associations between inhaled and oral corticosteroid use and the risk of cataracts increase. Cataracts and glaucoma causes reduce visual acuity, impair postural control, further increasing the risk of falls.

Improper nutrition very common among people with COPD, causes weight loss, (more of muscle mass). Loss of muscle mass in COPD population is associated with increased mortality, impaired muscle function, further reduced exercise capacity and affecting quality of living.

COPD shows number of psychiatric disorders, including depression and anxiety, the prevalence of depression being between 2%–57% and anxiety being between 2%–51% in them.

Medications commonly used in COPD have drawn special attention for their potential adverse effects on fall risk. Corticosteroid use in people with COPD has been estimated to be 61.5% and 8.3% for inhaled and oral corticosteroids respectively which increases the fall risk.

• Dyspnea is the most common symptom of COPD, causes limitation in activity. As level of dyspnea is strongly correlated to the intensity of activities, people with COPD have shown reduced activities of daily living and even for that matter exercises. ⁽³⁾

Deficits in balance are an important secondary impairment in individuals with COPD. Clinical and laboratory measures shown abnormal balance in individuals, with different degrees of COPD, which increased the risk of falling in this population.⁽⁴⁾

Maintaining balance requires integration and coordination from sensory, motor and central nervous system, to maintain the centre of gravity with respect to the base of support. Sensory system is responsible for detection of body position and motion through vision, somatosensory and vestibular stimuli. Motor system is responsible for execution of motor responses through body biomechanics, range of motion, strength and flexibility. Central nervous systems⁽⁵⁾

Thus the aim of the study was to evaluate, which type of balance is affected more in COPD patients. This

will help the therapist in formulating a treatment plan and include balance training program for COPD.

Balance Error Scoring System (BESS) is used for measuring static balance.

Star Excursion Balance Test (SEBT) is used for measuring dynamic balance.

Functional balance in COPD was assessed by few researchers, using clinical assessment tools. Bergs Balance Scale, Functional Reach Test, Time Up and Go test, etc, they found that balance was impaired in patients suffering from COPD^(6,10). However, they have not found which components of balance will be affected the most in COPD.

Thus, the need of this study arouse to evaluate and identify which component of balance is affected the most in individuals suffering from COPD because of which they tend to have impaired functional balance as compared to their age matched controls.

Materials and Methods

1. Study design : Observational study

2. Population : COPD patients and normal healthy population

3. Target population : COPD patients from tertiary health set up

4. Sample size : 60 people (30 COPD , 30 NORMALS)

5. Sampling technique : Convenience sampling

Results

Data was analyzed using SPSS 16.0 and Microsoft excel 2010. Assuming that the data was following normal distribution (n=30), Independent – sample t test was used. A p value of < 0.05 was taken as significant.

Balance Error Scoring System (BESS)

	Normal Individuals	COPD	P Value
FIRM SURFACE	5.4 ± 0.894	7.833 ± 1.341	0.00
FOAM SURFACE	7.433 ± 1.278	9.166 ± 1.288	0.00

- I abit I i U U U U U U U U U U
--

Inference: Table 1 shows that there was a statistically significant difference (p < 0.05) seen in COPD group when compared to normal group. The number of errors performed by the COPD group was more than the normal group.

Star Excursion Balance Test (SEBT)

Table 2. Comparison of SEBT in COPD group and normal group for right leg.

	NORMAL	COPD	Unpaired t-test (p value)
RT ANT	98.8 ± 5.46	57.766 ± 9.44	00.0
RT ANT MED	101.666 ± 3.35	60.466 ± 8.63	0.00
RT MED	97.733 ± 4.66	60.733 ± 9.35	0.00
RT POST MED	93.966 ± 6.49	57.833 ± 8.01	0.00
RT POST	90.166 ± 10.20	55.6 ± 8.27	0.00
RT POST LAT	83.466 ± 11.64	47.266 ± 9.92	0.00
RT LAT	71.466 ± 13.53	37.133 ± 9.98	0.00
RT ANT LAT	93.533 ± 4.16	48.766 ± 8.27	0.00

Table 3: Comparison of SEBT in COPD group and normal group for left leg.

	NORMAL	COPD	Unpaired t-test (p value)
LT ANT	99.133 ± 4.717	59.666 ± 8.868	0.00
LTANT MED	99.833± 4.086	60.3 ± 8.404	0.00
LT MED	96.683 ± 4.724	59.1 ± 7.617	0.00
LT POST MED	95.033 ± 6.014	57.533 ± 6.699	0.00
LT POST	92.833 ± 8.304	57.266 ± 7.422	0.00
LT POST LAT	83.0333 ± 18.261	49.233 ± 9.216	0.00
LT LAT	72.166 ± 14.044	37.333 ± 7.326	0.00
LT ANT LAT	93.666 ± 4.67	52.6 ± 10.029	0.00

Inference: Table 2 and 3 shows that there was a statistically significant difference (p <0.05) seen in COPD group when compared to normal group. The distance reached on the Star excursion Balance Test in all the directions were significantly lesser in the COPD group, as compared to normal group.

Discussion

30 COPD and 30 Normal population individuals were assessed for static and dynamic balance using the BESS and SEBT respectively.

Significant reduction of balance (static and dynamic) seen in the COPD population as compared with the normal population. This can be attributed to the ongoing pathological disease process further explained.

Table 1. Compares the BESS scores between COPD group and Normal age matched individuals. Number of errors made on the firm and foam surface was much higher in the COPD group as compared with the health group. When visual feedback is cut and the individual stands on firm and foam surface, the feedback remains majorly from proprioception of the lower limbs. Studies show proprioception is affected in COPD population ansd is one causes for postural affection in individuals suffering from COPD.⁽⁹⁾

Decreased tidal volume is seen in COPD individuals. Increased tidal volume in the lungs, lesser is the postural sway.

Positions for single leg stance on firm and foam surface challenge the person's capacity to maintain its centre of mass (CoM) within the base of support. To maintain this the muscle activation and contraction increases. Compared to healthy controls muscle endurance is reduced in people with COPD. Reduced muscle endurance causes increased muscle fatigability, which is associated with impaired postural control ⁽²⁹⁾. Quadriceps weakness which occurs in COPD due to increase in pro inflammatory cytokines which further increases activity of the ubiquitin proteasome pathway, a proteolytic pathway that causes muscle wasting. Stable postural base on which the intended movement can take place is not allowed. Studies show quadriceps strength is decreased on average by 30% in moderate to severe COPD patients. (24)

Table 2 and 3 shows that the distance reached on the SEBT in all the direction is significantly less in COPD group as compared with the health group. Lower limb muscles are important for maintaining balance. In COPD, functioning of these muscles is affected therefore affecting the score of dynamic balance as well.

In COPD, there is greater reduction in muscle mass, intramuscular fat, muscle fiber atrophy (most notably in fast twitch type II fibers). Capillary density decreases mitochondrial dysfunction and there is lower proportion of oxidative enzymes. These abnormalities together indicate an overall decline in both oxidative capacity, and the contractile properties of lower limb muscles.⁽²⁵⁾

In COPD, excessive respiratory muscle recruitment causes mechanical abnormality in the thoracic cage. Body is a closed kinematic chain, this influences the overall body mechanics and functional balance. The postural attitude of the hyper inflated thorax can lead to a series of spinal column, shoulder, and pelvic girdle compensations. Spinal column deformities, such as increased thoracic kyphosis and lumbar lordosis, are common in adults with COPD. (26).

Stability in the anterior-posterior direction is affected more in COPD individuals. Reduced flexibility of the muscles in back and lower limb and decreased ROM at the spine⁽²⁷⁾. For lateral reach outs, body is more dependent on trunk movement due to poor efficiency of the ankle muscles. Increased mediolateral displacement of the centre of gravity in COPD population, as the stability provided by the trunk muscles is decreased. Trunk muscles work to aid in respiration in COPD patients this reduce the contribution to control balance causing decreased lateral reach out .(28).

Multisystem involvement of COPD causes a broad range of functional limitations. Emerging evidence draws attention to the fact that balance is affected in individuals suffering from COPD as compared to their healthy peers.

Impairments in higher cognitive functions and complex perceptual-motor integration which were attributed to cerebral hypoxia associated with their COPD, increased postural sway. It has also been suggested that balance and coordination deficits are correlated with measures of severity of airflow obstruction (FEV1) and consequent reduced physical activity levels in patients with COPD ⁽¹⁸⁾. Absence of visual input in patients with COPD demonstrate impaired static postural control (i.e. increased sway) following a six-minute walk test and was hypothesized that the increased postural sway following exercise was related to reduced peripheral muscle endurance and strength as well as, the increase in ventilation following exercise.

Malnutrition is common in people with COPD. Reports suggest that people with COPD show low levels of circulating vitamin D. Vitamin D deficiency in some studies has been associated with an increased risk for falling,. ^(6, 19)

Medications commonly used in the management of COPD include: bronchodilators (anticholinergics, β 2-agonists, methylxanthines), oral and inhaled corticosteroids, and theophylline. Other less frequent pharmacologic treatments include: vaccines, mucolytics, antioxidants, antitussives, α -1 antitrypsin augmentation therapy immunoregulators, vasodilators, narcotics, and antibiotics in cases of acute infection.⁽²⁰⁾. Some medications show adverse side effects, including dizziness, postural hypotension, altered vision and longterm cognitive changes. Long term use of corticosteroids in COPD population is associated with metabolic disorders like osteoporosis and osteopenia and a subsequent increased risk of bone fracture in some.⁽²¹⁾.

Exacerbation known as "a sustained worsening of the patient's condition, from the stable state and beyond normal day-to-day variations, requiring change in regular medication in COPD patients "⁽²²⁾. Exacerbations usually require hospitalization, along with prolonged bed rest. Aggressive pharmacological interventions (e.g., high doses of oral corticosteroids),leads to muscle atrophy and weakness. Negative effects of exacerbations on muscle function and physical activity levels, gait and balances cannot be missed. Increased risk for falls secondary to exacerbations is possible. ⁽²³⁾. Postural activity of trunk muscles is altered where respiratory demands increases.

Conclusion

Compared with age matched control, individuals with COPD have statistically significant reduced performance in static and dynamic component of balance which was tested using the BESS and SEBT respectively (p < 0.05).

• The static component of balance assessed by BESS using the firm and foam surface was significantly reduced (p = 0.00, p < 0.05).

The dynamic component of balance assessed by SEBT was significantly reduced (p = 0.00, p < 0.05).

Conflict of Interest : NIL

Source of funding : Self

Letter of Ethical Approval : attached

References

- 1. Global initiative for chronic obstructive lung disease updated 2014
- Sundeep Salvi ,Anurag Agarwal:India Needs a National COPD Prevention and Control Programme : Journal of Association of Physians India Vol 60 , February 2012
- Roig M, Eng J, Road J, Reid W. Falls in patients with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: A call for further research. Respiratory Medicine. 2009;103(9):1257-1269.
- 4. Maria M, Beauchamp D, Roger S : Balance assessment and treatment in individuals with COPD. Respiratory Medicine, December 20 2012.
- Susan B. O'Sullivan. Examination of Motor Function: Motor Control and Learning. Physical Rehabilitation. 5thed; Philadelphia: F.A. Davis; 2007; 249–251.
- Beauchamp M, Brooks D, Goldstein R. Deficits in postural control in individuals with COPD emerging evidence for an important secondary impairment. Multidisciplinary Respiratory Medicine 2010;5(6):417
- Roig M, Eng J, MacIntyre D, Road J, Reid W. Postural Control Is Impaired in People with COPD: An Observational Study. Physiotherapy Canada. 2011;63(4):423-431.
- Roig M, Eng J, Road J, Reid W. Falls in patients with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: A call for further research. Respiratory Medicine. 2009;103(9):1257-1269.
- 9. Janssens L, Brumagne S, McConnell A, Claeys

K, Pijnenburg M, Burtin C et al. Proprioceptive Changes Impair Balance Control in Individuals with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease. PLoS ONE 8(3): e57949. doi:10.1371/journal. pone.00579492013.

- Beauchamp M, O'Hoski S, Goldstein R, Brooks D. Effect of Pulmonary Rehabilitation on Balance in Persons with Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease. Archives of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 2010;91(9):14601465.
- KevinM, Guskiewicz, Scott E, Stephen W : Postural Stability and Neuropsychological Deficits After Concussion in Collegiate Athletes . Journal of Athletic Training 2001;36(3):263–273
- Mark E Halstead, MD, Kelvin D, Clinical Report on Sport-Related Concussion in Children and Adolescents .American Academics of Pediatrics September 2010
- Grant I ,Michel S. : Normative Data for the Balance Error Scoring System in Adults ; Hindawi Publishing Corporation Rehabilitation Research and Practice Volume 2013.
- 14. Phillip A. Gribble, Jay Hertel, ; Phil Plisky Using the Star Excursion Balance Test to Assess Dynamic Postural-Control Deficits and Outcomes in Lower Extremity Injury: A Literature and Systematic Review Journal of Athletic Training 2012;47(3):339–357
- Philip J ,Mitchell J ,Thomas W, Frank B : Star Excursion Balance Test as a Predictor of Lower Extremity Injury in High School Basketball Players
 : Journal of Orthopaedic and Sports Physical Therapy, Volume 36 , Number 12 , December 2006.
- Thomas M. Susco, Tamara C. Valovich McLeod, Bruce M. Gansneder, Sandra J. Shultz ; Balance Recovers Within 20 Minutes After Exertion as Measured by the Balance Error Scoring System ; Journal of Athletic Training 2004;39(3):241–246.
- Jay Hertel, Rebecca A. Braham, Sheri A. Hale, Lauren C. Olmsted-Kramer ; Simplifying the Star Excursion Balance Test: Analyses of Subjects With and Without Chronic Ankle Instability ; Journal of Orthopaedic and Sports Physical Therapy Volume 36, Number 3, March 2006.

- Ozge A, Atis S, Sevim S. Subclinical peripheral neuropathy associated with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Electromyogr Clin Neurophysiol. 2001; 41:185–91. [PubMed: 11402511.
- Riancho JA, González Macías J, Del Arco C, et al. Vertebral compression fractures and mineral metabolism in chronic obstructive lung disease. Thorax. 1987; 42:962–6. [PubMed: 3438885] 104.
- Rabe KF, Hurd S, Anzueto A, et al. Global strategy for the diagnosis, management, and prevention of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: GOLD executive summary. Am J Respir Crit Care Med. 2007; 176:532–55. [PubMed: 17507545.
- Lee TA, Weiss KB. Fracture risk associated with inhaled corticosteroid use in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Am J Respir Crit Care Med. 2004; 169:855–9. [PubMed: 14711795.
- 22. Rodriguez-Roisin R. Toward a consensus definition for COPD exacerbations. Chest. 2000; 117:398s–401s. [PubMed: 10843984.
- J R Hurst, J A Wedzicha ; Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: the clinical management of an acute exacerbation ; Postgrad Med J 2004;80:497– 505. doi: 10.1136/pgmj.2004.019182.
- 24. M I Polkey ; Peripheral muscle weakness in COPD ; Thorax 2003 .
- 25. Harry R Gosker, Maurice P Zeegers, Emiel F M Wouters, Annemie M W J Schols ; Muscle fibre type shifting in the vastus lateralis of patients with COPD is associated with disease severity: a systematic review and meta-analysis ; Thorax 2007;62:944–949. doi: 10.1136/thx.2007.078980.
- 26. Gajanan S Gaude, Ravi Savadatti, Jyothi Hattiholi ; Postural correction for kyphosis improves the dyspnea index and pulmonary functions in patients with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: A randomized trial over 12 weeks ; International Journal of Health and Allied Sciences • Vol. 3 • Issue 1 • Jan-Mar 201444.
- Mientjes M, Frank J. Balance in chronic low back pain patients compared to healthy people under various conditions in upright standing. Clinical Biomechanics. 1999;14(10):710716

 Michel, d etal ; Balance is impaired in people with COPD ; Gait and posture , 31 , 2010 . Impaired Skeletal Muscle Endurance Related to Physical Inactivity and Altered Lung Function in COPD Patients. Journal of Cardiopulmonary Rehabilitation. 1999;19(3):195.

Scapular and Pelvic PNF Pattern for Female Physical Education Students with Low Back Pain

Pooja Saxena¹, Senthilkumar Thiyagarajan²

¹Post Graduate Student, ²Professor; Department of Musculoskeletal and Sports, Physiotherapy, The Oxford College of Physiotherapy, Bangalore

Abstract

Background: - Physical education students are at greater risk of low back pain due to physical activity that put a lot of stress on the lumbar spine, such as gymnastics, wrestling, rowing, diving, and football. PNF training is one of the interventions that are less investigated in the management of LBP.

Purpose: - The purpose of this study was to determine whether exercises using proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation (PNF) scapular and pelvic patterns might decrease the pain index and increase the lumbar flexibility of female physical education students with low back pain.

Subjects & Methods: - A total of 40 female undergraduates with low back pain who meets the inclusion and exclusion criteria are recruited for the study.

Methodology: - 20 were allotted to Experimental group who received scapular and pelvic pattern of PNF along with conventional strengthening exercises and another 20 was allotted to Control group who received conventional strengthening exercises alone.

Outcome Measures: - Numerical Pain Rating Scale (NPRS), Modified-Modified Schober Scale (MMST) and Oswestry Disability Questionnaire (ODI).

Results: - results showed that both the groups improved almost equally in lumbar flexion and extension ranges but the improvement was considerably significant on NPRS and Modified Oswestry Disability Index was found to be significantly effective in experimental group which was p<0.001.

Conclusion: - This study showed that PNF can be used to improve pain index rating and lumbar flexibility. The findings indicate that the experimental group experienced greater improvement than the control group by participating in the PNF lumbar stabilization.

Keywords: - PNF, Physical education, NPRS, ODI, MMST, Lumber stabilization

Introduction

Low back pain is a very common health problem worldwide and a major cause of disability - affecting performance at work and general well-being. Low back pain is classified as acute, sub-acute, or chronic according to the duration of symptoms⁷. The 'low back' was defined as the area on the posterior aspect of the body from the lower margin of the 12th ribs to the lower gluteal folds⁹ Chronic low back pain is normally consistent back pain experienced for more than 12 weeks¹⁶. More than 80% of the world population experiences low back pain at least once, and 15% of that 80% suffer from chronic low back pain due to unrecovered symptoms⁸. Though several risk factors have been identified (including occupational posture, depressive moods, obesity, body height and age. The lifetime prevalence of non-specific (common) low back pain is estimated at 60% to 70% in industrialized countries. LBP prevalence in young undergraduates (< 30 years) approximating 30–40%, with up to60% of LBP events in this age group result from work-related injuries⁹.

Although back pain is not the most common injury, it is one of the most challenging for the sports physician to diagnose and treat. Factors predisposing the young athlete to back injury include the growth sport, abrupt increases in training intensity or frequency, improper technique, unsuitable sports equipment, and leg-length inequality. Poor strength of the back extensor and abdominal musculature, and inflexibility of the lumbar spine, hamstrings and hip flexor muscles may contribute to chronic low back pain. Excessive lifting and twisting may produce sprains and strains, the most common cause of low back pain in adolescents. The relationship between sports and LBP in adolescents appears to be curvilinear, and all levels of physical activity are associated with an increased risk of LBP in adolescents and special risks are posed by activities that put a lot of stress on the lumbar spine, such as gymnastics, wrestling, rowing, diving, and football¹⁰⁻¹³. The biggest problem of low back pain is lumbar instability¹⁴. Unbalanced mobilization order among stability muscles and mobility muscles, as well as muscle length, causes low back pain¹⁵.

For patients with low back pain, deep muscle exercise is required to counteract muscle atrophy and damage to the deep muscles¹⁶. It was found that patients with low back pain experienced a mobilization delay in their deep muscles, which generates activation and contraction before the movement of the limbs¹⁷.

For lumbar region stability, strengthening and cocontraction of the multifidus and transverse abdominis (TA), which are deep stability muscles, and the erector spinae (ES) and abdominal muscles, which are superficial stabilizer muscles, are required.¹⁸

In recent years, the trunk stability approach has been widely used as a method of spine treatment, and many efforts have been made to objectively prove the effect. Among the exercises for trunk muscle activity of patients with low back pain, the effect of ball exercise has been reported to comprehensively improve muscle strength, endurance, and flexibility, as well as strengthen body reflexes, sense of balance and proprioception¹⁹. In addition, Stanton et al.²⁰ reported that the Swiss ball exercise is an effective stability exercise for trunk core muscles.

PNF has been recommended for sensory-motor control training, as well as for stimulating lumbar

muscle proprioception²¹. Proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation is a concept of treatment whose underlying philosophy is that all human beings, including those with disabilities, have untapped existing potential (Kabat 1950)¹. PNF involves stretching, resisted movement, traction and approximation to ameliorate muscle decline, disharmony, atrophy and joint movement limitations. Recently, it has been used in orthopaedic diseases of bones and joints (like lower back, neck and shoulder pain), sports related trauma. The scapular muscles control or influence the function of the cervical and thoracic spine. Proper function of the upper extremities and trunk requires both motion and stability of the scapula. Pelvic motion and stability are required for proper function of the trunk and the lower extremities. Anterior depression and posterior elevation of scapula helps in activating trapezius, levator scapulae, rhomboids, serratus anterior, pectoralis minor and major, whereas anterior elevation and posterior depression of pelvic helps in activation of internal and external oblique abdominal muscles, contralateral internal and external oblique abdominal muscles².

Previous studies recommended PNF, which may stimulate the proprioceptive senses of the lumbar region muscles and is useful for training sensory-motor regulation and balance²². When PNF exercises are performed correctly, the client will eventually adapt them into their everyday movements, thereby altered postures and habits putting chronic strain on the muscles, causing soreness, stress and eventually leading to injury will be corrected²³.

Methodology and Findings

Source of data

YMCA College of Physical Education, Nrapathunga road, Bangalore, India.

Method of collection of data:

Population	: Female Collegiate students
Sampling	: Convenience sampling
Sample size	: 40
Type of study	: Pre- post experimental study
Duration of study	: 6 months

Inclusion criteria:

- Subjects with LBP
- Age 18 30 year

• Undergraduate female students of sports and physical education institute are included in this study

Exclusion criteria:

• Acute traumatic injuries of vertebrae, pelvic and scapula

- Rotator cuff tear
- Shoulder complex fractures

- Neurological disorder
- Vertebral fixation
- Surgery of spine, pelvic and shoulder

Materials Required

- Pen
- Paper
- Couch
- Inch-tape

Data Interpretation

Sno	Variable	Group-A		Gro	Unnaired t-test		
5110	Sno	variable	Range	Mean ± SD	Range	Mean ± SD	Unpan eu t-test
1	Age in years	18-27	22.05±3.06	18-28	22.30±2.77	t=0.270, p=0.788, NS	

NS-Not significant. i.e.>0.05.

The table 1 presents the outcomes of age in years of female undergraduate students of sports and physical education. In group-A the subjects were ranging within the age of 18-27 years with mean 22.05 and SD of 3.06. In group-B the subjects were ranging within the age of 18-28 years with mean 22.30 and SD of 2.77. The unpaired t-test was carried to compare the means, which was found to be not significant at 5% level (i.e., p>0.05). It revealed that the baseline characteristic of age was similar in both the groups.

Table-2:]	Range, m	ean and S	D of	outcome	measures	in grou	n-A ((control)	۱.
1 abit-2.1	ixange, m	can and S		outcome	measures	III SI VU	p-1 x ((control)	•

			Group-A	Paired t- test/			
		Pre test			Post test		
Sno	Outcome measures	Outcome measures Range M	Mean ±SD	Range	Mean ±SD	Wilcoxon test	p-value
1	NPRS	5.50-8.25	6.73±0.77	2.25-500	3.81±0.760	z=3.923*	p=0.001

Table-1: Range, mean and SD of age of the female undergraduate students of sports and physical education.

2	ODI	22-40	30.00±6.42	14-22	18.50±1.05	z=3.628*	p=0.001
3	Flexion	5.20-6.40	5.74±0.37	5.5-6.5	6.00±0.35	t=9.133*	p=0.001
4	Extension	2-3.50	2.70±0.43	2.4-3.6	2.91±0.38	t=2.633*	p=0.0 16

Cont... Table-2: Range, mean and SD of outcome measures in group-A (control).

Note: * denotes –Significant (p<0.05). z- Wilcoxon test, t-paired t-test

The above table-2 shows the outcomes in group-A (control). In pre-test numerical pain rating scale score was ranging 5.50 to 8.25 with mean 6.73 and SD of 0.77 but in post-test, it was ranging within 2.25-5.00 with mean 3.81 and SD 0.76. The non -parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the Wilcoxon test was carried out and it was found to be significant at

p=0.001 (p<0.05). On other hand regarding the outcome measure of Oswestry Disability Index (ODI) was ranging within 722-40 with mean 30.00 and SD 0.37 in pre-test. But, in post-test it was ranged within 5.5-6.5 with mean 6.00 and SD 0.35. The non-parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the Wilcoxon test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05).

In pre-test, the flexion ranging from 5.20-6.40 with mean 5.74 and SD of 0.37 but in post-test, flexion was ranging within 5.5-6.5 with mean 6.00and SD of 0.35. The parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the paired t-test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05). On other hand regarding the outcome measure of extension was from 2-3.5 with men 2.70 and SD of 0.43 but, in post-test it was ranging within 2.4-3.6 with mean 2.91 and SD 0.38. The parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the paired t-test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05).

It evidenced that the subjects in control group administered with conventional treatment strengthening exercise reduced the pain, disability and increased the flexion and extension.

			Group-B(E	Paired			
Sno	Outcome measures	Pre test		Post test		t- test/ Wilcoxon	p-value
		Range	Mean ±SD	Range	Mean ±SD	test	
1	NPRS	3.5-6.25	4.87±0.90	1-3	2.11±0.58	z=3.927*	P<0.001
2	ODI	24-40	31.90±5.56	10-18	12.70±2.36	z=3.928*	P<0.001
3	Flexion	5.20-6.40	5.69±0.41	5.5-6.8	6.08±0.34	t=5.940*	P<0.001
4	Extension	2.20-3.40	2.67±0.23	2.4-3.5	2.93±0.29	t=6.504*	P<0.001

Table-3: Range, mean and SD of outcome measures in group-B (Experimental).

Note: * denotes -Significant (p<0.05). z- Wilcoxon test, t-paired t-test

The above table-2 shows the pre and post-test outcomes in group-B (experimental). In pre-test numerical pain rating scale score was ranging 3.5-6.25 with mean 4.87 and SD of 0.90but in post-test, it was ranging within 1-3 with mean 2.11 and SD 0.58. The non -parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the Wilcoxon test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05). On other hand regarding the outcome measure of Oswestry Disability Index (ODI) was ranging within 24-40 with mean 31.90 and SD 5.56 in pre-test. But, in post-test it was ranged within10-18 with mean 6.08 and SD 0.34. The non-parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the Wilcoxon test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05).

In pre-test, the flexion ranging from 5.20-6.40 with mean 5.69 and SD of 0.41 but in post-test, flexion was ranging within 5.5-6.8 with mean 6.08 and SD of 0.34. The parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the paired t-test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05). On other hand regarding the outcome measure of extension was from 2.20-3.40 with men 2.67 and SD of 0.23 but, in post-test it was ranging within 2.4-3.5 with mean 2.93 and SD 0.29. The parametric test for comparison of dependent outcomes, the paired t-test was carried out and it was found to be significant at p=0.001 (p<0.05).

It evidenced that the subjects in experimental group administered with scapular and pelvic PNF with conventional treatment significantly reduced the pain, disability and increased the flexion and extension

		Pr	e-test	Post-test		
Sl.no	Outcome measures	Group-A	Group-B	Group-A	Group-B	
		Mean ±SD	Mean ±SD	Mean ±SD	Mean ±SD	
1	NPRS	6.73±0.77	4.87±0.90	3.81±0.760	2.11±0.58	
2	ODI	30.00±6.42	31.90±5.56	18.50±1.05	12.70±2.36	
3	Flexion	5.74±0.37	5.69±0.41	6.00±0.35	6.08±0.34	
4	Extension	2.70±0.43	2.67±0.23	2.91±0.38	2.93±0.29	
Between group comparison Unpaired t-test		 NPRS z=1.401, p>0.05 NS ODI: z=1.027, p>0.05, NS flexion: t=0.401, p>0.05, NS Extension: t=0.318, p>0.05, NS 		 NPRS: t=5.074, p<0.001 S ODI: t=4.660, p<0.001, S Flexion: z=0.715, p>0.05, NS Extension: z=0.133, p>0.05, NS 		

Table-4: Comparison of pre and post-test outcome measures in between the groups

S-denotes significant (p < 0.05); NS – not significant (p > 0.05)

The above table-4 presents the outcomes of between group comparisons of outcome measures in between the two groups. The outcome measures were more or similar in pre-test in both groups. The post test scores of numerical pain rating scale sores and Oswestry Disability index were comparably less in experimental group than control group but in case of post-test flexion and extension in experimental group were not significantly different.

Result

It evidenced that though both experimental and control group were individually effective in reducing the pain, disability and improving the function of flexibility and extension, the experimental group is better than control group.

Conclusion

Objective of the study was to find out the efficacy of scapular and pelvic PNF pattern on low back pain and flexibility among female undergraduate students of sports and physical education institutes. This study showed that PNF can be used to improve pain index rating and lumbar flexibility. The findings indicate that the experimental group experienced greater improvement than the control group by participating in the PNF lumbar stabilization. Hence, the alternate hypothesis is accepted, and null hypothesis is rejected. Both the techniques are almost equal in their clinical effectiveness for improving lumber flexibility and that either of the techniques may be used in clinical practice for improving lumber flexibility.

Ethical Clearance : - Taken from The Oxford College of Physiotherapy

Source of Funding – Self

Conflict of Interest – Nil

References

- S.S Adler. D. Beckers: PNF in practice, 2 editions, 22, Springer, 1999.
- Adler SS, Beckers D, Buck M. PNF in practice- An illustrated guide.3rd edition. New Delhi: Springer; 2008
- 3. Health EFOR. Delhi Education for Health. 2016 ;(OCTOBER 2013).

- Dietz B: International PNF Basic Course Book. Gwangjoo, Korea, 2006
- 5. Westerholt F: International PNF Basic Course Book. Daejeon, Korea, 2005
- 6. Adler SS, Beckers D, Buck M: PNF in practice an illustrated guide, 2nd ed. Springer-Verlag, 2002
- Wheeler AH: Diagnosis and management of low back pain and sciatica. Am Fam Physician, 1995, 52: 1333–1341
- Liddle SD, Baxter GD, and Gracey JH: Exercise and chronic low back pain: what works? Pain, 2004, 107: 176–190
- Hoy D, March L, Brooks P, Blyth F, Woolf A, Bain C, et al. The global burden of low back pain: estimates from the Global Burden of Disease 2010 study.
- Auvinen J, Tammelin T, Zitting P, Taimela S, Karppinen J. Associations of physical activity and inactivity with low back pain in adolescents. Scand J Med Sci Sports. 2008; 18:188–94.
- Skoffer B, Foldspang A. Physical activity and lowback pain in schoolchildren. Eur Spine J. 2008; 17:373–9.
- Iwamoto J, Abe H, Tsukimura Y, Wakano K. Relationship between radiographic abnormalities of lumbar spine and incidence of low back pain in high school and college football players: a prospective study. Is J Sports Med. 2004; 32:781– 6.
- Kolt GS, Kirkby RJ. Epidemiology of injury in elite and subelite female gymnasts: a comparison of retrospective and prospective findings. Br J Sports Med. 1999; 33:312–18.
- Panjabi MM: Clinical spinal instability and low back pain. J ElectromyogrKinesiol, 2003, 13: 371– 379
- 15. Comerford MJ, Mottram SL: Functional stability retraining: principles and strategies for managing mechanical dysfunction. Man Ther, 2001, 6: 3–14
- França FR, Burke TN, Hanada ES, et al.: Segmental stabilization and muscular strengthening in chronic low back pain. Clinics, 2010, 65: 1013-1017
- 17. MeziatFilho N, Stantos S, and Rocha RM: Longterm effects of a stabilization exercise therapy for

chronic low back pain. Man Ther, 2009, 14: 444-447

- McGill SM, Grenier S, Kavcic N, et al.: Coordination of muscle activity to assure stability of the lumbar spine. J ElectromyogrKinesiol, 2003, 13: 353–359
- Mori A: Electromyographic activity of selected trunk muscles during stabilization exercises using a gym ball. ElectromyogrClinNeurophysiol, 2004, 44: 57–64
- Stanton R, Reabum PR, Humphries B: The effect of short-term Swiss ball training on core stability and running economy. J Strength Cond Res, 2004, 18: 522–528
- 21. Lee YJ: The effects of the PNF Techniques on lumbar stability and the functional activity in chronic low back pain patients. Department of

Physical Therapy Graduate School of Dongshin University, 2009, pp 1–60.

- 22. Park K, Seo K. The Effects on the Pain Index and Lumbar Flexibility of Obese Patients with Low Back Pain after PNF Scapular and PNF Pelvic Patterns. J PhysTherSci [Internet]. 2014; 26(10):1571–4.
- 23. Kofotolis N, Kellis E.: Effects of two 4-week proprioceptive neuromuscular facilitation programs on muscle endurance, flexibility, and functional performance in women with chronic low back pain. PhysTher, 2006, 86: 1001–1012.
- Manchikanti L. Epidemiology of low back pain. Pain physician. 2000 Apr;3(2):167-92.Motor control exercise for acute non-specific low backiew

Effect of Arch Index of Foot on Dynamic Balance in Healthy Young Adults

Poonam Kulkarni¹, Jyotsna Thosar²

¹Postgraduate Student, ²Assistant Professor of Physiotherapy, G.S Medical College and KEM Hospital, Mumbai, Maharashtra

Abstract

Foot is the most distal segment in lower extremity chain and represents a relatively small base of support upon which body maintains balance. There are three types of foot postures which are seen 1) Pes planus 2) Pes cavus 3) Neutral. So, it is likely that these deficits in foot posture may impair the foot function and predispose to loss of balance.

Aim:- The aim of the study was to find the effect of Arch Index of foot on dynamic balance.

Method:-It was a cross sectional study on 175 healthy young individuals in the age group of 18-25yrs. Individuals were assessed for Inclusion and Exclusion criteria. Arch index was calculated for both the feet using foot prints with the help of software Auto Cad 2014. Dynamic balance was assessed using Star Excursion Balance Test (SEBT) for both the feet. Normalised SEBT distances were calculated by dividing reach distances in all eight directions by limb length.

Results: Arch index was found to be negatively correlated with normalised SEBT distances in Posterolateral (r= -0.341, p= 0.01) and lateral(r= -0.369, p= 0.01) directions and positively correlated in Anterior(r= 0.296, p= 0.01), and medial (r= 0.296, p= 0.01) directions in pronated foot group. There was no correlation found between Arch index and normalised SEBT distances in any direction for normal arched foot and supinated foot group.

Conclusion:- Increased Arch Index (i.e. >0.26) implies pronated foot posture which affects dynamic balance in Postero lateral and lateral directions of Star Excursion Balance Test (SEBT).

Key words- Arch Index, SEBT, Dynamic Balance

Introduction

The foot consists of three arches, Medial, Lateral longitudinal arches and a Transverse arch, of which the medial longitudinal arch is the largest. Foot can be classified into Pes cavus (Supinated foot or High arched foot), Pes planus (Pronated foot or low arched foot) and Normal arched foot depending on height of medial longitudinal arch.

Corresponding Author:-Dr Poonam Kulkarni, Post Graduate Sudent, G.S. Medical College and KEM Hospital, Lower Parel, Mumbai

Email Id-poonamkulkarni45@gmail.com

The arches of the foot are considered as a twisted osteoligamentous plate, with the metatarsal heads forming horizontally placed anterior edge of the plate, and the calcaneus forming the vertically placed posterior edge.¹These plantar arches are also uniquely adapted to serve the demands of mobility and stability.²

The complex nature of human foot allows it to perform diverse functions. These all functions are accomplished through the deformation of the foot arches, which is controlled by intrinsic and extrinsic foot muscles.³Stability of these arches is necessary for the normal foot function. Recently, the application of core stability concepts to the foot, which was first proposed by Jam⁴ was further expanded describing the subsystems of foot core.³ The foot core system consists of passive, active and neural subsystem.

The passive subsystem of the foot core consists of the bones, ligaments and joint capsules that maintain the arches of the foot³. The active subsystem consists of the extrinsic and intrinsic muscles and tendons that attach on the foot³. The intrinsic foot muscles provide local dynamic support to the arches while extrinsic muscles indirectly help in supporting arches.⁵The neural subsystem consists of the sensory receptors in the plantar fascia, ligaments, joint capsules, muscles and tendons involved in the active and passive subsystems. Recently, it has been suggested that plantar intrinsic muscles might have a role in providing sensory information regarding foot posture via stretch response.³

There are various methods which are available to classify foot posture. Arch Index is one of the reliable and valid method to classify the foot ^{6,7,8,9,10}. Also, it was found to be strongly correlating with Gold standard radiological measures like Normalised Navicular height⁶.

Dynamic balance involves stabilizing the body when the support surface is moving or when the body is moving on a stable surface¹¹.Dynamic balance is required for many day to day activities as well as in complex activities like sports. Dynamic balance is achieved by integrated action of the central and peripheral components of the nervous system^{15,16}.Peripheral components of nervous system consist of somatosensory, visual, and vestibular systems which provide perception of body orientation in space¹¹.Foot form a part of lower limb kinetic control chain which provide part of somatosensory input to maintain balance. The few studies available on this topic have contrasting results.^{25,40} So, study was undertaken to understand effect of foot posture on Dynamic balance.

Method

Materials:- Black ink and sponge, Graph paper, Measuring tape, Marker pen, Stop watch, Auto Cad 2014

Study procedure :- 175 Healthy young individuals were chosen from Tertiary care center. Procedure explained to all individuals and written consent taken. Subjects assessed for inclusion and exclusion criteria.

Inclusion criteria : Asymptomatic young

individuals in the age group of 18-25 years.

Exclusion criteria :Any past history of injury or treatment of the lower limb, Any neurological or vascular deficit affecting balance, Pain and swelling near ankle and foot, Visual or vestibular impairment.

For calculating Arch Index foot prints were taken for both feet. While taking foot print subject was told to take equal weight on both the feet. Foot axis was drawn on the foot print from center of heel to tip of the second toe. Perpendiculars were drawn to the anterior and posterior aspects of footprint excluding toes. Then foot axis was divided into three equal parts^{6,7}. Then these footprints were scanned using HP Inkjet scanner. Using Auto Cad 2014, areas of the three parts were calculated. Arch Index is obtained by dividing area of middle section by area of whole foot print. The foot was classified as normal if AI lies between 0.21-0.26, pronated if AI was greater than 0.26 and supinated if AI was less than 0.21^{6,7}.



For SEBT, star shaped grid was prepared on the floor using sticking tapes. The grid consists of eight lines of 1m extending out at 45 degrees from each other. Subjects were allowed to practice reaching in each of the eight directions three times with each leg before the actual trial. Then 5 minutes rest pause was given to avoid learning effect. Subjects were asked to stand in the middle of the grid with right foot first. Subjects began with anterior direction and progressed counter clockwise, Similarly, test for Left leg done. Three test trials given each leg and distance is noted. Normalised SEBT distances were found out by dividing each of the distance with limb length of respective leg²³



Findings

Each foot was taken as one individual subject making total of 350 (175 right,175 left feet). The Arch indices of stance feet correlated with SEBT reaching distances of contralateral reaching limb in 8 directions.

The data was assessed for normality using the Shapiro-Wilk's test. The data was not normally distributed. So, non parametric tests, i.e spearman's rho correlation test were used for all the analysis.

Table 1: CORRELATION BETWEEN ARCH INDEX	X AND NORMALISED SEBT DISTANCES:-
---	-----------------------------------

SEBT Direction	Supinated Foot	Pronated Foot	Normal Arched Foot
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho
Anterior	r = -0.260,	r=.296	r=.149
	p=0.033	p=0.01	p=0.66
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho
Anteromedial	r=-0.203	r=0.277,	r=0.171
	p=0.1	p=0.001	p=0.035

	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho		
Medial	r=-0.176	r=0.296	r=0.134		
	p=0.153	p=0.001	p=0.099		
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho		
Posteromedial	r=-0.142	r= 0.041	r=0.168		
	p=0.250	p=0.639	p=0.138		
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho		
Posterior	r= -0.093	r=0.041	r=0.202		
	p=0.454	p=0.663	p=0.012		
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho		
Posterolateral	r=0.260	r= -0.341	r=0.207		
	p=0.033	p=0.01	p=0.10		
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho		
Lateral	r=0.201	r= -0.369	r=0.266		
	p=0.102	p=0.01	p=0.01		
	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho	Spearman Rho		
Anterolateral	r=-0.209	r=0.156	r=0.208		
	p=0.089	p=0.75	p=0.01		
* Highlighted in Orange & yellow are the values referring to weak +ve & -ve correaltion respectively					

Cont... Table 1: CORRELATION BETWEEN ARCH INDEX AND NORMALISED SEBT DISTANCES:-

Discussion

The study included 175 subjects (350 feet) in the age group of 18-25 yrs. Out of 350 feet in this study, 130 were pronated, 67 were supinated and 153 were normal arched.

A weak negative correlation was found between pronated foot of stance limb and reach distance by reaching limb in Posterolateral and Lateral direction. These findings are partially in consistence with the previous studies in which they have found that pronators reached farther SEBT distance compared to neutrals and supinators in Anterior direction and farther than neutral but not supinator in Anteromedial direction²⁴. Another study comparing dynamic balance between normal and flat feet individuals found that SEBT reach distance was significantly less for the flat feet individuals in Lateral direction which is similar to our findings²⁵.

A recent study on relationship with balance, foot posture and foot size in students of physical education school found a small negative correlation between dynamic balance and foot posture³⁶.

Under normal conditions, somatosensory and visual systems are primary mediators of postural awareness and balance control¹⁷. Balance responses are task and context dependent and are triggered by CNS weighting based on availability, timing and accuracy of specific sensory inputs³⁷.Reaching in posterior SEBT directions lacks visual awareness¹⁸.Hence,as per sensory weighting theory in case of decreased contribution of visual system increased demand is put on somatosensory system.

Somatosensory afferents are provided by peripheral mechanoreceptors (ie skin, ligaments, muscles, and joints receptors)¹⁹.Since,our study included healthy young individuals and also we had excluded subjects according our exclusion criteria, cutaneous afferents and proprioceptive afferents from ligaments and joints were normal. The possible altered afferent could be from mechanoreceptor of foot muscles.

In case of pronated foot posture, foot tend to collapse on the medial aspect. This affects the length tension relationship of intrinsic foot muscles, they become lengthened and weak. In the recent study, it is been stated that foot intrinsic muscles not only supports medial longitudinal arch but also provide immediate sensory information via stretch response about changes in foot posture³. Thus, the lengthened intrinsic muscles possibly are unable to perform this sensory function efficiently in pronated foot.

This study has also got negative correlation for only lateral and posterolateral and not for other posterior reach direction which also lacks visual awareness. The reason behind it could be balance strategies used for different task are different depending upon nature of task¹⁷.In case of SEBT lateral and posterolateral reach direction, reach involves rotatory component of reaching limb which tend to displace center of gravity far outside base of support making task difficult as compared to other posterior reach direction which does not involve any rotatory component.

The small positive correlation was seen in Anterior and Medial directions for pronator group in this study. The reason behind it could be, pronated foot leads to widened base of support which might have some advantage. Thus, it was suggested in one of the study that mediolateral stability is slightly better in pronated foot as compared to neutrals³⁸.Additionally,in case of Anterior and Medial direction, visual system also contributes to balance through feedback mechanism¹⁹.So,probably because of contribution of visual system, somatosensory system is not stressed to that extent for reaching in Anterior and Medial directions. Therefore, pronated foot might have affected less for these directions.

There is no correlation found between reach distance in any direction and Arch index for supinated foot group. This could be because of unequal number of pronated, supinated and normal arched feet. The finding of less supinated feet in this study can be attributed to the fact that slightly pronated foot posture is common in adult population⁴¹.

Conclusion

Increased Arch Index (i.e. >0.26) i.e. Pronated foot posture affects dynamic balance in Posterolateral and lateral directions of Star Excursion Balance Test (SEBT)

Clinical Implication:- Foot posture should be considered while designing rehab protocol for even normal athletes. Balance training specific to foot posture specifically for pronated foot should be included.

Conflict of Interest: Nil

Source of Funding: Self

Ethical Clearance: G.S Medical College Ethics Committee

Referencess

- Darlene Heartling, Randolph Kessler. Management of Common Musculoskeletal Disorders.4th Edition. Lippincott Williams and Wilkins
- Cynthia CN, Pamela KL. Joint Structure and Function. 4th edition. Jaypee Brothers.
- McKeon PO, Hertel J, Bramble D, et al. The foot core system: a new paradigm for understanding intrinsic foot muscle function.Br J Sports Med 2015; 49:290.
- Jam B. Evaluation and retraining of the intrinsic foot muscles for pain syndromes related to abnormal control of pronation.October10,2013. http://www. aptei.com/articles/pdf/IntrinsicMuscles.pdf
- 5) McKenzie J. The foot as a half-dome. Br Med J 1955;1: 1068–9.
- Hironmoy Roy, Kalyan Bhattacharya, Samar Deb and Kuntala Ray Arch Index: An Easier Approach for Arch Height (A Regression Analysis) Al Ame en J Med Sci (2012)5 (2) :137 -146
- Cavangah PR. and Rodgers MM. The arch index: An useful measure from footprint. *J Biomechanics* 1987; 20: 547-51.
- McCrory JL, Young MJ, Boulton AJM, Cavanagah PR. Arch index as a predictor of arch height. *Foot* 1997; 7:79-81
- 9) George S Murley, Hylton B Menz, Karl B Landorf.A protocol for classifying normal- and flat-arched foot posture for research studies using clinical and radiographic measurements. Journal of Foot and Ankle Research 2009, 2:22
- 10) Carolyn Kissner, Allen Colby. Therapeutic Exercise.^{6th} edition
- De Noronha M, Franca LC, Haupenthal A, Nunes GS. Intrinsic predictive factors for ankle sprain in active university students: a prospective study. J Med Sci Sports.2012
- 12) McGuine T. Sports injuries in high school athletes: a review of injury-risk and injury-prevention research. *Clin J Sports Med.* 2006;16:488-499.
- Plisky PJ, Rauh MJ, Kaminski TW, Underwood FB. Star Excursion Balance Test as a predictor of lower extremity injury in high school basketball players. *J Orthop Sports Phys Ther*. 2006;36:911-919
- 15) Alexander KM, La Pier TL. Differences in static balance and weight distribution between normal subjects and subjects with chronic unilateral low back pain. *J Orthop Sports Phys Ther*. 1998;28:378– 383.
- 16) Riley PO, Mann RW, Hodge WA. Modelling of the biomechanics of posture and balance. *J Biomech*. 1990;23: 503–506.
- Huxham FE, Goldie PA and Patla AE. Theoretical consideration in balance assessment, Australian Journal of Physiotherapy, 2001, 47:89-100
- 18) Garrett F.Coughlan, Karl Fullam, Eamonn Delahunt, Conor Gissane, Brian M. Caulfield. A Comparison Between Performance on Selected Directions of the Star Excursion Balance Test and the Y Balance Test. Journal of Athletic Training 2012;47(4):366–371
- 19) Riemann BL, Lephart SM. The sensorimotor system, part II: the role of proprioception in motor control and functional joint stability. J Athl Train.

2002;37(1):80-84

- 20) Kinzey SJ, Armstrong CW. The reliability of the star excursion test in assessing dynamic balance. J Orthop Sports Phys Ther. 1998; 27: 356–60.
- Hertel J, Miller SJ, Denegar CR. Intratester and intertester reliability during the Star Excursion Balance Test. J Sport Rehabil. 2000; 9(2): 104–116.
- 22) Munro AG, Herrington LC. Between-session reliability of the star excursion balance test. Phys Ther Sport. 2010; 11(4):128–132.
- 23) Phillip A. Gribble and Jay Hertel, Considerations for Normalizing Measures of the Star Excursion Balance Test, Measurement in Physical Education And Exercise Sciences,7(2), 89–100, 2003
- 24) Karen PC, Michael EB, Brunet ME, Bruce M, Gansneder BM, Shultz
- SJ. Effects of Pronated and Supinated Foot Postures on Static and Dynamic Postural Stability. J Athl Train. 2005; 40:41-46.
- 25) Ajit Dabholkar, Ankita Shah, Sujata Yardi. Comparison of Dynamic Balance Between Flat Feet and Normal Individuals Using Star Excursion Balance Test. Indian Journal of Physiotherapy & Occupational Therapy ,July-Sept.,2012,Vol. 6, No. 3
- 26) Tiberio D. Pathomechanics of structural foot deformities. Phys Ther. 1988;68:184
- 27) Neely FG. Biomechanical risk factors for exercise related lower limb injuries. Sports Med. 1998;26:395-413
- 28) D A Winter. Human balance and posture control during standing and walking. Gait and Posture.1995.3.No.4
- 29) Fan Y, Fan Y, Li Z, Lv C, Luo D (2011) Natural Gaits of the Non-Pathological Flat Foot and High-Arched Foot. PLoS ONE 6(3): e17749 doi:10.1371/ journal.pone.001774
- 30) George S Murley, Hylton B Menz and Karl B Landor. Foot posture influences the electromyographic activity of selected lower limb muscles during gait. *Journal of Foot and Ankle Research* 2009, 2:35
- 31) Adrienne E. Hunt , Richard M. Smith. Mechanics and control of the fla versus normal foot during the stance phase of walking. Clinical Biomechanics 19

140Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4(2004) 391–397and sports. Academic Journals,

- 32) Hunt A.E., Fahey, A.J., Smith, R.M., 2000. Static measures of calcaneal deviation and arch angle as predictors of rearfoot motion during walking. Aust. J.Phys. 46, 9–16.
- 33) Bohannon, R. W. Comfortable and maximum walking speed of adults aged 20-79 years: reference values and determinants." Age Ageing.1997;26(1):15,Healthy Adults, Rehab Measures Team,2010
- 34) Juile Tison. Meaningful Gait Speed Improvement During the First 60 Days Poststroke: Minimal Clinically Important Difference. 10 m walk test,EAppendix.Phys Ther. 2010 Feb; 90(2):196– 208.
- *35) David J Magee. Orthopaedic physical Assessment. 5th edition. Elsevier.*
- 36) Gonul Irez. The relationship with balance, foot posture and foot size in school of physical education

Vol.9,pp.551-554,2014

- 37) Schmitz, Thomas, O'Sullivan, Susan, Fulk, George. Physical Rehabilitation.6th edition,FA Davis
- 38) Ching T, Bing Y, Vicki SM, Michael TG. Comparison of different structural foot types for measures of standing postural control. J Orthop Sports Phys Ther.2006;36(12):942-953.20
- 39) Hertel J, Gay MR, Denegar CR. Differences in postural control during single leg stance among healthy individuals with different foot types. J Athl Train. 2002;37:129-132.4
- 40) Olmsted LC, Hertel J. Influence of foot type and orthotics on static and dynamic postural control. *Sport Rehabil.* 2004;13: 54-66.
- 41) Anthony CR, Yvonne ZC, Hylton BM. Normative values for the foot posture index. J Foot Ankle Res. 2008;1:6

A Study on Prevalence of Musculoskeletal and Work Related Risk Factors among Fish Processing Industry Workers in Mangalore: - A Community based Survey

Priyanka Nayak¹, Shyam Krishnan², Vivek Vijayan Menon³, Vijaya Kumar⁴

¹Assistant Professor, Nitte Institute of Physiotherapy, Nitte University Deralakatte- Mangalore, Karnataka-India, ²Assistant Professor, Department of Physiotherapy, Kasturba Medical College, Mangalore, Karnataka-India, ³Assistant Professor, Nitte Institute of Physiotherapy, Nitte University Deralakatte- Mangalore, Karnataka-India, ⁴Associate Professor and PhD Department of Physiotherapy, Kasturba Medical College, Mangalore, Karnataka-India, India

Abstract

Background: Fishing and fish processing in India is a major industry in coastal states. Job demand in fishing industry involves awkward work postures, repetitive or continuous stresses on a worker's musculoskeletal system which makes them vulnerable for various work-related musculoskeletal disorders (WRMSDs). Several risk factors at workplace and in the work related task have been identified to be strongly associated with WRMSDs, however there is limited retrievable literature identifying these risk factors in people involved fishing and fish processing industry. Objectives: To find out the prevalence and association between WRMSD and task related ergonomic risk factors in fish processing industry. Studydesign: Cross sectional study design. Methods: This cross sectional study was conducted among (n=83) various workers involved in the fish processing industries along the coastal region of Southern Karnataka. NMQ which is a valid and reliable self-administrated questionnaire commonly used to identify WMSDs was distributed among the workers at their worksite. Subjects who had completed the NMQ with more than 90% response rate were included for data analysis, and task analysis was done by using REBA which was evaluated through tripod mounted motion capture camera. Results: The prevalence data in this study was collected using Nordic musculo-skeletal questionnaire, in which it was found that musculo-skeletal issues pertaining to neck and upper back were the most prevalent (52.9% each) in the period of past 12 months followed by lower back (51.8%), knee (42.4%), shoulder (31.8%), elbow (20%), wrist (16.5%), ankle (15.3%) and Hips (7.1%). Of all the occupational categories analysed, the mean REBA score was the highest for cutting (6.88+.32), whereas all the other categories had an identical mean score of 6.0+0 and the difference was found to be very highly significant. Conclusion: This study finding showed the link between adverse effects of inadequate work conditions and musculoskeletal injuries in fishery industry.

Key words: Fishing, Fish industry, workers, musculoskeletal problems

Introduction

Fish processing industries, which include occupational activities such as harvesting, processing and

Corresponding Author: Priyanka Nayak

Assistant Professor, Nitte Institute of Physiotherapy, Nitte University Deralakatte- Mangalore,

Karnataka-India Email: priyankanayak064@gmail.com Phone: +919880041690 marketing sector, have experienced tremendous growth in recent years¹. It is a major source of employment, foreign exchange and income for the livelihood for a large number of people in the coastal areas of India². Fishing and related industries occupy a significant role in the national economy³. The fish processing work involves varied tasks such as sorting (segregate different kinds of fishes), peeling (removing the shells and skins), ring cutting (cutting of processed fishes in the form of a ring). grading (segregate the fishes depending on their weight and sizes), and packing (wrapping either the whole

fishes or the processed fishes by packing paper and put them in boxes) for delivery⁴. Most of the tasks related to fish processing require manual exertion, involving high repetition, awkward postures, continuous force application, and use of various tools and instruments⁵. Other factors which have been found to significantly correlate to occurrence of WRMSD n general worker population are poor relationship with work mates, length of employment, gender, age, inadequate rest period, and various ergonomic stressors⁶. Studies done in India have shown a high prevalence (71%) of pains and discomfort in various areas of the body among female employees in fish processing industries. Upper back was found to be the most vulnerable region followed by, knee, lower back, neck, hand and calf. Nature of the work, psychosocial factors, occupational hazards present in the work environment have been attributed to the occurrence of work-related musculoskeletal disorder among workers involved in fish processing industry in India⁷⁻⁸. A study done among fish trimmers of a fish processing industry in Ghana showed the prevalence of musculoskeletal problems and sick leaves due to musculoskeletal injuries to be common in workers9. Another study done in Sweden to identify the association between various risk factors and disorders of neck and upper limbs among women in the fish processing industries found 35% prevalence for neck and upper extremity conditions in exposed women. They also found a pronounced dose response relationship between disorders of neck or shoulders and duration of employment¹⁰⁻¹¹. Though fish processing, for local consumption as well as for export has been a major employment generator among people of either gender along the coastal regions, to date there have been no published literature studies on work related musculo-skeletal issues in these population¹²⁻¹³. Aim of this study to find the association between ergonomic risk factors and prevalent musculoskeletal conditions in fish processing industry population.

Materials and Method

A Cross-Sectional was conducted among workers working in fish processing industries for minimum of one year with age ranging from 19 to 60 years both male and female who are free from history of musculoskeletal problems based on validated kannada version of Nordic musculoskeletal questionnaire. Prior to data collection ethical clearence was obtained (IEC KMC MLR 11-16/295). Upon approval, a total of 5 fish processing centres were approached for permission from the administrative authorities to recruit subjects for the study. On obtaining permission from authorities all subjects within each centre were explained about the study in detail. Those subjects willing to participate were screened based on inclusion and exclusion criteria upon signing a written informed consent, and those who were eligible were recruited for study. Inclusion criteria were: Age ranging between 19 to 60, both male and female, workers with one year of experience in fish processing industries. Exclusion criteria were: Subjects with history of or diagnosed with musculoskeletal disorders not related to work, subjects who have undergone previous surgical interventions for musculoskeletal conditions.

Phase I :

Nordic musculoskeletal questionnaire

A validated kannada version of the Nordic musculoskeletal questionnaire were distributed among the participants and they were instructed on how to complete the questionnaire. Those subjects who are illiterate or finding difficult to comprehend the content of questionnaire were explained and delivered using therapists administered Nordic musculoskeletal questionnaire.

Phase II :

Rapid entire body assessment scale (REBA)

Each occupational task involving fish processing was separately recorded using two tripod mounted motion capture cameras set at an optimal distance so as to capture the image of the entire body of the worker while the task was being performed from two different planes, i.e. Sagittal and Frontal. Photographs and videos obtained were analyzed using Kinovea software (v0. 8.15) and evaluated for risk factor using REBA scale.

SCORE LEVEL	LEVEL OF MSD RISK
1	Low risk, change may be needed
2-3	Negligible risk, no action required
4-7	Medium risk, further investigation, change soon
8-10	High risk, investigate and implement needed
11	Very high risk, implement change

Statistical Analysis: Chisquare test was used to check the strength of association. One way anova was used to check the REBA scores.

Finding

Table 1- Association between task type and prevalence of pathologies

		TASI				
SYMPTOMS	MANIPU	JLATIVE	MATERIAL	HANDLING	CHI SQUARE	p* VALUE
	YES	NO	YES	NO	-	
Neck	51.6%(33)	48.4%(31)	57.1 % (12)	42.9 % (9)	1.98	0.6
Shoulder	48.5%(31)	51.6%(33)	38.1% (8)	61.9%(13)	0.681	0.40
Elbow	65.6%(42)	34.4%(22)	71.4%(15)	28.6%(6)	0.241	0.620
Wrist /hand	65.6%(42)	34.4%(22)	71.4%(15)	28.6%(6)	0.241	0.620
Upper back	46.9%(30)	53.1%(34)	71.4%(15)	28.6%(6)	3.826	0.047
Lower back	59.4%(38)	40.6%(26)	28.6%(6)	71.4%(15)	6.009	0.02
Hips/thighs/b uttocks	9.4% (6)	90.6%(58)	00	100%(21)	2.11	0.05
Knees	50%(32)	50%(32)	19%(4)	81%(17)	6.205	0.014
Ankle/feet	20.3%(130	79.7%(51)	00	100%(21)	5.036	0.014

* Significant < 0.05

Region			% of population	Number of affected subjects
Nach	1 YR		52.9	45
INECK	1 WK		21.2	18
		Rt	18.8	16
	1 YR	Lt	3.5	3
Shouldon		Bt	31.8	27
Shoulder	r		15.3	13
	1 WK	Lt	1.2	1
		Bt	8.2	7
		Rt	20	17
	1 YR	Lt	5.9	5
F 11		Bt	10.6	9
Elbow		Rt	17.6	15
	1 WK		1.2	1
		Bt	3.5	3
		Rt	16.5	14
	1 YR	Lt	3.5	3
Wrist/Hond		Bt	12.9	11
wiist/Hand		Rt	15.3	13
	1 WK	Lt	2.4	2
		Bt	2.4	2
Upper beak	1 YR		52.9	45
Оррег баск	1 WK	-	27.1	23
Lowerback	1 YR		51.8	44
Lower back	1 WK	-	27.1	23
Hip/ Thigh	1 YR		7.1	6
/Buttocks	1 WK	-	7.1	6
Vnoor	1 YR		42.4	36
Knees	1 WK	-	18.8	16
Amiria /E = = t	1 YR		15.3	13
Ankie/Feet	1 WK		11.8	10

Table 2. Prevalence of musculoskeletal problems among study participants

YR; year, WK; week, Lt; left, Rt; right, Bt; both

REGION AFFECTED	NECK		UPPER	BACK	LOWER BACK		
TYPE OF WORK	1 YEAR	1 WK	1YEAR	1 WK	1YEAR	1 WK	
	(n)	(n)	(n)	(n)	(n)	(n)	
Loading and unloading	57.1%	19.04%	71.42%	14.28%	28.6%	9.5%	
	(12)	(4)	(15)	(3)	(6)	(2)	
Cutting	92.30%	23.07%	57.7%	30.8%	69.2%	34.6%	
	(24)	(6)	(1)	(8)	(18)	(9)	
Packing	20%	13.33%	26.7%	26.75%	46.7%	26.7%	
	(3)	(2)	(4)	(4)	(7)	(4)	
Segregating	17%	21.73%	47.8%	34.85	56.5%	34.8%	
	(6)	(5)	(11)	(8)	(13)	(8)	

 Table 3 - Prevalence of Musculoskeletal Pathologies In Various Type Of Work

Table 4 - Prevalence of Musculoskeletal Pathologies In Various Type Of Work

	SHOULDER										
REGION AFFECTED		1 YEAR		1 WK							
TYPE OF WORK	R (n)	L (n)	B (n)	R (n)	L (n)	B (n)					
Loading and unloading	4.76% (1)	14.28% (3)	42.85% (9)	00	14.28% (3)	4.76% (1)					
cutting	11.53% (3)	00	50% (13)	11.53% (3)	0	11.53% (3)					
Packing	66.66% (10)	00	13.3% (2)	60% (9)	0	10.33% (2)					
Segregating	8.69% (2)	00	13.04% (3)	4.34% (1)	0	4.34% (1)					

		Neck Po Sco	osition ore	Trur	ık Pos	sition	Score	Le	egs	Lool Post	k Up ture		Force	!	Sco	re A
	Group	+1	+2	+1	+2	+3	+4	+1	+2	+2	+6	+0	+1	+2	+5	+6
Number of Subjects	Manipulative	00	64	00	00	00	64	00	64	9	55	23	41	00	41	23
_	Material Handling	00	21	00	00	00	21	00	21	4	17	00	21	00	21	00
	Total	00	85	00	00	00	85	00	85	13	72	23	62	00	62	23

TABLE 5: ERGONOMIC RISK FACTOR AMONG TASK TYPE USING REBA ANALYSIS

Gro	Group	Upj Po	per Ai ositioi	rm 1	Lov Ar Posi	ver m tion	W	rist	Tal E Sco	ble 5 ore	Cour Foi	oling rce	Tal C	ole	Re	ba Activ Score	vity
	· · r	+1	+2	+3	+1	+2	+1	+2	+4	+5	+1	+2	+5	+6	+6	+7	
Subjects	Manipulative	00	00	64	00	64	23	41	41	23	64	00	41	23	41	23	
	Material Handling	00	00	21	00	21	00	21	21	00	21	00	21	00	21	00	
	Total	00	00	85	00	85	23	62	62	23	85	00	62	23	62	23	

TABLE 6: Comparison of REBA Scores between Various Type Of Work

REBA COMPARISION BETWEEN TYPE OF WORK	Mean Difference	Significance		
cutting v/s loading unloading	0.88462*	0.000		
cutting v/s packing	0.88462*	0.000		
cutting v/s segregating	0.88462*	0.000		
Loading &unloading v/s segregating	0.88462*	0.00		
Loading v/s packing	0.06119	1.00		
Segregating v/s packing	0.06007	1.00		
Packing v/s Loading	0.06119	1.00		
Packing v/s Segregating	0.06007	1.00		

Discussion

The prevalence data in this study was collected using Nordic musculo-skeletal questionnaire, in which it was found that musculo-skeletal issues pertaining to neck and upper back were the most prevalent (52.9% each) in the period of past 12 months followed by lower back (51.8%), knee (42.4%), shoulder (31.8%), elbow (20%), wrist (16.5%), ankle (15.3%) and Hips (7.1%). (71.4%) of subjects involved in material handling had reported symptoms pertaining to elbow, wrist and hand and 57.1% reported symptoms of the neck⁵.

In the manipulative task subcategory it was found that 65% of the subjects reported symptoms pertaining wrist and hand and 51.6% of them reported those pertaining to neck.

A statistically significant association between upper back symptoms and occupational categories (p=0.047). It was found that 71.4% subjects in the material handling group reported upper back symptoms whereas only 40.6% of those involved in manipulative task reported the same. Lower back symptoms were surprisingly found to be significantly associated (p=0.02) with manipulative tasks with 59.4% of subjects reporting low back pain symptoms compared to 20.6% in material handling category.

The median REBA score in this occupational category was found to be 6.0 (IQR 6,7), with 72.9% of the population having REBA final score of 6 and 27.1% of the subjects having a score of 7, meaning all the occupational categories had a score of 6 or higher. A REBA score of 4-7 is considered to be medium risk, which warrants further investigation, and recommends/ predicts changes in occupational practice patterns sooner.

Of all the occupational categories analyzed, the mean REBA score was the highest for cutting (6.88+0.32), whereas all the other categories had an identical mean score of 6.0+ 0.00 and the difference was found to be very highly significant (p<0.001). Our statistical analysis found that individual REBA components showed highly significant difference when cutting was compared with other type of works, but the differences were not significant when other types of works were compared against each other¹⁴.

Conclusion: From this study it could be concluded that among the workers involved in fish processing works along the Dakshina Kannada coast, there is a high prevalence of musculo-skeletal disorders, with upper back, lower back, and neck being the most affected regions. Risk analysis using REBA revealed that all types of work expose the worker to a 'medium level' risk. Cutting was found to have a minimal but statistically significant higher risk when compared to other tasks.

Source of Funding: Self

Conflict of Interest: Nil

References

- Jeebhay MF, Robins TG, Lopata AL. World at work: fish processing workers. Occup Environ Med. 2004;6: 471-4.
- Acharya S, Pentapati KC, Acharya S. Socioeconomic mobility and tobacco consumption patterns in fish industry workers in Udupi District of coastal Karnataka. Indian j Dent Res. 2014;25:653.
- Sengupta P, Krajewska-Kulak E. Evaluation of physical fitness and weight status among fisherwomen in relation to their occupational workload. J Epidemiolgloba health. 2014;4: 261-8.
- Nag A, Vyas H, Shah P, Nag PK. Risk factors and musculoskeletal disorders among women workers performing fish processing. Am j ind Med. 2012;55: 833-43.
- Ohlsson K, Hansson GA, Balogh I, Strömberg U, Pålsson B, Nordander C, Rylander L, Skerfving S. Disorders of the neck and upper limbs in women in the fish processing industry. Occup Environ Med. 1994;51: 826-32.
- Palsson B, Stromberg U, Ohlsson K, Skerfving S. Absence attributed to incapacity and occupational disease/accidents among female and male workers in the fish-processing industry. Occup Med(Lond).1998;48: 289-95.
- Sormunen E, Remes J, Hassi J, Pienimaki T, Rintamaki H. Factors Associated with Selfestimated Work Ability and Musculoskeletal Symptoms among Male and Female Workers in Cooled Food-processing Facilities. Ind Health.

148 Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4
2009;47: 271-82.
11. Viswanatha BS, Senthila

- 8. Yusuff RM, Daud RM, Zulkifli N. Identification of ergonomics risk factors in the fishing industry (dissertation). University Putra Malaysia;2008.
- Tomita S, Arphorn S, Muto T, Koetkhlai K, Naing SS, Chaikittiporn C. Prevalence and risk factors of low back pain among Thai and Myanmar migrant seafood processing factory workers in SamutSakorn Province, Thailand. Ind health 2010;48(3): 283-91.
- Quansah R. Harmful postures and musculoskeletal symptoms among fish trimmers of a fish processing factory in Ghana: a preliminary investigation. Int J OccupSafergon. 2005 Jan 1;11: 181-90.

- Viswanatha BS, Senthiladeban R, Rajakumar M, Infantina JA. An overview of marine fisheries infrastructure and fish utilization pattern in Karnataka(dissertation), India. (2015)
- Messing K, Reveret JP. Are women in female jobs for health? A study of working conditions and health effects in the fish processing industry in Quebec.Int J Health Serv 1983;13:635–48.
- Olafsdottir H., Rafnsson V. Increase in musculoskeletal symptoms of upper limbs among women after introduction of the flow-line in fishfillet plants. Int J Ind Ergon.1998; 21: 69 77.
- Armstrong TJ. Upper extremity posture: definition, measurement and control. In: Corlett N, Wilson J, Manenica I, EDITORS. Ergonomics of working posture: models, methods and cases. London, UK: Taylor & Francis 1986. 59-73.

The Efficacy of Sleeper's Stretch and Movement with mobilization on Pain, Range of Motion & Functional Capacity in Patients with Adhesive Capsulitis

R. Chidambaram^{1,2}, P. Muruganandam³, Kanchan S. Bhandure⁴

¹Professor, SRM College of Physiotherapy, SRMIST, Kattankulathur, Chengalpattu, ²Ex .Professor, PES Modern College of Physiotherapy, MUHS, Pune, ³Associate Professor, Dr.D Y Patil College of Physiotherapy, Dr.D Y Patil Vidyapeeth, Pune, ⁴PG Student, CMF College of Physiotherapy, MUHS, Pune.

Abstract

BACKGROUND: The pathological changes in adhesive capsulitis occurs surrounding the intrinsic structure tightness. Movement with mobilization mostly works on intracapsular & sleeper's stretch mainly acts on capsule. There are some studies which supports that M.W.M. is more effective in patients with adhesive capsulitis. At the same time, some studies have been done which proves sleeper's stretch to be beneficial in capsular tightness. As a result, present study thought to determine the combined effects of M.W.M.& Sleeper's Stretch on adhesive capsulitis. OBJECTIVES: To find the effects of M.W.M. on R.O.M., pain and functional disability in populations with adhesive capsulitis. To find the effects of M.W.M. and sleeper's stretch on R.O.M., pain and functional disability in populations with adhesive capsulitis. To compare the effects of M.W.M. and M.W.M. with sleeper's stretch on R.O.M., pain and functional disability in populations with adhesive capsulitis. METHODOLOGY: A Randomized, controlled, single blinded study, 50 patients with adhesive capsulitis were selected based on the inclusion and exclusion criteria. Pre -assessment of pain, R.O.M. and disability index had been taken. The patients are randomly allocated into two groups. 25 patients in Group 'A' with adhesive capsulitis was treated with M.W.M. alone where as another 25 patients in Group 'B' with adhesive capsulitis was treated with M.W.M. plus, sleeper's stretch. Both the groups were given the conventional therapy which includes hot packs, pendular exercises, finger ladder exercises and active range of motion exercises. Post assessment was done. RESULTS: In total, 50 patients were randomized to the study interventions. The flexion R.O.M. in pre and post mean values of Groups 'A' and 'B' are 18.41 and 29.16, P value is 0.04. The internal rotation R.O.M. in pre and post mean values of Groups 'A' and 'B' are 7.72 and 14.44, P value is 0.09. The external rotation R.O.M. in pre and post mean values of Groups 'A' and 'B' are 13.72 and 16.85, P value is 0.39. In SPADI, Pre & Post mean values of Group 'A' & Group 'B' are 16.83 and 24.41 respectively, P value is 0.28. In NPRS, Pre and post mean values of Groups 'A' and 'B' are 2.72 & 2.88 respectively, P value is 0.02. CONCLUSIONS: Adding sleeper's stretch with M.W.M. to standard therapy for adhesive capsulitis may offer significant advantages.

Keywords: Adhesive Capsulitis, Range of motion, Disability, M.W.M., Sleeper's stretch & Pain.

Corresponding author:

R. Chidambaram

Professor, SRM College of Physiotherapy, SRM Institute of Science and Technology, Kattankulathur, Chengalpattu Dt., Tamilnadu. 603203 E-Mail: chidambr@srmist.edu.in Contact number: +91 9486064849

Introduction

The shoulder complex consists of several anatomical joints & one physiological joint. The shoulder joint is the articulation between the head of the humerus & glenoid fossa of the scapula, which includes the structure contributes to the function of the joint: bones, ligaments, muscles, tendons & bursae¹. It is a synovial joint of ball and socket variety. The shoulder is a unique anatomical structure with an extraordinary range of motion that allows us to interact with our environment².

Methods

The term adhesive capsulitis was introduced by Nevaiser in 1945 to describe shoulder stiffness due to inflammation, fibrosis & capsular contracture³. Adhesive capsulitis is an enigmatic condition characterized by painful, progressive and disabling loss of active and passive glenohumeral joint range of motion in multiple planes. It is often more prevalent in women, individuals 40 - 65 years old with an occurrence rate of approximately 2 - 5 % in the general population² and 10 - 20 % of the diabetic population. The condition is associated with synovitis and capsular contracture of the shoulder joint. The patients presenting with adhesive capsulitis will often report an insidious onset with a progressive increase in pain & gradual decrease in active and passive range of motion⁴.

Physiotherapy management of patients with adhesive capsulitis may vary in many ways from management of patients with other shoulder conditions. Conventional physiotherapy for adhesive capsulitis includes hot packs, Codman's pendular exercises, finger ladder exercises and active range of motion exercises⁵. Manual Therapy had been demonstrated to reduce pain and improve function in patients with adhesive capsulitis. Joint mobilization techniques are assumed to induce various beneficial effects including neurophysiological, biomechanical and mechanical effects6. Mulligan's movement with mobilization have been proved to be more beneficial in adhesive capsulitis7. These techniques possess the sustained application of a manual "gliding force" to the joint in order to repositioning bone positional faults by enabling physiological movement. For shoulder joint, there are total 5 - 6 techniques in mulligan for increasing the range and to reduce the pain⁸. Recent research states that, sleeper's stretch and cross body stretch are used to stretch the posterior shoulder tightness in order to improve internal rotation of shoulder joint in posterior capsule tightness^{9,10}.

Movement with mobilization mostly works on intracapsular and sleeper's stretch mainly acts on capsule. So, present study is intended to find out the combined effects of movement with mobilization and Sleeper's stretch. The study was a simple random sampling in experimental design. Trial was conducted at Health Centre in Savitribai Phule Pune university, Pune & Out Patient Department, Dr.D.Y. Patil College of Physiotherapy, Pune. Subjects with adhesive capsulitis stage 1 & 2 (David J Magee) were included between the age groups of 40 to 70 years with minimum 90 degrees of shoulder flexion and abduction. Subjects possess malignancy, neck pain with radiculopathy and recent shoulder injuries are excluded from the study. For the study purpose, goniometer and mulligan belt was utilized.

Procedure

Movement with mobilization: The techniques of mobilization was administered as per as follows,

Glide to increase external rotation: Subject were made to supine lying with scapula stabilized at the edge of the plinth. Therapist was standing by the side of the patient. Patient's elbow and shoulder are placed 90 degrees of flexion. Therapist grasps the distal humerus with both hands. Mobilizing belt are kept close to the patient's shoulder line and secure around the therapist waist. Now, therapist pull the mobilizing belt by shifting his weight backwards in order to distract the joint laterally. Meanwhile, patient performs the external rotation and apply passive overpressure at the limit of the active range.

Glide to increase internal rotation: Subjects were made to supine lying with scapula stabilized at the edge of the plinth. Therapist was standing by the side of the patient. Patient's elbow and shoulder are placed in 90 degrees flexion & therapist grasps the distal humerus with both hands. Mobilizing belt are kept close to the patient's shoulder line and secured around the therapist waist. Now, therapist pull the mobilizing belt by shifting his weight backwards in order to distract the joint laterally. Meanwhile, patient performs internal rotation and apply passive overpressure at the limit of the active range.

Glide to increase flexion: Subject were made to stand with arms placed against the wall. Therapist stands behind the patient with both hands placed over the scapula for fixation. Mobilization belt were wrapped

over the patient's shoulder & therapist back. Now, therapist pull the mobilization belt by shifting his weight backwards in order to distract the joint posteriorly. Meanwhile, patient performs anterior pelvic tilt.

Sleeper's Stretch: The techniques of mobilization was administered as per as follows,

Stretch to increase internal rotation: Subject were made to supine lying. On the affected side, humerus was elevated to 90 degrees by supporting the surface. Then,

subjects himself had to rotate the humerus internally by using other hand for 5 repetitions. Each repetition is for 30 seconds.

Pre and post interventional assessment for range of motion, pain & disability was measured

by goniometer, numerical pain rating scale (NPRS) and shoulder pain & disability index (SPADI) respectively. No funds are granted from funding agency for this study.

	Table 1. Comparison of Fre-test and Fost-test values within group for KOW Farameters										
Crown	Study		Pre- Test			P- Value					
Group	Parameter	Mean	SD	SEM	Mean	SD	SEM	group)			
	Flexion	102.36	10.46	2.09	120.76	12.28	2.46	0.152			
Group `A'	Internal Rotation	44.28	8.64	1.71	52	8.64	1.73	0.081			
	External Rotation	53.28	14.3	2.86	67	14.33	2.87	0.086			
	Flexion	101	10.36	2.07	130.16	13.89	2.78	0.002			
Group `B'	Internal Rotation	39.96	10.66	2.13	54.4	7.74	1.55	0.092			
	External Rotation	47.2	8.61	1.72	64	7.51	1.5	0.002			

Findings

Table 1: Comparison of Pre-test and Post-test values within group for ROM Parameters

Table 2: Comparison of Pre-test and Post-test values between groups for ROM Parameters

Study Dayamatan	Mean diffe (Post – P	S	D	SF	P–Value (Patwoon		
Study Farameter	Group 'A'	Group 'B'	Group 'A'	Group 'B'	Group 'A'	Group 'B'	(Between Groups)
Flexion	18.41	29.16	13.58	11.47	2.72	2.29	0.04xx
Internal Rotation	7.72	14.44	6.15	10.81	1.23	2.16	0.09xx
External Rotation	13.72	16.85	16.31	7.32	3.26	1.46	0.393, NS

xx: Significant at 1% level of significance, NS: Not Significant

	Cr. I	Pre- Test				Post-Test	D. Value	
Group	Study Parameter	Mean	SD	SEM	Mean	Mean SD		P- value (Within group)
Group `A'	N.P.R.S.	6.8	0.866	0.173	4.08	0.997	0.199	<0.001
Group 'B'	N.P.R.S.	7.04	1.62	0.324	3.96	1.675	0.335	<0.001

Table 3: Comparison of Pre-test and Post-test values within group for N.P.R.S. Parameters

Table 4: Comparison of Pre-test and Post-test values between groups for N.P.R.S. Parameters

GROUP	Study Parameter	Mean difference (Post – Pre)	SD	P–Value (between groups)
Group 'A'	N.P.R.S.	2.72	0.78	<0.001VV
Group 'B'	N.P.R.S.	2.88	3.11	<0.001AA

Table 5: Comparison of Pre-test and Past-test values within group for S.P.A.D.I. Parameters

Study		Pre- Test			Post-Test			P-Value (between
Group	Parameter	Mean	SD	SEM	Mean	SD	SEM	groups)
Group 'A'	S.P.A.D.I.	57.26	18.723	3.745	37.8	14.758	2.948	<0.001
Group 'B'	S.P.A.D.I.	70.83	10.281	2.056	46.42	9.447	1.889	<0.001

Table 6: Comparison of Pre-test and Post-test values between groups for S.P.A.D.I. Parameters

GROUP	Study Parameter	Mean difference (Post – Pre)	SD	P–Value (between groups)
Group 'A'	S.P.A.D.I.	16.83	8.79	
Group 'B'	S.P.A.D.I.	24.41	12.89	<0.001XX

ROM

On range of motion Group 'A' shows all movements (i.e. flexion, internal rotation & external rotation) had increased significantly. Within that, flexion range had increased more significantly than internal & external rotation. P value is significant and same for all range of motion. Whereas in Group 'B' all movements had increased significantly & P value was same for all range of motion. While seeing the mean difference between the groups, group 'B' showed more increase in flexion and internal rotation as when compared to group 'A' with P value of 0.04 and 0.09 respectively. There was less difference in external rotation as when compared in both the groups with the P value of 0.393. Here unpaired 't' test was used.

NPRS

On NPRS, both groups showed significant improvement in pre and post treatment evaluation. While seeing the mean difference among group 'A' & 'B', Group 'B' patients had more significant improvement in NPRS with P value of 0.02 as whecompared to group 'A' patients.

SPADI

On SPADI, both groups showed significant improvement in pre and post treatmentevaluation. While seeing the mean difference among group 'A' & 'B', there was less difference noted with the P value of 0.28. Here unpaired 't' test was used.

Group	Study	Pre- Test			Post-Test			P- Value
	Parameter	Mean	SD	SEM	Mean	SD	SEM	(within group)
	Flexion	102.36	10.46	2.09	120.76	12.28	2.46	0.152
Group 'A'	Internal Rotation	44.28	8.64	1.71	52.00	8.64	1.73	0.081
	External Rotation	53.28	14.30	2.86	67.00	14.33	2.87	0.086
	Flexion	101.00	10.36	2.07	130.16	13.89	2.78	0.002
Group 'B'	Internal Rotation	39.96	10.66	2.13	54.40	7.74	1.55	0.092
	External Rotation	47.20	8.61	1.72	64.00	7.51	1.50	0.002

Discussion

Aim of this study was to investigate the combined effects of Sleeper's stretch and MWM in improving shoulder ROM, pain and disability in adhesive capsulitis over 5 days of treatment. There were two groups of 25 patients each with adhesive capsulitis. Group 'A' received MWM and Group 'B' received MWM along with sleeper's stretch. Both were given conventional treatment such as hot packs, pendular exercises and AROM exercises of shoulder. There was significant improvement in ROM, pain and SPADI scores in both groups.

In group 'A' ,25 patients with adhesive capsulitis were randomly treated by MWM for ROM, pain and disability. There was significant improvement in ROM, pain and disability. In group 'B', sleeper's stretch with MWM was added to check the combine effect. Patients in this group had significant improvement in ROM, NPRS and SPADI. Ranges were compared between the group 'A' and 'B' shows, significant improvement in flexion and internal rotation was seen in group B with p values 0.04 and 0.09 respectively. Whereas external rotation shows less improvement with p value of 0.393. Decrease in pain intensity was seen in group 'A' with p value of <0.001 and in group 'B' with p value of <0.001 was seen. This was observed due to MWM analgesic effect and hot pack application in both the groups. There was significant improvement seen in NPRS scores in group 'B' when compared to group 'A' with p values of 0.02. This may be because of sleeper's stretch is proved to have relaxation effect supported by study done by Shaik Raheem Sahib et. al in year 2015. There was significant difference in pre and post SPADI within the groups. This might be due to reduction in pain intensity and increase in stretch ability of soft tissues. There was no significant difference seen in SPADI scores as when compared between group 'A' and group 'B'. This might be due to duration of intervention.

Gokhan Doner et al in his study "Evaluation of MWM for adhesive capsulitis of the shoulder" in the year 2013 stated that MWM has advantage of increasing ROM in addition to providing analgesic effect. This study also supports the ROM and SPADI scale outcome measures. Ankita Mehta et. al in her study "Passive stretching exercises vs MWM for pain, ROM and disability of adhesive capsulitis" in the year 2018 stated that pain is due to minor positional faults of the joint resulting in movement restrictions. MWM provide a passive pain free range and corrective joint glide with an active pain free movement. According to her study, MWM group had significant improvement when compared to passive stretching group. This study also supported the outcome measures such as NPRS, Goniometer and SPADI.

A study " Comparison of conventional therapy versus sleeper's stretch with conventional in adhesive capsulitis" done by Kedar Sule, Manisha Rathi reported that sleeper's stretch helped in improving flexion, extension, internal rotation, external rotation more as compared to conventional therapy alone, due to stretching of the posterior capsule and musculature thus increasing the ranges. Improvement in internal rotation was due to selectively stretching posterior soft tissue. David Linth et al in their study found that, internal rotation deficit caused by soft tissues adaptations can be addressed by consistent participation in stretching program focused on internal rotation. Improvement in external rotation might be due to increase in strength of muscles. From the above study, it is recommended to include sleeper's stretch with MWM in regular physiotherapy treatment for adhesive capsulitis patients in order to improve ROM and reduce pain.

Conclusion

According to the results of the present study, both movement with mobilization and sleeper's stretch are effective in the treatment of adhesive capsulitis. The group which received sleeper's stretch with MWM shows high significant in improving range of motions and NPRS scores. Further studies can be done with longer duration of treatment. Scapulohumeral rhythm can be considered in future studies.

Abbreviations & Symbols

ROM	range of motion
AROM	active range of motion
NPRS	numerical pain rating scale
SPADI	shoulder, pain & disability index
< lesser	than
> great	ter than
% perce	entage

Conflicts of Interest: None declared.

Source of Funding: Self

Acknowledgments: Hereby the authors express their special thanks to Statistician Mr. Pandurang Thatkar,

Andaman & Nicobar Islands institute of medical sciences, Port Blair.

Ethical Clearance: Obtained from institutional ethical committee.

References

- 1. Chaurasia .B.D . *Human Anatomy*. sixth edition. New Delhi: CBS; 2013.
- Manske CR, Prohaska D. Diagnosis and management of adhesive capsulitis. *Curr Rev Musculoskeletal Med*. 2008(1):180 - 189.
- Hsu EJ, Anakwenze AO, Warrender JW, Abboud AJ. Current review of adhesive capsulitis. J Shoulder Elbow Surg. 2011,20(3): 502 - 14.
- Kedar Sule, Manisha Rathi et al. Comparison of conventional therapy versus Sleeper's stretch with conventional therapy in adhesive capsulitis. *IJHSR*. 2015 November 11; vol (5).
- Boyles RE, Flynn TW, Whitman JM. Manipulation following regional intrascalence anesthetic block for shoulder adhesive capsulitis; *A case series. Man*

Ther .2005(10): 164 - 171.

- 6. Gaspar P, Willis B. Adhesive capsulitis and dynamic splinting: a controlled, cohort Study. *BMC Musculoskeletal disorders*. 2009 (10) :111.
- Frank C, Akeson WH, Woo SL, Amied D.Physiology and therapeutic value of Passive joint motion. *Clinical Orthopaedic and related research*. 1984; 185: 113-125.
- G.Doner et al.Evaluation of Mulligan's Technique for Adhesive Capsulitis of the Shoulder . *J Rehabil Med.* 2013; 45: 87-91.
- 9. Saheb R.S, Apparao. P et al,. A comparison between crossbody stretch vs sleeper stretch in Periarthritic Shoulder. *Int J Physiother* .2015 December; 2(6) :1019-1026.
- 10. Hsu EJ, Anakwenze AO, Warrender JW et al. Current review of adhesive capsulitis. *J Shoulder Elbow Surg.* 2011; 20:502-14.

To Study the Combined Effect of Lumbar and Stabilization Exercises and Ift in Subjects with Chronic Low Back Pain- An Experimental Study

Raghani Pinky Pahilaj¹, Ajay Kumar²

¹Assosciate Professor, ²Principal, DPO Nett College of Physiotherapy, Thane

Abstract

Background: IFT has been shown to be beneficial; in reducing pain and inflammation, hence in our study IFT is included as treatment modality

Methodology: Convenient sample of 30 patients diagnosed with chronic low back pain, were taken. Subjects were divided into two equal .Subjects in group A (STUDY GROUP) received combination of Lumbar stabilization exercises and IFT. Subjects in group B (CONTROL GROUP) received isometric Exercises for back extensors and IFT.

Conclusion: Combined therapy showed significant pain reduction and improvement in disability scores on oswestry disability index.

Keywords: oswestry disability index, Combined therapy, interferential current, stabilization exercises

Introduction

Spinal anatomy is a remarkable combination of strong bones, flexible ligaments, tendons, large muscles and highly sensitive nerves. Once we have back pain we're driven to know what's wrong and what it will take to relieve the pain and prevent a recurrence.¹

The lumbar spine, If left uncorrected, these misalignments and faulty biomechanics of the lower spine can result in spinal injury and irreversible degenerative changes.²

Low back pain can be defined as "The pain in the spine or muscles of the low back". ^{3,4}

Although acute LBP has a favorable prognosis, the effect of chronic LBP and its related disability on society is tremendous. Unlike acute LBP, chronic LBP serves

Corresponding author Dr. Pinky Raghani,

DPO's Nett College of Physiotherapy,Opposite to Everest world, Near New Blossom High School, Kolshet road thane(W).400607, Contact: 9665641230 no biologic purpose..^{5,6}

In patients with low back pain in North India, 67% had psychosocial issues, 57% were in blue-collar jobs, 26% had to change/leave their profession, and 38% did not enjoy their present job.⁷

Back pain can be of various types depending upon the structures involved.^{8,10,11}

Incidence/Prevalance:

Statistical surveys confirm that back pain in the community today is extremely common⁵⁷.

Most patients with back pain will respond to conservative treatment Recommendations for Treatment are¹⁴:

Bed Rest:

In a randomized, controlled study of patients with acute back pain and no neurologic deficits, the clinical outcome was no different in those treated with 2 days or with 7 days of bed rest, and the 2-day patients missed 45% fewer days of work .^{16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23}

Physical Therapy:

Rationale for physical therapy: The purpose of back exercises is to strengthen the trunk muscles, thereby stabilizing the spine.²⁴

A better understanding regarding the extent of physiological and functional effects of more modern exercise techniques used in chronic low back pain rehabilitation, stabilization exercise training is considered an important area of research.²⁵

Much of the rationale for using exercise to enhance lumbar stability is derived from the work of Bergmark and Punjabi.²⁶

Richardson and Jull have described how joint protection and muscle control should ultimately lead to pain control.²⁷

IFT has been shown to be beneficial; in reducing pain and inflammation, hence in our study IFT is included as treatment modality.²⁸

Objective of the Study

To study the combined effect of lumbar stabilization and IFT in subjects with chronic low back pain.

Research Hypothesis:

Alternate Hypothesis: The group receiving Lumbar Stabilization with IFT will show significant improvement as compared to the group receiving IFT in subjects with chronic low back pain.

Null hypothesis: The group receiving Lumbar stabilization with IFT will not show significant improvement as compared to the group receiving IFT alone in subjects with chronic low back pain.

Methodlogy

A Convenient sample was carried out in S.D.M. College of Medical sciences and Hospital, Dharwad. Subjects were taken from physiotherapy, Outpatient department of the hospital.

Materials:

- 1. Data collection sheet.
- 2. Oswestry disability index.

3. Vectrostim Inteferential therapy unit.

Method of collection of data

Criteria for study

Inclusion Criteria:

1. Age group of 20 to 50 years.

2. Subjects with and Chronic back pain (more than 3 months) of either gender diagnosed and referred by the Orthopeadiscian

Exclusion Criteria:

1. Any history of severe trauma or medical condition

2. Contraindications for lumbar segmental exercises

3. Contraindications for IFT

Study Design: Experimental Study.

Study duration: 1 year.

Sample:

Convenient sample of 30 patients diagnosed with chronic low back pain and who were willing to participate in the study were taken.

Subjects were divided into two equal groups

Subjects in group A (STUDY GROUP) received combination of Lumbar stabilization exercises and IFT.

Subjects in group B (CONTROL GROUP) received isometric Exercises for back extensors and IFT.

"DO s" and "DONTS" were given to both the groups.

Procedure:

Ethical clearance was obtained from the institutional ethical clearance committee prior to the study. All subjects with Chronic low back pain were assessed and those who fulfilled inclusion criteria were selected for study.

VAS and ODI These outcome measures were obtained on the 1^{st} day before the treatment and at the 6^{th}

week of treatment and were compared for analysis.

Procedure for IFT:

Testing, calibration of machine, position of patient and placement of electrodes.

IFT was given to both the groups at following parameters:

Carrier frequency: 4 KHZ.

Burst frequency: 1 to 10 hertz.

Vector Sweep: 90°V.

Electrode arrangement: Quadripolar.

Electrode placement: Place around the area of pain in the back.

Treatment duration: 30 minutes.

After completion of IFT, lumbar stabilization were given.

Before starting with lumbar stabilization exercises subjects were asked to do warm-up for 10 minutes and CAT- CAMEL exercise were given.

PROCEDURE OF LUMBAR STABILIZATION EXERCISE

The goal is to reeducate the component missing in normal function and reduce activity of superficial muscles followed by reeducation of normal integration of activity of all trunk muscles into functions.

The treatment is given in 4 rehabilitation phases: ²⁷

Phase 1: Activation phase.

Here the patient is taught to cognitively perform skilled activation of deep muscle .we used the palpatory method for our study.²⁷

Procedure to recruit Tranverse Abdominis.

Self-monitoring with palpation for desired response in the abdominal wall is essential in the learning process for cognitive control of Tranverse Abdominis, and this was thought to the patient.²⁷

Feedback: Palpatory method.²⁷, Visual feedback.²⁷

Procedure to recruit Lumbar Multifidus.²⁷

Dosage for recruitment of Transverse Abdominis/ Lumbar Multifidus:

5-10 isometric contraction of Transverse Abdominis/ Lumbar Multifidus per session with 10 seconds hold time, done for 3 times per day.for twice a week.²⁷

PHASE II: Skill Precision

Once the patient were able to perform independent contraction of local muscles the next phase was given to improve precision of task.²⁷

Goals of Precision task:

1.Co activation of deep muscle.²⁷

2.Coordination with breathing.²⁷

3.Progression to static functional position

4.Progression to light dynamic tasks.²⁷

PHASE III Superficial and deep muscle co activation:

Closed chain segmental control stage involves following procedures:

1. Training individual part of the antigravity weight bearing holding postures.

2. Weight bearing exercise in flexed postures.²⁷

Open chain segmental control involves exercises like leg loading with hip flexion, extension, abduction or adduction in positions such as lying, side lying, sitting or standing²⁷

DOSAGE:

These exercises were given for 5-10 isometric contractions of repetitions with a hold of 10 seconds for twice a week. For 5 weeks a total program of 6 weeks was given^{26, 27.} The exercises will be given as follows:

CURL UPS. SIT UPS. SIDE BRIDGE.

BIRD DOG EXERCISES.

PHASE IV: Functional reeducation

This is final phase of training and the patient is trained with lumbar stabilization exercises in the specific function which is based on the demands of the patient..²⁷

GROUP B: was treated with Isometric exercises for back and IFT.

IFT will be given at above described parameters.

Isometric exercises for back extensors will be given as follows:

ISOMETRIC FOR BACK EXTENSORS.

Contraction will be held for 6-10 seconds, as a set of 20 repetitions per day for 6 weeks.

DO'S and Don't's were given to both the groups which included as follows:

- 1. Posture in sleeping
- 2. While rising from bed
- 3. Remaining in one position
- 4. Avoid sitting slouched on a chair

5. While driving in a car, the seat must be at comfortable distance from the pedals with your leg as straight as u can safely drive.

6. Do not carry too heavy weights

7. While lifting any object from the ground S bend your knees and pick up the object.

Results

Table1: Distribution of subjects according to gender in study groups

Group	Male	%	Female		Total
Control group	7	46.67	8	53.33	15
Study group	10	66.67	5	33.33	15
Total	17	56.67	13	43.33	30

Table 2: Comparison of control and study groups with respect to VAS scores by Mann Whitney U-test

VAS scores	Group	Mean	SD	Sum of ranks	U-value	Z-value	p-value
Dre tost	Control group	7.5333	0.9904	228.50			
Pre test	Study group	7.5333	1.3558	236.50	108.500	-0.1659	0.8682
_	Control group	1.8667	0.8338	296.50			
Post test	Study group	0.8667	0.8338	168.50	48.5000	-2.6546	0.0079*
Difference	Control group	5.6667	1.2344	184.00			
	Study group	6.6667	1.2910	281.00	64.0000	-2.0117	0.0443*

*Significant at 5% level of significance (p<0.05)

159

ODI scores	Group	Mean	SD	Sum of ranks	U-value	Z-value	p-value
Pre test	Control group	40.3180	16.8760	176.50			
	Study group	53.1333	12.1882	288.50	56.5000	-2.3228	0.0202*
	Control group	14.5533	5.5008	296.50			
Post test	Study group	8.3507	5.2396	168.50	48.5000	-2.6546	0.0079*
Difference	Control group	25.7647	15.7549	155.00			
	Study group	44.7827	10.4942	310.00	35.0000	-3.2146	0.0013*

Table 3: Comparison of control and study groups with respect to ODI scores by Mann Whitney U-test

*Significant at 5% level of significance (p<0.05)

Table4: Comparison of pre and post test VAS scores by Wilcoxon matched pairs rank sum test in study group

Test	Mean	Std.Dv.	Mean Diff.	SD Diff.	% of reduction in pain	Z-value	p-value
Pre	7.5333	1.3558					
Post	0.8667	0.8338	6.6667	1.2910	88.4956	3.4078	0.0007*

*Significant at 5% level of significance (p<0.05)

Table5: Comparison of pre and post test VAS scores by Wilcoxon matched pairs rank sum test in control group

Test	Mean	Std.Dv.	Mean Diff.	SD Diff.	% of reduction in pain	Z-value	p-value
Pre	7.5333	0.9904					
Post	1.8667	0.8338	5.6667	1.2344	75.2212	3.4078	0.0007*

*Significant at 5% level of significance (p<0.05)

Test	Mean	Std.Dv.	Mean Diff.	SD Diff.	% of reduction in disability	Z-value	p-value
Pre	53.1333	12.1882					
Post	7.2840	4.9750	45.8493	8.8627	86.2911	3.4076	0.0007*

 Table 6: Comparison of pre and post test ODI scores by Wilcoxon matched pairs rank sum test in study group

*Significant at 5% level of significance (p<0.05)

Discussion

This study showed the results of two different types of interventions i.e. combined therapy and IFT alone in patients who were diagnosed to have chronic low back pain.

A total number of 30 subjects (n=30) with 15 subjects in each group were taken for the study. No attempt to randomization was done.

Table 1 depict the distribution of study subjects according to gender. Total males in control group were 7 and study group were 10, whereas, females in control group were 8 and study group were 5.

. Table 2 shows comparison of control and study group with respect to VAS scores, the VAS scores were taken at day 1 before the treatment and at the end of the 6^{th} week after the intervention.

There was a significant difference (p<0.05) seen in both the groups

When we compared the VAS (Table 4&5) and ODI(Table 6) scores in between the group, taking into consideration the pre and post values of intervention in both the groups, both these groups showed, reduction in pain after the intervention but, in the study group there was 88.49% reduction in pain on VAS(P<0.01) when compared to 75.22% (p<0.01) in control group, hence these reports state that there was highly significant difference (p<0.01) seen in the form of reduction of pain in both the groups after the treatment, hence we assume that both forms of intervention have worked well in patients with chronic low back pain. When

comparison was done with ODI scores within the group there was 86.29% reduction of disability on ODI scores (p<0.01) of study group, whereas in control group there was 63.90% (p<0.01) reduction of disability on ODI scores. Though there was highly significant difference seen in the reduction of disability percentage (86.29%) when compared to study group pain. Hence lumbar stabilization exercises when added with IFT had shown more improvement when compared to conventional treatment of isometric exercises with IFT.

161

Almeida et al and G.C Goats quoted that IFT reduces pain by acting in the common aspects of theories proposed to explain the blockage of nociceptive stimuli in the dorsal horn of spinal cord which are by stimulation of $A\beta$ myelinated fibers and the blockage of C amylinated nociceptive afferents, as well as increase the opioid release.

Paul W. Hodges, in his study shown similar changes in the activity. When people with CLBP catch a load that is predictable, however the earlier response of paraspinal muscles does not occur.

Hence we hypothesized that the coordinated activity of the deep spinal muscles play an important role in the fine tuning of intersegmental motion of spine and pelvis.

Conclusion

Thus we conclude that:

1. Combined therapy treatment in subjects with chronic low back pain showed significant pain reduction and improvement in activities of daily living on oswestry disability index. 162 Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4

2. Combined therapy showed significant pain reduction and improvement in disability scores on oswestry disability index.

Conflict of Interest – Nil

Source of Funding- Self

Ethical Clearance – Instituitional ethical committee

Bibliography

- Van Tulder MW, Koes BW, Bouter LM. Conservative treatment of acute and chronic nonspecific low back pain. A systematic review of randomized controlled trials of the most common interventions. Spine. 1997; 22:2128-56.
- Guidelines for the treatment of acute low back pain- realesed by the agency of healthcare policy and research, US Department of health and human services. http://drjayebadat.com/index. php?p=20465&s=62
- 3. McKenzie RA. Lumbar spine mechanical diagnosis and therapy. New Zeland: Wright and Carman; 1997. p. 2.
- Porterfield JA, Rosn CD. Mechanical low back pain, perspective in functional anatomy. 2nd ed. W B Saunders Company; 1998. p. 1-4.
- 5. Mooney V. International Society for the Study of the Lumbar Spine. Dallas, 1986. Where is the pain coming from? Spine. Oct 1987;12(8):754-9.
- Kuslich SD, Ulstrom CL, Michael CJ. The tissue origin of low back pain and sciatica: a report of pain response to tissue stimulation during operations on the lumbar spine using local anesthesia. Orthop Clin North Am. Apr 1991; 22(2):181-7.
- Sharma SC, Singh R, Sharma AK, Mittal R. Incidence of low back pain in workage adults in rural North India. Indian J Med Sci 2003; 57:145-7.
- Manchikanti L, et al. Medial branch neurotomy in management of chronic spinal pain: systematic review of the evidence. Pain Physician. Oct 2002; 5(4):405-18.
- 9. Pampati V, et al. Caudal epidural injections with sarapin or steroids in chronic low back pain. Pain Physician. Oct 2001; 4(4):322-35.
- 10. Lippitt AB. The facet joint and its role in

spine pain. Management with facet joint injections. Spine. Oct 1984; 9(7):746-50.

- Manchikanti L, Saini B, Singh V. Lumbar epidural adhesiolysis. In: Manchikanti L, Slipman CW, Fellows B, eds. Interventional Pain Management: LowBackPain-Diagnosis and Treatment. Paducah, KY: ASIPPPublishing; 2002:353-90. http:// emedicine.medscape.com/article/1144130-media
- 12. Hutson M.A. Back Pain Recognition and Management. Great Britian:Butterworth Heinemann:1993.p. 124-185.
- Delisa J.A, et.al. Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. 4th ed. New York: Lippincott Williams and Willikins:2005.Vol.1,p. 653-678.
- Maheshwari J. Essential Orthopaedics. 3rd ed. New Delhi: Mehta Publishers:2005.p. 228-232.
- Norris C.M. Back Stability, Integrating Science and Therapy. 2nd ed. USA: Human Kinetics:2008.p. 1-12.
- Pal B, Mangion P, Hossain MA, Differy BL. A controlled trial of continuous lumbar traction in the treatment of back pain and sciatica. Br J Rheumatol 24:181, 1986.
- 17. Deyo RA, Diehl AK, Rosenthal M. How many days of bed rest for acute low back pain? A randomized clinical trial. N Engl J Med 315:1604, 1986.
- Cuckler JM, et al: The use of epidural steroids in the treatment of lumbar radiculopathy pain: A prospective, randomized, double-blind study. J Bone Jt Surg (AM) 67A:63, 1985.
- Walsh NE et al. A controlled trial of transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation (TENS) and exercise for chronic low back pain. N Engl J Med 322:1627, 1990.
- 20. Nordby EJ. Chymopapain in intradiscal therapy. J Bone Jt Surg (AM) 65A:1350, 1983.
- Fager CA, Friedberg SR. Analysis of failures and poor results of lumbar spine surgery. Spine 5:87, 1980.
- 22. Pappas CT, Harrington T, Sonntag VK. Outcome analysis in 654 surgically treated lumbar disc herniations. Neurosurgery 30:862, 1992.
- 23. Weber H. Lumbar disc herniation: A controlled, prospective study with ten years of observation.

Spine 8:131, 1983.

- Boden BW. Low Back Pain. Medical Diagnosis and Comprehensive Management. 2nd ed. Philadelphia:W.B. Saunders Company; 1995.p. 595-638.
- 25. Koumantakis GA, Watson PJ, Oldham JA. Supplementation of general endurance exercise only physiological and functional outcomes of an randomized control Trial of patients with recurrent low back pain, clinical biomechanics. 2005; 20:474-482.
- Standert CJ, Herring SA. Expert opinion and controversies in musculoskeletal and sports medicine: core stabilization as treatment for low back pain. Arch physical medicine rehabilitation. 2007 Dec; 88:1734-36.
- Richardson C, Hodges PW, Hides J. Therapeutic exercise for lumbopelvic Stabilization. 2nd ed:Churchill Livingstone;2004. p. 3,179,180,204-237.

- 28. Low R, Reed A. Electrotherapy explained principles and practice. 3rd ed. New York: Butterworth-Heinemann;2000. p. 53,63,65.
- 29. Carlsson, Maria A. Assessment of pain. I. Aspects of the reliability and validity of the visual analogue scale: Pain. 1983; 16:87-101.
- Boonstra AM, Schiphorst Preuper HR, Reneman MF, Posthumus JB, and Stewart RE. Reliability and Validity of the visual analogue scale for disability in patients with chronic musculoskeletal pain. International journal of rehabilitation research; 2008: 31(2).p.165.
- R. C. Cork, I. Isaac, A. Elsharydah, S. Saleemi, F. Zavisca & L. Alexander. A Comparison of the Verbal Rating Scale and the Visual Analog Scale for Pain Assessment. The International Journal of Anesthesiology; 2004:8 (1).p.228-233.
- 32. N Patil, M Kahile, S Pimpale, J Nagulkar, Prevalence of Kinesiophobia in Low Back Pain in First Day Physiotherapy OPD Patient, 2017, 11(3), 111

Comparative Study of History Causes and Risk of Fall among Elderly People and People with Parkinson's Disease

Rameeta Kumari¹, Muhammad Saad Khan², Yumna Ali³

¹ (PT) House Officer, Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre, Karachi, Pakistan DPT, NPTE, licensed PT, New York, USA, ²Senior lecturer, College of Physiotherapy, (JPMC), Karachi, Pakistan, BS (PT), DPT (Post-professional), MSc (Psych), MPhil, MHRM, CRCP, ³Department of Medicine and Surgery, University of Rome, Tor Vergata, Italy, BS (PT), MS, Research Scholar

Abstract

Objective: This cross-sectional survey research compares history, causes, and risk of fall among normal ambulatory individuals and Parkinson's disease patients aged above 50 years during the last one year.

Materials and Method: This survey includes 100 participants, which were equally distributed into two groups. Both groups were interviewed during this research study. Non-probability, purposive sampling was used for data collection.

Results: The findings of this study show that extrinsic risk factors are the major cause of fall found in the normal ambulatory group and intrinsic factors are major causes of fall in Parkinson's disease group. Individuals of both groups reported the loss of balance and muscle weakness as their major cause of fall.

Conclusion: This study concluded that the causes of fall for both the groups were different which depends upon individuals lifestyle, presence of any disease or pathology and individuals self cares attitude while performing daily life's activities. External factors may greatly affect the risk of fall. So, there is a need to promote programs on preventable measures of fall to minimize the risk factors of fall.

Keywords: Fall risk, Parkinson's disease, causes of fall, comparison of fall history

Introduction

Approximately 6.5 million peoples around the world and about 450,000 peoples of Pakistan are suffering from Parkinson's disease⁽¹⁾. About 44.9 percent of communitydwelling elderly persons experience a fall every year ⁽²⁾. Fall is second most leading cause of accidents, injuries and, death ⁽³⁾. Fall can significantly affect an individual's long term care facilities ⁽⁴⁾. Parkinson is a chronic neurological

Corresponding Author: Dr. Rameeta Kumari

PT House Officer, Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre, Rafiqui Sarwar Shaheed Rd, Karachi Cantonment, Karachi, Sind, Pakistan. DPT, University of Karachi, (JPMC), Karachi, Pakistan, NPTE, Licensed PT for New York State, USA, Drrameetaahuja@gmail.com +92 333 1211147 state or condition which progressively affects brain cells ⁽⁵⁾. Early-stage of Parkinson's disease patients are functionally independent with minimal impairments, as the disease progress, symptoms start getting worse with an independent slow gait and less efficient performance. A later stage of Parkinson's disease is more severe and leads to severe complications, the patient became dependent, and bed-bound and May wheelchair-bound ⁽⁶⁾.

The management of Parkinson's disease involves both medical treatment and physical therapy interventions ⁽⁷⁾. An individual who experience single, two time or multiple times fall, which may lead to multiple injuries. A single time fall significantly affects the quality of life and functional status. An individual's developed fear of falling, loss of confidence, difficulty in ambulation overall decrease in activities can increase joint stiffness, muscle weakness and greatly affects mobility ⁽⁸⁾. Individuals with pre-existing co-morbidities (e.g. Osteoporosis), a fall can significantly affect their quality of life, functional status ⁽⁹⁾. The use of medications can be the reason for an increased number of falls (E.g. Central nervous system Drugs) ⁽¹⁰⁾. The risk factors for fall may be intrinsic including age, previous history of fall, fear of falling, weakness in muscle, balance and coordination problem, postural hypotension, vision problems, some chronic conditions like Parkinson's disease, stroke, arthritis, diabetes, dementia, and incontinence" And extrinsic risk factors for fall may be Environmental hazards, lightening problem, uneven and slippery surfaces, use of medications and improper use of canes and devices" ⁽¹¹⁾.

Use of an assistive device (e.g. cane, walkers or wheelchairs) can improve a patient's overall lifestyle Physical therapists can help patients and properly guide patients to use such devices properly and problem-free ⁽¹²⁾. Environmental modifications contribute an independent and active lifestyle for an individual with a history fall ⁽¹³⁾.

Therefore, to prevent an individual from future fall we should first identify the modifiable risk factors, complications, and injuries related to fall to improve the patient's condition, functional/ mobility status, independence in activities of daily life ⁽¹⁴⁾. So, this study aims to compare the history, causes, and risk of fall among normal ambulatory group and Parkinson's disease group aged above 50 years old, during last one year and to design Physical therapy programs to improve balance problems, increase in functional mobility status, to improve gait and intervention should be modified to manage specific needs and problems of patients ⁽¹⁵⁾.

Material and Methods

This cross sectional survey research design was used in this study. This study included two groups, one group of ambulatory elderly individual's age above 50 years old and the second group includes individuals with diagnosed Parkinson's disease. Both groups were interviewed during the study. The sample size has consisted of hundred elderly individuals. Nonprobability, purposive sampling was used in this study. The participants were selected based on age, diagnosed Parkinson's disease, history of falls, intact cognitive functions, and Good communication. Participants having the pain of more than 5 out of 10 on the visual analog scale, uncontrolled hypertension, other signs, and symptoms such as dizziness, acute illness or injury, unstable heart disease (e.g. angina), age below 50 years, and Individuals who scored below 22 in mini-mental scale examination were excluded.

This study used a health status and fall questionnaire, which was adapted from a previous study (Thiwabhorn ThaweeWannakji et al, 2016) to interview and collect the data. The questionnaire was divided into 3 parts demographics, health status, and fall information. The questionnaire was based on multiple choice questions and scoring was based on the maximum number of each option selected by participants from each question.

After approval from The Institutional Review Board (IRB), data collection was started. The target population was selected from different hospitals and homebound individuals of province Sindh, Pakistan. Questionnaires were administered to eligible individuals only, objectives and aims of this study were explained to participants and consent forms were administered. Mini Mental state examination test (MMSE) was conducted to meet the inclusion criteria. And 10 to 15 minutes interview-based survey was conducted.

Descriptive statistics were applied to analyze the history causes and risk of fall information on falls among participants. All data were analyzed using the SPSS Statistic (version 17.0, IBM Corporation, Armonk, NY, USA)

Results

The data of 100 respondents were collected and two groups were formed. Out of 50 participants in Parkinson's group, 29 respondents had a previous history of fall. Further analysis is given below (Figure-1)



(Figure-1)

Most of the participants in Parkinson's disease group were males. A comparison of fallers versus non-fallers within this group shows fallers were more aged, using more medications, and had more visual problems than non-fallers, which might be the reason for fall in this group. Between both the groups Parkinson's group participants were on assistive devices compare to normal ambulatory grouped participants. Most of the participants between the groups were single-time faller among normal adults group while in Parkinson's disease group greater number of participants had multiple- time fall (Table 1).

The major cause of fall was "loss of balance" between both the groups and 21 (42%) individuals had joint dislocations after the fall in normal ambulatory grouped and individuals with Parkinson's disease group suffer loss consciousness after fall as consequences. External factors were found to be leading cause of fall among the individual group who do not have any disease and those participants who suffered from Parkinson disease found both internal and external causes responsible for fall (table 2).

	Non-faller	Single-faller	Multiple-faller
Normal elderly individuals n (%)	-	36 (72%)	14 (28%)
Parkinson's disease individual's n (%)	21 (42%)	8 (27.6%)	21 (72.4%)
Total 100 participants			

(Table-1 Number of fall)

(Table-2 Causes, physical consequence and risk of fall)

	Normal elderly individuals	Parkinson's disease individual's
Causes of fall		
n (%)		
Lower limb muscle weakness	14 (28%)	17(58.6)
Loss of balance	25 (50%)	19 (65.5%)
Decrease or altered sensations	1 (2%)	1 (3.4%)
Muscle fatigue due to over exertion	3 (6%)	6 (20.7%)
Visual deficit	4 (4%)	3 (10.3%)
Dizziness	1 (2%)	3 (10.3%)
Medication side effects	-	2 (6.9%)
Alcohol consumption	-	-
Moving too fast	7 (14%)	1 (3.4%)
Less attention during movement	10 (20%)	9 (31%)
Improper foot wear	2 (4%)	1 (3.4%)
Wearing too long clothing	-	-
Insufficient light	2 (4.0%)	1 (3.4%)
Unlucky	8 (16%)	1 (3.4%)
Environmental hazards	8 (16%)	6 (20.7)
other	3 (6%)	-
Physical consequences		
n (%)		
None	1 (2%)	4 (13.8%)
Bruise	1 (2%)	2 (6.9%)
Sprain/strain	12 (24%)	6 (20.7%)
Joint dislocation	10 (20%)	2 (6.9%)
Fracture	21 (42%)	4 (13.8%)
Loss of consciousness	1 (2%)	2 (6.9%)
other	4 (8%)	9 (31%)
Risk factor of fall		
n (%)	6 (120/)	9 (31%)
Intrinsic	0(12%)	5 (17 2%)
Extrinsic	18 (30%)	15(17.270)
Both	20 (32%)	15 (51./%)
Total 79	50	29

Discussion

This study compares the history, causes, and risk of fall among the normal ambulatory groups and Parkinson's disease group of age 50 years and above. Results show a significant difference among both groups. Parkinson's disease group suffers a fall in the age range of seventy to seventy-five years, which indicates the risk of fall increases as the age advances and the disease progresses. A previous study showed that the severity of the disease, balance impairment, depression, and previous falling

were associated factors of fall (16). The routine usage of medications had a profound effect on the number of falls. A previous study reported that modifiable medical causes of falls in Parkinson's disease patients founds that antidepressant use was significantly associated with fall ⁽¹⁷⁾. Compare to current study analysis, both the groups had visual problems in participants who experienced fall and comparatively within the sub-group of non-faller Parkinson's disease group who do not have visual issues, which can significantly indicate that visual problem might be the reason of fall. A previous study concluded that severe visual impairments can significantly increase the risk for future falls although mild or moderate visual impairment was not associated with falls ⁽¹⁸⁾. The previous study has reported that a large proportion of canes and walkers users experience difficulties in ambulation and risk of fall may increase by using such devices ⁽¹⁹⁾. By comparing it to current study findings does not substantially indicate that use of the walking device can cause fall, but its improper use after a single time fall can be the reason for multiple time falls. Analysis of this study shows that significant difference between number of fall between both the groups that disease affected person may experience greater number of fall as compare to normal ambulatory individual, The result of the previous study shows age, sex, and neurological problems greatly effects on the history and number of individuals experience ⁽²⁰⁾. The current study also shows that the cause of fall found in Parkinson's disease group is "lower limb muscle weakness", compare to normal ambulatory group and loss of balance were the major cause of fall found between both the groups. Previous findings of a study show that muscle strength (especially in the lower extremity) should be one of the factors that is assessed and treated in older adults at risk of fall ⁽²¹⁾. Natalie El Haber (2008) explains the normal physiological aging process that muscle weakness, balance, strength, and activity decline with age and decline in overall health status can lead to fall (22).

The present study further demonstrates that physical consequences after a fall an individual may suffer e.g. fractures, dislocations, sprain and strain that leads to a long term hospital stay and requires medical care and need rest for a prolonged period. The results of a previous study explain that 50% of women and 20% of men aged over 50 years will experience an osteoporosis-related fracture after fall ⁽²³⁾. This study further interprets

that normal ambulatory group experience fall due to extrinsic factor-like slippery floors, poor lighting, and uneven surfaces, while Parkinson's disease group individuals experience fall due to the intrinsic factor, which involves muscle weakness, gait and balance impairment, cognitive impairment, and confusion. A previous study confirms that fear of falling found to be the most common reason for fall among Parkinson's disease group ⁽²⁴⁾. Depending on the severity of disease current study explains that those patients who are having fall they do not get out in the community and that can cause short and long term complications that limit their interaction with society and leads to isolation, which may alter an individual's social life and cause depression and anxiety. A study confirms that as compare to the general population Parkinson's disease patients stay greater time in hospitals and skilled nursing facilities due to the progressive nature of the disease and it can lead a person to isolation and depression (25).

Conclusion

This study concluded that significant differences found in history, causes, and risk of falls between both groups. Increasing age increases co-morbidities which are specific to gender and disease. Normal ambulatory individuals were more prone to have a fall due to less attention, environmental hazard and loss of balance while in Parkinson's disease group individuals having disease-related symptoms which can lead to falling e.g. muscle weakness. Physical and functional consequences of fall e.g. fractures lead a person to a bed or homebound, results in decreased ability to self-care which affect on and individual's personal, social and mental life. The results of this study can help in making preventable measures of fall for both groups. Moreover, the main limitation of this research was convenient sampling, as we cannot generalize the findings to all participants were selected conveniently due to difficulty in finding patients with diagnosed Parkinson's disease.

Conflict-of-Interest: No conflict of interest, everything went good and on time

Source of Funding: Self-funded

Ethical Clearance: Taken from The Institutional Review Board (IRB), Jinnah Post-graduate Medical Center, Karachi, Pakistan

References

- Parkinsonsorgpk. [Online]. Available from: http:// www.parkinsons.org.pk/whatisparkinsons/what_ parkinsons.html [Accessed 15 September 2017]. In-text citation
- George, F. 1. Aafporg. [Online]. Available from:http://www.aafp.org/a fp/2000/0401/p2159. html [Accessed 20 September 2017].
- World Health Organization. [Online]. Available from: http://www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/ fs344/en [Accessed1 September 2017].
- Whitney SL, Rossi MM. Falls and balance issues in long-term care. Topics in geriatric Rehabilitation. 1999 Dec 1;15(2):1-3.
- Wwwbuedu. [Online]. Available from: https:// www.bu.edu/neurorehab/files/2014/02/PD-Update. pdf [Accessed 20 September 2017]. In-text citation
- 5 Susan b o'sullivan thomas j schmitz george d fulk. Parkinson disease . In: Margaret m biblis, Melissa a duffield (eds.) Physical rehabilitation. United States of America: FA davis; 2014. p. 807-808.
- 10 Susan b o'sullivan thomas j schmitz george d fulk. Parkinson disease . In: Margaret m biblis, Melissa a duffield (eds.) Physical rehabilitation. United States of America: FA davis; 2014. p. 829
- Msdmanualscom. 1. MSD Manual Professional Edition. [Online]. Available from: http://www. msdmanuals.com/en-gb/professional/geriatrics/ falls-in-the-elderly/falls-in-the-elderly [Accessed 20 September 2017].
- Msdmanualscom. 1. MSD Manual Professional Edition. [Online]. Available from: http://www. msdmanuals.com/en-gb/professional/geriatrics/ falls-in-the-elderly/falls-in-the-elderly [Accessed 20 September 2017].
- The Journals of Gerontology: Series A, Volume 62, Issue 10, 1 October 2007, Pages 1172–1181, https:// doi.org/10.1093/gerona/62.10.1172
- Cdcgov. 1 [Online]. Available from: https://www. cdc.gov/404.html [Accessed 3 October 2017]. Intext citation:
- 12. Msdmanualscom. 1. MSD Manual Professional

Edition. [Online]. Available from: http://www. msdmanuals.com/en-gb/professional/geriatrics/ falls-in-the-elderly/falls-in-the-elderly [Accessed 3 October 2017].

- 13. https://www.parkinsons.va.gov/resources/ PtEdTri_Falls.pdf [Accessed 10 October 2017].
- Msdmanualscom. 1. MSD Manual Professional Edition. [Online]. Available from: http://www. msdmanuals.com/en-gb/professional/geriatrics/ falls-in-the-elderly/falls-in-the-elderly [Accessed 1 November 2017].
- Msdmanualscom. 1. MSD Manual Professional Edition. [Online]. Available from: http://www. msdmanuals.com/en-gb/professional/geriatrics/ falls-in-the-elderly/falls-in-the-elderly [Accessed 1 November 2017].
- Wood BH, Bilclough JA, Bowron A, Walker RW. Incidence and prediction of falls in Parkinson9s disease: a prospective multidisciplinary study. Journal of Neurology, Neurosurgery & Psychiatry. 2002 Jun 1;72(6):721-5.
- Schrag A, Choudhury M, Kaski D, Gallagher DA. Why do patients with Parkinson's disease fall? A cross-sectional analysis of possible causes of falls. npj Parkinson's Disease. 2015 Jun 11;1.
- Lamoreux EL, Chong E, Wang JJ, Saw SM, Aung T, Mitchell P, Wong TY. Visual impairment, causes of vision loss, and falls: the Singapore Malay Eye Study. Investigative Ophthalmology & Visual Science. 2008 Feb 1;49(2):528-33.
- Bateni H, Maki BE. Assistive devices for balance and mobility: benefits, demands, and adverse consequences. Archives of physical medicine and rehabilitation. 2005 Jan 31;86(1):134-45.
- Resnick B, Junlapeeya P. Falls in a community of older adults: findings and implications for practice. Applied Nursing Research. 2004 May 31;17(2):81-91
- Moreland JD, Richardson JA, Goldsmith CH, Clase CM. Muscle weakness and falls in older adults: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society. 2004 Jul 1;52(7):1121-9.
- 22. El Haber N, Erbas B, Hill KD, Wark JD. Relationship between age and measures of balance,

strength and gait: linear and non-linear analyses. Clinical Science. 2008 Jun 1;114(12):719-27.

- Coughlan T, Dockery F. Osteoporosis and fracture risk in older people. Clinical medicine. 2014 Apr 1;14(2):187-91.
- Jonasson SB, Ullén S, Iwarsson S, Lexell J, Nilsson MH. Concerns about falling in Parkinson's disease: associations with disabilities and personal and environmental factors. Journal of Parkinson's disease. 2015 Jan 1;5(2):341-9.
- 25. Low V, Ben-Shlomo Y, Coward E, Fletcher S, Walker R, Clarke CE. Measuring the burden and mortality of hospitalisation in Parkinson's disease: a cross-sectional analysis of the English Hospital Episodes Statistics database 2009–2013. Parkinsonism & related disorders. 2015 May 1;21(5):449-54.

Relationship between Functional Impairment and Social Network in Adult Stroke Survivors- A Pilot Study

Samuel S. E¹, Suresh B.V², Anjana S³

¹Professor & Principal, ²Prof & Head Department of Neurology, AJIMS, Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Science, Karnataka., ³Post graduate Student, Laxmi Memorial College of Physiotherapy, Mangalore, India

Abstract

Introduction: Stroke is a massive public health problem, being the third most common cause of death in the developed world and the leading cause of adult disability. Stroke and associated functional, impairments affect capacity to work, many survivors have to leave their jobs, which may result in breakdown of social network. The objective of the study was to find the relationship between functional impairment and social network among adult stroke survivors.

Methodology: 20 adult stroke survivors (15 males and 5 females) were included for the study according to the inclusion criteria. Barthel Index Scale was used for assess functional impairment and Fillenbaum questionnaire was used to assess social network.

Result: Out of 20 stroke survivors 12 (60%) had haemorrhagic stroke and 8 (40%) had ischemic stroke. The mean age of the subjects was 54.50 ± 8.90 . The mean duration of the stroke was 8.35 ± 5.63 months. Pearson correlation test was used to check the relationship between functional impairment and social network. The result showed that functional impairment had a weak correlation with social network (r = 0.34) which was however not statistically significant (p = 0.15).

Conclusion: Better functional independence was associated with good social network.

Keywords: Stroke recovery, Functional impairment, Social network.

Background

Among all the neurologic diseases of adult life, stroke ranks first in frequency and importance. The common mode of expression of stroke is a relatively sudden occurrence of a focal neurologic deficit ¹. Strokes are broadly categorized as ischemic or haemorrhagic. Ischemic stroke is due to occlusion of a cerebral blood vessel and causes cerebral infarction. The second broad category consists of hemorrhage, which occurs either within the substance of the brain, called intracerebral hemorrhage; or blood contained within the sub-

Corresponding author: Anjana S Post graduate Student, Email:anjanasunderan95@gmail.com arachnoid spaces, called sub-arachnoid hemorrhage. The second essential feature of stroke is its focal signature. The neurologic deficit reflects both the location and the size of the infarct or hemorrhage. Hemiplegia stands as the most typical sign of stroke, whether in the cerebral hemisphere or brainstem, but there are many other manifestations, occurring in recognizable combinations ^{2,3}. These include paralysis, numbness, and sensory deficits of many types on one side of the body, aphasia, visual field defects, diplopia, dizziness, dysarthria, and so forth.

Stroke cause significant physical, emotional, and cognitive disabilities among survivors, accounting for 3.6% of the total disability-adjusted life years (DALYs) and thus placing stroke within the 10 leading causes of disability irrespective of the development status of countries. Stroke may result in motor, sensory,

perceptual or cognitive deficits. Motor deficits are among the most common deficits that hinder a person's ability to complete their activities of daily living (ADLs) and can also affect the upper limb leading to poor functional use of the arm ^{4,5}. This leads to problems while engaging in ADLs and community activities. These limitations are not only for severe stroke because even after a mild stroke, ADLs and social roles may be affected and this may lead to participation restrictions ⁶.

Stroke is a leading cause of functional impairment. For patients who are ≥ 65 years of age, 6 months after stroke, 26% are dependent in their activities of daily living, and 46% have cognitive deficits ⁷. Stroke changes the lives not only of those who experience a stroke but also of their family and other caregivers. A major stroke is viewed by more than half of those at risk as being worse than death ⁸. Stroke and associated disabilities affect capacity to work, many survivors have to leave their jobs (to retire or become unemployed), which may result in breakdown of social network. The social networks are the web of relationships that surrounds an individual⁹ and social isolation may occur if the social network breaks down. Through social networks, one gains access to social support, which provides people who can potentially give assistance¹⁰. Social networks as being an interpersonal environment for the transmission of information and social influences ¹¹. Furthermore, stronger and closer social ties represent social resources in times of need ¹², reduce sense of isolation, and increase the mental and physical functioning of older adults.

Knowledge of these issues may help stroke-survivors and their families to better understand the situation they find themselves in and facilitate efforts to find care, help and information. It may also help social and medical cares to establish the services, help and information needed by the subjects, especially rehabilitation, and to discuss issues with them in a patient-centred approach, which may reduce the stress of both patients and cares, and improve their co-operation. Further studies are Therefore a need was identified to assess the relationship between functional impairment and social network in stroke survivors.

Materials and Methods

This cross-sectional study was conducted in medically stable adults with age ≥ 50 years to find

the relationship between functional impairment and social networks. All participants having a diagnosis of either ischemic or haemorrhagic stroke at discharge referred by specialists and in selected tertiary hospitals. Study protocol was approved by institutional Ethics Committee. The study population was selected by convenient sampling method. The study was conducted in the course of 1 year. The subjects were enrolled according to the inclusion and exclusion criteria. The inclusion criteria were age \geq 50 years old, including both gender, having a principal diagnosis of either ischemic or haemorrhagic stroke at discharge, stroke of more than one month, post-stroke functional status of the stroke survivor requiring assistance of at least one person to perform daily activities, stroke survivor residing with a primary caregiver (family member) at home. The exclusion criteria were post procedural stroke like CABG, angiography and post-operative stroke, global aphasia and/or unable to communicate, stroke survivor functionally dependent because of other pre-existing conditions (e.g.: amputation, fracture and dementia), stroke survivor without a primary caregiver, severe cognitive difficulties (minimum average scoring ≥ 20 according to Montreal Cognitive Assessment (MoCA)), stroke survivor unwilling/unable to adhere to the study protocol. This study involved minimal equipment (Questionnaire, Pen, pencil, Paper etc.).

Outcome Measures

The Barthel Index: It is an assessment of patient's level of independence in ADL and is scored in increments of 5 points (highest possible total score = 100). The values assigned to each item are weighted according to the amount of physical assistance required if the patient cannot perform the activity independently. The 10 ADL items assessed in the Barthel Index are bowel control, bladder control, personal hygiene, toilet transfer, bathtub transfer, feeding, dressing, wheelchair transfer to and from the bed, walking (wheelchair management if patient is non ambulatory) and ascending and descending stairs.

Fillenbaum Questionnaire: To evaluate social networks, Fillenbaum's five questions were used. The five questions on networks have been accessed for validity and reliability according to Fillenbaum.

Procedure

Result

Ethical clearance for the study was obtained from the Institutional Ethical Committee. After clinical evaluation, subjects fulfilling the inclusion criteria were enrolled for the study. A brief explanation about the procedure was given to all the subjects following which a written informed consent was obtained from the subjects.

The study comprised of a total of 20 older adults which included 15 males while remaining 5 were females. The mean age of the subjects was 58.81 ± 6.67 . The mean score of height, weight and BMI were 170.17 ± 6.67 , 62.21 ± 4.67 and 21.47 ± 1.44 respectively. The mean duration of stroke was 8.35 ± 8.90 . The mean value of Barthel index score was 58.00 ± 9.15 and for Fillenbaum questionnaire it was 3.41 ± 5.22 .

N = 20	Mean	Std. Deviation
Age	54.50	8.90
Height (m)	1.72	3.99
Weight (kg)	62.80	5.51
BMI	21.27	1.82
Duration of stroke (months)	8.35	5.63
Barthel index	58.00	9.15
Fillenbaum questionnaire	3.41	5.22

Table 1: Distribution of age, height, weight, BMI and duration of stroke.

Pearson correlation test was used to find the correlation. Higher score in Barthel Index scale indicates better functional independence and higher score in Fillenbaum questionnaire indicates good social network. Functional impairment had a weak positive correlation (r = 0.34) with social network, which was not statistically significant (p = 0.15).

Table 2: Correlation between functional impairment and social network.

N = 20		Social network
Functional impairment	ʻr' value	0.34
	'p' value	0.15



Figure 1: Correlation between functional impairment and social network

Discussion

A cross- sectional study design was used in the present study to find the relationship between functional impairment and social network among adult stroke survivors. Over a period of one year (total study duration), a total number of 24 stroke survivors referred by specialists were screened for the study. The commonest exclusion criteria encountered during the screening were global aphasia and MoCA score less than 20. Data from 20 subjects fulfilling inclusion criteria were analysed.

The present study suggested that better functional independence was associated with good social network. The stroke survivors included in this study who could see friends and relatives as often as they wanted was associated with better functional independence. Social networks have been found in earlier research to constitute an essential component of successful aging. Lavasseur et. al. found that increased social engagement was associated with better QOL¹³. Stronger and closer social ties may also represent social resources in times of need, reduce any sense of isolation and improve physical and mental functioning^{14,15}. There is also evidence that poor social networks are associated functional dependency¹⁶. Pino et al. and a national survey of British adults, social

relationships were found to be the most important domain of better stroke recovery^{17,18}.

Success of stroke rehabilitation depends on its early commencement, as soon as the stroke survivors is medically stable and free from life threatening conditions. From findings of this study it is clear that stroke survivors could not overcome the emotional consequence of stroke even after one year. Lack of financial and social support and more dependency due to functional impairment would be a reason for emotional consequences of stroke recovery. To make the health and social services freely available and accessible to all type of stroke survivors to avoid the emotional deterioration overtime.

Limitations

Sample size of the present study was limited; future studies with larger sample size may be necessary to substantiate the findings. Stroke survivors with both ischemic and haemorrhagic type and a large range of post- stroke duration were included in this study, therefore the uniformity of the samples may have been compromised.
Conclusion

Better functional independence was associated with good social network. Functional impairment was significantly influenced by co-morbidities and duration of stroke. Haemorrhagic stroke survivors had poor functional independence and need maximal assistance to perform both motor and cognitive ADL compared to ischemic one.

List of Abbrevations

FI - Functional Impairment

MoCA - Montreal Cognitive Assessment

Conflicts of Interest: None

Source of Funding: None

Ethical Clearance: Ethical clearance has been obtained from institutional ethical committee.

References

- 1. National clinical guideline for stroke, prepared by the Intercollegiate Stroke Working Party Fourth edition 2012.
- Adams and Victor's principles of neurology,11th edition, Allan H. Ropper, Martin A, Joshua P, Sashank 2019.
- Feigin VL, Roth GA, Naghavi M, Parmar P, Krishnamurthi R, Chugh S, Mensah GA, Norrving B, Shiue I, Ng M, Estep K. Global burden of stroke and risk factors in 188 countries, during 1990– 2013: a systematic analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study 2013. The Lancet Neurology. 2016 Aug 1;15(9):913-24.
- Hendricks HT, Van Limbeek J, Geurts AC, Zwarts MJ. Motor recovery after stroke: a systematic review of the literature. Archives of physical medicine and rehabilitation. 2002 Nov 1;83(11):1629-37.
- Lo AC, Guarino PD, Richards LG, Haselkorn JK, Wittenberg GF, Federman DG, Ringer RJ, Wagner TH, Krebs HI, Volpe BT, Bever Jr CT. Robot-assisted therapy for long-term upper-limb impairment after stroke. New England Journal of Medicine. 2010 May 13;362(19):1772-83.
- 6. Rochette A, Desrosiers J, Bravo G, St-Cyr-Tribble D, Bourget A. Changes in participation

after a mild stroke: quantitative and qualitative perspectives. Topics in stroke rehabilitation. 2007 May 1;14(3):59-68.

- Go AS, Mozaffarian D, Roger VL, Benjamin EJ, Berry JD, Blaha MJ, Dai S, Ford ES, Fox CS, Franco S, Fullerton HJ. a report from the American Heart Association. Circulation. 2014;129:e28-92.
- Samsa GP, Matchar DB, Goldstein L, Bonito A, Duncan PW, Lipscomb J, Enarson C, Witter D, Venus P, Paul JE, Weinberger M. Utilities for major stroke: results from a survey of preferences among persons at increased risk for stroke. American heart journal. 1998 Oct 1;136(4):703-13.
- Berkman LF, Glass T. Social integration, social networks, social support, and health. Social epidemiology. 2000; 1:137-73.
- Schwarzer R, Knoll N, Rieckmann N. Social support. Health psychology. 2004(158 s 181).
- Antonucci TC, Fiori KL, Birditt K, Jackey LM. Convoys of social relations: Integrating life-span and life-course perspectives. The Handbook of Life-Span Development. 2010.
- McPherson M, Smith-Lovin L, Brashears ME. Social isolation in America: Changes in core discussion networks over two decades. American sociological review. 2006;71(3):353-75.
- Levasseur M, Desrosiers J, Noreau L. Is social participation associated with quality of life of older adults with physical disabilities?. Disability and rehabilitation. 2004 Oct 21;26(20):1206-13.
- 14. Berkman LF, Glass T. Social integration, social networks, social support, and health. Social epidemiology. 2000 Mar 9;1:137-73.
- Park NS, Jang Y, Lee BS, Haley WE, Chiriboga DA. The mediating role of loneliness in the relation between social engagement and depressive symptoms among older Korean Americans: do men and women differ?. Journals of Gerontology Series B: Psychological Sciences and Social Sciences. 2013 Mar 1;68(2):193-201.
- Achat H, Kawachi I, Levine S, Berkey C, Coakley E, Colditz G. Social networks, stress and health-related quality of life. Quality of life research. 1998 Dec 1;7(8):735-50.
- 17. Pino L, González-Vélez AE, Prieto-Flores ME,

Ayala A, Fernandez-Mayoralas G, Rojo-Perez F, Martinez-Martin P, Forjaz MJ. Self-perceived health and quality of life by activity status in community-dwelling older adults. Geriatrics &

gerontology international. 2014 Apr;14(2):464-73.

 Bowling A, Gabriel Z. An integrational model of quality of life in older age. Results from the ESRC/ MRC HSRC quality of life survey in Britain. Social indicators research. 2004 Oct 1;69(1):1-36.

A Comparative Study Effectiveness of Conventional Physiotherapy versus Yoga Therapy on Pain, Core Muscle Endurance, Lumbar Flexion Range of Motion and Functional Disability in Patients with Chronic Mechanical Low Back Pain

Sana Lalkate¹, Ronika Agrawal², Gayatri Karandikar Agashe³

¹Masters of Physiotherapy Student, ²Professor and Principal, ³Associate Professor, M.A Rangoonwala college of Physiotherapy and Research, Pune, ⁴Institution: M A Rangoonwala College of Physiotherapy and Research, Azam Campus, Off Shankar Sheth Road, Camp, Pune

Abstract

Introduction: Low back pain (LBP) is one of the most common and significant clinical, social, economic, and public health problem affecting people all over the world. Physical therapists deal with considerable number of patients with LBP on a daily basis. Yoga has also been a promising treatment option over years for LBP patients. Thus, this study will help to compare the effectiveness of conventional physiotherapy treatment versus yoga therapy with respect to pain, lumbar range of flexion, endurance of Transversus abdominis (TA) and functional disability in patients with chronic mechanical LBP.

Methodology: Fifty four participants were included in an experimental study after screening for inclusion and exclusion criteria. Pretreatment measures for pain by numerical pain rating scale, lumbar range of flexion by Modified Schober's test, Transversus Abdominis endurance by prone test with pressure biofeedback and disability level by Modified Oswestry Disability Index (MODI) were taken.

Conclusion: The findings of this study suggest that yoga therapy is more effective in reducing pain, disability and improving lumbar flexion range whereas physiotherapy is more effective in increasing core muscle endurance in patients with chronic mechanical LBP.

Key Words: Yoga, physiotherapy, strengthening, LBP, core muscle endurance

Background

LBP affects every 1 in 5 adults during their lifetime with its prevalence around 40%.¹ It also interferes with an individual's ability to work and overall quality of life (QOL).²LBP is usually defined as pain, muscle tension or stiffness localized below the costal margin and above the inferior gluteal folds, with or without leg pain.^{3,4} LBP is typically classified as being 'specific' or 'nonspecific'.

Corresponding Author: Dr Sana Lalkate(PT) 3100/2, Station Ali, Neral, 410101, India Contact No.9820184048 Email id: lalkate.sana@gmail.com

Specific LBP is caused by a specific pathophysiologic mechanism. Non-specific LBP or mechanical LBP which is defined as symptoms without a clear specific cause, that is, LBP of unknown origin may be because of inappropriate posture, weak muscles, lower cross syndrome etc.⁴ Chronic LBP is defined as the pain that persists longer than seven weeks.5 37% of Chronic LBP is attributable to occupational ergonomic stressors, both physical and psychosocial.⁶ Most common reasons for back pain are incorrect postures, inadequate trunk muscle strength and psychological and emotional strain. LBP can cause muscle atrophy and inhibit muscle firing. This leads to altered spinal mechanics which may exacerbate the pain-spasm-pain cycle leading to increased dysfunction and decreased muscle endurance. LBP is strongly related to the strength of lumbar core

Although there is a range of conventional pharmacologic, non-pharmacologic and surgical procedures used for non-specific chronic LBP, most patients report only moderate relief, at best. Commonly, management for non-specific chronic LBP includes advice to remain physically active, education on back self-care, medication, and physical therapy.⁷There are various interventions that can reduce pain and disability in patients with chronic mechanical LBP.⁸

In physical therapy, it is seen that the most effective exercise therapy strategy for improving chronic mechanical LBP is supervised, individually-tailored, high-dose stretching and muscle strengthening exercise programs with homepractice.⁷Over the last decade, yoga has been immensely promoted for the treatment of LBP. It can be performed by anyone at any age and level of fitness.²Yoga is also cost-effective in improving health related quality of life for patients suffering from pain. It has been suggested that yoga creates inner, physical and emotional balance through the use of postures, called asanas, which are combined with breathing techniques or pranayama that are based mainly on isometric muscle contractions.²

Methods

In an Experimental study, 54 patients (Both males and females) between 25 - 45 years of age with mechanical low back pain for more than 7 weeks were selected.⁵ Patients who have already participated in yoga or physical therapy in previous 6 months for conditions like LBP, pregnancy, chronic infections such as tuberculosis, compromised cardiovascular problems if recognized on history, spinal pathologies like spinal canal stenosis, spondylolisthesis, grade 3 prolapsed intervertebral disc, previous history of vertebral fracture or surgery, active malignancy, severe neurological deficits and those not willing to participate were excluded from the study.

Informed written consent was taken for participation in this study. Then patients were randomly assigned to Yoga group, Physiotherapy group and a Control group using chit method. The patients were then assessed for pain using Numerical Pain Rating Scale (NPRS), lumbar flexion ROM using Modified Schobers test, transversus abdominis muscle endurance using Prone test with pressure biofeedback and functional disability using Modified Oswestry Disability Index (MODI).⁵ Outcome measures were taken pretreatment and post 6 weeks of treatment in respective groups.

Total exercise program was for 6 weeks. Duration of treatment session was 30 min for the yoga group and the physiotherapy group. Control group was not given any intervention. A supervised session was taken for the first 2 days of every two weekly program for yoga and Physiotherapy group, after which the participant was told to continue the treatment protocol at home. A new program was prescribed at the end of 2^{nd} and 4^{th} week.

YOGA Group

For, 0-2 weeks period, the hold time for each yoga posture was 30 seconds with 2 repetitions of each yoga posture, 60 seconds in 2-4 weeks period and 90 seconds in 4-6 weeks period with only one repetition of each yoga posture. A rest period of 30 seconds was given after each posture. Yoga postures included Padmasana, Ardh Matsyendrasana (right and left), Yog Mudra, Paschimotanasana, Bhujangasana, Naukasana, ArdhaChakrasana and Trikonasana (right and left). Breathing exercises and Shavasana was given at the start and the end of each session respectively.

PHYSIOTHERAPY Group

This group consisted of lumbar stabilization with progressive limb loading with emphasis on abdominals and trunk extensors.⁹All exercises were done for 10 repetitions with a hold time of 10 seconds. A rest period of 1 min was given between every consecutive exercise. All exercises to be performed with core activation.

For 0 - 2 weeks it included Level 1, multifidus activation, Level 2, Level 3A, quadruped – flex one upper extremity, quadruped – extend one lower extremity by sliding it along the mat, supine twist, press up on elbows and bridging.⁹

For 2 - 4 weeks, it included Level 1, Level 3B, Level 3C, quadruped – extending one lower extremity by lifting it off the mat, quadruped – flexing one upper extremity while extending contralateral lower extremity and then alternate to opposite extremities, press up on hands, unilateral cycling, bilateral cycling.⁹ For 4 - 6 weeks, it included Level 1, Level 4A, Level 4B, prone lying - extend one lower extremity, curl ups - hands by the side, curl ups – hands behind the neck, diagonal curl ups, superman's exercise, double knee to chest.⁹

Results and Discussion

Pre and post treatment measures were taken after 6 weeks on Numerical pain rating scale, Modified Schobers test, Prone test with pressure biofeedback and Modified oswestry disability index. There was significant improvement in both physiotherapy and yoga group in all the four outcome measures whereas there was deterioration in the control group in all the outcome measures.

Table 1: Comparison of mean difference (pre and post 6 weeks) of NPRS scores in all 3 groups using Anova test

	MEAN	P value	
Yoga	-4.1333		
Physiotherapy	-2.8	1.2 x 10-7	Significant
Control	0.235294		

Inference:

Yoga group has more improvement in pain compared to Physiotherapy group. Control group shows increase in pain (P < 0.05)

Table 2: Comparison of mean difference (pre and post 6 weeks) of Modified Schober's test scores in all 3 groups using Anova test

	MEAN	P value	
Yoga	0.933333		
Physiotherapy	0.55625	4.95 x 10-6	Significant
Control	-0.07778		

Inference:

Yoga group has maximum improvement in lumbar flexion ROM compared to Physiotherapy group and Control group shows decrease in lumbar flexion ROM (P < 0.05)

Table 3: Comparison of mean difference (pre and post 6 weeks) in core muscle endurance using Prone testscores in all 3 groups using Anova test

	MEAN	P value	
Yoga	-1.33333	4 95 x 10-7	
Physiotherapy	-4.25	1.90 A 10 7	Significant
Control	-0.22222		

Inference

It shows Physiotherapy group has maximum improvement in the lumbar core endurance compared to Yoga group and control group has least improvement (P < 0.05).

	MEAN	P value		
Yoga	-21.7333			
Physiotherapy	-17	2.69 x 10-7	Significant	
Control	2.666667			

 Table 4: Comparison of mean difference (pre and post 6 weeks) of Modified Oswestry Disability Index (MODI) in all 3 groups using Anova test

Inference:

It shows yoga group has maximum improvement in the disability level due to low back pain compared to physiotherapy group and control group shows increase in disability level (P < 0.05)

Discussion

The aim of this study was to compare the effectiveness of conventional physiotherapy treatment versus yoga therapy for chronic mechanical LBP. The results of the study showed that there was reduction in pain, increase in lumbar flexion range of motion, increase in lumbar core muscles endurance and reduction in disability due to LBP in both physiotherapy and yoga group. However, control group shows deterioration in pain, lumbar flexion range of motion and disability due to LBP.

There is a significant reduction in the pain in yoga group (p < 0.05) and physiotherapy group (p < 0.05) post treatment whereas control group shows increase in pain. Both yogasanas and physiotherapy exercises stimulate stretch proprioceptors which send neural impulses to the higher centers. These neural impulses interfere and block impulses on the ascending pain pathway, by pain gate mechanism. They also stimulate the periaqueductal grey matter and raphe nucleus which are a part of descending pain suppression pathway. This leads to inhibition of pain information at the spinal cord.¹ When 3 groups were compared for pain (Table 1) yoga group shows maximum improvement in pain scores. Yoga's maximum efficacy in pain reduction may be due to endorphin production at a cortical level, which is known to result from alternate stretch-and relax procedures of yoga asana practice.¹This could also be because yoga involves muscle relaxation and it also has an emotional component to it. Yoga is found to reduce anxiety and lower depression levels.¹It is stated as yoga

is a combination of careful body movement together with active mindfulness and concentration. Thus this helps promote deeper relaxation and thus maximum pain relief.¹ Both yoga and physiotherapy also increase core muscle strength thus providing maximum support to the spine maintaining a better posture thus reducing LBP. Also other studies prove that yoga intervention is associated with longer lasting reductions in pain outcomes because yoga is a combination of postures, breathing exercises, relaxation, and meditation, thus enhancing parasympathetic tone and thus better effects.^{2,10}

There is a considerable increase in the flexibility of the lumbar spine in both Yoga and Physiotherapy group (p < 0.05). But control group shows reduction in range of the lumbar spine flexion. This could be because yoga involves holding a position for a particular duration leading to gradual lengthening. During the practice of yoga, the breath is regulated and mental focus is directed to it, resulting in physical and psychological benefits. Yoga increases flexibility and strength, tones the muscles and reduces muscular tension.¹¹Yoga practice also increases proprioceptive ability and hence may help in adopting the correct posture to relax muscular tension. It is possible that the perceived decrease in pain and increase in flexibility may have been due to reduced tension in para-vertebral muscles.¹¹ Table 2 suggest comparatively a lower improvement in physiotherapy group with respect to flexibility because it concentrated more on lumbar core muscles and attaining and holding a particular position and it did not comprise more of

stretching exercises. On the contrary all yoga asanas includes stretching components and with maintenance of that posture, whereas physiotherapy focuses on attaining a posture and coming back to starting position. Studies also prove that yoga therapy increased hip flexion, spinal and hamstring flexibility¹¹ like any other stretching exercise, but the effects with yoga had long lasting effects for several months.¹² The fact that control group shows decrease in lumbar flexion range of motion is because due to pain subjects avoid end range of motion and further increase in soft tissue tightness.

It is known that core muscle activation is impaired in patients with chronic LBP and is thought to contribute to spinal instability⁶, which may cause the patients symptoms to persist. There is a slight improvement in core muscle endurance in yoga group(p < 0.05) whereas a much more improvement is found in Physiotherapy Group (p<0.05). Table 3 compares yoga and physiotherapy group for core muscle endurance. Physiotherapy group was better than yoga group as it consisted mainly of exercises emphasizing on transverses abdominis and multifidus muscle activation which are main core stabilizers. It is well documented in the literature that total muscle activation is necessary to efficiently stabilize the spine and the no single muscle contributes greatest to lumbar stability.6The exercises for physiotherapy group recruited all muscles like obliques, upper abdominals, rectus abdominis along with core muscles. Drawing-in maneuver was chosen as an exercise in physiotherapy group for complete 6 weeks. It is a highly effective and specific technique that activates all of the core musculature with a low to moderate cost to lumbar spinal compression. Another study also states that exercises specific to transverses abdominis gives better benefit in patients of chronic LBP compared with general exercise.¹³ Yoga group also showed mild improvement in core muscle as yogasanas are postures targeting the lower back, but no specific emphasis is given on core muscles, however, core muscles are continuously activated in all yogasanas. Taking into consideration the control group, it didn't show any significant change in core muscle endurance because they were not actively involved in any exercise intervention.

A significant improvement is seen in level of disability due to LBP in both yoga and physiotherapy

group (p < 0.05). Disability level is dependent on pain, flexibility and core strength. As there is significant improvement in all the above parameters in both these groups, there is significant reduction in disability level as well. Control group shows significant increase in disability level in the period of 6 weeks (p < 0.05). Table 4 shows that there is more improvement in voga group as yoga therapy caused a significant reduction in pain intensity and increase in flexibility. Also it was found in other studies that yoga intervention is associated with long lasting improvement in quality of life compared to physiotherapy exercise intervention.²This is because yoga therapy causes a marked improvement in balance, flexibility and depression leading to a greater reduction in disability level compared to physiotherapy group.¹⁴

Conclusion

The study concluded that Yoga therapy and physiotherapy, both are effective for patients with chronic mechanical low back pain however, yoga therapy is more effective in reducing pain and disability and improving lumbar range of flexion whereas physiotherapy is more effective in increasing core muscle endurance in chronic mechanical low back pain.

Conflict of Interest: None

Ethical Clearance: Ethical clearance was obtained from the institutional ethical committee

Consent: A informed written consent was taken from all the participants under study.

References

- 1.Tekur P, Nagarathna R, Chametcha S, Hankey A, Nagendra HR. A comprehensive yoga programs improves pain, anxiety and depression in chronic low back pain patients more than exercise: an RCT. Complementary therapies in medicine. 2012 Jun 30:20(3):107-18.
- 2.Nambi GS, Inbasekaran D, Khuman R, Devi S, Jagannathan K. Changes in pain intensity and health related quality of life with Iyengar yoga in nonspecific chronic low back pain: A randomized controlled study. International journal of yoga. 2014 Jan 1;7(1):48.

3. Posadzki P, Ernst E. Yoga for low back pain: a

systematic review of randomized clinical trials. Clinical Rheumatology. 2011 Sep 1;30(9):1257.

- VanMiddelkoop M, Rubinstein SM, Verhagen AP, Ostelo RW, Koes BW, van Tulder MW. Exercise therapy for chronic nonspecific low-back pain. Best practice & research Clinical rheumatology. 2010 Apr 30;24(2):193-204.
- 5. David J. Magee, Orthopaedic Physical Assessment,5th Ed, Canada: Elsevier; 2008
- Johnson J. Functional Rehabilitation of Low Back Pain With Core Stabilizations Exercises: Suggestions for Exercises and Progressions in Athletes;2012
- Saper RB, Sherman KJ, Delitto A, Herman PM, Stevans J, Paris R, Keosaian JE, Cerrada CJ, Lemaster CM, Faulkner C, Breuer M. Yoga vs. physical therapy vs. education for chronic low back pain in predominantly minority populations: study protocol for a randomized controlled trial. Trials. 2014 Dec;15(1):67.
- Munk R. Yoga classes may be an alternative to physiotherapy for people with chronic nonspecific low back pain [commentary]. Journal of physiotherapy. 2018 Jan 1;64(1):57.
- 9. Carolyn Kiesner, Colby. L, Therapeutic Exercise Foundations and Techniques, 6th Edition, F. A.

Davis Company; 2012

- Sherman KJ. Guidelines for developing yoga interventions for randomized trials.Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine. 2012;2012.
- Telles S, Bhardwaj AK, Gupta RK, Sharma SK, Monro R, Balkrishna A. A Randomized Controlled Trial to Assess Pain and Magnetic Resonance Imaging-Based (MRI-Based) Structural Spine Changes in Low Back Pain Patients after Yoga Practice. Medical Science Monitor: International Medical Journal of Experimental and Clinical Research. 2016;22:3238
- Sherman KJ, Cherkin DC, Wellman RD, Cook AJ, Hawkes RJ, Delaney K, Deyo RA. A randomized trial comparing yoga, stretching, and a self-care book for chronic low back pain. Archives of internal medicine. 2011 Dec 12;171(22):2019-26.
- Lizier DT, Perez MV, Sakata RK, "Exercises for Treatment of Nonspecific Low Back Pain". 2012 Nov-Dec;62(6):838-46
- 14. Gatantino ML, Bzdewka TM, Eissler-Rnsso JL, Holbrook ML, Mogck EP, Geigle P, Farrar JT. The impact of modified Hatha yoga on chronic low back pain: a pilot study. Alternative Therapies in Health & Medicine. 2004 Mar 1;10(2).

Effect of Core Stability Exercises on Low Back Pain and Disability in Mother's of Cerebral Palsy

Sharayu Agre¹, Ronika Agrawal², Aafreen Nizami³, Sana Shaikh³

¹B.P.Th, M.P.Th, Ph.D. Scholar Symbiosis International University, Health Sciences. Associate Professor, M.A.Rangoonwala College of Physiotherapy and Research, Pune, Maharashtra, ²Principal, Professor B.P.Th, M.P.Th, M.A.Rangoonwala College of Physiotherapy and Research, Pune, Maharashtra, ³B.P.Th, M.A.Rangoonwala College of Physiotherapy and Research, Pune, Maharashtra

Abstract

Background: In mothers with Cerebral Palsy children, higher prevalence of musculoskeletal disorders are seen due torepetitive bending, lifting, and twisting activity while taking care of the child.Reduced core muscle strength especially of Transverse Abdominis&Multifidusmuscle will lead to increase in low back pain and disability in this population. Hence, the purpose of this study was to find out the effect of Core Stability exercises on low Back pain and disability in mothers of Cerebral Palsy Children.

Method: Thirty mothers with chronic low back pain who fulfilled the inclusion criteria were included in the study. Core muscle strength was assessed using pressure Bio-Feedback, pain was measured using Visual Analogue Scale and Disability was measured using Owestry Disability Index. Core stability exercises were given for 3 times a week for 6 weeks.

Result: The result showed that there was significant improvement in Core muscle strength, and reduction in pain and disability in patients with Chronic Low Back pain.

Conclusion: The study concluded that there was significant improvement in the abdominal muscle strength, low back pain score and disability score post core stability exercises in mothers of cerebral palsy children having low back pain.

Keywords: cerebral palsy mothers, Core Stability exercises, Pain, Disability.

Introduction

Low back pain is defined as the pain that occurs in an area with boundaries between the lowest rib and the crease of the buttocks^[1]. Patients with chronic low back pain present with altered psychomotor functioning such as delayed information processing for stimulus and poor postural control.^(2,3)They also experience more frequent and severe pain leading to have poorer scores for physical and social functioning and it affects quality of life and there is financial burden.^[4]The symptoms of chronic mechanical low back pain are usually worsened by activity like bending, extending, twisting, lifting and improved partially by rest.^[5]Pain and muscle weakness are the most common obstacles in carrying out activities of daily living.^[2]

Cerebral palsy is a non-progressive condition mainly with motor impairment. Mothers are mostly the primary caregivers. Children suffering from cerebral palsy are unable to do their daily activities and thus needs assistance. This activity involves frequent lifting and carrying of the child, carrying orthosis, assistive aids along with the child which may lead to musculoskeletal disorder. It was observed in a study by authers that the lumbar spine was the most common location of pain (n=104; 58.1%) and was followed by the cervical spine (n=58; 32.4%) and thoracic spine (n=32;17.9%). Intensity of pain in mothers of CP children depends on the functional ability of the child, the GMFCS level of the child , body weight and age of the child and also the number of times the child is lifted by the mother. $^{\rm [6]}$

Several studies have shown that there is altered or delayed neuromuscular recruitment patterns in the core stabilizing muscles of the lumbar spine during active movement in individuals with low back pain. Recruiting the core muscles and training them to respond in coordination with the global muscles to various forces and demands helps to improve overall function. Core stability exercise can be defined as restoration or augmentation of the ability of the neuromuscular system to control and protect the spine from injury or re injury. ^[7]Activation of this stabilizing musculature is reinforced by progressing to muscular endurance and strength training. As the rehabilitation program progresses the muscle activation of the stabilizing muscles will become automatic during all the daily activities and functional tasks.^[8] Hence core stability exercises are beneficial in patient with chronic low back pain. So purpose of this study was to assess effect of core stability exercises on back pain and disability in this population.

Materials and Method

Pre and Post experimental study with convenient sampling was done in Physically Handicapped Institute Pune and M.A. Rangoonwala college of Physiotherapy, Pune. Thirtysubjects i.e. mothers as primary caregiver of cerebral palsy child with medical certificate stating the diagnosis as cerebral palsy, age of mothers above 21 years having child between 3-15 years of age with Gross Motor Functional Classification System(III,IV,V) for cerebral palsywere included in the study subjects suffering with chronic low back pain for more than 3 months with Visual Analogue Scale (0-6). Patients suffering from Spondylolisthesis, Rheumatoid Arthritis, Neoplastic disorders, Disc degeneration facet joint,spondylarthosisand subjects involved in any exercise were excluded.

Patients were evaluated for core muscle strength using Pressure bio- feedback^[9], pain using Visual Analogue Scale(VAS)^[10] and Disability using the Oswestry Disability Index^[11]. Before starting the exercisessubject did warm up exercises and cool down exercises after the session

Pressure bio- feedback

Subjects were asked to empty their bladder before the testand positioned supine crook lying with hip flexed at 45 degrees. Subjects were given proper instructions about activation of transverses abdominis muscle. It was confirmed with palpation. The inflatable cuff was placed under the hollow of the lumbar spine (between L1 and S1).The cuff was inflated to the baseline pressure of 40mmHg. The subjects were then asked to take a relaxed breath and while expiration to draw in the abdominal wall towards the spine so as to contract the deep abdominal muscles, raising the pressure up to 10mmHg and recommence the breathing and hold up to 10 seconds. The test was repeated three times and the maximum pressure was recorded.⁽¹²⁾



CORE ACTIVATION

(1st and 2nd weeks) LEVEL 1:	Draw in and hold for 10 seconds
LEVEL 2 : Hold for 5 sec. Repetition 10.	Opposite lower extremity on plinth; bent leg fall out
(3rd and 4th week) LEVEL 3 : Hold for 10 sec. Repetition 10.	Opposite lower extremity on plinth a)Lift bend leg to 90° hip flexion b)Slide heel to extend knee c)Lift straight leg to 45°
(5th and 6th weeks) LEVEL 4 : Hold for 10 sec. Repetition 10	Hold opposite lower extremity at 90° of hip flexion with upper extremity a)Lift bend leg to 90° hip flexion b)Slide heel to extend knee c)Lift straight leg to 45°

MULTIFIDUS

(1st and 2nd week) LEVEL 1: QUADRIPOD POSITION LEVEL 2:QUADRIPOD POSITION LEVEL 3:QUADRIPOD POSITION Hold for 5 sec. Repetition 10	Multifidus Activation Flexion of one upper extremity Extension of one lower extremity by sliding it along the plinth
(3rd and 4th week) LEVEL 4 :QUADRIPOD POSITION LEVEL 5:QUADRIPOD POSITION Hold for 10 sec. Repetition 10	Extend one lower extremity and lift 6-8 inches off the plinth Flexion of one upper extremity and extension of contralateral lower extremity
(5th and 6th week) LEVEL 6 :PRONE LYING POSITION Hold for 10 sec. Repetition 10	Extension of one lower extremity

Results

Variables	Sub-groups	N	%	
Child GMFCS level	3	6 20		
	4	15	50.0	
	AFCS level 4 5	9	30.0	
Age	e (Mean ± SD) years	33.23 ± 7.542		

Table 1: Demographic characteristics of the study participants (N=30)

	Pre	Post	t value	P value
VAS SCORE (Mean)	4.997(±0.78)	2.38(±0.68)	19.151	<0.001**

Table 2 shows comparison of VAS score of pre and post by unpaired T test. This shows statistical significant reduction post treatment in VAS score

	Pre	Post	t value	P value
PRESSURE BIO-FEEDBACK SCORE IN mmHg (Mean)	40.00(±2.53)	42.53(±1.04)	13.321	<0.001**

Table 3 shows comparison of the effect of core strengthening exercises on core muscle strength in mothers of cerebral palsy children using pressure bio feedback. It shows statistical significance which suggests oblivious strength improvement in core muscles.

Group	Pre	Post	t value	P value
ODI SCORE (Mean)	30.378(±5.33)	20.556(±3.7)	9.619	<0.001**

Table 4: Comparison of the effect of core strengthening exercises on disability in mothers of cerebral palsy children using the Oswestry Disability Index. This suggests statistical significance which suggests improvement in disability score of caregivers

Discussion

Low back pain contributes significantly to morbidity in general population and it has a high rate of disability associated with it. ^[13]Women, specially mothers have to do all such activities which results in persistent back pain in them. As children with CP have impaired motor function, sensory and intellectual impairments and limitations in self care such as mobility, this long term dependency places physical and psychological strain on the caregivers.^[8]

Table 3 shows the effect of core stability exercises on low back pain in mothers of cerebral palsy children using Visual Analog Scale. There was significant reduction in pain measured by VAS.

Pain causes reduced motor control and also reduced motor control can cause pain.^[13,14] Reduced motor control causes reduced stability in the spinal level and also in the proprioception. All these deficits in the motor control lead to delayed activation and loss of coordination in the abdominal musculature.^[13] If not restored, this malfunctioning and regulation of dynamic movement leads to inappropriate muscle activity and lead to muscle tightness, imbalance, delayed activation, poor posture which lead to musculoskeletal pain in lumbar region.^[13-15] Reduced motor control increases incidence of micro trauma to passive stabilisers leading to pain. This pain leads to functional disability which arises because of pain and fear of pain with functional task. Stability of spine is comprised of mainly 3 components, Neuromuscular control (neural elements) & Passive subsystem (osseous and ligamentous elements) & Active subsystem (muscular elements). In other words, stability of the spine is not only dependent on muscular strength, but also proper sensory input that alerts the central nervous system about interaction between the body and the environment, providing constant feedback and allowing refinement of movement. ⁽⁹⁾Chronic low back pain is contributed by reduction in neutral zone, reduced active stability and delayed contraction of deep core muscles.

Motor control is required for joint protection and need to be addressed that pain is treated with exercises ^[13]. With core stability exercises sensory input arises from the affected tissues. These tissues are richly innervated with mechanosensory and nociceptive neurons, this lead to modulation of nociceptor activity in response to change in innervated tissues. At tissue level inflammatory mediators influence sensory inputs to nervous system. These activation carries information to CNS via sensory C fibers and enhances production of histamine and cytokines from mast cells, monocytes and endothelial cells causes pain. The mechanism behind is activation of descending nociceptive inhibitory mechanism and release of endogenous opioids. Core stability exercises triggers the release of endorphine from pituitary & hypothalamus & activating opioid receptors peripherally & centrally triggering the endogenous opioid system which results in analgesic effects via descending nociceptive inhibitory mechanism.^[13, 14]. The increase in tissue blood flow during lumbar stabilization exercise in patients with chronic non-specific LBP could be suggested as an integrated mechanism for releasing spasm, improving blood flow, and decreasing the inflammation of local tissues in the lumbar spine, which in return reduced pain.⁽¹⁶⁾As seen earlier these exercises increases the strength of the abdominal muscles which helps in reducing pain as it prevents injury by preventing buckling of the spine, help in balancing external loading to the spine and pain level is reduced. This is in consensus with previous studies (17, 18)

Table 2 shows the effect of core stability exercises on core muscle strength in mothers of cerebral palsy children having low back pain which was measured by using Pressure Bio- Feedback. There was statistically significant increase in abdominal muscle strength.⁽¹⁹⁾ During core stability exercises muscle contraction happens at the level of sarcomere. This is when powered by nerve impulse; force is generated by sarcomere and there is entire muscle contraction. Active contraction of muscles begins with chain of actions that influences all tissues of joints. In response to activation of muscle fibre, the muscle tissue maintains its normal physiology. These exercises improves muscle fibre hypertrophy, increases capillary bed density, mitochondrial density and volume of muscles.. Repetitive contraction of muscles increases motor unit recruitment and synchronization of movement ^[19,20]. This is in accordance to study done by VenuAkuthota et al, where they checked Tranverseabdominis and multifidus muscle thickness by ultrasound in subjects which were given the targeted exercises.^(21,22)Rantanenet al. demonstrated 'moth eaten' type I muscle fibersin the multifidus muscle of patients with chronic back pain (23)

which plays major role in lumbar stability. So targeted muscle activation and strengthening helps in stability of spine.

In mothers repetitive task, like lifting disabled child dominates most of their activities. Long term repeated afferent inputs have a negative effect on the sensorimotor system.⁽¹⁵⁾ It hampers the motor control system which causes poor control of joint movement micro-trauma and pain. There is a slow reaction time associated with it which causes further injury and pain.

In a study by Fabio Removato Franca et al named "Segmental stabilization and muscular strengthening in chronic low back pain", both techniques lessened pain and reduced disability. Increased muscle strength of deep muscles leads to increased intersegment stability, leading to reduced physiological excursion in spinal segment leading to reduced pain. Reduction in pain essentially reduces disability by increasing ease of movement.

Table 4 shows the effect of core stability exercises on disability in mothers of cerebral palsy children using the oswestry disability index. There was a significant reduction in the disability level in these mothers.Core stabilization exercises used in the study causes isometric contraction of the muscle of the spine which is required for functional activities.^[26]

With core stability exercises higher demand are placed on the motor control system which is required for rehabilitation.⁽¹⁾ Motor control training causes deep intrinsic muscles of the spine to provide fine tuning of the intervertebral movement whenever performing any activity.⁽⁹⁾ Contraction of the muscles stimulated the muscle spindle and golgi tendon organ which has effects on spindle system activating the motor neurons that control slow twitch fibers. These changes in turn cause proper timely activation of the muscles and also increase muscle strength, hence creating a girdle around the spine which protects the spine from undue perturbations and improves flexibility and also coordination between superficial and deep muscles.⁽¹⁾Disability is also caused by pain and fear of pain . As pain reduced due to intervention, even disability improved. This improves quality of movement and reduced load on the spine. These exercises causes plastic changes in the motor cortex and in the motor system and hence improves the functional disability.⁽²⁵⁾ Also reduced pain allows the mothers to perform their functional activities with ease and they can also take proper care of their disabled child. Because of reduction in pain and increase in muscle strength there is reduced disability in this population.

Conclusion

This study showed significant improvements in the VAS, ODI & PBF scores post core stability training in mothers of cerebral palsy children. So targeted exercises are recommended in this population.

Financial Assistance: NIL

Conflict of Interest: NIL

Ethics committee Clearance: Ethics clearance was availed from Institutional committee of M.A. Rangoonwala College Of Physiotherapy And research, Pune.

References

- Jerome e. Effects of core stabilization program and conventional exercises in the management of patients with chronic mechanical low back pain. International Journal of Physiotherapy. 2015 Jan 1;2(2):441-7.
- K Dhaliwal, Manmeet&Amandeep,et.al. To Compare The Effect Of Proprioceptive Neuromuscular Facilitation Program Versus Core Stabilization Exercises For Decreasing Pain And Improving Functions In Patients With Low Back Pain. IOSR Journal of Sports and Physical Education.(2014).1.29-35. 10.9790/6737-0152935.
- Joshi VD, Raiturker PP, Kulkarni AA. Validity and reliability of English and Marathi Oswestry Disability Index (version 2.1 a) in Indian population. Spine. 2013 May 15;38(11):662-8.
- Agrawal R, Panjwani N. Prevalence of Musculoskeletal Pain in Male Grocery Store workers. Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development. 2015;6(1):70-5.
- Alemo S, Sayadipour A. Chronic mechanical lower back pain. J NeurologOrthop Med Surg. 2008 Oct 1;28:5-11.
- 6. Czupryna K, Nowotny-Czupryna O, Nowotny J. Back Pain in Mothers of Cerebral Palsied Children.

Orr ttopediiaTraumatologiaRehabilitacja; 2014; 5(6); Vol. 16, 497-505

- Hodges PW. Core stability exercise in chronic low back pain.Orthopedic Clinics of North America. 2003 Apr 1;34(2):245-54.
- Terzi R, Tan G. Musculoskeletal system pain and related factors in mothers of children with cerebral palsy. Agri J. Turk. Soc. Algol. 2016 Jan 1;28:18-24.
- 9. De Paula, et.al. Reproducibility of the pressure biofeedback unit in measuring transversusabdominis muscle activity in patients with chronic nonspecific low back pain.Journal of bodywork and movement therapies. 2012 Apr 1;16(2):251-7.
- Boonstra AM, et.al. Reliability and validity of the visual analogue scale for disability in patients with chronic musculoskeletal pain. International journal of rehabilitation research. 2008 Jun 1;31(2):165-9.
- Nishant HS, Kapoor KS. New modified english and hindioswestry disability index in low back pain patients treated conservatively in Indian population. Asian spine journal. 2014 Oct;8(5):632.
- Richardson C, Hodges P, Hides J. Therapeutic exercise for lumbopelvic stabilization A Motor Control Approach for Prevention and treatment of low back pain. 2ndedition. Edinburgh: Churchill Livingstone; 2004.
- Hodges PW, Moseley GL. Pain and motor control of the lumbopelvic region: effect and possible mechanisms.Journal of electromyography and kinesiology. 2003 Aug 1;13(4):36170.
- Richardson C, Hodges P, Hides J. Therapeutic exercise for lumbopelvicstabilization.Edinburgh: Churchill Livingstone; 2004 May.
- 15. Chang WD, Lin HY, Lai PT. Core strength training for patients with chronic low back pain. Journal of physical therapy science. 2015;27(3):619-22.
- 16. Paungmali A,et.al. Improvements in tissue blood flow and lumbopelvic stability after lumbopelvic core stabilization training in patients with chronic

non-specific low back pain. Journal of physical therapy science. 2016;28(2):635-40.

- 17. Smith BE, Littlewood C, May S. An update of stabilisation exercises for low back pain: a systematic review with meta-analysis. BMC musculoskeletal disorders. 2014 Dec 1;15(1):416.
- Hauggaard A, Persson AL. Specific spinal stabilisation exercises in patients with low back pain–a systematic review. Physical therapy reviews. 2007 Sep 1;12(3):233-48.
- .Kisner C, Colby LA, Borstad J. Therapeutic exercise: Foundations and techniques.5th edition; Fa Davis; 2017 Oct 18.
- 20. Noormohammadpour P,et.al. The role of a multi-step core stability exercise program in the treatment of nurses with chronic low back pain: a single-blinded randomized controlled trial. Asian spine journal. 2018 Jun;12(3):490.
- Akuthota V, Ferreiro A, Moore T, Fredericson M. Core stability exercise principles. Current sports medicine reports. 2008 Jan 1;7(1):39-44
- 22. Akbari A, Khorashadizadeh S, Abdi G. The effect of motor control exercise versus general exercise on lumbar local stabilizing muscles thickness: randomized controlled trial of patients with chronic low back pain. Journal of back and musculoskeletal rehabilitation. 2008 Jan 1;21(2):105-12.
- 23. Rantanen J, et.al. The lumbar multifidus muscle five years after surgery for a lumbar intervertebral disc herniation. Spine. 1993 Apr 1;18(5):568-74.
- 24. Moussouli M, et.al. Effects of stabilization exercises on health-related quality of life in women with chronic low back pain.Journal of Physical Activity and Health. 2014 Sep;11(7):1295-303
- 25. Costa LO,et.al Motor control exercise for chronic low back pain: a randomized placebocontrolled trial. Physical therapy. 2009 Dec 1;89(12):1275-86.
- 26. Rança FR, Burke TN, Hanada ES, Marques AP. Segmental stabilization and muscular strengthening in chronic low back pain: a comparative study; Clinics. 2010;65(10):1013-7.

Prevalence of Compulsive Exercise in Physically Active Adults

Shivani Pathania¹, Mahak Sharma², Preeti Saini³

¹MSc. Student, ²Associate Professor, ³Assistant Professor, Department of Physiotherapy, Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, Manav Rachna International Institute of Research and Studies, Faridabad, India

Abstract

Exercise is generally a healthy behavior that promotes fitness and well being. However, some physically active individuals become addicted to physical fitness and involved in excessive compulsive exercise. The present study aimed to assess the Prevalence of compulsive exercise among physically active adults. Purposive sampling was done to collect a sample size of 223 physically active adults within the age group of 18-29 years from West Delhi and Faridabad. Individuals who were doing physical activity more than an hour with no chronic diseases were included as participants. Exercise bulimia was measured by using standardized tool that was compulsive exercise test (CET). Statistical analysis was done by using SPSS 21 version. Samples of 223 subjects were assessed. Out of which 31% of subjects were from Faridabad (N=70) and 69% of subjects were from East Delhi (N=153). The results revealed that on the basis of CET scoring 44.3% of subjects were having mild exercise bulimia whereas 55.7% of subjects were having exercise bulimia. The study concluded that maximum number of subjects was suffering from exercise bulimia, which is an alarming situation for the young generation.

Key Words: exercise, physical activity, Exercise bulimia, health

Introduction

Physical activity plays valuable role in human health and wellbeing. Daily routine activity helps to boosting brain processes; immune system and prevent the body from many chronic diseases. However, some physically active individuals become addicted to physical fitness and involved in excessive compulsive exercise. A condition which develops with excess of compulsive exercise is also called as exercise bulimia¹. Exercise bulimic individual were too much obsessed with excessive exercise and binge eating. The term binge is defined as a person eats huge quantity of food in a short duration of time. Normally individuals with bulimia purge after eating huge amount, but in the exercise bulimia they did not purge, instead of purging they focus on exercise and do excessive physical activity for weight loss and reduce the guilt of over eating¹. Compulsive exercise is a term in which a individual performs excess of physical workout, above their body limit to burn out the calories of a body.

Exercise bulimia can have number of negative effects on human body. Researchers found that excessive endurance exercise can cause abnormal remodelling of the heart. It may also place patients at risk for arrhythmias. Excessive exercise can put stress on joints of the body as well as bones. Over exercise leads to weak immunity which can leads to further infections². Women who don't have enough fat in their body can experience a shutdown of the reproductive system. This is known as amenorrhea. It could lead to infertility and other reproductive issues. A study was conducted on Exercise addiction on regular exercises which helps to overcome the emotional issues on subjects having injuries and 'non-injured' exerciser who exercise regularly. There were 1083 subjects' participants with injuries and 'non-injured' with recreational activity. The Exercise Addiction Inventory method was used. The study concluded that individuals doing exercise on daily basis were incorporates with excessive exercise, showed symptoms such as highly effected emotional issues and depression. For addressing emotional distress counselling and Psychological assessment were useful to somatic injury interventions³. Therefore the present study was designed to assess prevalence of exercise bulimia in Physically Active Adults.

Material and Methods

The present study was done to assess exercise bulimia on physically active subjects. A sample of 223 subjects was assessed within the age group of 18-29 years. The sample was selected from East Delhi (153 subjects) and Faridabad (70 subjects). Both males and females were included with no chronic illness and doing physical activity more than 60 minutes. Compulsive Exercise was assessed by using standardized tool that was Compulsive Exercise Test. Compulsive Exercise test was consist of 5 major categories - rule driven and avoidance behaviour, weight control exercise, lack of exercise enjoyment, mood improvement and exercise rigidity. Linkert scale was used to point 6 such as 0 for Never True, 1 for Rarely True, 2 for Sometimes True, 3 for Often True, 4 for Usually True and 5 for Always True. Criteria for CET scoring was that the question 8 and 12 were on reverse score form. For mean score sum all the scores and divide with number of items. Sum the mean of all subscales for total scoring of CET ^{4,5,6,7,8}. Consent form was used to take permission from the participants to participate in the study. The data was analyzed by using SPSS 21 Version.

Findings

The present study was done to assess exercise bulimia on physically active subjects by using Compulsive Exercise Test. The data was distributed on the basis of five categories- Rule Driven and Avoidance, Exercise to control weight, Mood Improvement, Lack of Exercise Enjoyment, and Exercise Rigidity. 47.05% of males and 52.95% of females were part of this study.

Compulsive Exercise Test:

Table 1 depicts the distribution on basis of rule driven and avoidance behavior of the subjects. Out of 153 subjects 32% of East Delhi subjects often feel low or depressed if they do not exercise on the other hand in Faridabad population, 53% of East Delhi subjects reported that they always feel low & depressed. 27.4% of East Delhi subjects sometimes feel extremely guilty, whereas 57% Faridabad subjects reported that they always feel extremely guilty if they miss the exercise. 26.7% of East Delhi subjects usually do exercise during the minor illness whereas 19% Faridabad subjects reported that they always continue their exercise even they fall ill or have injury. 41.8 % of East Delhi subjects usually miss exercise and try to cover in the next session whereas 51% Faridabad subjects reported that they always cover it in next session of exercise if they skip there exercise. 59.4% of east Delhi subjects and 33% of Faridabad subjects reported that they often and always feel irritated when they miss an exercise session respectively. 50.3% East Delhi subjects reported that they feel sometimes anxious on the other hand 50% of Faridabad subjects always feel anxious if they miss an exercise session.

NO. OF OPTION	ALWAY	S TRUE	USUAI TRU	.LY E	Y OFTEN TRUI		SOMETIMES TRUE		RARELY TRUE		NEVER TRUE	
No exercise	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)						
feel low and depressed	16 (10.4)	37(53)	34 (22.2)	0(0)	49 (32.0)	0(0)	30 (19.6)	6(9)	4 (2.61)	5(7)	20 (13.0)	22(31)
Miss exercise feel extremely guilty	24 (15.6)	40(57)	30 (19.6)	0(0)	19 (12.1)	0(0)	42 (27.4)	23(33)	36 (23.5)	1(1)	2 (1.3)	6(9)
Continue exercise in injury & illness	16 (10.4)	13(19)	41 (26.7)	0(0)	22 (14.3)	0(0)	31 (20.2)	8(26)	29 (18.9)	15(21)	14 (9.1)	24(34)

 TABLE 1: DISTRIBUTION OF SUBJECTS BASED ON RULE DRIVEN AND AVOIDANCE

 BEHAVIOUR:

Miss exercise try cover in next session	0(0)	36(51)	64 (41.8)	0(0)	89 (58.1)	0(0)	0(0)	23(33)	0(0)	0(0)	0 (0)	11(16)
No exercise, feels irritable	0(0)	23(33)	0(0)	0(0)	91 (59.4)	0(0)	57 (37.2)	15(31)	5 (3.2)	1(1)	0 (0)	31(44)
Miss exercise, feels themselves down	0(0)	20(29)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	43 (28.1)	11(16)	85 (55.5)	4(6)	25 (16.3)	35(50)
Not enjoy exercise	0(0)	26(37)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	14 (9.1)	25(36)	69 (45.0)	6(9)	14 (9.1)	13(19)
No exercise, feels anxious	0 (0)	35(50)	0 (0)	0 (0)	17 (11.1)	0(0)	59 (38.5)	14(20)	77 (50.3)	4(6)	0 (0)	17(24)

Table 2 stated the distribution of subjects based on weight control exercise. Out of 223 subjects, 80.3% of East Delhi subjects usually do exercise to improve their appearance whereas in Faridabad, 76% subjects reported the same. 80.3% East Delhi subjects reported that they its rarely true if they eat too much then they do more exercise on the other hand 46% of Faridabad subjects reported that its always true. 20.2% of East Delhi subjects and 41% of Faridabad subjects always do exercise to be slim. 83% of East Delhi subjects often do exercising for weight loss and burning out the calories other hand 68% of Faridabad subjects reported that it's always true. Majority number of subjects (30% east Delhi subjects; 70% Faridabad subjects) always feel worry that they will gain weight if they do not exercise.

NO. OF OPTION	ALWAYS	S TRUE	USUALLY	TRUE	OFTEN 1	TRUE	SOME TR	TIMES UE	RARELY	TRUE	NEVER	TRUE
Do exercise to improve appearance	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)
	18 (11.7)	53(76)	123 (80.3)	0(0)	12 (7.8)	0(0)	0(0)	11(16)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	6(9)
Feel eat too much if do more exercise	0(0)	32(46)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	10 (6.5)	11(16)	123 (80.3)	3(4)		24(34)
Do not exercise to be slim	31 (20.2)	29(41)	24 (15.6)	0(0)	24 (15.6)	0(0)	38 (24.8)	6(9)	24 (15.6)	4(6)	12 (7.8)	31(44)
Exercise to burn calories & lose weight	0 (0)	60(68)	1 (0.6)	0 (0)	127 (83.0)	0 (0)	25 (16.3)	3(4)	0 (0)	1(1)	0 (0)	6(9)
No exercise, worried to gain weight	0(0)	49(70)	0(0)	0 (0)	7(4.5)	0 (0)	46 (30.0)	2(3)	89 (58.1)	1(1)	11 (7.1)	18(26)

 TABLE 2: DISTRIBUTION OF SUBJECTS BASED ON WEIGHT CONTROL EXERCISE:

TABLE 3 depicts the distribution of subjects based on mood improvement. 81.6% East Delhi subjects reported that they usually feel happier or positive after exercise whereas in Faridabad, 100% subjects reported that they always feel happier or positive after exercise. 79.7% of subjects of East Delhi and 86% of Faridabad subjects reported that they usually and always feel less anxious after exercise respectively. 83.6% of subjects of East Delhi and 86% of Faridabad subjects reported that they usually and always observe less tenses/stressed after the exercise. 64% of subjects of East Delhi and 94% of Faridabad subjects reported that they usually and always feel that exercise improve their mood respectively.

NO. OF OPTION	ALWAY	S TRUE	USUALLY	TRUE	OFTEN '	TRUE	SOME TF	TIMES RUE	RAREL	Y TRUE	NEVEF	R TRUE
Feel happier or positive after exercise	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)						
	28 (18.3)	70(100)	125 (81.6)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)
Feel less anxious after exercise	7 (4.5)	60(86)	122 (79.7)	0(0)	20 (13.0)	0(0)	4 (2.6)	6(9)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	4(6)
Feel less stressed or tense after exercise	0 (0)	63(90)	128 (83.6)	0(0)	25 (16.3)	0(0)	0(0)	2(3)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	5(7)
Exercise to improve mood	55 (35.9)	66(94)	98 (64.0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	4(6)
Feel less depressed after exercise	37 (24.1)	62(89)	82 (53.5)	0(0)	82 (53.5)	0(0)	0(0)	5(7)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	3(4)

TABLE 3: DISTRIBUTION OF SUBJECTS BASED ON MOOD IMPROVEMENT:

TABLE 4 depicts the distribution of subjects based on lack of exercise enjoyment. Out of the 223 subjects 73.8% of East Delhi subjects feels it's often true that exercise is a chore for them on the other hand in Faridabad, 50% subjects reported that its usually true that exercise is a chore for them. 28.7% subjects of East Delhi reported that it is often that they enjoy exercising on the other hand 91% of Faridabad subjects feel it's always true. Similar results were presented by a study conducted by Taranis et al⁷ but in eating disorder subjects.

NO. OF OPTION	ALWAYS	TRUE	USUALLY	TRUE	OFTEN TR	RUE	S O M E T TRUE	TIMES	RARELY	TRUE	NEVER T	RUE
Exercise a chore	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)
	1 (0.65)	35(50)	26 (16.9)	0(0)	113 (73.8)	0(0)	13 (8.49)	16(23)	0(0)	1(1%)	0(0)	18(26)
Enjoy exercise	13 (8.49)	64(91)	12 (7.84)	0(0)	44 (28.7)	0(0)	24 (15.6)	1(1)	25 (16.3)	2(3%)	35 (22.8)	3(4)
Not enjoy exercise	0(0)	16(23)	0(0)	0(0)	5 (3.2)	0(0)	61 (39.8)	4(6)	86 (56.2)	2(3%)	1 (0.65)	48(69)

TABLE 4: DISTRIBUTION OF SUBJECTS BASED ON LACK OF EXERCISE ENJOYMENT:

TABLE 5 depicts the distribution of subjects based on exercise rigidity. 92.8% of subjects of East Delhi and 86% of Faridabad subjects reported that they usually and always true that their day become organized and structured with an exercise routine respectively. 62% of subjects of East Delhi and 46% of Faridabad subjects reported that they usually and always true that their weekly pattern of exercise is repetitive respectively.

NO. OF OPTION	ALW TR	VAYS SUE	USUA TRI	LLY JE	OFT TRI	EN JE	SOME TF	TIMES RUE	RARI TRI	ELY JE	NEVEI	R TRUE
Day to be organized & structured	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)	Delhi N (%)	FB N (%)
exercise	11 (7.18)	60(86)	142 (92.8)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	0(0)	3(4)	0(0)	3(4)	0(0)	4(6)
Weekly pattern of exercise is repetitive	47 (30.7)	32(46)	95 (62.0)	0(0)	11 (7.18)	0(0)	0(0)	24(34)	0(0)	7(10)	0(0)	7(10)
Follow a set routine of exercise	16 (10.4)	47(67)	34 (22.2)	0(0)	49 (32.0)	0(0)	30 (19.6)	9(13)	4 (2.61)	2(3)	20 (13.0)	12(17)

TABLE 5: DISTRIBUTION OF SUBJECTS BASED ON EXERCISE RIGIDITY:

TABLE 6 depicts the distribution tables based on CET scoring. Out of 223 subjects, 44.3% of subjects were having mild exercise bulimia whereas 55.7% of subjects were having exercise bulimia.

CET SCORING	CATEGORIES	N (%)
0-15	NO EXERCISE BULIMIA	0 (0)
15-70	MILD EXERCISE BULIMIA	99 (44.3)
70-100	EXERCISE BULIMIA	124 (55.7)

TABLE 6: DISTRIBUTION OF THE TABLES ON THE BASIS OF CET SCORING:

Conclusion

The study revealed that more than half of the subjects were doing Compulsive Exercise. Till now in our knowledge very few studies has be conducted to assess Compulsive Exercise in physical active population. Most of the studies are done on assessment of physical activity in Anorexia Nervosa and Bulimia Nervosa subjects.

The study concluded that maximum number of subjects was suffering from Compulsive Exercise disorder, which is an alarming situation for the young generation.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest: The author(s) declare no potential conflicts of interest with respect to the research, authorship, and/or publication of this article.

Source of Funding: There is no source of fund by any organization

Ethical Clearance: Consent form was used to take permission from the participants to participate in the study.

References

 National Eating Disorder Association. Exercise Bulimia. 2016. Available at https://www. nationaleatingdisorders.org/exercise-bulimia (accessed at 20th April 2019)

- Hausenblas HA, Downs DS. Exercise Dependence: A Systematic Review. Psychology of sports and exercise. 2002; 3(2):89-123.
- Lichtenstein MB, Nielsen RO, Gudex C, Hinze CJ, Lorgenson U. Exercise addiction is associated with emotional distress in injured and non-injured regular exercisers. Addictive behaviors reports. 2018; 8: 33-29.
- Meyer C, Plateau CR, Taranis L, Brewin N, Wales J, Arcelus J. The Compulsive Exercise Test: confirmatory factor analysis and links with eating psychopathology among women with clinical eating disorders. Journal of eating disorders. 2016;4(1): 22.
- Achamrah N, Coëffier M, Déchelotte P. Physical activity in patients with anorexia nervosa. Nutrition Review. 2016;74 (5): 301–311.
- Swenne I. Changes and predictive value for treatment outcome of the compulsive exercise test (CET) during a family-based intervention for adolescents eating disorders. BMC Psychology. 2018;6(1):55.
- Taranis L, Touyz S, Meyer C. Disordered eating and exercise: development and preliminary validation of the Compulsive Exercise Test (CET). Eur Eat Disord Rev. 2011;19(3):256–268. doi: 10.1002/ erv.1108.
- Thome JL and Espelage DL. Relations among exercise, coping, disordered eating, and psychological health among college students. Eating Behaviours. 2004;5(4):337–351.

Prevalence of Carpal Tunnel Syndrome among Third Trimester Pregnant Women – An Institutional Based Study

Sonia¹, Smitha D²

¹Postgraduate, ²Associate Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya (Deemed to be university) Mangalore, India

Abstract

Background: Carpal tunnel syndrome is a most common type of upper limb compression neuropathies. Carpal tunnel syndrome is common during pregnancy and the symptoms are mostly high in the third trimester. Various physiological and electro diagnostic tests are used to detect carpal tunnel syndrome in this stage. Though it is common during pregnancy; there are limited studies done in India to find out the prevalence. Thus this study was aimed to find the prevalence of carpal tunnel syndrome among third trimester of pregnant women.

Method: A cross-sectional study including 371 pregnant women who visited OBG Department of Yenepoya Medical College Hospital Mangalore. They were assessed subjectively through Flick sign and Katz Hand Diagram and objectively using clinical tests including Tinel's test, Phalen's test, Carpal compression test and Abduction strength test to confirm the carpal tunnel syndrome.

Results: Among 371 pregnant women, 34 (9%) women were found to be positive of carpal tunnel syndrome. 3.6%, 6.9% and 11.3% of carpal tunnel syndrome were found in 7^{th} , 8^{th} and 9^{th} month of their pregnancy respectively. Tests were found to be higher in 9^{th} month as compared to 7^{th} and 8^{th} month but Tinel's sign was significantly higher in the 9^{th} month.

Conclusion: In this study the prevalence of carpal tunnel syndrome among third trimester pregnant women was found to be 9%.

Keywords: Carpal tunnel syndrome, Third trimester, Tinel's sign, Phalen's test, Flick sign

Introduction

Carpal tunnel syndrome (CTS) is a most common type of upper limb compression neuropathies¹. CTS occur due to the median nerve within the carpal tunnel at the wrist and it accounts for nearly 90% of all the entrapment neuropathies². It is also an important cause of functional impairment and pain in hand³. General population being diagnosed with CTS is only about

Corresponding Author

Address for Correspondence: Smitha D, Associate Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya (Deemed to be University), Mangalore-575018 E-mail-smithad@yenepoya.edu.in 0.5%. Only few affected patients consult clinicians and population based studies reveal that about 3% of adults with CTS are electro-diagnostically confirmed⁴.

Various diagnostic tests are used to detect CTS such as Tinel's sign, Phalen's test, Square wrist sign, Katz hand diagram, Tethered Median nerve stress test, Pressure provocation test, Tourniquet test and the motor examination includes Abduction strength tests. CTS will be confirmed through electrophysiological findings like Nerve conduction velocity and Ultrasound². Nerve conduction test and Electromyography investigations are the diagnostic gold standard tests but if the Tinel's test and Phalen's tests are positive which have the specificity of >98%, then it is unnecessary to do electro diagnostic tests prior to the referral.⁵ The symptoms includes tingling and numbness in the thumb, index and

middle finger and also lateral half of the ring finger, loss of grip strength and dexterity, sensation of burning and dysesthetic wrist pain, radiating pain proximally along the volar forearm, medial arm and shoulder. Symptoms may be exacerbated by activities, wrist positions and are often worse at night⁶. The symptoms may subsequently be exaggerated to include, hyperesthesia or hypoesthesia, and weakness. CTS can be diagnosed with detailed history and physical tests⁷.

During pregnancy and postpartum period of women the compression neuropathies such as CTS are very common. CTS is seen as a complication of pregnancy⁸. Approximately about 2.3% to 4.6% of patients with CTS are pregnant women⁹; up to 50% of all pregnant women have nocturnal hand symptoms, mostly in the third trimester. Hormonal changes and edema and gestational diabetes are likely the main causes of CTS¹⁰. After child birth Carpal tunnel syndrome may decrease spontaneously within few weeks as seen in 95% of women¹¹.

There are studies done to find out the prevalence of CTS in pregnant women^{7, 12-17}. A Study by Wand J S et al, observed that all the cases of CTS that developed in pregnancy occurred in the third trimester and resolved within two weeks of delivery. CTS which develops in pregnancy appeared to be a separate clinical entity to that developing in the puerperium⁹. Bahrami MH et al, in 2005 did a study on prevalence and severity of CTS during pregnancy among 100 pregnant women with hand symptoms. They used CTS provocation tests like Tinel's and Phalen's tests and for definite diagnosis electro diagnostic tests were used. Results indicated that prevalence of CTS is significant in pregnant women and this study highlighted that hand symptoms provide useful information in pregnancy related CTS¹³.

A study on 333 women with CTS by Sapuan J et al used diagnostic processes as patient history, physical examinations and severity with Boston Carpal Tunnel Questionnaire (BCTQ) and 82 pregnant women presented with CTS and majority were Malay women who also were at higher risk of developing the syndrome in the third trimester¹⁵. A study was done on 639 Dutch pregnant women with prevalence, course and determinants of CTS by Meems et al, who assessed baseline characteristics at 12 weeks of gestation and its

symptoms using BCTQ at 32 weeks and BCTQ at first postpartum period about last week of pregnancy. 34% reported CTS symptoms during pregnancy. BCTQ was found to be significantly higher after 32 weeks than before 32 weeks¹⁶. A systematic review by Luca Padua et al concluded that symptoms may persist in a substantial number after one or more years of delivery¹⁷.

Most of the studies specifically mentioned the prevalence of CTS in pregnancy is two times higher in third trimester than the first and second trimester of pregnancy^{7, 18-20}. But there are limited studies done in India to find out the prevalence.

Methodology

This is a cross sectional study which included 371 third trimester pregnant women who visited Inpatient and Outpatient Department of OBG at Yenepoya Medical College Hospital, Mangalore. Any history of neuropathies other than carpal tunnel syndrome and history of carpal tunnel syndrome prior to pregnancy were excluded from the study. Study period was one year (Feb 2019 to Feb 2020).

Procedure: An informed consent was obtained from the pregnant women who fulfilled the criteria. In this study CTS was diagnosed through subjective examinations including, Katz Hand Diagram³ which is a self-administered diagram and diagnosis is graded as classic, probable, possible or unlikely to be carpal tunnel syndrome based on the hand pattern in the diagram and the flick sign³, where the subjects were asked 'Will you shake your hand when the symptoms are at their worst at night?'

Subjects were objectively examined through physiological tests including Tinel's test⁶, by lightly tapping over the site of the median nerve at the distal wrist crease of the subject and any tingling and discomfort in the fingers complained by the subjects was considered a positive sign. Phalen's test⁶ was assessed by asking the subjects to hold the forearm vertically with the elbow resting on the table and then allowing both the hands to drop with complete wrist flexion for approximately one minute and the test was positive if paresthesia developed in less than one minute. Carpal compression test⁶ was done by applying a direct thumb pressure over the median nerve at the carpal tunnel in wrist and the subjects who developed paresthesia within 30 seconds were considered positive. For Abduction strength test⁷ the subjects were asked to raise the thumb perpendicularly to the palm; a pressure was applied on the distal phalanx where the abductor pollicis bevis is innervated only by the median nerve, which isolates the strength. The subjects who found positive in these tests were diagnosed with CTS.



Fig 1: Katz Hand Diagram³

Findings

Table1: Frequency distribution

		Number of pregnant women	Percentage
	<=20	27	7.3%
	21-25	125	33.7%
A	26-30	135	36.4%
Age	31-35	65	17.5%
	36-40	17	4.6%
	>40	2	0.5%
	7th month	28	7.5%
Month of pregnancy	8th month	131	35.3%
	9th month	212	57.1%
	А	47	12.7%
Katz hand diagram	В	46	12.4%
	С	278	74.9%
Eliokaian	N	310	83.6%
Flick Sign	Р	61	16.4%
Tinal's sign	N	312	84.1%
Ther's sign	Р	59	15.9%
Dhalan's Tost	N	315	84.9%
rhaten s Test	Р	56	15.1%
Carnel Compression Test	N	333	89.8%
	Р	38	10.2%
Abduction strength test	Ν	341	91.9%
Adduction strength test	Р	30	8.1%

Katz hand diagram *A*, *B* and *C* are representing Classic, Probable and Unlikely pattern of symptoms in hands respectively. *N*-Negative and *P*-Positive.

Table 1 shows the frequency distribution of age, months of pregnancy in third trimester, subjective (Katz hand diagrams and flick sign) and objective (Tinel's test, Phalen's test, carpal compression test and abduction strength test) respectively.

		Number of			Chi	P value				
		pregnant	7th	7th month 8th month 9th month						
		(No. PW)								
			No.PW	%	No.PW	%	No.PW	%		
		27		7.100/	10	7.000	1.5	7 100/	7 700	0.657
Age	<=20	27	2	/.10%	10	/.60%	15	/.10%	7.709	0.657
nge	21-25	125	9	32.1%	43	32.8%	73	34.40%		
	26-30	135	12	42.9%	39	29.8%	84	39.60%		
	31-35	65	4	14.3%	29	22.1%	32	15.10%		
	36-40	17	1	3.60%	9	6.90%	7	3.30%		
	>40	2	0	0.00%	1	0.80%	1	0.50%		
	A	47	1	3.60%	11	8.40%	35	16.50%	8.876	0.064
Katz hand	В	46	3	10.7%	21	16.0%	22	10.40%		
diagram	С	278	24	85.7%	99	75.6%	155	73.10%		
	N	310	25	89.3%	114	87%	171	80.70%	3.109	0.211
Flick sign	Р	61	3	10.7%	17	13%	41	19.30%		
	N	312	27	96.4%	116	88.5%	169	79.70%	8.167	0.017*
Tinel's sign	Р	59	1	3.60%	15	11.5%	43	20.30%	_	
	N	315	26	92.9%	115	87.8%	174	82.10%	3.555	0.169
Phalen's test	Р	56	2	7.10%	16	12.2%	38	17.90%		
Carpal compression	N	333	26	92.9%	122	93.1%	185	87.30%	3.347	0.188
test	Р	38	2	7.10%	9	6.90%	27	12.70%		
Abduction strength test	N	341	27	96.4%	125	95.4%	189	89.20%	5.112	0.078
strongen tost	Р	30	1	3.60%	6	4.60%	23	10.80%	1	

TABLE 2: Comparison between the months in third trimester

Katz hand diagram *A*, *B* and *C* are representing Classic, Probable and Unlikely pattern of symptoms in hands respectively,

N- negative and *P*- positive, * - *p* value showing statistical significant (<0.05).

Table 2, shows the comparison between months in third trimester using chi square test. All tests were higher in 9th month as compared to 7th and 8th month but Tinel's sign was significantly higher in the 9th month.



Fig 2: Prevalence of carpal tunnel syndrome

The diagram shows the prevalence of CTS among 371 pregnant women in their third trimester.

			М	onth of pregna	incy	Total
			7th month	8th month	9th month	
Carpal Tunnel Syndrome	Negative	Number of pregnant women	27	122	188	337
		Percentage within Month of pregnancy	96.4%	93.1%	88.7%	90.8%
	Positive	Number of pregnant women	1	9	24	34
		Percentage within Month of pregnancy	3.6%	6.9%	11.3%	9.2%

Table 3: Comparison of frequency and percentage of CTS between the months of third trimester

Table 3 shows the comparison of total number and percentage of CTS between the months of pregnant women in third trimester. CTS showing higher in the 9th month as compared to 7th and 8th months. Among 371 pregnant women, 337 (90.8%) found negative and 34 (9.2%) found positive of CTS.

Discussion

In this study among 371 third trimester pregnant women, 34(9.2%) women found to be positive with the physiologic tests. 3.6%, 6.9% and 11.3% of CTS found in 7th, 8th and 9th month of pregnancy respectively. The prevalence of Carpal tunnel syndrome (CTS) among pregnant women was found to be as high as 62% ²¹ and as low as 0.23%⁶. No previous study has clearly stated the actual prevalence of CTS during the third trimester of pregnancy alone. All tests found to be higher in 9th month as compared to 7th and 8th month. Further CTS and its symptoms were increased after 30 weeks of pregnancy. The clinical findings of this study also agree with the other studies^{7, 9, 15, 16, 19, 20}.

During the present study period most of the pregnant women neglected their symptoms and failed to highlight their problems to attending doctors during routine checkups, as they regarded these symptoms to be insignificant and completely normal during pregnancy. Similar observations were also found in previous studies^{7, 15}. However, most of the physicians do not record this diagnosis in the institution's diagnostic indexing system if symptoms are not a chief complaint. Although most of the studies used only electro diagnostic tests or physiological tests and electro diagnostic tests together. Our study included only physiological provocative tests in the subjective and objective forms as diagnostic criteria for CTS in pregnancy. It is widely accepted and recognized that CTS is a syndrome whose accurate diagnosis requires a combination of both signs and symptoms¹⁵.

According to some of the previous studies^{13, 15, 21} clinical examinations, provocative tests and history taking alone could not diagnose all cases, and their sensitivity and specificity are much less than electrodiagnostic tests and it is important to combine both clinical examinations and electro-diagnostic tests to confirm CTS. But one of the previous study of Szabo et al⁵ supports the present study that, if the Tinel's test and Phalen's tests are positive which have the specificity of >98%, then it is unnecessary to do electro- diagnostic tests prior to the referral. Giving justice to this statement, in the present study the most common signs were found to be Tinel's and Phalen's signs which were similar to the conclusions of some of the previous studies^{16, 18}. In contrast, a study by Mondelli et al ²² stated that the Tinel's test found to be least accurate among several such tests and also known to be present in poly neuropathies besides Carpal Tunnel Syndrome. However in the present study we have included the Tinel's test, which was found to be significant than other provocative tests so it can be considered as an evaluation test and one of the previous study¹⁸ also supports this criteria.

This study was not without limitations. One shortcoming was perhaps the Katz Hand diagram, being a subjective and patient-oriented is associated with the possibility of patients overestimating or underestimating the severity of their condition. This study focused only on the Prevalence of carpal tunnel syndrome through the physiological tests, and thus does not identify the severity and depth of the condition.

Conclusion

In this study the prevalence of carpal tunnel syndrome among third trimester pregnant women was found to be 9%.

Conflict of Interest: No conflict of interest

Source(s) of funding: Self-funded

Ethical Clearance: Yenepoya University Ethics Committee approved this study.

References

- 1. Aroori S, Spence RA. Carpal tunnel syndrome. Ulster Med J. 2008 Jan;77(1):6–17.
- Tanaka S, Wild DK, Seligman PJ, Behrens V, Cameron L, Putz-Anderson V. The US prevalence of self-reported carpal tunnel syndrome: 1988 National Health Interview Survey data. Am J Public Health. 1994 Nov; 84(11):1846–8.
- 3. D'Arcy CA. Does This Patient Have Carpal Tunnel Syndrome? JAMA. 2000 Jun 21; 283(23):3110.
- Atroshi I, Gummesson C, Johnsson R, Ornstein E, Ranstam J, Rosén I. Prevalence of Carpal Tunnel Syndrome in a General Population. JAMA. 1999 Jul 14; 282(2):153-8.
- The Value of Diagnostic Testing in Carpal Tunnel Syndrome. J Hand Surg. 1999 Jan 1; 24(4):704–14.
 - 6. H Ablove R, Ablove T. Prevalence of carpal

tunnel syndrome in pregnant women. 2009; 108. 194 p.

- Stolp-Smith KA, Pascoe MK, Ogburn PL. Carpal tunnel syndrome in pregnancy: Frequency, severity, and prognosis. Arch Phys Med Rehabil. 1998 Oct;79(10):1285–7
- 8. Klein A. Peripheral Nerve Disease in Pregnancy. Clin Obstet Gynecol. 2013 Jun;56(2):382.
- 9. Wand JS. Carpal tunnel syndrome in pregnancy and lactation. J Hand Surg Br Eur 1990 Feb 1; 15 (1):93–5.
- Qattan MMA, Manktelow RT, Bowen CVA. Pregnancy-Induced Carpal Tunnel Syndrome Requiring Surgical Release Longer Than 2 Years after Delivery. Obstet Gynecol. 1994 Aug;84(2):249
- Marsh, M, Glob. libr. women's med., The Nervous System In Pregnancy (ISSN: 1756-2228) 2008; DOI 10.3843/GLOWM.10166
- Padua L, Aprile I, Caliandro P, Mondelli M, Pasqualetti P, Tonali PA, et al. Carpal tunnel syndrome in pregnancy: multiperspective followup of untreated cases. Neurology. 2002 Nov 26;59(10):1643–6.
- Bahrami MH, Rayegani SM, Fereidouni M, Baghbani M. Prevalence and severity of carpal tunnel syndrome during pregnancy. Electromyogr Clin Neurophysiol. 2005;45 (2) :123
- L S, Rao SV, S R. Neurological Disorders in Pregnancy and Puerperium. IOSR J Dent Med Sci. 2017 Apr; 16(04):80–5.
- 15. Sapuan J, Yam KF, Noorman MF, Cruz PKD, Razab WNWA, Rozali ZI, et al. Carpal tunnel syndrome

in pregnancy - you need to ask! Singapore Med J. 2012 Oct;53(10):671–5.

- Meems M, Truijens SEM, Spek V, Visser LH, Pop VJM. Prevalence, course and determinants of carpal tunnel syndrome symptoms during pregnancy: a prospective study. BJOG Int J Obstet Gynaecol. 2015 Jul 1;122(8):1112–8
- Padua L, Pasquale AD, Pazzaglia C, Liotta GA, Librante A, Mondelli M. Systematic review of pregnancy□related carpal tunnel syndrome. Muscle & nerve. 2010 Nov; 42(5):697-702.
- de Oliveira GA, Bernardes JM, de Souza Santos E, Dias A. Carpal tunnel syndrome during the third trimester of pregnancy: prevalence and risk factors. Archives of gynecology and obstetrics. 2019 Sep 1; 300(3):623-31.
- 19. Seror P. Pregnancy-related carpal tunnel syndrome. Journal of Hand Surgery. 1998 Feb; 23(1):98-101.
- Khosrawi S, Maghrouri R. The prevalence and severity of carpal tunnel syndrome during pregnancy. Advanced biomedical research. 2012; 1.
- Voitk AJ, Mueller JC, Farlinger DE, Johnston RU. Carpal tunnel syndrome in pregnancy. Canadian Medical Association Journal. 1983 Feb 1; 128(3):277.
- Mondelli M, Passero S, Giannini F. Provocative tests in different stages of carpal tunnel syndrome. Clinical neurology and neurosurgery. 2001 Oct 1; 103(3):178-83.

Effect of Sub Occipital Release, Myofascial Release with Iastm Tool on Cervicogenic Headache

Venkata Naveen Kumar V¹, Seema Saini², Tushar J. Palekar³, Nidhi Chandra⁴

¹MPT 2nd year Student, ²Professor, ³Principal, ⁴MPT 2nd Year Student Dr. D Y Patil College of Physiotherapy Pune India

Abstract

Background: Headache referred to upper cervical vertebra i.e. (c2, c3) along with soft tissues termed as cervicogenic headache. Difficult to diagnose and treat as the cause is not clear. It is accompanied by neck pain and stiffness.

Objective: This study is to evaluate the effect of sub occipital release and myofascial release with IASTM tool on cervicogenic headache.

Methodology: In this randomised controlled study (RCT) 153 subjects were approached individuals who fulfilled inclusion criteria n =34 subjects were taken for the study. The demographic data of subjects along with the pain (Visual analogue scale (VAS)), headache intensity (Headache disability index), cervical flexion rotation test (CFRT) and cervical range of motion was evaluated. The subjects were assigned randomly by chit method in experimental group (N=17) and conventional group (N=17). In the experimental group: sub occipital release, MFR with IASTM and exercises and in conventional group: sub occipital release, MFR manually and exercises were given for twelve sessions i.e. three sessions in a week to each group.

Results: In the present study experimental and conventional group showed significant changes in post intervention (p<0.05).when compared between the groups none of the outcome measures was significant statistically but showed clinical significance in both the groups in pain, range of motion headache intensity and CFRT

Conclusion: This study showed that sub occipital release and myo fascial release with IASTM tool was effective on cervicogenic headache.

Key Words: Cervicogenic headache, sub occipital release, CFRT, IASTM

Introduction

Cervicogenic headache (CGH) refers to the headache in the cervical region. Individuals experience limitations in day to day activities, social restriction and lot of trouble due to cervicogenic headache. Patients with cervicogenic headache score low in the category of physical functioning when matched with the patients suffering with other kinds of headaches. CGH are hard to diagnose and treat because the source and pathophysiology is not clear. Even today, decisionmaking of CGH stays a challenge^(1,2) Studies suggest that cervical spine adds on to various types of headaches for example CGH and strain type cerebral pain. Studies say that only 14–18% of continuous headaches that is CGH results from the musculoskeletal dysfunction in the cervical spine. As of recent studies, 2.2% population are influenced with CGH^{.(2)}

The mechanism that triggers cervicogenic pain causes converging of the spinal nerves C1, C2 and C3, and a part of the fifth cranial nerve (trigeminal nerve). This pathophysiology of CGH results from the merging of sensory input from the higher region of cervical spine to the trigeminal spinal canal, including upper cervical aspect, upper cervical muscles of C2-C3. CGH can also develop due to dysfunction of the joints, muscles, ligaments, and tendon structures of the neck.These

Methodology

musculoskeletal dysfunctions are responsible for reduced cervical range of motion.³The cervicogenic headache patients have a high probability of having myofascial trigger points particularly from the sternocleidomastoid muscle(SCM),upper trapezius and temporalis .Myo fascial trigger points of SCM have a similar referred pain pattern in CGH(posterior to frontal).In fact Jaeger et al found that 12 out of 12 CGH patients had at least 3 myofascial trigger points on their symptomatic side which reproduce headaches over 50% of the time.⁽³⁾

Fascia is an important and overlooked tissue that often contributes to musculoskeletal pain. Several fascial layers exist in the cervical region. Fascial connection exists between sub occipital muscles and cervical dura which attaches to cranial fossa and c2 vertebra. Adhesions in these fascial connections restrict normal movements between fascial lines. Many treatments are advocated for CGH including medical, Surgical and physiotherapeutic treatment.⁽³⁾

Instrument assisted soft tissue mobilization (IASTM): In olden days the instrument called strigil was utilized for helpful purposes which are utilized in shower houses. Such an instrument called today (IASTM) helps to address the soft tissue restriction and pain in the cervical region particularly in the muscles like sub occipitals, SCM, upper trapezius and levator and improves the flexibility of soft tissues by treating limitations. Sub occipital release that helps in relieves tension at the sub occipital region restore optimal length and reduces severity of the pain and to accelerate release of fascial tension caused by stress, strain and repetitive use. Pain and stiffness at sub occipital myofascial structures reduces the deep neck flexors muscle strength .Releasing the neck stiffness is the way for improving deep neck flexors.(4)

Strengthening exercises which help in reducing pain or even eliminate pain and restore normal function for neck muscles of patient's withCGH.Therapeutic exercises should start for postural care. Neck isometric exercises which help in strengthening all the neck muscles. And isometric exercise for deep neck flexors in supine position. In addition lower trapezius, scapular muscle strengthening is given.^(3,4)

All the subjects were assessed fulfilling their inclusion and exclusion criteria. The purpose of the study was explained and written consent was taken from the patients. Ethical clearance for the study was granted by the institutional ethical committee from the institution Dr.D.Y. Patil Physiotherapy College. Participants were recruited for this study from Dr. D.Y Patil Physiotherapy College and Dr.D.Y Patil College of physiotherapy opd Vidyapeeth, pimpri pune. A total of 34 participants were randomly assigned to any of the two groups by chit method as group-A (Experimental group) and group-B (Conventional group) after recruitment in to the study pre assessment score had taken of VAS,CFRTand HDI .Both the groups were given conventional treatment like neck isometric exercises, lower trapezius, serratus anterior muscle strengthening are given.

Inclusion Criteria:

1 Pain confined to frontal, temporal, occipital, and orbital region. Unilateral headache without side shift and pain may occasionally bilateral when there is bilateral involvement.

2. Headache is activated by neck movements sustained or abnormal neck posture. Restricted passive neck range of motion reduces cervical flexion rotation test (CFRT) an average of 17 degree less rotation.

3 Deep and non-throbbing pain, Neck stiffness

Exclusion Criteria:

1Congenital conditions of cervical spine. Recent fracture, osteoporosis instability of cervical spine any known case of psychological patient with headache

2 Headache not of cervical origin which includes migraine .In ability to tolerate (CFRT) cervical flexion rotation test

3 Open wound, infection, tumour, cervical carotid sinus and Burns.

Outcome measures used:

Cervical flexion rotation test: Patient in supine lying head towards at the edge of the couch. Therapist holds the patients head and flexes the neck at c1, c2 region with the head supported behind by the therapist. The therapist rotates the head right and left rotation and checks for the range of motion, pain and stiffness while performing the movement. Normal range of rotation motion in end range flexion is 44 degree to each .In contrast; subjects suffering from headache with C1-C2 dysfunction have an average of 17 degree less rotation.^(5,6)

Pain scale VAS: it is used to know the pain intensity of the patient mild, moderate and severe.

Headache disability scale: It is a questionnaire that the subject answers like (yes, sometimes, no) by the end of all questions answered by the subject. Therapist calculates the score that is gained by the subject states the severity of the headache mild, moderate and severe.

Procedure

Individuals have been taken into the 20-40 years age group. Patients were assigned randomly by chit method into two groups: group -A (n=17 mean age =26.82) and group-B (n=17 mean age=26.2). Assessment was done by cervical flexion rotation test (CFRT) to check the range of motion of upper cervical region C1-C3. And the cervical range of motions with the help of a goniometer. Group-A experimental group Sub occipital release, IASTM for release of upper trapezius, temporalis fascia, sternocleidomastoid muscle, Conventional exercises - Isometrics exercises to neck flexors and extensors, Scapular strengthening exercises are given.

Initially patients in the experimental group were treated by sub occipital release (SOB) in the upper cervical region followed by regimen described in different literatures. In this regimen, before the commencement of the main intervention for reducing tension of cervical myofascial structures, therapist flex the MP and extend the IP joints, and by placing them under the middle joints of cervical (C4-C5), by extending these joints and holding them for 1-2 minute thus the cervical segment was moved passively with some rotation by the therapist. For the application of the main technique, subjects lied down in supine with knee flexion and two or three rolls of towel were placed under the head of the subjects to the trunk with head at the same level. Therapist sat on a stool at the head of the table. Elbows and supinated forearms were on the table. The subjects were asked to lift their head off the table.

Therapist positioned the tips of the first three fingers into the soft tissue immediately inferior to the arc of atlas. The fingers were stabilized in a flexed position - around 45° at the MP and PIP joints. The subjects were asked to rest their head back down so that the fingertips are in the sub-occipital soft tissues and the finger pads rest firmly against the inferior aspect of the atlas. Once the position is perceived to be comfortable, a series of soft tissue responses will occur, characterized by local softening sensations followed by an increase in the weight of the head. (There is no superior traction during this phase and it takes about 3 minutes). This phase is repeated 3 times in each session. At the end, for more release at the sub occipital region. The subject lies supine with head supported and the therapist places the three middle fingers just caudal to the nuchal line, lifts the finger tips upward while resting the hands on the treatment table, and then applies a gentle cranial pull, causing a long axis extension for 2 to 3 times. And release tightness of fascia by moving the finger clockwise and anticlock wise direction for a couple of times. So that the fascial tension gets relieved.⁽¹⁾ And MFR with (IASTM) tool used to release the trigger points at the sternocleidomastoid muscle, trapezius and temporalis muscles .Subject in supine lying or sitting according to patient comfort and therapist by changing to the perpendicular direction for another 20 seconds for a total. Instrument placed at the particular muscle at 45degree angle applied for 20 seconds in a direction parallel to muscle fibres followed immediately 40 seconds had been given.⁽⁴⁾

GROUP -B Sub occipital release, Manual MFR for upper trapezius, temporalis fascia, sternocleidomastoid muscles by using the first three metatarsophalangeal joints (7) and conventional exercises are given. Isometrics exercises to neck flexors and extensors, Scapular strengthening exercises used for low endurance exercises to train muscle control of the cerviocoscapular region. Isometric exercise for deep cervical flexor muscle performed in supine lying, aimed to deep neck flexor muscles longus capitus and coli. All exercises performed for 7 seconds and subjects were instructed to perform all exercises daily with 15 repetitions each (twice a day) had been given. Sub occipital release and MFR also given to upper trapezius using with Meta carpo phalangeal joints, release of temporal fascia and sternocleidomastoid muscle (SCM) for three sessions per week for four weeks and also taught self-stretching exercises to address any tightness assessed to be present.^(1,3)

Statistical Analysis and Interpretation

The data was summarized in the form of two way tables to show similarities and dissimilarities between and within the groups. Simple bar charts were used to compare between before and after treatment test scores of both the groups. The data is normative for visual analogue scale (VAS), headache disability index scale (HDI) and cervical flexion rotation test (CFRT) so paired t test was used for analysis in the pre and post analysis within the group and T- test is used for analysis between the groups

			Gro	oup-A	
outcome measures		MEAN	SD	T,VALUE	P VALUE
VAC	PRE	8.06	0.09109	10.96	0
VAS	POST	2.5	1.228	19.86	0
	PRE	45.93	8.111	15 122	0
HDI	POST	24.6	8.333	15.135	0
CFRT	PRE	14.6	7.65	20.142	0
	POST	39	39.143	39.143	U

Table-1 Intra group analysis of Group-A pre and post values of all the three outcome measures.

Intra group analysis pre and post value shows the p value significant in all the three outcome measures

TABLE-2 Intra gr	oup analysis of	Group-B pre and	post values of all the	three outcome measures.
		r		

		Group-B								
outcome measures		MEAN	SD	T,VALUE	P VALUE					
VAC	PRE	8.26	1.137	0.022	0.00					
VAS	POST	3.45	1.425	9.932	0.00					
IIDI	PRE	52.27	12.12	16 427	0.00					
HDI	POST	29.27	9.583	10.437	0.00					
CFRT	PRE	15.8	0.9411	26 459	0.00					
	POST	38.13	4.257	20.438	0.00					

Intragroup analysis of pre and post values of three outcome measures shows p value significant.

out comes	post values between groups A,B								
		MEAN	SD	T VALE	P VALUE				
VAS	Group-A	2.5	1.288	1.062	0.6				
	GROUP-B	3.453	1.475	1.905					
UDI	Group-A	24.6	8.331	1.526	0.128				
прі	Group-B	29.6	9.568	1.320	0.138				
CEDT	Group-A	39	2.138	0.705	0.497				
CrKI	Group-B	38.13	4.257	0.705	0.487				

Table: 3 Between group analysis of all the three outcome measures.

Between groups analysis of Group-A and Group- B post values shows p value is not statistically significant.

Results

The Study aims to find out the effect of IASTM tool along with conventional exercise on cervicogenic headache. A. IASTM tool (MFR) + Sub occipital release +Conventional exercises. B. Manually (MFR) + Sub occipital release + Conventional exercises. Each group consists of 17 subjects that are randomly allocated. In the present study with in the group analysis of Group- A showed that p value significant immediately after the post intervention in all the three outcome measures of VAS, HDI and CFRT (Table1) In the same way within the group analysis of Group-B shows the p value significant immediately post intervention in all the three outcome measures of VAS, HDI and CFRT (Table-2) The results that are found in within the group analysis of pre and post clinically and statistically significant. Table: 3 between the group analysis of post values of the three outcome measures of VAS, HDI and CFRT. Both the groups are effective but when compared between the groups none of the outcome measures shows significant statistically. Clinically shows that significant improvement in pain, headache intensity and cervical range of motions.

Discussion

The objective of the study is to know the effect of

the IASTM tool on cervicogenic headache. A total of 34 subjects, suitable for this study according to the inclusion criteria were taken. They were randomly divided into two groups, each group comprising 17 subjects. There were 2 dropouts each in both the groups. Positive effects for pain, headache frequency and cervical flexion rotation test were found for both therapeutic methods used. The pre-post treatment analysis done for the 4-week protocol showed a significant improvement in pain, headache intensity and range of motion in both the groups. The mechanism of pain relief can be justified by gate control system and afferent inputs which resulted by MFR with tool, sub occipital release, exercises may stimulate inhibitory systems in different levels of the central nervous system. According to a study conducted by Jull, manual therapies cause decrease in EMG activity of suboccipital muscles in C1C2 level.

Group-A (VAS) In this group the pain intensity decreased by using the tool (IASTM). It helps in finding the adhesions and trigger points particularly at deep inside in the muscle and can easily release the adhesions by giving stroking for 20 to 40 with an angle of 45 degree or according to muscle fiber orientation. With the use of the IASTM tool good results appeared in group –A patients. Group-B (VAS) In this group the pain intensity decreased by manually (MFR) release of trigger points by palpating with the fingers and apply pressure over the trigger point region and releasing triggers and adhesions. But compared to group –A slight decrease in reduced pain intensity because with the hand the adhesions deeper in the muscles cannot locate exactly hence manual treatment does not give better than group –A.

Group -A (HDI) In this sub occipital release at c1, c2 region is given. With IASTM it is not possible to work on temporalis region to release fascial tightness as good as manually. Hence group-A the headache intensity does not show good improvement. Group-B (HDI) In this group headache pain has been reduced and showed good results on HDI score. Release of fascia with manually on temporalis muscle helps for the patient much relaxing and soothing effect. Hence showed good results compared to group -A.

Group-A(CFRT) By using IASTM the adhesions, trigger points that restrict the neck movements B released and results in pain free range of motion. Hence showed good improvement in cervical range of motion. Group-B By manual treatment release of trigger points and adhesions that restrict neck movements have got to be released and improve range of motion but compared to group-A group-B shows slightly less improvement. In all the outcome measures clinically showed good improvement and better results seen in patients on VAS, HDI, CFRT but statistically not significant in all the outcome measures.

In our study, we found no significant difference in VAS, HDI and CFRT between the two groups. MFR done manually or with an IASTM tool showed almost the same improvement in VAS, HDI and CFRT at the end of treatment sessions in both the groups. This finding is in accordance with other studies showing effects of manual therapy in patients with CeH. In the 21st century headaches are a very common cause of substantial pain and disability. Now a day's most common type of headache seen in clinical practice is tension type headache and cervicogenic headache. According to the world health organization 47% of the adults have suffered from this type of headache. Cervicogenic headaches are reoccurring in nature and arise from the musculoskeletal dysfunction of the cervical spine.it lasts for a period of one hour to one week typically occur mostly unilateral

side associated with added stiffness.

Eventually, it was proposed that a combination of non-invasive treatments (manual therapy and Exercises) is more effective for treatment of CeH. These results would support the hypothesis that, in patients with CeH in which the referred pain Tightness in the suboccipital muscles and upper cervical joint dysfunctions reproduces the headache pain pattern, the application of MFR can be an effective approach for these subjects.⁽⁸⁾

Possible mechanisms about physiological effects of MFR include a restoration of the length of the muscle sarcomeres, temporary elongation of the connective tissue, or reduction of sensitization mechanisms associated with TrPs and tight myofascial bands. The restoration of length and integrity of the myofascial tissue will take the pressure off the pain sensitive structures such as nerves and blood vessels, as well as restoring alignment and mobility of the joint. Joint tenderness is a prominent feature of CeH. These findings are in agreement with other studies that reported that dysfunctions of myofascial or upper cervical joints are the main pain generators of CeH. Further investigations with long time of treatment, double blind RCT and follow up period need to be done MFR is being used to treat patients with a widespread variety of conditions, but there are few studies to support its efficacy.^{(9,10}

Acknowledgement: I am grateful to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my principal, respected Dr . Tushar J palekar, pune, pimpri who installed in me a great desire in doing this study and also for giving me the opportunity to do my dissertation in Dr .D.Y .Patil University. In particular ,I wish to express my heart full gratitude and sincere thanks to my guide Dr Seema Saini for her support and expert guidance. I wish to express my gratitude to my friends Rama Krishna, Prince Prabhakar Tripati, Nidhi, and Raj Lakshmi. My sincere thanks to all those who have rendered their help in my study. Finally I would like to express my gratitude to God for giving me strength to carry on and my parents for believing in me and for unconditional support.

Ethical clearance: The study was done in Dr. D.Y Patil Physiotherapy College and Dr.D.Y Patil College of physiotherapy opd Vidyapeeth, pimpri pune. Informed written conscent was taken from all the subjects. Source of Funding: Self

Conflict of Interest: Nil

References

- 1. Ebrahim Ramezan, Amir Massoud Arab, Mohammad Reza Nourbakhsh; sub occipital myofascial release technique in subjects with cervicogenic headache .Journal of pharmacophore 2017- 14 December.
- The International Classification of Headache Disorders: 2nd Edition. Cephalalgia. 2004; 24(Suppl 1):9-160.
- Baton Rounge ,Louisianana Cervicogenic headache An evidence Led approach to clinical management .Int J sports physical therapy 2011 sep ; 6(3); 254-266.
- Jooyoung Kim,Dong Jun Sung,Therapeutic effectiveness of instrument –assisted soft tissue mobilization for soft tissue injury:J exercise Rehabilitation.2017 Feb ;13(1):12-22
- 5. Toby Hall , Kathy Briffa ,Diana Hopper Clinical Evaluation of cervicogenic Headache :A Clinical

Perspective.Journal of Manual and Manipulative Therapy.2008;16(2);73-80.

- Toby M.Hall Robinson ; reliability and Diagnostic validity of the Cervical flexion Rotational test journal of Manipulative and physiological therapeutics volume 31,issue 4, May 2008,pages 293-300.
- M.S. Ajimshma ADMFT;Effectiveness of direct vs. indirect technique myo fascial release in management of tension type headache .journal of body work and movement therapies (2011) 431-435
- 8. Cesar Fernandez-de-Las-penas Referred pain from trapezius muscle trigger points shares similar characteristics with chronic tension type headache European journal of pain 2007, 475-482
- 9. Barner JF myofascial release the search of excellence a comprehensive evaluator and treatment approach.
- Couppew C, Torelli P,Fuglsang freedriksen A,Andresen.kv myofascial trigger points are prevalent in patients with chronic tension type headache. double blinded study. Jan 2007
Effect of CDT and IPC in Secondary Upper Extremity Lymphedema in Women Post Breast Cancer Surgery on Anxiety, Depression and Quality of Life

Bhavna Anand ¹, Ruchika Kalra², Harshita Sharma³

¹Teaching Associate, ² BPT Student, ³Physiotherapist at Max Super Speciality Hospital, Amity Institute of Physiotherapy, Amity University, Noida, U.P

Abstract

Objective: To study the effect of complex decongestive therapy and intermittent pneumatic compression on the secondary upper extremity lymphedema in women post breast cancer surgery on anxiety, depression, and quality of life.

Methodology: 15 women with unilateral lymphedema post breast cancer surgery with the age of 18 years were included in the study. Women have observed pre-intervention and measured for lymphedema, they were provided with the CDT and IPC as the intervention which was followed on the 1st, 7th, and 14th day of intervention and measured post-intervention on the basis of questionnaires for quality of life, anxiety ,and depression. The subjects were excluded with bilateral lymphedema, men with breast cancer ,and no lower extremity lymphedema. The improvement was calculated with measurement of arm, LYQLI ,and HADS questionnaire.

Results: There was a significant improvement that was seen in from pre-intervention and the 14th day of intervention followed with CDT and IPC. The LYQLI was measured in the physical, psychological and practical concerns where the significant improvement was seen on the 14th day and no difference on 1st day whereas the HADS having parameters of anxiety and depression shows improvement on the 7th and 14th day of intervention and no difference on 1st day.

Conclusion: The statistical analysis software was used for all the analyses and result s were found for all the analysis and results were found to be significant at 5% level The result came to be significant in the case and useful on the 14th day of the intervention.

Keywords: CDT, IPC, lymphedema, LYQLI, HADS

Introduction

Lymphedema is the recurring and persisting for the longer time and increases if not controlled, this occurs due to improper filtration and abrupt transport capacity leading to lymphedema.¹

Breast cancer -related lymphedema is defined as the long term complication occurred post-surgery of the breast cancer can be with the axillary lymph node dissection and tumor removal, radiation ,and chemotherapy leading to the accumulation of the fluids causing after removal of lymph nodes or the scarring of lymph nodes, it is measured with the circumferential measurements and water displacement method ^{2,3}. There are 4 grades from 0 to 3 varying with the difference from the amount of edema, nature of skin, pitting and non- pitting.⁴ clinical features presented by the patients are like increased in girth, the volume of limb, heaviness of limb, sensation of pins and needle and fatigue in the affected limb ³

According to the American cancer society the breast cancer is defined as the malignant tumor present in the breast tissue. The tumor occurs as the gene mutation of the BRCA gene and tumor may spread to the lymph nodes near such as supraclavicular, axillary ,and in the breast tissue.

Complete decongestive therapy is the non-invasive phase which is the gold standard for lymphedema, inclusive of intensive phase with the aim to reduce the lymphedema and the maintenance phase to maintain the reduced limb. This therapy is inclusive of the manual lymphatic drainage, compression bandaging, skincare, exercises for upper limb and deep breathing.⁵

Intermittent pneumatic compression is the inflatable device with the different compartments which is inflated and deflated according to the pressure required in the limb, this is worn around the chest wall and the affected arm, the pressure alters intermittently, this device assist in the circulation of the lymphedematous fluid to be circulated in the right direction with a high gradient in the lower par and low gradient in the upper part, due to limited part of circulation it cannot be stand -alone for the treatment of the lymphedema.⁶

Need of The Study

The breast cancer-related lymphedema is the secondary lymphedema which is in turning into the severe complication and can be prevented if approached early with a physiotherapist with the help of CDT and IPC.

Methodology

The Study design was pre and post-experimental design. 15 women above the age of 18 with the unilateral post breast cancer-related lymphedema participated in this study

Women who were participated were having breast cancer-related lymphedema post breast cancer surgery experiencing, heaviness in the affected limb, pain at the surgical site, and increased girth of the limb, numbness in the affected limb ,and at the surgical site. The women were not having communication disabilities .^{7,8}

Women were excluded with bilateral lymphedema, no lower limb lymphedema and no males in the study .⁷

The dependent variables was the functional status and quality of life. The independent variable was CDT and IPC. The questionnaire followed was lymphedema quality of life inventory 9 (LYQLI) and hospital anxiety and depression scale (HADS)

Procedure

Informed consent from the women was taken. The assessment of the patient was done prior. Preintervention readings i.e measurements, questionnaire filling were recorded.

The intervention i.e CDT and IPC was given as the 1st day of intervention and then the questionnaire, measurements were recorded again.

The CDT and IPC were followed till the 7th day of intervention and the readings were recorded again.

The CDT and IPC were followed till the 14th day of intervention and the questionnaire was refilled and measurements were taken.

The complete intervention too 1.5 hours as this was inclusive of intermittent pneumatic compression which was provided on the affected limb crossing the chest wall and given for 40 minutes.

Manual lymphatic drainage part of the complex decongestive therapy which was done for 30 minutes which was followed by the exercises and then for the compression bandaging was carried out in the last phase of the complex decongestive therapy.⁹

Every time a fresh questionnaire was provided to women.

All the outcome parameters were recorded and quantified later post 14 days of intervention.

Result and Data Analysis

s.no	Baseline characteristics	Pre- intervention Mean ± SD	1 st day of intervention Mean ± SD	t- value	p- value
1.	LYQLI physical concern	1.21±0.25	1.20±0.24	0.78.	Insignificant
2.	LYQLI psycho-social concern	0.77±0.56	0.79±0.5	0.68.	Insignificant
3.	LYQLI practical concerns	0.62±0.30	0.60±0.31	0.23	Insignificant
4.	LYQLI 44-45	2.73±0.96	2.73±0.96	1.0	Insignificant
5.	Hospital anxiety and depression scale	21.06±6.0	20.93±5.78	0.43	Insignificant

Table 1. - Comparison of the pre intervention with 1st day of intervention on all outcome parameters

Table 2. - Comparison of the pre intervention with 7th day of intervention on all outcome parameters

s.no	Baseline characteristics	Pre- intervention Mean ± SD	7th day of intervention Mean ± SD	t- value	p- value
1.	LYQLI physical concern	1.21±0.25	0.82±0.14	1.25	Insignificant
2.	LYQLI psycho-social concern	0.77±0.56	0.53±0.40	0.001	Insignificant
3.	LYQLI practical concerns	0.62±0.30	0.41±0.27	2.74	Significant
4.	LYQLI 44-45	2.73±0.96	4±0.37	2.23	Significant
5.	Hospital anxiety and depression scale	21.06±6.0	14.6±4.17	2.26	Significant

Table 3. Comparison of the pre-intervention with 14^{m} day of intervention on all outcome parameters
--

s.no	Baseline characteristics	Pre- intervention Mean ± SD	14th day of intervention Mean ± SD	t- value	p- value
1.	LYQLI physical concern	1.21±0.25	0.41±0.10	2.43	Significant
2.	LYQLI psycho-social concern	0.77±0.56	0.25±0.25	7.99	Significant

3.	LYQLI practical concerns	0.62±0.30	0.20±0.18	4.89	Significant
4.	LYQLI 44-45	2.73±0.96	5.6±0.63	2.23	Significant
5.	Hospital anxiety and depression scale	21.06±6.0	7.33±2.63	8.08	Significant

Cont.. Table 3. Comparison of the pre intervention with 14th day of intervention on all outcome parameters .

Discussion

The study was to understand the effect of CDT and IPC as a combination intervention in a short span of 14 days and to be evaluated on the quality of life and anxiety and depression.

As lymphedema leads to embarrassment to the patient while facing it personally on the physical appearance, coming to the social world affects the psychological status of the patient and the practical measure such as finance and coping with the activity of daily living leading to anxiety and depression.

According to the study says that the complex decongestive therapy is the safest and the reliable method of reducing the limb circumferential difference with the decrease in the limb volumes which leads to a decrease in the pain, fatigue increased range of motion, neuropathic pain, strength, and endurance. The CDT is the method which is the 45- 60 minutes of protocol followed with the inclusion of the exercise, manual lymphatic drainage, multi-layer bandaging and skincare.¹⁰

In this study, the women were followed with the complex decongestive therapy as the intervention which resulted in the significant improvement with 14 days of intervention

According to a study by the Engine tastaben et al in 2019, described the effect of intermittent pneumatic compression in breast cancer-related lymphedema and drawn that the IPC works significantly in the reduction of heaviness and tightness of the pitting edema thus leading to an increased range of motion by decreasing limb volume, but the intermittent pneumatic compression alone does not work.¹¹ In this study the women were provided with intermittent pneumatic compression for 40 minutes which helped in the reduction of the girth of limb.

According to the study, the patient goes through the breast cancer-related lymphedema that leads to embarrassment and the sense of anxiety and depression which further lead to the disrupted quality of life, hence a study given

by Mottari et al suggested that there were patients who were provided both complex decongestive therapy which gave the significant result in the betterment of the quality of life. ⁸

The other study included that the complex decongestive therapy was quantified on the outcome measure of the various quality of life scales such as EORTC QLQ-30, ULL- 27, SF-36.^{10,12,7}

In this study the outcome measure for quality of life was LYQLI and for anxiety and depression, the HADS was followed.

According to the review of literature done by Cornelissen et al, where they compare the efficacy of the different questionnaires supportive for the lymphedema and they found that Lymph- ICF, and LYQLI were more efficient than the other scales. Therefore the evaluation was done based on LYQLI a Swedish questionnaire for measuring the quality of life in case of the lymphedema.

Usage of the anxiety and depression quantification as the patient of post-cancer feels anxiety and depression almost every time visiting the hospital hence by counseling and the correct treatment it can be reduced, the reason of anxiety is the follow-up or the continuation of the chemotherapy, radiation and the complication occur as lymphedema is also dangerous if not managed early as said in the literature by Gençay et al said that the early detection and management in lymphedema can reduce the chances of the complications that can occur due to the lymphedema and cannot be returned to the normal state, as said that early intervention decreases the results in the quantification of HADS and better quality of life.¹⁴

In this study, there was the significant effect of the Complex decongestive therapy and intermittent pneumatic compression on post breast cancer surgery upper extremity lymphedema on the anxiety, depression, and the quality of life scale in the 14 days of intervention.

Conclusion

Complex decongestive therapy and intermittent pneumatic compression as the combination therapy concluded with a significant improvement in a short span of 14 days on the quality of life, anxiety, and depression.

Conflict of Interest: There is no conflict of interest in this study.

Funding: Funding was not involved in the study

Acknowledgement : The authors are very thankful to the Head of the physiotherapy department of hospitals in Delhi for permitting to carry out this work.

Ethical Clearance: Taken from Amity institute of physiotherapy, Amity University Noida and Max Super Speciality Hospital Shalimar bagh, Delhi

References

- Damstra et al, The Dutch lymphedema guidelines based on the international classification of functioning, disability and chronic care model: Journal of vascular surgery: 2017;04-012.
- 2. Ru Lu et al, The role of physiotherapy and physical education in lymphedema control and patient education in lymphedema control following breast cancer surgery, Dove press journal:2015; 319-327
- R Fu, Breast cancer-related lymphedema: Symptoms, diagnosis, risk reduction, and management: world journal of oncology; 2014: 5(3): 241–247.

- Levenhagen, Davies, Perdomo, Ryans, Gilchrist, Diagnosis of Upper Quadrant Lymphedema Secondary to Cancer: Clinical Practice Guideline From the Oncology Section of the American Physical Therapy Association, Physical therapy:2017:729-745
- 5. Vigenes, Complex decongestive therapy, Springer link publishers: 2015; 227-235
- Feldman et al, Intermittent pneumatic compression: A systematic review, lymphology: 2012; 45 (1), 13-25
- Klernas et al., Health-related quality of life in patients with lymphoedema –a cross-sectional study, Standinavian journal of caring sciences; 2018; 32; 634–644
- 8. Mottari, Jafari and Zakeri, The effect of combined decongestive therapy and pneumatic compression pump on lymphedema indicators in patients with breast cancer related lymphedema, Iranian red crescent medical journal;2012: 210-217.
- 9. Karfa et al., The effect of different compression pressure in therapy of secondary upper extremity lymphedema in women after breast cancer surgery, Lymphology. 2018;51(1):28-37.
- Yesil H, Eyigör S, Caramat İ, Işık R. Effects of complex decongestive therapy on quality of life, depression, neuropathic pain, and fatigue in women with breast cancer-related lymphedema. Turk J Phys Med Rehabil. 2017;63(4):329-334
- 11. Tastaben, Soyder, Ayden E, Sendu, Turban, Ture and Bilgen, Role of intermittent pneumatic compression in the treatment of breast cancer related lymphedema: a randomized control trial, Sage journals; 2019: 220-228.
- 12. Ozcan et al., Complex decongestive therapy enhances upper limb function in patients with breast cancer related lymphedema, Mary ann Liebert. Inc. publishers; 2018; 6:5.
- Cornelliessen et al., Quality of life questionnaires in breast cancer related lymphedema: review of literature, Mary ann Liebert. Inc. publishers;2018: 6:2.
- 14. Gencay can et al, Early detection and treatment of sub clinical lymphedema in patients with breast cancer, Liebert inc. publidshers:2019; Volume: 17

Issue 3

- Karaman et al., Efficacy of complex decongestive therapy on breast cancer-related lymphedema: A cross-sectional study, Journal of surger and medicine; 2019: 3
- 16. Ligabue MB, Campanini I, Veroni P, Cepelli A, Lusuardi M, Merlo A. Efficacy of selfadministered complex decongestive therapy on breast cancer-related lymphedema: a single- blind randomized controlled trial. Breast Cancer Res Treat. 2019;175(1):191–201
- Singh et al., Systematic review and meta -analysis of the effects of exercise for those with cancer related lymphedema, Archives of physical medicine and rehabilitation;2016;97:302-15
- 18. Jeffs E, Ream E, Taylor C, Bick D. Clinical effectiveness of decongestive treatments on excess arm volume and patient-centered outcomes in women with early breast cancer-related arm lymphedema: a systematic review. JBI Database System Rev Implement Rep. 2018;16(2):453–506.
- 19. Haghighinejad et al., The Effect of Complex Decongestive Therapy on Post-Breast Surgery Quality of Life in Breast Cancer Patients With Unilateral Lymphedema and Its Predictive Factors, Shiraz E medical journal; 2016; 17(1)
- Singh B, Newton RU, Cormie P, et al. Effects of compression on lymphedema during resistance in women with breast cancer related lymphedema: A randomized , Cross- over trial, Lymphology. 2016;48(2):80–92.
- 21. Aldrich MB, Gross D, Morrow JR, Fife CE, Rasmussen JC. Effect of pneumatic compression therapy on lymph movement in lymphedemaaffected extremities, as assessed by near-infrared fluorescence lymphatic imaging. J Innov Opt Health Sci. 2017;10(2)
- 22. Klernas, Karin, Aina, Vibeke and Linda, Lymphedema quality of life inventory(LYQLI)-

development an dinvestigation of validity and reliability, Quality of research; 2015: 427-439

- Do JH, Kim W, Cho YK, et al. Effects of resistance exercises and complex decongestive therapy on arm function and muscular strength in breast cancer related lymphedema. Lymphology. 2015;48(4):184–196
- 24. Gurdal SO, Kostanoglu A, Cavdar I, et al. Comparison of intermittent pneumatic compression with manual lymphatic drainage for treatment of breast cancer-related lymphedema. Lymphat Res Biol. 2012;10(3):129–135.
- 25. Szolnoky G, Lakatos B, Keskeny T, et al. Intermittent pneumatic compression acts synergistically with manual lymphatic drainage in complex decongestive physiotherapy for breast cancer treatment-related lymphedema. Lymphology. 2009;42(4):188–194.
- 26. Luz et al., Complex Therapy Physical alone or Associated with Strengthening Exercises in Patients with Lymphedema after Breast Cancer Treatment: a Controlled Clinical Trial, Asian pacific journal of cancer prevention: 2018; 19(5): 1405–1410.
- 27. Zimmermann A, Wozniewski M, Szklarska A, Lipowicz A, Szuba A. Efficacy of manual lymphatic drainage in preventing secondary lymphedema after breast cancer surgery. Lymphology. 2012;45(3):103–112.
- ee JH, Shin BW, Jeong HJ, Kim GC, Kim DK, Sim YJ. Ultrasonographic evaluation of therapeutic effects of complex decongestive therapy in breast cancer-related lymphedema. Ann Rehabil Med. 2013;37(5):683–689
- 29. Chang CJ, Cormier JN. Lymphedema interventions: exercise, surgery, and compression devices. Semin Oncol Nurs. 2013;29(1):28–40
- Uzkeser H, Karatay S, Erdemci B, Koc M, Senel K. Efficacy of manual lymphatic drainage and intermittent pneumatic compression pump use in the treatment of lymphedema after mastectomy: a randomized controlled trial. Breast Cancer. 2015;22(3):300–307

Correlation between Psychological Status and Fatigue in Patients with Head and Neck Cancer after Chemotherapy-A Pilot Study

Nigat Fathima P.A¹, Ayesha Huda T², Aysha Rayeena³, Rehanaz⁴, Rhea Verona Lobo⁵

¹Assistant Professor, ²UG Students, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya university, Derlakatte, Mangalore

Abstract

Background: Fatigue and depression are among the most pervasive symptoms experienced by the patients with cancer which might have a influence on the quality of life. This study aimed to find out the correlation between fatigue and psychological status in patients with head and neck cancer who have undergone chemotherapy

Material & Method: This was a non probability sampling method study conducted on 23 participants after obtaining the informed consent who is receiving treatment for head and neck cancer in the oncology department of Yenepoya Medical College Hospital after obtaining the institutional ethics clearance. Patients with head and neck cancer aged 18-65 years receiving chemotherapy were included in the study. Patients suffering from other cancers were excluded. A standardised validated questionnaire of Fatigue Severity Scale (FSS) and Hamilton Depression scale (HAM-D) was used measure the outcome of the study.

Result: Total of 23 patients with head and neck cancer were included in present study after obtaining the informed consent. Among them 83% were males and 17% were females, with mean age of 54.83±14.58 yrs. A significant positive strength of association between the scores of the FSS and HAM-D among the patients with the head and neck cancer

Conclusion: The head and neck cancer patients have a clear positive association between fatigue and depression. Awareness of this can be useful in further evaluating fatigue and psychological problems and in appropriate preparation to reduce these symptoms for patients.

Keywords: Fatigue Severity Scale (FSS); Hamilton Depression scale (HAM-D); Head and Neck Cancer; Cancer; Quality of Life.

Introduction

The head and neck squamous cell carcinoma involves upper aerodigestive tract carcinomas.⁽¹⁾ The head and neck cancer (HNC) accounts for 30-40 percent of India's cancers with the most prominent being oral cancer. Cancer is the sixth common cause of death in males, and the seventh in females. The multiple factors

Corresponding author: Nigat Fathima P.A Assistant Professor: Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya university,

Derlakatte, Mangalore

responsible for the cause of cancer of the head and neck include tobacco use, alcohol intake, obesity, lack of good diet and hygiene and lack of awareness.⁽²⁾

One of the most common and treatable symptoms of cancer is cancer-related fatigue that affects the cancer patient's quality of life.⁽³⁾ In literature, fatigue has been identified as a feeling of fatigue, depression, weakness, mental state impairment and lack of motivation. Fatigue linked to cancer has both physical and psychological causes. Physical symptoms include the numerous metabolic disorders, anaemia, poor nutrition due to diarrhea, anorexia or gastrointestinal obstruction. Psychological factors include sleep loss, anxiety and depression. Fatigue is the most common side effect of the chemotherapy and radiotherapy. Over the course of the operation, 82-96 per cent of those undergoing chemotherapy experience exhaustion. Fatigue is believed to be associated with the severity of treatment.⁽⁴⁾ According to previous research, the incidence of fatigue in patients with advanced cancer and others who have undergone cancer therapy is more than 50 per cent. The prevalence of tiredness is also found in cancer survivors. It has a huge effect on the patient's quality of life, and can also raise the likelihood of suicide.⁽⁵⁾

Depression is one of the most common mental illnesses in young people, resulting in serious psychosocial and academic performance disturbances. Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HAM-D) is the widely most used scale for depression.^(6,7)

Depression and fatigue both are relevant to the quality of life of patients.^(8,9) There are evidence showing that the introduction of physical exercises can treat depression.⁽¹⁰⁾ Fatigue, though, can become a barrier between depression and exercises and the cycle can continue. This study can aid in the development and provision of special fatigue treatment or therapy facilities for patients with psychological conditions.

Study aimed to find out the correlation between fatigue and psychological status in patients with head and neck cancer who have undergone chemotherapy.

Material & Method

This was a non probability sampling method study conducted on 23 participants after obtaining the informed consent who is receiving treatment for head and neck cancer in the oncology department of Yenepoya Medical College Hospital after obtaining the institutional ethics clearance. Patients with head and neck cancer aged 18-65 years receiving chemotherapy were included in the study. Patients suffering from other cancers were excluded. A standardised validated questionnaire of Fatigue Severity Scale (FSS) and Hamilton Depression scale (HAM-D) was used measure the outcome of the study.

The Microsoft excel was used to enter the data collected from the participants and analysis of the statistics using SPSS v21 operating on windows 10. All the qualitative variables were reported as frequency and percentage, continuous variable by mean and standard deviation. The strength of association between the fatigue and depression among patients was assessed using the Pearson's correlation, with p<0.05 considered statistically significant.

Result

Total of 23 patients with head and neck cancer were included in present study after obtaining the informed consent. Among them 83% were males and 17% were females, with mean age of 54.83±14.58 yrs.

Cancer of the buccal mucosa (17.4%) was most common followed by cancer of base of tongue (13%) and the cancer of oesophagus (13%) among head and neck cancer in our present study, with the distribution og the other cancer location in table 1.

Among the participants, 39.1% were with stage 3 cancers, followed by 13% with stage 2 and stage 4 patients and only 1 patient in stage 1 head and neck cancer. (Table 2)

The Mean of FSS was 50.65 ± 12.79 and HAM-D was 16.91 ± 5.63 among all the participants. We found a significant positive strength of association between the scores of the FSS and HAM-D among the patients with the head and neck cancer. (Table 3)

Γ

Table 1. Shows the frequency of the type of cancers with percentage						
Type of Cancer	Frequency	Percent				
Base of tongue	3	13.0				
Buccal mucosa	4	17.4				
Epiglottis	1	4.3				
Glioblastoma	1	4.3				
Hard Palate	1	4.3				
Larynx	1	4.3				
Lip	1	4.3				
Nasopharyngeal	1	4.3				
Oesophagus	3	13.0				
Oligodandroglia	1	4.3				
Supraglottis	2	8.7				
Tongue	2	8.7				
Tonsil	1	4.3				
Vocal Cords	1	4.3				
Total	23	100.0				

219

Table 2. Shows the frequency of the stage of cancer with percentage							
Stage of Cancer	Frequency	Percent					
Stage 1	1	4.3					
Stage 2	3	13.0					
Stage 3	9	39.1					
Stage 4	3	13.0					
T2N0M0	1	4.3					
T2N1M0	2	8.7					
T2N2M0	1	4.3					
T3N0M0	1	4.3					
T3N2M0	1	4.3					
T4N0M0	1	4.3					
Total	23	100.0					

Score	Mean	SD	Pearson correlation r (p-value)		
Fatigue	50.65	12.79			
Depression	16.91	5.63	0.651 (0.001)		

Discussion

The current pilot study aimed to identify the connection between depression and exhaustion in patients with cancer of the head and neck. A total of 23 patients were screened using FSS and HAM-D, composed of both male (n=7) and female (n=16). Depression was present in most patients suffering from head and neck cancer. Depression commonly occurs in

cancer patients with symptoms such as fatigue and pain, and the prevalence of depression among cancer patients also increases with severity of disease.

There is evidence that providing psychosocial support may help to alleviate pain, depression, and anxiety.^(11,12) Of all patients with oncology, the highest levels of major depressive disorder are reported by patients with head and neck cancer who may develop

after the initial diagnosis and therapy.⁽¹³⁾ During the questionnaire filling process, most participants understood that what they felt was due to depression.

Early detection of depression in specific cancer populations, such as older male patients, may help identify those at the highest risk of suicide, and may be directed to seek assistance for the same.⁽¹⁴⁾

We observed a strong link between depression and fatigue. This suggests a correlation between exhaustion and depression. If this loop can be broken then both depression and fatigue can be easily treated. Exercises can also increase serotonin and dopamine levels in the body that can boost mood and decrease depression.^(15,16) The most significant effect is found when exercisers participate in aerobic exercise.⁽¹⁷⁾ Exercising preparation can be implemented to enhance physical health, quality of life and minimize fatigue.⁽¹⁸⁾

We find that patients with head and neck cancer must be monitored on a regular basis for depression and fatigue, so that the required assessments can be taken as soon as possible. Such patients' recovery needs to be in holistic approaches that include both physical and mental health.

Conclusion

The head and neck cancer patients have a clear positive association between fatigue and depression. Awareness of this can be useful in further evaluating fatigue and psychological problems and in appropriate preparation to reduce these symptoms for patients. It may also enable patients with psychiatric problems to build and have special services for the treatment of fatigue or therapy.

References

- Elango JK, Gangadharan P, Sumithra S, Kuriakose MA. Trends of head and neck cancers in urban and rural India. Asian Pac J Cancer Prev. 2006;7(1):108– 12.
- Bhattacharjee A, Chakraborty A, Purkaystha P. Prevalence of head and neck cancers in the north east-An institutional study. Indian J Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg. 2006;58(1):15–9.
- 3. Campos MP de O, Hassan BJ, Riechelmann R,

del Giglio A. Fadiga relacionada ao câncer: uma revisão. Rev Assoc Med Bras. 2011 Mar;57(2):211– 9.

- Iop A, Manfredi AM, Bonura S. Fatigue in cancer patients receiving chemotherapy: an analysis of published studies. Ann Oncol Off J Eur Soc Med Oncol. 2004;15(5):712–20.
- Okuyama T, Akechi T, Kugaya A, Okamura H, Shima Y, Maruguchi M, et al. Development and validation of the cancer fatigue scale: a brief, threedimensional, self-rating scale for assessment of fatigue in cancer patients. J Pain Symptom Manage. 2000;19(1):5–14.
- 6. Williams JB. Standardizing the Hamilton Depression Rating Scale: past, present, and future. Eur Arch Psychiatry Clin Neurosci. 2001;251(2):II6-12.
- Basha E, Kaya M. Depression, Anxiety and Stress Scale (DASS): The Study of Validity and Reliability. Univers J Educ Res. 2016;4(12):2701– 5.
- Visser MR, Smets EM. Fatigue, depression and quality of life in cancer patients: how are they related? Support Care Cancer. 1998;6(2):101–8.
- Fernández-Muñoz JJ, Cigarán-Méndez M, Navarro-Pardo E, Pérez-de-Heredia-Torres M, Parás-Bravo P, Fernández-de-Las-Peñas C. Is the association between health-related quality of life and fatigue mediated by depression in patients with multiple sclerosis? A Spanish cross-sectional study. BMJ Open. 2018;8(1):e016297.
- Belvederi Murri M, Ekkekakis P, Magagnoli M, Zampogna D, Cattedra S, Capobianco L, et al. Physical Exercise in Major Depression: Reducing the Mortality Gap While Improving Clinical Outcomes. Front psychiatry. 2019;9:762.
- 11. Spiegel D, Giese-Davis J. Depression and cancer: mechanisms and disease progression. Biol Psychiatry. 2003;54(3):269–82.
- Yadav A, Anmol Manaswini Yadav G, Kaveri NK, Nanda Kumar LG, Yadav GSN, Akulwar RK, et al. Predictors of periodontal disease among rural Indian type 2 diabetic population. Diabetes Metab Syndr Clin Res Rev. 2020;14(4):463–7.
- 13. Lydiatt WM, Moran J, Burke WJ. A review of depression in the head and neck cancer patient. Clin

222 Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4

Adv Hematol Oncol. 2009;7(6):397-403.

Cancer. 2016;24(2):969-83.

- Anguiano L, Mayer DK, Piven ML, Rosenstein D. A literature review of suicide in cancer patients. Cancer Nurs. 2012;35(4):14–26.
- 15. Daley A. Exercise and depression: a review of reviews. J Clin Psychol Med Settings. 2008;15(2):140–7.
- 16. Tian L, Lu HJ, Lin L, Hu Y. Effects of aerobic exercise on cancer-related fatigue: a meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. Support Care
- Young SN. How to increase serotonin in the human brain without drugs. J Psychiatry Neurosci. 2007;32(6):394–9.
- Adamsen L, Quist M, Andersen C, Moller T, Herrstedt J, Kronborg D, et al. Effect of a multimodal high intensity exercise intervention in cancer patients undergoing chemotherapy: randomised controlled trial. BMJ. 2009;339:3410–5.

The Effect of Guided Motor Imagery on Functional Gait Performance in Post Stroke Patients

Nikita Vishnu Sawant

M.P.Th (Neurophysiotherapy, Terna Physiotherapy College, Nerul, Navi Mumbai

Abstract

Restoration of independent walking is the major goal of rehabilitation after stroke. Walking **Purpose:** difficulty hinders community level participation of an individual, affecting quality of life. Earliest activation of locomotion concerned cortical areas is important to achieve near normal locomotion after rehabilitation. Motor imagery (MI) is a process of imagination of body part movement without actually moving it and it is found that MI activates same cortical areas which are activated during actual movement. MI enhances motor planning, causes neural adaptations to improve voluntary skeletal muscle strength and increases firing at local interneurons as well. There is limited evidence available regarding the effect of guided motor imagery (guided MI) on functional gait performance in post stroke patients. Hence, purpose of this study is to see the effect of guided MI on functional gait performance in post stroke patients. Aim: To study effect of guided MI on functional gait performance in post stroke patients. **Objective:** To assess and compare functional gait performance in post stroke patients with and without guided MI. Method: Prospective, Experimental Randomized Control Trial. Result: Study results showed that functional gait performance has improved in post stroke patients due to guided MI reflected by significant p values during analysis. Conclusion: The above study concludes that application of guided MI improves functional gait performance in post stroke patients as compared to conventional treatment alone, enhancing their functional independence and quality of life.

Key Words: Functional gait performance, Post stroke patients, Guided motor imagery

Introduction/ Background

Stroke is the sudden focal neurologic syndrome that results in altered blood flow in cerebral vessels. Stroke is commonest leading cause of death and disability in India, highest being 42% in Kolkata.⁽¹⁾ Though, major goals of rehabilitation in stroke patients are improving balance and gait ability, more than 30% of patients who had a stroke don't achieve complete motor recovery after rehabilitation process; contributes significantly to reduce gait performance as control of gait involves planning and execution from multiple cortical areas.

Corresponding author: Dr. Jui Dave

Professor, Terna Physiotherapy College, Nerul, Navi Mumbai- 400706. Email: davejui@gmail.com Post stroke patients have impaired interlimb coordination and spatiotemporal characteristics (except stride width), thus they rely on unaffected limb to do adjustment to maintain steady state walking, results in poor dynamic balance and increase fall risk.⁽²⁾

In post stroke patients, ground reaction forces demonstrate substantial asymmetries between 2 limbs which are nullified by compensatory generation of propulsion by unaffected leg or by increased hip flexor activity in paretic leg to help to advance leg in pre and early swing. Inappropriate muscle activity (e.g. tibialis anterior, plantarflexors) in affected leg reduces its propulsion due to decreased force production.⁽³⁾

In post stroke patients, cerebral cortex impairment leads to walking difficulties. Thus, it's necessary to use advanced treatment approaches for cortical reorganisation for gait reeducation, one of them is Motor imagery (MI).⁽⁵⁾ It's believed that through medium of imagination vast untapped pool of rich sensory experiences in one's memory can be tapped with the help of tacit knowledge. Tacit knowledge covers surprising amount of knowledgelike attention, recognition, retrieval of information, perception and motor control. Efficiency and recovery speed of damaged brain depends partly on availability of (sensory) information provided by motor activity. 5 sources of sensory information can be identified in relation to motor (re-)learning:

(*i*) proprioceptive information; (*ii*) tactile information;(*iii*) vestibular information; (*iv*) visual information; (*v*) auditory information.

MI can be defined as 'the covert cognitive process of imagining a movement of your own body (-part) without actually moving that body (-part)' ⁽⁷⁾

Two kinds of mental representations of motor acts can be generated by normal subjects: an "internal" (subjects feel themselves executing movements), and an "external" (visual representation of actions).⁽⁹⁾ When MI is carried out under supervision, it's called as guided motor imagery (Guided MI). Guided MI is carried out in relaxed, quiet, distraction free setting for maximum 20 min. The task imagined during guided MI is same for pre and post assessment and should be part of patient's daily activity to enhance the performance. In an early stage of recovery, MI allows patients to mentally practice a task which they cannot yet carry out physically due to motor impairment.⁽¹⁰⁾ The rationale behind using MI is that brain areas that are normally involved in movement planning and execution are also active during the imagination of a movement. It's known that imagination of movement activates more or less same brain areas as actual execution of movement which are prefrontal cortex (PFC), premotor cortex, supplemental motor area (SMA), cingulate cortex, parietal cortex and cerebellum. Some studies suggested that primary motor cortex is involved during imagination of movement while some don't, suggesting that MI is primarily involved in planning phase of motor control and not in execution phase. It could be that these differences are due to methodological differences in research designs. The one cortical network that appears to be equally shared between motor planning and learning involves SMA

whose function is to suppress motor output via motor cortex. The most striking difference between imagery and execution is the discharge via corticospinal tract that produces movement and sensory feedback.(11) Earlier studies on MI training and muscle strength had shown that mental practice with MI actively enhances neural adaptation for maximal voluntary contraction.⁽¹²⁾MI thought to cause local hemodynamic changes inside brain that alters synaptic activity which may increase firing in local interneurons and afferent fibres. There are various articles which suggest that MI stimulates same cortical areas as that in actual movement and effects of MI are also seen at musculoskeletal as well as hemodynamic level. However, there is dearth of literature available which suggests MI enhances gait performance in post stroke patients. The evidence for the same is ambiguous.

Material and Methods

Study Type: Prospective, Experimental
Study Design: Randomized Control Trial
Sample Size: 82 post-stroke patients.

Sample size was determined with 5% level of significance and 90% power value.

Sampling Technique: Blocked random sampling method

Duration: 18 months

Sampling frame: Samples were collected from OPD and IPD of corporation and tertiary care hospitals in Mumbai and Navi Mumbai.

82 patients who had single onset of ischaemic or haemorrhagic stroke (41 experimental group, 42 control group) were involved voluntarily. Participants with voluntary control grade 3 to 4 according to Brunnstorm criteria which all were having score ≥ 24 on mini mental state examination and who can walk and stand independently more than 10 meters were included in study. Subjects with presence of any other neurological/ musculoskeletal/ cardiopulmonary disease which interferes with mobility of participants and subjects with cognitive/ auditory/ visual problems were excluded.

Materials Used:



Fig. 1 and fig. 2 material used: Stopwatch, Stepper, headphones, audio tape, writing material, staircase

Initially functional gait performance of patients was assessed using outcome measures. Conventional protocol of rehabilitation for lower extremity was followed, which included,

- Stretching
- Strengthening
- Weight bearing activities
- Balance training

Experimental and control group received conventional exercises before gait training. The experimental group received gait training for 20 minutes/ day with guided MI for 10 minutes/day, 3 days/week for a period of 4 weeks, the control group received manual gait training for 30 minutes/day. Before gait training, MI was implemented in subjects of experimental group in an isolated, quite room. The MI was given via an audio recording which was recorded by physical therapist using standard Indian languages i.e. Hindi, Marathi and English. The participants performed MI in comfortable condition, sitting in a comfortable seat with an armrest and backrest. Before 10 minutes of MI,participants were guided to state of relaxation by deep breathing for 2 minute. This protocol was continued for 4 weeks. Reassessment of functional gait performance with outcome measures were done at the end of 4 weeks. These pre and post-scores were calculated and assessed.

Findings

Statistical calculations and analysis of data was performed using software package SPSS for windows, version 19.0 and results were calculated at 0.05 level of significance. Normal distribution of data was tested for all baseline parameters using **Shapiro Wilk test**.

		Groups	Category	Total	Mean	Std. Dev.
1 Age	A go	Control			63.49	+9.50
	Age	Expt.			61.93	+9.08

Table 1: Descriptive characteristics

Cont... Table 1: Descriptive characteristics

		Control	Male	22	-	-
	Candan	Control	Female	19	-	-
2	Gender	Expt.	Male	20	-	-
			Female	21	-	-
		Control	Right	30	-	-
	Dominance	Control	Left	11	-	-
3			Right	31	-	-
		Expt.	Left	10	-	-
				21	-	-
3	Tuna of strake	Control	Hemorrhagic	20	-	-
	Type of stroke	Evet	Ischemic	20	-	-
		Ехрі.	Hemorrhagic	21	-	-

Table 2- Measures of parameters in control group

Parameters	Control group								
		Test	N	Mean	SD	Paired T test	p value	Significance at 5 % level	
		Pre	41	4.9756	2.196	0.242	0.000	Yes	
FGA		Post	41	6.5854	2.167	-9.242	0.000		
		Test	N	Mean	SD	Wilcoxon signed rank test	p value	Significance at 5 % level	
	SSV	Pre	41	28.161	4.278	-3.952	0.000	Yes	
10 m walk test		Post	41	29.421	4.338				
	FV	Pre	41	31.3449	5.092	-4.203	0.000	Yes	
		Post	41	34.3256	6.019				

	Experimental group									
		Test	N	Mean	SD	Wilcoxon signed rank test	p value	Significance at 5 % level		
FGA		Pre	41	11.097	4.482	-5.119	0.000	Yes		
		Post	41	19.707	5.523					
	SSV	Pre	41	33.884	6.117	-5.585	0.000	Yes		
10 m walk test		Post	41	45.322	9.427					
	FV	Pre	41	41.473	9.074	5.584	0.000	Yes		
		Post	41	59.023	14.471					

Table 3- Measures of experimental group

Table 4: Measures of control and experimental group

Parameters		Post Study Experiment						
		Post Study	N	Mean	SD	Mann Whitney test	P-value	Significant at 5% level
FGA		Control	41	6.585	2.168	-7.382	0.000	Yes
		Experiment	41	19.707	5.524			
10 m walk test	SSV	Control	41	29.421	4.339	-6.826	0.000	Yes
		Experiment	41	45.323	9.428			
	FV	Control	41	34.326	6.020	-6.821	0.000	Yes
		Experiment	41	59.023	14.471			

Discussion

The main aim of this study was to found out effect of guided MI on functional gait performance in post stroke patients and compare it with conventional physical therapy. The results show that there is significant improvement in functional gait performance as reflected by significant p values of respective tests. Improvement in functional gait performance is assessed using functional gait assessment scale and 10 meter walk test.

10 Meter Walk Test:

This test is used to assess walking speed in meters per second over short duration. Walking velocity is calculated as preferred velocity and fast velocity. The result showed improvement in post values in experimental group after 4 weeks. There was statistically significant improvement (p= 0.000) found in post values when compared with control group as well as pre experimental values.

Walking is a complex whole body task which results in activation of cortical networks, thus suggesting that overlapping among neural substrates during real and imagined movements also applies tocomplex body movements.The observed improvement in walking speed can be due to learning effect that was induced by MI approach and took place at high levels of the CNS.⁽¹³⁾

Author Lacourse et al had already stated the efficacy of MI practice for activating cerebral and cerebellar sensorimotor networks and its potential to produce functional reorganization in contralesional brain side in post stroke hemiplegic subjects is explained by presence of regional cerebral activity during MI in the SMA, PMC, premotor area, superior parietal lobule and cerebellum studied on neuroimaging techniques. MI increases corticospinal excitability which is similar to execution of movement. MI tends to increase activation of striatal circuit of basal ganglia which may lead to long term storage of movement sequences prior to actual motor execution.⁽¹⁴⁾

Author Miyai et al had explained the potential role of mental practice in enhancing plastic CNS changes that accelerate functional recovery in patients with CNS lesions. There are three ways by which CNS plasticity can be enhanced i.e. 1. Expansion of focal primary motor area or primary somatosensory area activation believes to cause changes in movement or limb presentation.

2. Selective inhibition of unnecessary muscular activity.

3. Shift in functional activation loci that may be explained by transition from controlled to automatic processing structures.⁽¹⁵⁾

Functional Gait Assessment

This is 10 item scale in which each item is scored from 0-3 and used to assess postural stability during walking tasks. The result showed improvement in post values in experimental group after 4 weeks. There was statistically significant improvement (p=0.000) found in post values when compared with control group as well as pre experimental values. FGA is consist of items like gait on level surface, change in gait speed, gait with horizontal and vertical head turns, gait and pivot turn, step over obstacle, gait with narrow BOS, gait with eves closed, ambulating backwards, step.As explained earlier, gait on level surface and change in gait speed is due to learning practice that had taken place at high level in CNS due to motor imagery. Components like gait and pivot turn, step over obstacle and step mainly place demands on postural balance which is broadly classified as intentional balance control and reactive balance control as per author Savitha S et al., intentional balance control is maintain by brainstem which receives collaterals from descending cortical pathways originating from PMC and SMA for controlling voluntary motor movements which also have extensive connections with frontal and prefrontal area. Reactive balance control required during step over obstacle involves feedback mechanisms mediated by brainstem and spinal cord, which include monosynaptic, long-latency and triggered reflexes and forms "automatic" balance control system. One of the components of FGA is ambulating backwards places more demands on proprioceptive and somatosensory system as visual cues are eliminated. Somatosensory system receives higher control from primary somatosensory area which is activated by MI. (16)

Authors Dodakian L, Stewart JC et al concluded that MI during movement activated similar brain regions as movement alone but also engaged additional regions to play role in motor planning and MI, especially inferior parietal lobule and dorsolateral prefrontal cortex. ⁽¹⁷⁾

Author Silasi and Murphy states that degree of regaining motor skills varies among patients depending on location and extent of lesion. The degree to which motor ability is regained depends on size of neuronal population that are thought to reorganize during intervention period and also on intensity of post stroke therapy of which MI is a part.

Thus, previous researches suggested that motor recovery following rehabilitation could either be:

1) True motor recovery, which comes into play when alternative connections that are undamaged send commands to the same affected muscles to execute the motor commands

OR

2) Compensatory motor recovery which involves sending neuronal commands to alternative but unaffected muscle.

Conclusion

From the results obtained it can be concluded that guided MI improves functional gait performance in post stroke patients as compared to conventional treatment alone. Addition of this technique to locomotor rehabilitation protocol for post stroke patients can lead to enhancement of functional independence and quality of life.

Conflict of Interest:none

Funding:self- Funded

Ethical Clearance: Permission and approval to carry out research work was obtained from institutional ethical committee and head of the institute.

References

- Pandian JD, Sudhan P. Stroke epidemiology and stroke care services in India. J Stroke, 2013; 15; 158-134.
- Balasubramanian CK, Neptune RR, Kautz SA. Variability in spatiotemporal step characteristics and its relationship to walking performance post-

stroke. Gait Posture. 2009; 29: 408-414.

- Turns LJ, Neptune RR, Kautz SA. Relationships between muscle activity and anteroposterior ground reaction forces in hemiparetic walking. Arch Phys Med Rehabil. 2007;88(9):1127–35.
- Hafer-Macko CE, Ryan AS, Ivey FM, Macko RF. Skeletal muscle changes after hemiparetic stroke and potential beneficial effects of exercise intervention strategies. J Rehabil Res Dev (2008) 45(2).
- Belda-Lois J. M., Mena-del Horno S., Bermejo-Bosch I., Moreno J. C., Pons J. L., Farina D., et al. Rehabilitation of gait after stroke: a review towards a top-down approach. J. Neuroeng. Rehabil. 2011 Dec 13; 8:66.
- 6) Lafemina D. Serendip [Internet]. Bryn Mawr College: Diana Lafemina; 2002- How do we know that what we know? Tacit knowledge defined; 2017 Nov. 18. Available from http://serendip.brynmawr. edu/biology/b103/web2/dlafemina.html#1.
- De Vries, Mulder T. Motor imagery and stroke rehabilitation: a critical discussion. J Rehabil Med 2007; 39: 5–13.
- Hanakawa T, Immisch I, Toma K, Dimvan MA et al. Functional properties of brain areas associated with motor execution and imagery. J Neurophysiol. 2003 Feb; 89(2): 989-1002
- 9) Carlo A, Maria P, Valentina C et al. Primary motor and sensory cortex activation during motor performance and motor imagery: A functional magnetic resonance imaging study. Journal of Neuroscience 1 December 1996, 16 (23) 7688-7698.
- Zimmermann- Schlatter A, Schuster C, Puhan MA, et al. Efficacy of motor imagery in poststroke rehabilitation: a systematic review. J NeuroengRehabil 2008; 5:8
- Sharma N., Baron J.-C. Does motor imagery share neural networks with executed movement: a multivariate fMRI analysis. Front. Hum. Neurosci. 2013 Sep 12; 7:564.
- 12) Kumar VK, Chakrapani M, Kedambadi R. Motor imagery training on muscle strength and gait performance in ambulant stroke subjects- A randomized clinical trial. J ClinDiagn Res, 2016

230 Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy. October-December 2020, Vol. 14, No. 4Mar; 10 (3). with chronic post stroke

- Malouin F, Richards C. Mental practice for relearning locomotor skills. Physther. Vol. 90(2); Feb 2010; 240-241.
- 14) Lacourse M, Turner J, Randolph- Orr E et al. Cerebral and cerebellar sensorimotor plasticity following motor imagery- based mental practice of a sequential movement. J Rehabil Res Dev. 2004 Jul; 41(4): 505-24.
- 15) Dunsky A, Dickstein R et al. Home- based motor imagery training for gait rehabilitation of people

with chronic post stroke hemiparesis. Arch Phys Med Rehabil. 2008 Aug; 89(8); 1580-8.

- 16) Subramaniam S, Hui- Chan CW, Bharr T. Effect of dual tasking on intentional vs. reactive balance control in people with hemiparetic stroke. J Neurophysiol. 2014 Sep 1; 112(5): 1152-8.
- Dodakian L, Stewart JC et al. Motor imagery during movement activates the brain more than movement alone after stroke: a pilot study. J Rehabil MED 2014; 46: 843- 848.

Relationship between Anthropometric Parameters and Throwing Velocity among Male Undergraduate College Students: A Cross-Sectional Study

Yasir K¹, Nigat Fathima P.A²

¹Postgraduate, ²Assistant Professor, Yenepoya Physiotherapy College, Yenepoya University, Mangalore

Abstract

Background: For any persons to have an effective throw, it needs the maximum speed at which the ball is released, as well as precision targeting. Specific body types and throwing velocity can have a correlation which can be measured by anthropometric measurements and contrasted with the velocity thrown by individuals. This study is aimed to assess the relation between anthropometric parameters and throwing velocity.

Material & Method: It is a cross-sectional study conducted among 60 undergraduate male students aged 18-25 yrs at Yenepoya Physiotherapy College. The participants were included in present study after obtaining the informed consent. The study was approved by ethics committee of Yenepoya University. The participants were included in present study after obtaining the informed consent. The study was approved by ethics committee of university. Male undergraduate students aged between 18-25 yrs were included in present study. BUSHNELL radar device was used for evaluation of throwing velocity. ISAK protocol was used to evaluate the participant's anthropometric parameters.

Result: Among baseline parameters, age shows a positive correlation, in the age group 18-25 years. Weight and BMI shows a negative correlation. There is a positive correlation between the shoulder internal and external rotation strength and throwing velocity. The skinfold thickness of biceps, triceps, forearm, subscapularis, iliac crest, abdomen, and front thigh showed a negative correlation with p value <0.05.

Conclusion: This study concludes that, with the exception of age, weight, BMI, internal and external rotator strength of the shoulder, skin fold thickness, middle thigh girth, acromio-radial length, and femoral width, none of the other anthropometric parameters had a significant relationship with the velocity of throwing among male undergraduates.

Keywords: Bushnell Radar, Throwing Velocity, Anthropometry, ISAK, Skinfold.

Introduction

Throwing involves launching an object into flight using either one or both arms. There are different types of throwing and not all of the sports are the same. There is side arm and overhead throwing. Throwing in a competitive handball team is considered one of the most

Corresponding author: Nigat Fathima P.A Affiliation: Assistant professor Yenepoya Physiotherapy College Derlakatte, Mangalore 575081 important technical skills.⁽¹⁾ Throwing efficiency can be calculated in different ways, but throwing velocity is the most common measurement. The maximum voluntary speed is required for proper throw execution. ^(2,3)Throwing speed is an important aspect that we can alter. It has an effect on the game's achievements. So a player should throw with his maximum velocity. This speed is an essential aspect of success, since the faster the ball is thrown, the less time-keeper and defenders have to save the shot.⁽⁴⁾

Throwing is the sequential movement of the body from the larger, slower moving trunk to the quicker,

distal movements of the comparatively smaller segments of the hand and neck. The highest speed of ball release in combination with targeting accuracy is required for an effective throw. So some aspects of the player's body type may affect throwing velocity.⁽⁵⁾

Anthropometric parameters can be used to measure this association of body type with the throwing velocity. Anthropometry is the science of the measurement of human bodies and their parts. The anthropometric parameters are calculated using the International Society for the Advancement of Kineanthropometry (ISAK) protocol. A weighing machine, a stadiometer, a skin fold caliper and a measuring tape can be used to measure it.⁽⁶⁾

The throwing velocity can be determined with a radar device that operates with the concept of Doppler Effect. There should be a correct alignment when dealing with radar gun. It has a cosine effect, that is, if the target is in the radar gun's direct line, the calculated speed will be correct. With increased angle of incidence, the accuracy will decrease.⁽⁷⁾

A pilot study was done by limiting all the previously said limitations. In this study it was noted that only the skinfold thickness was giving a statistically significant correlation with throwing velocity. However, we were not able to measure appropriately the muscle strength by using hand held dynamometer especially for wrist, ankle and trunk muscles. So, the present study will be an extension of the pilot study done earlier. In this a pressure biofeedback unit will be used to measure the abovementioned muscle strength. So, a better conclusion may be made on the relationship between anthropometric parameters and throwing velocity.

Present study aimed to assess the relation between anthropometric parameters and throwing velocity which is estimated by correlating anthropometric measurements with throwing velocity.

Material & Method

It is a cross-sectional study conducted among 60 undergraduate male students aged 18-25 years at Yenepoya Physiotherapy College. The participants were included in present study after obtaining the informed consent. The study was approved by ethics committee of Yenepoya University. Male undergraduate students aged between 18-25 years were included in present study. The students with any musculoskeletal, neurological and cardiovascular condition or any other pathological condition contraindicating exercise participation and those who actively participated in sports in last 6 months were excluded.

Evaluation of throwing velocity was measured by a BUSHNELL⁽⁷⁾ radar device. Radar device was placed perpendicular in direction to player. The Throw took place in a length of normal cricket pitch i.e.; 66 feet. The Radar gun was placed behind the throwers crease. The participants were wearing sleeveless t-shirt. They were asked to perform overhead throw with their maximum velocity. All the participants were using the same tennis ball for the trail. Prior to the throw a 10-minute standardized warm up was given. For better results, 3 throws were given to each participant. There was 20 second rest between each throw. Average of three throws was analyzed.

Anthropometry evaluation was done by using ISAK protocol.⁽⁹⁾ Following 24 parameters were chosen. Basic parameter: Height (measured by a stadiometre in cm), Weight (measured by a weighing scale in kg); Skin folds (Measured using skin fold caliper) - Biceps, Triceps, Subscapularis, Forearm, Iliac crest, Abdominal, Front thigh, Medial calf; Girths - Arm (relaxed), Arm (flexed and tensed), Forearm, Wrist, Chest (mesosternal), Thigh, Calf; Length - Acromione - radiale, Radiale - stylion, Distylion - dactylion, Trochanterion - tibiallaterale, Tibia laterale - sphyriontibiale; Breadth - Humerus, Femur; Manual Muscle Testing: evaluated by handheld dynamometer (except wrist, ankle and trunk muscles), wrist, ankle and trunk muscles measured using pressure biofeedback unit.; Range of Motion: Using goniometry; Grip strength: Using hand grip dynamometer

All the collected data were expressed in terms of mean and SD. The strength of association between the variables was assessed using Pearson's correlation. a p-value <0.05 was considered statistically significant. The data entry was done in Microsoft excel sheet and statistical analysis using the SPSS v21 operating on windows 10.

Result

Total of 60 male undergraduate students were

included in present study who fulfilled inclusion criteria and consented. The mean age of the students was 21.43±2.40, BMI of 21.90±3.77 and other demographic physical parameters as in Table 1.

Table 1. Demographic details of the included participants			
Baseline data	Mean±SD		
Age (years)	21.43±2.40		
Height (cm)	173.28±5.4		
Weight (kg)	65.9±12.71		
BMI (kg/m2)	21.90±3.77		
Arm span (cm)	173.63±5.65		
Grip strength (kg)	36.85±4.66		
Throwing velocity	83.88±10.08		

Table 2. Parameters having significant correlation with throwing velocity.								
Parameters	Mean	SD	Pearson Correlation	P Value				
Skinfold (In mm)								
Biceps	4.22	3.63	419*	.021				
Triceps	9.39	5.81	363*	.049				
Subscapularis	10.56	5.82	577*	.001				
Forearm	5.12	4.11	400*	.029				
Illiac crest	15.02	9.14	533*	.002				
Abdomen	20.04	10.42	480*	.007				
Front thigh	13.70	8.86	501*	.005				
Medial calf	7.84	5.76	267	.154				
Right shoulder muscle strength (In Kgs)								
Internal rotators	23.4	3.67	0.308	0.017				
External rotators	21.72	3.08	0.325	0.011				
Girth (in cm)								
Right Midthigh girth	47.49	4.64	-0.286	0.027				
Length (in cm)								
Right Acromion-Radiale	30.57	1.87	-0.341	0.008				
Breadth (in cm)								
Femur	9.67	.70	-0.283	0.028				

Among baseline parameters age shows a positive correlation (r = 0.339, p value = 0.008), in the age group 18-25 years. Weight (r = -0.405, p value = 0.001) and BMI (r = -0.387, p value = 0.002) shows a negative correlation. The skinfold thickness of biceps, triceps, forearm, subscapularis, iliac crest, abdomen, and front thigh showed a pearsons correlation of -0.294, -0.287, -0.318, -0.431, -0.366, -0.291, and -0.319 respectively with a significance value less than 0.05. There is a positive correlation between the shoulder internal (r = 0.308, p value = 0.017) and external rotators (r = 0.325, p value = 0.011) strength and throwing velocity. The right side midthigh girth, Acromione- Radiale length, femoral breadth shows a negative correlation with throwing velocity with p value <0.05 (Table 2).

Discussion

The present study was done by correlating 24 anthropometric parameters to the throwing velocity to find the relationship between anthropometric parameter and throwing velocity among male undergraduate college students. The participants of the study were 60 male undergraduate college students aged between 18 to 25 years. ISAK protocol was used for measuring anthropometric parameters and throwing velocity was evaluated using a radar device.

A pilot study was done prior on 30 male undergraduate college students aged between 18 to 25 years, and found that except in skin fold thickness none of the other anthropometric parameters had a relation with the throwing velocity among male undergraduate college students. The present study was done by limiting all the limitation of previous pilot study and the results are in agreement with the pilot study, and we got some other important parameters which will influence the throwing velocity.

Among baseline parameters age shows a positive correlation (r = 0.339, p value = 0.008), so as age increases the throwing velocity also increases in the age group 18-25 years. Weight (r = -0.405, p value = 0.001) and BMI (r = -0.387, p value = 0.002) shows a negative correlation. The BMI has an adverse effect on throwing performance, which is if the BMI is more, the throwing velocity will be less and vice versa. So this result affirms the findings of the previous pilot study.

Throwing is subdivided into (1) windup phase, (2)late cocking phase and (3) arm acceleration phase.¹⁰ Shoulder external rotators are at their peak activity in late cocking phase to externally rotate the arm concentrically and shoulder internal rotators are at their greatest activity in arm acceleration phase of throwing.¹¹The present study conforms to these statements. There is a positive correlation between the shoulder internal (r = 0.308, p value = 0.017) and external rotators (r = 0.325, p value = 0.011) strength [Table 2] and throwing velocity. These findings may be useful for bowlers as they can perform the throw well if they have good shoulder internal and external rotators strength. A training program of a player who wants to improve their throwing velocity may set exercises concentrating more on strengthening of shoulder musculature.

A Negative association was found between skinfold thickness and throwing velocity. That is; for an individual with minimal skinfold thickness has more throwing velocity and vice versa. Biceps, triceps, forearm, subscapularis, iliac crest, belly, and front thigh skin thickness showed a pearson correlation of -0.294, -0.287, -0.318, -0.431, -0.366, -0.291, and -0.319, respectively and the significance value was less than 0.05, while the medial calf displayed a pearson correlation of -0.234 with a real value greater than 0.05 [Table 2]. These results may be beneficial for players as they can perform the throw well if their body has less fat.

We found significant correlations between BMI, and weight with throwing velocity, these results are different from those reported by Ferragut C et al. They found that body mass aspects are not related to throwing velocity. ⁽⁸⁾ However, our results are in line with Ferragut C et al in relation with femoral breadth and throwing velocity. Ferragut C et al. took all parameters from ISAK protocol except skinfold. But in this study skinfold was included which showed a significant correlation with throwing velocity.

A study by Pyne DB et al. concluded that growth and maturation primarily account for greater peak bowling speed in senior fast bowlers compared with their junior counterparts.¹² The present study is in agreement with the result of this study in case of age because we also got that as age increases from 18 to 25 years, the throwing velocity also increases.

Limitation: It was done in the southern zone of India and may not be generalized to the population based on the north as there may be some effect of the geographical area on the individual body type.

Conclusion

There is a significant association between age, weight, BMI, internal and external rotator strength of the shoulder, skin fold thickness, middle thigh girth, acromio-radial length, and femoral breadth and throwing velocity; no other anthropometric parameters relate to throwing velocity. Provides a highlight for coaches and players to include training sessions that are helpful in reducing skin fold thickness, thereby reducing weight and BMI, and to include training sessions on reinforcing shoulder muscles, particularly internal and external rotators, in order for the player to maintain or improve their throw performance.

Funding: Self

Conflict of Interest: Nil

Ethical Clearance- Yenepoya University Ethics Committee

References

- Zapartidis I, Skoufas D, Vareltzis I, Christodoulidis T, Toganidis T, Kororos P. Factors influencing ball throwing velocity in young female handball players. The Open Sports Medicine Journal. 2009; 3(1).
- Van den tillar r, ettema g. effect of body size and gender in over arm throwing performance. eur j applphysiol 2004; 91: 413-8
- Pawels J. The relationship between somatic development and motor ability, and throwing velocity in handball for secondary school students. Biomechanics of Sports and Kinanthropometry. University of Leuven. InSymposia Specialist Inc 1976 (pp. 357-69).

- 4) Vila H, Manchado C, Rodriguez N, Abraldes JA, AlcarazPE, Ferragut C. Anthropometric profile, vertical jump, and throwing velocity in elite female handball players by playing positions. The Journal of Strength & Conditioning Research. 2012 Aug 1; 26(8):2146-55.
- 5) Atwater AE. Biomechanics of overarm throwing movements and of throwing injuries. Exercise and sport sciences reviews. 1979 Jan 1; 7(1):43-86.
- 6) Mathavan SB. Relationship between Upper Body Anthropometric Parameters and throwing Performance of Handball Players. International Journal of Scientific and Research Publications, Sep 2012;2(9) :1-3 ISSN 2250-3153
- 7) Bushnell[®] velocity[™] manual.2003 Bushnell performance optics,www.bushnell.com
- Ferragut C, Vila H, Abraldes JA, Argudo F, Rodriguez N, Alcaraz PE. Relationship among maximal grip, throwing velocity and anthropometric parameters in elite water polo players. Journal of Sports Medicine and Physical Fitness. 2011 Mar 1; 51(1):26.
- Marfell-Jones MJ, Stewart AD, De Ridder JH. International standards for anthropometric assessment. 2012.
- Hussain I, Bari MA. Biomechanical Analysis of Cricket Ball Throwing Techniques. Journal of Education and Practice. 2011.
- Wooden MJ, Greenfield B, Johanson M, Litzelman L, Mundrane M, Donatelli RA. Effects of strength training on throwing velocity and shoulder muscle performance in teenage baseball players. Journal of orthopaedic & sports physical therapy. 1992 May; 15(5):223-8.
- Pyne DB, Duthie GM, Saunders PU, PetersenCA, Portus MR. Anthropometric and strength correlates of fast bowling speed in junior and senior cricketers. The Journal of Strength & Conditioning Research. 2006 Aug 1; 20(3):620-6.

Call for Papers / Article Submission

Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy has commenced publication since 2006. IJPOT will he published four times in a year.

Purpose & Scope: IJPOT is a multidisciplinary refereed journal devoted to disseminating rigorous research on all aspects of the physiotherapy and occupational therapy to enhance learning. The journal seeks to be a catalyst for multidisciplinary dialogue amongst researchers and practitioners worldwide in the fields of learning and cognition, education, and technology, with a view to improving practice and achieving real-world impact in technology enhanced learning.

The journal encourages research from theoretical perspectives, research reports of evidence based practice as well as praxis research work that focuses on the interface between theory and practice and how each can support the other. In addition, the journal strongly encourages reports of research carried out within or involving countries in the Asia— Pacific region.

Invitation to submit papers: A general invitation is extended to authors to submit journal papers for publication in IJPOT.

The following guidelines should be noted:

- The article must be send by E-mail in word only as attachment. Hard copy need not be send.
- The article should be accompanied by a declaration from all authors that it is an original work and has not been sent to an other journal for publication.
- · As a policy matter, journal encourages articles regarding new concepts and new information.
- Article should have a Title
- Names of authors
- Your Affiliation (designations with college address)
- Abstract
- Key words
- Introduction or back ground
- Material and Methods
- Findings Conclusion
- Acknowledgements Interest of conflict
- · References in Vancouver style.
- Please quote references in text by superscripting
- · Word limit 2500-3000 words, MSWORD Format, single file

Our Contact Info: Institute of Medico-Legal Publications

Logix Office Tower, Unit No. 1704, Logix City Centre Mall Sector- 32, Noida - 201 301 (Uttar Pradesh) Mob: 09971888542, Ph.: +91 120 429 4015, E-mail: editor.ijpot@gmail.com, Website: www.ijpot.com



Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Occupational Therapy

CALL FOR SUBSCRIPTIONS

About the Journal Print-ISSN: 0973-5666 Electronic - ISSN: 0973-5674, Frequency: Quarterly (4 issues per volume).

An essential journal for all Physiotherapists & Occupational therapists provides professionals with a forum in which to discuss today's challenges-identifying the philosophical and conceptural foundations of the practice; sharing innovative evaluation and treatment techniques; learning about and assimilating new methodologies developing in related professions; and communicating information about new practice settings. The journal serves as a valuable tool for helping therapists deal effectively with the challenges of the field. It emphasizes articles and reports that are directly relevant to practice. The journal is internationally indexed and is also covered by Index Copernicus (Poland).

Journal Title	Print Only	
Indian Journal of Physiotherapy and Oc- cupational Therapy	INR 9000	

NOTE FOR SUBSCRIBERS

- Advance payment required by cheque/demand draft in the name of "Institute of Medico-Legal Publications" payable at New Delhi.
- Cancellation not allowed except for duplicate payment.
- Claim must be made within six months from issue date.
- A free copy can be forwarded on request.

Send all payment to : Institute of Medico-Legal Publications

Logix Office Tower, Unit No. 1704, Logix City Centre Mall Sector- 32, Noida - 201 301 (Uttar Pradesh) Mob: 09971888542, +91 120 429 4015, E-mail: editor.ijpot@gmail.com, Website: www.ijpot.com

Registered with Registrar of Newspapers for India (Regd. No. DELENG/2007/20988)

Published, Printed and Owned : Dr. R.K. Sharma

Printed : Printpack Electrostat G-2, Eros Apartment, 56, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019

Published at: Institute of Medico Legal Publications Pvt. Ltd., Logix Office Tower, Unit No. 1704, Logix City Centre Mail Sector- 32, Noida - 201 301 (Uttar Pradesh) Editor : Dr. R.K. Sharma, Mobile: + 91 9971888542, Ph. No: +91 120 429 4015